
1

AGENDA
  

Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 16 September 2016

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY 26 SEPTEMBER 2016 AT 6.30 PM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
OX14 4SB

Members of the Committee:
Councillors

South Vale
Kevin Bulmer (co chair) Simon Howell (co chair)
Charles Bailey Dudley Hoddinott
Alan Thompson Chris Palmer
John Walsh Henry Spencer

Substitutes

South
David Dodds
Paul Harrison
Toby Newman
Richard Pullen

Vale
Every political group may appoint all or 
some or its members who are not voting 
members to serve as substitute 
members, provided that they are not 
members of the Cabinet

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  
These include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For 
this or any other special requirements (such as access facilities) 
please contact the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as 
much notice as possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies  

2 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and other interests in 
respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.

3 Minutes  (Pages 4 - 12)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 
2016 (attached).

4 Urgent items  

5 Statements, petitions and questions received from  members 
of the public  

6 Audit Results Report 2015-16  (Pages 13 - 48)

To consider the report of EY (attached).

7 Statement of accounts 2015/16  (Pages 49 - 233)

RECOMMENDED: to agree that the chairmen sign the South Oxfordshire and Vale 
of White Horse Statement of Accounts 2015/16 (attached).

8 Annual governance statement 2015/16 - South Oxfordshire  
(Pages 234 - 253)

To consider South Oxfordshire’s annual governance statement 2015/16 (attached).

RECOMMENDED: To approve South Oxfordshire District Council’s Annual
Governance Statement 2015/16 to form part of the statement of accounts.

9 Annual governance statement 2015/16 - Vale of White Horse  
(Pages 254 - 273)

To consider Vale of White Horse’s annual governance statement 2015/16 
(attached).

RECOMMENDED: To approve Vale of White Horse District Council’s Annual
Governance Statement 2015/16 to form part of the statement of accounts.

10 Letter of representation to the external auditor - South 
Oxfordshire  (Pages 274 - 277)

RECOMMENDED: to agree that the chairman signs the letter of representation to 
the external auditor (attached).



3

11 Letter of representation to the external auditor - Vale of White 
Horse  (Pages 278 - 281)

RECOMMENDED: to agree that the chairman signs the letter of representation to 
the external auditor (attached).

12 Internal audit activity report - second quarter 2016/17  (Pages 
282 - 323)

To consider the report of the assurance manager (attached).

13 Internal audit management report quarter two 2016/2017  
(Pages 324 - 333)

To consider the report of the assurance manager (attached).

14 Audit and governance work programme  (Pages 334 - 336)

To review the work programme (attached).

Exclusion of the public including the press

To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting 
for the following items of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 

(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1, 2 and 5, Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 

(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information.

15 Application of restrictions imposed by Section 157 of the 
Housing Act 1985 in South Oxfordshire - consideration of the 
local government ombudsman's report  

To consider the head of HR, IT and technical services’ report.

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic Services



1

Minutes

OF A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

HELD ON MONDAY 4 JULY 2016 AT 6.30 PM
MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 

OX14 4SB

Present 

Members:
South Oxfordshire District Councillors:  Charles Bailey, Kevin Bulmer, Dudley 
Hoddinott, Simon Howell, Chris Palmer, Henry Spencer, Alan Thompson and John 
Walsh

Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Dudley Hoddinott, Simon Howell 
(Chairman), Chris Palmer and Henry Spencer

Officers: Sandy Bayley, Steve Bishop, David Buckle, Steven Corrigan, Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves, Mark Gibbons, Simon Hewings, Paul Howden, Fiona Kaluza, William Jacobs, 
Nilesh Parmar, Adrianna Partridge, Margaret Reed and Ron Schrieber

Also present: Andrew Brittain (EY) and Paul Thorogood (Capita)

1 Apologies 

None.

2 Declarations of Interest 

None.

3 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 21 
March 2016 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.

4 Statements, petitions and questions from members of the 
public 

The following questions/statements had been submitted regarding Abbey Meadows 
Pool:

Public Document Pack

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



2

1. From Naomi Richardson

“A community consultation was held with 81% of respondents voting for Option A: ‘a 
place to swim and play’. The wording of this consultation outcome was as follows:
‘Scenario A would see the outdoor pool refurbished to ensure that it can 
continue to remain in operation over the summer for years to come. We expect 
this work to be expensive, so this limits other improvements that can be made 
to the rest of Abbey Meadow’
The other consultation outcomes both involved demolition of the pool to create either 
a restaurant or an amphitheatre; both substantial capital projects. Based on the 
above, the expectation was that there would be substantial capital investment in the 
outdoor pool to bring it up to date, reduce maintenance costs and increase 
revenue.
 
However, not a single penny of the capital budget available is being invested in the 
pool. The Vale has responded that refurbishing the pool is too expensive. There is a 
lot of concern regarding where the Vale got their numbers from that seem to have 
stopped any investment in the pool. These are not estimates from pool contractors, 
but an ‘all in’ budget for everything that could possibly be done picked out by general 
consultants (415K). They do not seem to resemble any figures from the ‘real world’ 
from similar projects easily looked up on google (i.e. Hinksey refurbishment around 
300K; to build a brand new 20m pool form scratch = 500K). They are well in excess 
of quotes the ‘Friends of the Abbey Meadow Outdoor Pool’ have had in the past.
 
In fact, one major item (plant room upgrade - £195,000) has already been shown to 
be unnecessary, following the maintenance (15K) that was achieved over the winter; 
this was a budgeting error of at least £180K!
 
Based on figures from Hinksey and Abingdon, I have created a mathematical model 
of net present value (NPV) for the pool investment. NPV is the normal way of 
determining capital investment decisions (not just costs).
 
Assuming that half of the 615K budget is invested in the pool, and that refurbishment 
would:

a) double attendance from 10,000 to 20,000 (Hinksey is 67,000 attendance, so 
this is a very modest estimate)

b) Prices were £5/swim on average (Hinksey is Adult = £6, U17/over 60/student = 
£4)

Then by 2024, the extra income generated would have paid for the 307.5K 
investment PLUS an additional contribution of £92,500.
If you are interested in different numbers for price and attendance, I have the 
spreadsheet and can model that easily.
 
In contrast, not investing in refurbishing the pool risks a hefty bill if the pool lining 
fails, additional maintenance costs, and the potential for litigation should injuries 
continue to result from the known issue with the lining cutting children’s feet. In 
addition, attendance figures are likely to decline over time as the pool is increasingly 
outdated and more people experience injuries.
 
Can the committee recommend that the decision not to re-invest in the outdoor pool 
be re-examined as tax-payers do not seem to be getting the best value for money 
from leaving the pool as it is and will be exposed to significant financial risk?”

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



3

2. From Peter Harbour

“Will the chairman of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee please 
request the Council Leader and the Portfolio holder for Leisure to discuss 
openly with the Friends of Abbey Meadow Outdoor Pool and, as appropriate, 
with officers and operating contractors to arrange to share ideas on how to 
save money on the Abbey Meadow Vision, focussing that vision on the main 
and most popular item, the pool, such that it will be relined sensibly, 
fundraising from grants explored and less popular schemes discontinued? 
 The aim would be to produce an economically viable scheme, taking into 
consideration capital and maintenance costs and revenue.  

The following notes give some background to this question and should be 
considered in conjunction with the question.

1. The Pool Friends raised publicity for the outdoor pool during the last four years and 
during those four years, the average attendance (over the ~ 100 day season) 
increased substantially

 from 6,000       (2007 - 2011)
 to   10,200       (2012 - 2015)

Average increase over last 4 years   = 70%, increasing like-for-like revenue by 
the same 70%.

2.  Council Leader Matthew Barber and Leisure Portfolio holder, Elaine Ware, were 
told In April 2014, by a consultant engaged by the Pool Friends, that the pool must be 
relined, costing ~£100k for a simple relining:  this was overdue, would make the pool 
more attractive and save on maintenance costs year on year.  [Note: revenue would 
then increase due to a further leap in attendance, raising prospects of increased 
opening hours and duration of season, so moving the pool operation toward profit.]

3.  The Vale Council and consultants recently supplied me with "estimated costs" 
(see footnote) upwards from £521,000 to refurbish the pool.  See footnote, FN3.  No 
published technical specification underlies this estimate, nor is there a response to 
requests to discuss technical details.  Discussion and technical compromise might 
reduce some costs, postpone others and even remove some from consideration 
altogether.    Grants could be raised and as it is well known, the criteria for some 
grant-giving foundations would influence design, so these criteria should be 
considered at the design stage (the Pool Friends initiated raising grants upwards 
from £100k in 2007/8 - rejected!).  Progress towards a sustainable and inclusive 
scheme can only be made by working together with Pool Friends and the community.

4. Meanwhile Council Officers are understood to be wastefully drawing up detailed 
requests for tender on Abbey Meadow schemes which should not be pursued 
because they did not qualify anywhere nearly as highly in the public consultation as did 
the pool and its refurbishment.

FN3.  Estimated costs used for "totally refurbishing" the pool were:
·         main pool tank refurbishment (including the creation of a beach area) - £280,000
·         plant room upgrade - £195,000
·         replacement pool surround - £41,000
·         skimmers - £5,000”

As neither member of the public was in attendance it was agreed to provide written 
responses.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



4

5 Review of complaints received during 2015/16 

The committee considered the chief executive’s report which provided information 
and statistics about complaints received during 2015/16.

The committee was informed that, due to the fact that the annual review had been 
brought forward from September to this meeting, the Local Government 
Ombudsman’s (LGO) annual report was not yet available. Once received, this would 
be circulated to members.

The committee noted that the number of complaints received by South Oxfordshire 
District Council in 2015/16 was broadly in line with the previous two years whereas 
complaints to Vale of White Horse had increased with approximately 40% relating to 
planning.

Appendices 2 and 3 to the report set out details of LGO decisions in 2015/16.  It was 
agreed that the level of detail provided was not required where there had been no 
finding against either council.

RESOLVED: to note the review of complaints report 2015/16. 

6 Impact of the corporate services outsourcing and 5 councils 
partnership on the internal control environment 

At its meeting held on 21 March 2016, the committee expressed concerns about 
certain internal control weaknesses in existing services being delivered by Capita and 
those to be delivered by Capita and Vinci after 31 July 2016.  Accordingly it 
considered a report from the strategic director and interim five councils partnership 
transition manager which set out the impact of the corporate services outsourcing 
and the five councils partnership on the internal control environment.

The report stated that several important existing internal control safeguards would 
continue unaffected by the outsourcings. In response to a question regarding the 
effect of staff turnover, the committee was informed that a steering group comprising 
director level officers at each of the partner councils would be recruiting a 
replacement transition manager. The councils had also created a joint client team 
comprising 25.5 full time equivalents to manage the contractors.  To date, 
approximately half of this team had been recruited from existing client officers from 
each of the councils.  The team was headed by a client relationship director who had 
been externally appointed.

In response to a question about internal audit’s role in managing the risk of the 
project, the assurance manager reported that some flexibility had been built into the 
2016/17 internal audit plan to enable internal audit to intervene should the need 
arise. She and the external auditors had met with the strategic director to discuss 
assurance matters relating to the outsourcing.

As this was likely to be Steve Bishop’s final appearance before the committee, prior 
to his leaving his post, the chairman, on behalf of the committee, thanked him for his 
comprehensive report and wished him every success in the future.

RESOLVED: to note the report. 
Page 7

Agenda Item 3



5

7 Agresso control environment 

Further to the concerns expressed by the committee at its previous meeting 
regarding the control environment issues identified within recent audit reports and 
elsewhere, the committee considered a report from Capita which set out the findings 
from a review of the current procedures, controls and processes within the shared 
service centre accounts payable function.  Capita’s Head of Service - Finance and 
Accountancy Local Government Services attended to provide further information and 
answer questions.

The committee was informed that the quality of service delivered by Capita’s 
accounts payable team in Shepton Mallett deteriorated a year ago following an 
abnormal increase in staff turnover.  The problems had been exacerbated by the fact 
that the set up of the Agresso system used by South Oxfordshire and Vale of White 
Horse councils was unique to these councils and by the demarcation between 
accounts payable and income received staff.

These issues had been addressed by:

 The implementation of a business continuity plan
 The team being fully staffed with staff rotating between accounts payable and 

income received
 The Agresso system being decommissioned and replaced with Integra in 2017
 The Shepton Mallett service moving to Chichester to be part of a larger team.

Within last year’s 15,335 accounts payable invoices, the review had identified the 
potential proportion of duplicate invoices to be in the region of 1.52% which would 
equate to 233 invoices across the two councils. In response to a member’s request, 
Capita’s Head of Service - Finance and Accountancy Local Government Services 
undertook to circulate to members the likely transaction value of these duplicates.

RESOLVED: to note the report.

8 Internal audit activity report - first quarter 2016/17 

The committee considered the assurance manager’s report on internal audit activity 
for the first quarter of 2016/17.

Eleven audits had been completed since the March committee meeting. Of these, 
four had received limited assurance and the key points and findings were presented 
to the committee.

Joint Project Management 2015/16

Members expressed concerns about the apparent inadequacy of the current project 
management framework and wished to see the report’s recommendations 
implemented as soon as possible.  They also suggested that, rather than develop 
their own systems and software, both councils utilise one of the existing project 
management systems.

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



6

Joint Elections and Election Payments 2015/16 

In response to a member’s question, the committee was informed that of the 
£14,464.67 underpayments to three town/parish councils, approximately £10,000 
related to one council.  These errors had been corrected.

Joint HR Recruitment 2015/16

The committee was informed that the failure to consistently carry out pre-employment 
checks in accordance with agreed procedures, as identified in the report, had 
occurred in the aftermath of the Crowmarsh fire and when two staff had been on 
maternity leave.  The checks were now being carried out.

The committee noted the reasons why management had not agreed the report’s 
recommendation to widen the range of officers who are subject to Disclosure Barring 
Service (DBS) checks to include those who have financial responsibilities and/or 
access to sensitive personal information.  However, it was the Committee’s view that 
staff who have access to sensitive information should be subject to DBS checks.

Joint Insurance 2015/16

The committee was informed that the recently appointed risk and insurance officer 
was currently compiling an action plan and assurance framework which would 
address all of the report’s recommendations.  This would be circulated to members 
as soon as possible.

Overdue recommendations

Appendix 2 to the report summarised all overdue recommendations within each 
service area.  The committee congratulated the officers on the clarity of this appendix 
but expressed concern about the significant increase in the number of overdue 
recommendations relating to planning.

RESOLVED: to
 
(a) note the internal audit activity report for the first quarter of 2015/16;
 
(b) request that a follow up report on joint  project management 2015/16 be submitted 

to the January 2017 meeting;

(c) request the head of HR, IT and technical services and internal audit to resolve the 
issue of which posts are subject to DBS checks and report back to the committee; 

(d) request the risk and insurance officer to circulate the insurance renewal 
documentation to members of the committee for information; and

(d) request the head of planning to attend the September 2016 meeting to report on 
the service’s overdue recommendations.

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



7

9 Internal audit management report - first quarter 2016/17 

The committee considered the assurance manager’s management report on internal 
audit for the first quarter of 2016/17.

The committee was informed that the assurance manager was currently assessing 
with external audit the additional reviews to be undertaken on the five councils 
partnership.  The impact of this partnership on internal audit and the manner in which 
reviews would be carried out across the five councils was not yet known but, as the 
three partner councils’ outsourcing contracts would not come into effect until August 
2017, there was time to resolve these matters. 

RESOLVED: to note the internal audit management report for the first quarter of 
2016/17.

10 Internal audit annual report 2015/16 

The committee considered the assurance manager’s annual report on internal audit 
activity during 2015/16. 
 
The report stated that the assurance manager was satisfied that sufficient internal 
audit work has been undertaken to allow a reasonable conclusion to be drawn as to 
the adequacy and effectiveness of both council’s risk management, control and 
governance processes.

Three areas were given full assurance – housing and council tax reduction scheme, 
national non-domestic rates and pro-active anti-fraud.  Areas of weakness in the 
control environment had been identified in procurement, payroll, elections and 
election payments, creditor payments, insurance, the cash office, HR recruitment, 
partnership performance monitoring, project management and neighbourhood 
planning grants.  Where internal audit identified weaknesses which required remedial 
action, recommendations had been made and discussed with officers.  

Notwithstanding the assurance manager’s overall opinions, internal audit had 
identified a number of opportunities for improving controls and procedures across the 
councils which officers had generally responded to positively

RESOLVED: to note the internal audit annual report 2015/2016

11 External auditor's fees letters 

The committee considered the external auditor’s letters on audit and certification fees 
for 2016/17. Andrew Brittain from EY reported that the indicative fee for South 
Oxfordshire District Council, based on past experience, would be £48,186 and, for 
the certification of claims and returns, the indicative fee was £9,623. For Vale of 
White Horse District Council, the respective fees were £47,129 and £12,488.
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



8

In response to a member’s question, the committee was informed that planned fees 
for both councils in 2015/16 were likely to increase as a result of additional work 
carried out in relation to internal control issues.  However, there was provision within 
the contract with Capita for both councils to claim back this additional expenditure.
 
RESOLVED: to note the external auditor’s indicative fees for audit work in 2016/17. 

12 Treasury outturn 2015-16 

The committee considered the head of finance’s report which monitored the treasury 
management activities of both South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District 
councils for the financial year 2015/16.
 
The committee noted that both councils had remained within the prudential code 
limits set in the treasury management strategy and had exceeded their treasury 
budgeted income targets for 2015/16.  During the year there had not been the need 
for either council to borrow.

In response to a member’s question, the committee was informed that neither council 
had funds invested in European banks at present. 

RESOLVED: to
 
(a) note the treasury outturn report 2015/16; and
 
(b) advise Cabinets that the committee is satisfied that the treasury activities in 

2015/16 have been carried out in accordance with the treasury management 
strategy and policy. 

13 Audit and governance work programme 

The committee reviewed and noted its work programme which set out matters 
scheduled for consideration at future meetings.

The committee was informed that a report on the Local Government Ombudsman’s 
findings and recommendations regarding two similar complaints from South 
Oxfordshire residents concerning a restriction on the sale of properties under Section 
157 of the Housing Act 1985 would be submitted to the next meeting.

14 Exclusion of the public including the press 

RESOLVED: that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public, including the press, be excluded from the remainder of the meeting 
to prevent the disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in Section 100(I) 
and Part 1 of Schedule 12A, as amended, to the Act when the following item is 
considered.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



9

15 Internal audit report - planning application 

The committee considered a report summarising the follow up of a recent internal 
audit investigation within development management, planning.

RESOLVED: to note the report.

The meeting closed at 8.30 pm

Chairman Date

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



South Oxfordshire and Vale of
White Horse District Councils
Audit Results Report - ISA (UK and Ireland) 260
for the year ended 31 March 2016

September 2016

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Page 14

Agenda Item 6



EY ÷ i

Contents

1. Executive summary.......................................................................................................1

2. Responsibilities and purpose of our work ......................................................................3

3. Financial statements audit.............................................................................................4

4. Value for money............................................................................................................7

Appendix A – Uncorrected audit differences – South Oxfordshire DC ....................................9

Appendix B – Independence...............................................................................................10

Appendix C – Auditor fees ..................................................................................................11

Appendix D – Draft audit report ..........................................................................................13

Appendix E – Management representation letter.................................................................21

Appendix F – Required communication with the audit committee ........................................31

In April 2015 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued ‘‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and
audited bodies 2015-16’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website
(www.psaa.co.uk)
The Statement of Responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The ‘Terms of Appointment from 1 April 2015’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must
comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and statute,
and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities. This report is intended
solely for the use of the members of the audited body. We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third
party.
Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner,
1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do
all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact
our professional institute.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Executive summary

EY ÷ 1

1. Executive summary

The National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) requires us to report to those
charged with governance – the Joint Audit and Governance Committee – on the work carried
out to discharge our statutory audit responsibilities, together with any governance issues
identified. This report summarises findings from the 2015/16 audit, which is substantially
complete. It includes messages arising from our audit of the financial statements and the
results of our work to assess arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
the Councils’ use of resources.

We show below the results and our conclusions on the significant areas of the audit.

Status of
the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of the financial statements for
the year ended 2015/16. Subject to satisfactory completion of the we
will issue an audit opinion in accordance with Appendix D:

· reviewing the final version of the financial statements
· completing the subsequent events review
· receipt of the signed management representation letter

We have performed the procedures outlined in our Audit Plan and
anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion on the financial statements.

We expect to conclude that the Council has put in place proper
arrangements to secure value for money in its use of resources.

We have performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office
(NAO) for the Whole of Government Accounts submission. We had no
issues to report.

We expect to issue the audit certificate at the same time as the audit
opinion.

Audit
differences

We have identified one unadjusted audit difference in the South
Oxfordshire DC draft financial statements, which management have
chosen not to adjust. We ask the Joint Audit and Governance Committee
to consider approving management’s rationale for this and include this in
the Letter of Representation if they decide to approve it. Appendix A to
this report sets out the uncorrected misstatement. Aggregated
unadjusted audit differences of £123k if made would have no impact on
useable reserves.
Our audit also identified several audit differences which our team have
highlighted to management for amendment. These have been corrected
during the audit.
For South Oxfordshire DC there was one reclassification error in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement totalling £145k. This
amount had been incorrectly recognised in Other investment income
(long lease) line and should have been in Income and expenditure in
relation to investment properties (income). This had no overall impact on
the statement.
For Vale of White Horse DC we identified one error relating to the
cashflow statement, where £2,116k relating to the cash proceeds from
the disposal of assets omitted from the statement.  The adjustment was
to include (£2,116k) in the “Adjustment for profit/loss on investment and

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Executive summary

EY ÷ 2

finance activity” line in the cashflow from operating activities section,
and £2,116k in the “Proceeds from sale of PPE, investment property and
intangible” line in the cashflow from investing activities section.
These adjustments have not had an impact on useable reserves.

Scope and
materiality

In our audit plan presented at the March Joint Audit and Governance
Committee meeting, we set materiality of£1.281m for South Oxfordshire
DC and £1.158m for Vale of White Horse DC when deciding on our audit
procedures. We have reassessed this based on the Council’s actual
results and we have increased this amount to £1.354m and £1.176m
respectively due to the gross operating expenditure for 2015/16 being
higher than the prior year, which was the basis of our initial materiality.
The threshold for reporting audit differences, which have an impact on
the financial statements, has increased from £64,072 to £67,700 for
South Oxfordshire DC and £57,932 to £58,818 for Vale of White Horse
DC. The basis of our assessment is 2% of gross operating expenditure,
which is consistent with prior years.
We carried out our work in accordance with the Audit Plan, this included
placing reliance on a number of key financial systems. However as we
verbally updated the committee in March, due to control failures
identified through our testing and the work of internal audit we were
unable to place reliance on controls in the accounts payable system for
both Councils, and for the accounts receivable system for South
Oxfordshire DC.
We therefore adopted a substantive approach to gain assurance for these
areas, resulting in larger sample sizes. There are no matters to report in
relation to the substantive testing we performed.

Significant audit
risks

We identified the following audit risks during our planning, and reported
them in our audit plan:

· Risk of management override
‘Addressing audit risks’ sets out how we have gained audit assurance

over this issue.

Other reporting
issues

We have no other matters to report.

Control
observations

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or
operation of an internal control that might result in a material
misstatement in the financial statements and which the Council does not
know about.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Councils’ staff for their assistance during
the audit.

Andrew Brittain

Executive Director
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



Responsibilities and purpose of our work

EY ÷ 3

2. Responsibilities and purpose of our work

The Councils’ responsibilities
The Councils are responsible for preparing and publishing its Statement of Accounts,
accompanied by the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Councils report
publicly on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has
monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements, and any planned
changes in future.

The Councils are also responsible for having proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Purpose of our work
Our audit was designed to:

· express an opinion on the 2015/16 financial statements and the consistency of  other
information published with them;

· report by exception on the AGS;
· consider and report any matters that prevent us being satisfied that the Councils have

proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources (the value for money conclusion); and

· discharge our statutory duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice.

This report also contains our findings on any areas of audit emphasis and our views on any
significant deficiencies in internal control or the Councils’ accounting policies and key
judgements.

We also review and report to the National Audit Office on the Whole of Government Accounts
return. The extent of our review is specified by the National Audit Office.

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



Financial statements audit

EY ÷ 4

3. Financial statements audit

Addressing audit risks
We identified the following audit risks when we planned our audit, and reported them in our
Audit Plan. We set out below how we have gained the necessary audit assurance.

A significant audit risk is an inherent risk which is both more likely to happen and has a
greater effect if it does happen; so it requires special audit consideration. For significant risks,
we obtain a relevant understanding of the entity’s controls and assess their design and
implementation.

We also identified the following ‘other’ audit risks.

Significant Risks
(including fraud risks)

Audit procedures performed Assurance gained and
issues arising

Risk of management override
As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland)
240, management is in a unique
position to perpetrate fraud because
of its ability to manipulate accounting
records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial
statements by overriding controls
that otherwise appear to be
operating effectively. We identify and
respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

· Tested the appropriateness of
journal entries recorded in the
general ledger and other
adjustments made in the preparation
of the financial statements

· Reviewed accounting estimates for
evidence of management bias [add
specific details as required]

· Evaluated the business rationale for
any significant unusual transactions
[add specific details as required]

· From our procedures in relation
to journal entries we have not
identified any indication
management override of
controls.

· Our review of accounting
estimates has found that
estimates are reasonable, and
there was no indication of bias
in the calculation of the
estimates.

· From our review of the general
ledger, and other audit
procedures we have not
identified any significant or
unusual transactions which are
outside the usual course of
business.

Other Risks Audit procedures performed Assurance gained and
issues arising

As the Councils moves towards the
implementation of the new corporate
services contract there is risk that
finance staff may leave the Councils.
This could result in the Councils
having insufficient resource to
deliver the financial statements in
line with the agree audit timetable,
and cause delays in responding to
audit queries.

· Regular discussions with key officers
to ensure that any delays are
communicated at an early stage

· Identifying opportunities to bring our
work forward

The accounts were delivered within
the agreed timescales and issues
were resolved in a timely manner.

Following changes in accounting
standards, the Councils have
identified a number of assets
misclassified in prior periods.  The
Councils propose to reclassify these
assets in the 2015/16 financial
statements. Given the value of the
assets, there is a higher inherent risk
of error.

· Review of the reclassification entries

· Review of the disclosures to ensure
compliance with the CIPFA code

We have agreed the reclassification
entries and confirmed that these are
appropriate.
The disclosures made in the financial
statements are compliant with the
requirements of the CIPFA Code.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



Financial statements audit

EY ÷ 5

Other matters
As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we
must tell the Councils of significant findings from the audit and any other matters significant to
oversight of the Councils’ financial reporting process, including the following:

· qualitative aspects of accounting practices, estimates and disclosures;

· matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be reported to those charged
with governance, e.g. issues about fraud, compliance with laws and regulations, external
confirmations and related party transactions;

· any significant difficulties encountered during the audit; and

· other audit matters of governance interest.

We have no matters to report.

Control themes and observations
It is the Councils’ responsibility to develop and implement systems of internal financial control
and to have proper arrangements to monitor their actual adequacy and effectiveness. Our
responsibility as auditor is to consider whether the Councils have arrangements to satisfy itself
that this is indeed the case.

We have tested controls only as far as necessary to complete our audit. We are not expressing
an opinion on the overall effectiveness of internal control.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal
control that might result in a material misstatement in the financial statements that the
Councils do not know about.

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm that it is not misleading
or inconsistent with other information arising from the audit or our knowledge of the Councils.

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



Financial statements audit

EY ÷ 6

Request for written representations
We have asked for a representation letter to gain management’s confirmation on a number of
matters, as outlined in Appendix E.

Whole of Government Accounts
We also review and report to the National Audit Office on the Councils’ Whole of Government
Accounts returns. The extent of our review is specified by the National Audit Office.

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



Value for money

EY ÷ 7

4. Value for money

We must consider whether the Councils
have ‘proper arrangements’ to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources. This is known as our
value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by
statutory guidance issued by the National
Audit Office. They consist of the Councils’
arrangements to:

► take informed decisions;
► deploy resources in a sustainable

manner; and
► work with partners and other third

parties.

Overall conclusion
We identified one significant risk relating to both Councils for these criteria:

· Working with partners and 3rd Parties – the risk relates to the tendering for a new
corporate services contract with 3 other local authorities

We have performed the procedures as outlined in our audit plan.

We therefore expect to conclude that the Councils have proper arrangements to secure value
for money in their use of resources.

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Value for money

EY ÷ 8

Significant risks
The table below presents the findings of our planned work;

VFM risk identified in our audit plan

Corporate Services Contract
The two Councils have tendered for a new corporate services contract with 3 other local
authorities.  The procurement is for 2 lots, one for data based services and one for property based
services.  The contracts are for a period of up to 9 years to 30 September 2025, with forecast
savings of £50.65m across the 5 councils.
These contracts are due to start in the 2016/17 financial year; however the contracts have been
procured and entered into in 2015/16.
We consider there to be a significant risk to our value for money conclusion in relation to the
procurement of the contracts and in establishing the governance arrangements between the
Councils.

Our approach
to the risk

Key findings

Review of the
evaluation
process for
awarding the
preferred
supplier for
both lots.

Each stage of the procurement process was focussed on retaining and
improving customer service, whilst increasing value for money. The
procurement strategy considered by the Project Board, established the key
outcomes the councils wished to achieve for the new services and this was built
into many areas of the invitation to tender including customer service, health
and safety and quality assurance.  Tenderers were required to submit service
delivery plans, which were compared to these outcomes.
The evaluation was carried out on the basis of a joint contract for all five
councils. The bids were reviewed by representatives of each of the Councils,
including legal and financial representatives.  A moderation meeting was held
for both lots to reach a coherent single result based on quantitative and
qualitative factors.
Our review of the procurement process confirmed that the approach to the
evaluation of the bidders, for both lots, was appropriate and objective.

Review of the
revised Inter-
Authority
Agreement,
and the
adequacy of
the proposed
governance
arrangements

A revised legally binding inter-authority agreement (the IAA) was agreed and
signed by all 5 councils after the award of the Capita and Vinci contracts.  The
revised IAA clearly sets out the agreed arrangements for managing and
monitoring the contracts.
The IAA clearly sets out the expectations and roles of the authorities in relation to
the Corporate Services Contract. It establishes a number of key boards, to provide
regular oversight and governance of the contract for all of the Authorities
involved. These should ensure sufficient challenge and scrutiny of Suppliers, and
enable the authorities to apply the appropriate sanctions in the contract for any
poor performance.
We conclude that the proposed governance arrangements established in the
corporate services contract and the Inter-Authority Agreement will provide
sufficient oversight and effective governance of the contract.
As the contracts became effective from 1 August 2016 for both Councils and later
for the other Authorities, the arrangements were not operational. This is likely to
be an area of focus for our work relating to the 2016/17 financial year.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Appendix A – Uncorrected audit differences – South Oxfordshire DC

EY ÷ 9

Appendix A – Uncorrected audit differences – South
Oxfordshire DC

We identified the following difference greater than £67,700 during our audit, which are not
considered material by management or by us for adjustments. We bring them to the
Committee’s attention to enable members to form their own view.

Balance sheet and Statement of comprehensive income and expenditure

Item of account Balance sheet
(Decrease) /

Increase
£000

Comprehensive
income and

expenditure statement
(Decrease) / Increase

£[000/m]

Property Plant and Equipment 123

Revaluation Reserve 123

We identified that the Council had not recognised the revaluation increase of one asset in the
financial statements. This was due to delays in receiving the final valuation report after the
production of the draft financial statements. The effect was to understate assets and unusable
reserves by £123k. The valuation of the asset will be updated in the 2016/17 financial
statements.

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Appendix B – Independence

EY ÷ 10

Appendix B – Independence

We confirm that there are no changes in our assessment of independence since our
confirmation in the Audit Plan dated 28 February 2016.

We complied with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors and the
requirements of the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)’s Terms of Appointment. In
our professional judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning of
regulatory and professional requirements.

We confirm that we do not know of any relationships that may affect the independence and
objectivity of the firm and which auditing and ethical standards require us to report to you.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter that should be reviewed both by
the Council and by us. It is therefore important that you consider any facts you know about
and come to a view. If you wish to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will
be happy to do so at the Joint Audit and Governance Committee on 26 September 2016.

We confirm that we have met the reporting requirements to the Joint Audit and Governance
Committee as ‘those charged with governance’ under International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) 260 – Communication with those charged with governance. Our communication
plan for doing this was set out in the Audit Plan of 28 February 2016.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Appendix C – Auditor fees

EY ÷ 11

Appendix C – Auditor fees

The tables below sets out the scale fee and our final proposed audit fees

Vale of White Horse DC

Description Proposed final
Fee
2015/16
£

Scale Fee
2015/16

£
Total Audit Fee – Code work 49,705 47,129

Certification of claims and returns 11,616 11,616

Our actual fee is in line with the scale fee set by the PSAA, subject to satisfactory clearance of
the outstanding work. The variation to the scale fee identified above is due to the following;

· Additional work to address the significant risk to the Value for Money Conclusion
relating to the 5 Councils Partnership.  We have undertaken additional work to
review the tender evaluation process, including meeting with key officers, review of
key documentation.  We have also considered the adequacy of governance
arrangements for the new contracts. Increase to the scale fee of £1,081.

· Our audit plan set out a planned controls reliance approach for accounts payable.
We identified multiple control failures, and we were unable to identify suitable
compensating controls to mitigate the impact.  We therefore have adopted a
substantive approach to testing of AP.  This has required the selection and testing
of additional samples, resulting in additional time to select the sample, liaise with
the client to obtain the supporting information and document the results. Increase
to the scale fee of £1,495.

South Oxfordshire DC

Description Proposed final
Fee
2015/16
£

Scale Fee
2015/16

£
Total Audit Fee – Code work 51,231 48,186

Certification of claims and returns 10,972 10,972

Our actual fee is in line with the scale fee set by the PSAA, subject to satisfactory clearance of
the outstanding work. The variation to the scale fee identified above is due to the following;

· Additional work to address the significant risk to the Value for Money Conclusion
relating to the 5 Councils Partnership.  We have undertaken additional work to
review the tender evaluation process, including meeting with key officers, review of
key documentation.  We have also considered the adequacy of governance
arrangements for the new contracts. key officers, review of key documentation.
We have also considered the adequacy of governance arrangements for the new
contracts. Increase to the scale fee of £1,081.

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Appendix C – Auditor fees

EY ÷ 12

· Our audit plan set out a planned controls reliance approach for both the accounts
payable and accounts receivable.  We identified multiple control failures in both
areas, and we were unable to identify suitable compensating controls to mitigate
the impact.  We therefore have adopted a substantive approach to testing of AP
and AR. This has required the selection and testing of additional samples, resulting
in additional time to select the sample, liaise with the client to obtain the
supporting information and document the results. Increase to the scale fee of
£1,964.

We confirm we have not undertaken any non-audit work outside the PSAA’s requirements.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 13

Appendix D – Draft audit report

South Oxfordshire DC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH
OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council
for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the:

· Movement in Reserves Statement,
· Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
· Balance Sheet,
· Cash Flow Statement,
· Collection Fund1and the related notes 1 to 3
· and the related notes 1 to 31.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.

This report is made solely to the members of South Oxfordshire District
Council, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43
of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published
by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Authority and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Head of Finance and Chief Financial
Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the statement
of accounts set out on page 21, the Head of Finance and Chief Financial
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2015/16, and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 14

statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer; and the
overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the
financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

· give a true and fair view of the financial position of South Oxfordshire
District Council as at 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended; and

· have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2015/16.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:

· in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or
inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our
knowledge of the Council;

· we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 15

· we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section
24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

· we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;

· we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or

· we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects

Conclusion on South Oxfordshire District Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources

Authority’s responsibilities

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure
proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office
(NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper
arrangements.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us
from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are
not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice,
having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in November 2015, as to whether the
Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General
determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 16

of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the [name of body] put in
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on
our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to
form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Council had put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in
November 2015, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, South
Oxfordshire District Council put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of South
Oxfordshire District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by
the National Audit Office.

Andrew Brittain (senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor

Reading

XX September 2016

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 17

Vale of White Horse DC
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF VALE OF WHITE
HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Vale of White Horse District
Council for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the:

· Movement in Reserves Statement,
· Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
· Balance Sheet,
· Cash Flow Statement,
· Collection Fund2and the related notes 1 to 3
· and the related notes 1 to 30.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16.

This report is made solely to the members of Vale of White Horse District
Council, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43
of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published
by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Authority and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Head of Finance and Chief Financial
Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the statement
of accounts set out on page 21, the Head of Finance and Chief Financial
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2015/16, and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 18

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer; and the
overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the
financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

· give a true and fair view of the financial position of Vale of White Horse
District Council as at 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended; and

· have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2015/16.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:

· in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or
inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our
knowledge of the Council;

· we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

· we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section
24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 19

· we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of
account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;

· we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014; or

· we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects

Conclusion on Vale of White Horse District Council’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources

Authority’s responsibilities

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure
proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements.

Auditor’s responsibilities

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office
(NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper
arrangements.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us
from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are
not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the
Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice,
having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in November 2015, as to whether the
Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General
determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code
of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the [name of body] put in
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Appendix D – Draft audit report

EY ÷ 20

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on
our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to
form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Council had put in place
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in
November 2015, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Vale of White
Horse District Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31
March 2016.

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Vale of White
Horse District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the
National Audit Office.

Andrew Brittain (senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor

Reading

XX September 2016

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 21

Appendix E – Management representation letter

South Oxfordshire DC
[To be prepared on the entity’s letterhead]

[Date]

Andrew Brittain
Ernst & Young
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading
RG1 1YE

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the
financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council (“the Council”) for
the year ended 31 March 2016. We recognise that obtaining representations
from us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant
procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of South
Oxfordshire District Council as of 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an
examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the
extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose – all fraud, shortages, errors
and other irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 22

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015 and CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015-16.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the fair presentation of the
financial statements. We believe the financial statements referred to
above give a true and fair view of the financial position and of its
expenditure and income of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015-16 and are free of material misstatements, including
omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements are appropriately described in the financial
statements.

4. We believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to
enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance
with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2015-16 that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences,
summarised in the accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during
the current audit and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole. We have not corrected these differences
identified by and brought to the attention from the auditor because
[specify reasons for not correcting misstatement]

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 23

B. Fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud

2. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving
management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Councils’ internal controls over financial reporting. In addition, we have no
knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving other employees in
which the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
We have no knowledge of any allegations of financial improprieties,
including fraud or suspected fraud, (regardless of the source or form and
including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”) which
could result in a misstatement of the financial statements or otherwise
affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1. We have disclosed to you all known actual or suspected noncompliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements.

D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

· Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records,
documentation and other matters as agreed in terms of the audit
engagement.

· Additional information that you have requested from us for the
purpose of the audit.

· Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence and

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records
and are reflected in the financial statements.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Joint Scrutiny Committee and Joint Audit and Governance
Committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared) held through the year to the most
recent meeting on the following date: 26 September 2016.

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of
the Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and
transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans,
transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements,

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 24

guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no
consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances due to or
from such parties at the year end. These transactions have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

5. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects
of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with
guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and
claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent.

F. Subsequent Events

1. There have been no events subsequent to period end which require
adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Accounting Estimates

1. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

2. Accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in the financial statements:

· We believe the measurement processes, including related assumptions
and models, we used in determining accounting estimates is
appropriate and the application of these processes is consistent.

· The disclosures relating to accounting estimates are complete and
appropriate in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.

· The assumptions we used in making accounting estimates
appropriately reflects our intent and ability to carry out specific
courses of action on behalf of the entity, where relevant to the
accounting estimates and disclosures.

· No subsequent event requires an adjustment to the accounting
estimates and disclosures included in the financial statements.

H Retirement benefits
1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made

appropriate enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions
underlying the scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 25

business. All significant retirement benefits and all settlements and
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.

I Use of the Work of an Expert

1. We agree with the findings of Barnett Waddingham engaged to provide
IAS19 valuation services for the defined benefit pension scheme as set
out in Note 17 and have adequately considered the qualifications of the
experts in determining the amounts and disclosures included in the
financial statements and the underlying accounting records.

2. We believe the measurement processes employed, including related
assumptions and models, in determining accounting estimates is
appropriate and consistent with our expectations.

3. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the experts with
respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work,
and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on
the independence or objectivity of the experts.

Yours Faithfully,

________________________

Finance Director

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed at the Joint Audit and
Governance Committee on 26 September 2016

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 26

Schedule of Uncorrected Errors

Item of account Balance sheet
(Decrease) /

Increase
£000

Comprehensive income
and expenditure

statement
(Decrease) / Increase

£000

Property Plant and Equipment 123

Revaluation Reserve 123

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 27

Vale of White Horse DC
[To be prepared on the entity’s letterhead]

[Date]

Andrew Brittain
Ernst & Young
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading
RG1 1YE

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the
financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council (“the Council”) for
the year ended 31 March 2016. We recognise that obtaining representations
from us concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant
procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of South
Oxfordshire District Council as of 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and
income for the year then ended in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an
examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the
extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose – all fraud, shortages, errors
and other irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the
best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory
authorities, for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2015 and CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015-16.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the fair presentation of the
financial statements. We believe the financial statements referred to
above give a true and fair view of the financial position and of its
expenditure and income of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United

Page 42

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 28

Kingdom 2015-16 and are free of material misstatements, including
omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements are appropriately described in the financial
statements.

4. We believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to
enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance
with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2015-16 that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

B. Fraud

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud

2. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving
management or other employees who have a significant role in the
Council’s internal controls over financial reporting. In addition, we have no
knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving other employees in
which the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
We have no knowledge of any allegations of financial improprieties,
including fraud or suspected fraud, (regardless of the source or form and
including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”) which
could result in a misstatement of the financial statements or otherwise
affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1. We have disclosed to you all known actual or suspected noncompliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements.

D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

· Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements such as records,
documentation and other matters as agreed in terms of the audit
engagement.

· Additional information that you have requested from us for the
purpose of the audit.

· Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence and

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 29

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records
and are reflected in the financial statements.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Joint Scrutiny Committee and Joint Audit and Governance
Committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared) held through the year to the most
recent meeting on the following date: 26 September 2016.

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the
identification of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of
the Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and
transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans,
transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements,
guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no
consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances due to or
from such parties at the year end. These transactions have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

5. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects
of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with
guarantees, whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are
appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and
claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related
litigation and claims, both actual and contingent.

F. Subsequent Events

1. There have been no events subsequent to period end which require
adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto.

G. Accounting Estimates

1. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

2. Accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in the financial statements:

· We believe the measurement processes, including related assumptions
and models, we used in determining accounting estimates is
appropriate and the application of these processes is consistent.

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



Appendix E – Management representation letter

EY ÷ 30

· The disclosures relating to accounting estimates are complete and
appropriate in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.

· The assumptions we used in making accounting estimates
appropriately reflects our intent and ability to carry out specific
courses of action on behalf of the entity, where relevant to the
accounting estimates and disclosures.

· No subsequent event requires an adjustment to the accounting
estimates and disclosures included in the financial statements.

H Retirement benefits
1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made

appropriate enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions
underlying the scheme liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the
business. All significant retirement benefits and all settlements and
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.

I Use of the Work of an Expert

1. We agree with the findings of Barnett Waddingham engaged to provide
IAS19 valuation services for the defined benefit pension scheme as set
out in Note 16 and have adequately considered the qualifications of the
experts in determining the amounts and disclosures included in the
financial statements and the underlying accounting records.

2. We believe the measurement processes employed, including related
assumptions and models, in determining accounting estimates is
appropriate and consistent with our expectations.

3. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the experts with
respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work,
and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on
the independence or objectivity of the experts.

Yours Faithfully,

________________________

Finance Director

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed at the Joint Audit and
Governance Committee on 26 September 2016

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



Appendix F – Required communication with the audit committee

EY ÷ 31

Appendix F – Required communication with the audit
committee

We must provide certain communications to the Audit Committees of UK clients, as detailed
below:

Required communication Reference

Planning and audit approach
Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, including
any limitations.

Audit Plan

Significant findings from the audit
► Our view on the significant qualitative aspects of accounting

practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and
financial statement disclosures

► Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit

► Any significant matters arising from the audit and discussed with
management

► Written representations requested from management
► Expected modifications to the audit report
► Any other matters significant to the oversight of the financial

reporting process

Audit Results Report

Going concern
Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, including:
► Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

► Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements

► The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

No conditions or events were
identified, either individually of in
aggregate, that indicated there
could be doubt about the
Councils ability to continue as a
going concern for the 12 months
from the date of our report.

Misstatements
► Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion
► The effect of uncorrected misstatements relating to prior periods
► A request for any uncorrected misstatement to be corrected
► In writing, any significant corrected misstatements

Audit Results Report

Fraud
► Enquiries of the audit committee to determine whether they have

knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the
entity

► Any fraud we have identified or information obtained indicating
that a fraud may exist

► A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

We have made enquiries of
management. We have not
becaome aware of any fraud or
illegal acts during our audit.

Related parties
Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the
entity’s related parties including, when applicable:
► non-disclosure by management
► inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
► disagreement over disclosures
► non-compliance with laws and regulations
► difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

We have no matters we wish to
report.

Page 46

Agenda Item 6



Appendix F – Required communication with the audit committee

EY ÷ 32

Required communication Reference

External confirmations
► Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
► Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other

procedures

We have received all requested
confirmations.

Consideration of laws and regulations
► Audit findings of non-compliance where it is material and believed

to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with
legislation on tipping off

► Ask the audit committee about possible instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that may have a material
effect on the financial statements and which the audit committee
may know about

We have not identified any
material instances of non-
compliance with laws and
regulations.

Independence
Communication of all significant facts and matters bearing on EY’s
objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s
consideration of independence and objectivity such as:
► the principal threats
► safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
► an overall assessment of threats and safeguards
► information about the general policies and processes to maintain

objectivity and independence

Audit Plan and Audit Results
Report

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit Results Report

Fee Information
► Breakdown of fee information at the agreement of the initial audit

plan
► Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

Audit Plan
Audit Results Report

Certification work
► Summary of certification work undertaken

Certification Report

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

Ernst & Young LLP

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK.
All rights reserved.

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited.

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.

ey.com

Page 48

Agenda Item 6



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Head of Finance
Author: Simon Hewings
Telephone:01235 422499
Textphone: 18001 01235 422499
E-mail: simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
Wards affected: all
South Cabinet member responsible: Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 26 September 2016

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Robert Sharp
Tel: 01367 710549
E-mail:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Statement of accounts 2015/16

Recommendation(s)

(a) That the statement of accounts for South Oxfordshire District Council for 2015/16 
be approved as amended and signed by the chairman of this meeting of the 
committee

(b) That the statement of accounts for Vale of White Horse District Council for 
2015/16 be approved as amended and signed by the chairman of this meeting of the 
committee and by the co-chairman from Vale of White Horse District Council.

Purpose of Report

1. To consider the processes involved in the production of the statements of accounts 
for both councils and to approve the final versions for 2015/16.

Strategic Objectives 

2. The council has a strategic objective of effective management of resources.  The 
timely production, audit and publication of the statement of accounts is 
fundamental to this objective. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



Background

3. The head of finance approved the 2015/16 statements of accounts for both South 
Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council for external 
audit on 24 June 2016, ahead of the required deadline of 30 June.  The audit of 
those statements has now been completed.  Following an informal training session 
for members of this committee, revised statements are now presented to the 
committee for approval.

4. As reported to the committee the statutory deadline of 30 June is being brought 
forward to 31 May in two years’ time.  As part of the preparations for that change, a 
target deadline of 27 May was set for this year’s accounts.  So, whilst the councils 
draft accounts were finalised ahead of the statutory deadline for the first time since 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) were introduced in 2010, we 
need to look closely at our processes to ensure that we are ready for the earlier 
deadline in two years’ time.

5. Compared to the previous year’s timetable, the team’s progress was at some 
points up to three weeks ahead of progress in the previous year.  Some areas, 
such as collection fund accounting, saw considerable progress as this was 
finalised one month earlier this year.  However, issues that presented themselves 
during the closedown period that slowed the team down were:

 Accountancy staff being involved in not one but two elections during the April to 
June period (indeed the final sign-off of the accounts was delayed until 24 June 
due to the Chief Accountant and his deputy being involved in the European 
Referendum vote taking place that week);

 Diversion of accountancy staff onto non final accounts work, including work on 
the Five Councils partnership, leisure facilities and unitary status;

 Late receipt of fixed asset valuation information, delaying finalisation of capital 
accounting;

 Teething issues with the new final accounts templates on Word/Excel, which 
have been introduced to help speed up closedown and on which lessons have 
been learned.

6. It should be noted that sign-off on 24 June was after considerably more checking 
of the accounts than had been undertaken in previous years, when it had often 
been rushed ahead of the 30 June deadline.  Feedback from the external auditors 
confirms that their checking revealed less minor errors (e.g. consistency/cross 
casting) than encountered in previous years.

7. Looking ahead, the outsourcing of the accountancy function to Capita – which took 
place on 1 August after the draft accounts were approved as part of the Five 
Councils’ Partnership - is already providing the accountancy team with the 
opportunity to network with colleagues working for other councils and it is expected 
that this working will assist in moving to faster closedown as best practice is 
identified and shared.  

Financial Implications

8. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
Page 50

Agenda Item 7



Legal Implications

9. Approval of the amended statement of accounts by the committee fulfils the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

Risks

10.None

Other Implications

11.None

Conclusion

12.The audit of the 2015/16 statements of accounts is now substantially complete 
and, following their approval they can be published.

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 1 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
 
  

Statement of accounts 

 

2015/16 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 2 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 

 

 

Contents 

 

 

 

  Page 

Narrative statement 3 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 21 

Audit opinion  22 

The accounting statements: 25 

 Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 27 

 Movement in reserves statement 28 

 Balance sheet 29 

 Cash flow statement 30 

Notes to the accounting statements 31 

Collection fund account 65 

 Notes to the collection fund account 66 

Statement of accounting policies 69 

Glossary of terms 84 

Annual governance statement 91 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
South Oxfordshire District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park 
Milton 
Abingdon 
Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 3 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Narrative Statement 

 

Introduction 
 
This narrative statement provides a commentary on the council’s performance during 2015/16.  It 
is a guide to the council’s performance against key targets, the most significant matters reported in 
the accounts, an explanation in overall terms of the council’s financial position at the end of the 
financial year and a commentary on the council’s future prospects.  This statement does not form 
part of the financial statements.   
 
To assist the reader, a glossary of financial terms is provided on pages 84-90.                                                                        
 
The council’s accounts 
 
The council’s Statement of Accounts (SoA) shows the financial results of the council’s activities for 
the year ended 31 March 2016, and summarises the overall financial position of the council as at 
31 March 2016.  It is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom (“the 
code”).  The accounts have been compiled under International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS).   
 
In addition, the Annual Governance Statement sets out the purpose and nature of the council’s 
governance framework.  It also provides a review of the effectiveness of the governance 
framework, and highlights any significant governance issues.  This statement is published as a 
separate document and is available on the council’s website. 
 
Introduction to the district 
 
South Oxfordshire is the 7th most rural district in the south east region, around 50 per cent of the 
population live in rural areas, outside the main towns of Didcot, Henley, Thame and Wallingford.  
Population in mid-2015 was 138,400, and is set to increase to 155,200 in 2025 (+16,800 or 12 per 
cent). Between 2001 and 2011, the total number of households in South Oxfordshire increased by 
2,000 (+four per cent).   
 
In 2015, the population of South Oxfordshire aged 65 and over was 27,900, this is expected to 
increase to 33,800 by 2025.  Over half of this increase is predicted to be in rural wards, i.e. outside 
the main towns of Didcot, Henley, Thame and Wallingford.  By 2037 the number of people aged 
85+ living in the district is expected to reach 10,100, almost three times the number in this age 
group in 2013, and a higher rate of growth than the national average (+173 per cent vs +148 per 
cent in England).  Internal migration (people moving in from elsewhere in the UK) is also higher 
than the national average.  
 
As of 2011, there were 54,104 occupied households in South Oxfordshire, 74 per cent of which 
were owned in full or with a mortgage.  The majority of this growth was in private rented 
households which has increased reliance on the private rented sector.  
 
Employment is high with only 0.5 per cent of the economically active population claiming 
jobseekers allowance as of 2015, compared with a 2.2 per cent average for England. 
 
Whilst the district is generally affluent, this brings its challenges.  In 2013 the cheapest (lower 
quartile) market housing in South Oxfordshire was over 10 times a lower band salary, and the 
South Oxfordshire ratio of lower quartile house prices to lower quartile earnings remains well 
above the national average.  This means that many people can’t afford to buy, and many young 
people need to move out of the district because the housing prices are high compared to salary. 

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 4 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Much of the countryside in South Oxfordshire is protected from development by being part of the 
Oxford Green Belt or the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  This compounds 
the challenges of providing sufficient housing to meet identified need whilst protecting our natural 
environment. 
 
Key challenges 
 
Our key challenges are: 
 

 the growing/ageing population 

 increasing housing to meet identified need 

 increasing prosperity and supporting business to grow 

 providing the infrastructure to support growth 

 protecting the natural environment 
 
How performance is measured 
 
The council’s activities are guided by our four-year corporate plan, and by fulfilling our statutory 
responsibilities.  Key performance indicators are measured via the monthly board report, which is 
reported to the councils’ senior management board and cabinet; and an annual benchmarking 
report, which compares our performance to the other 200 ‘non-metropolitan’ English district 
councils.  Many of our services are provided through contractors, and the performance of our five 
major contractors is monitored through an annual review and report to the council’s scrutiny 
committee.  Customer satisfaction is measured through a biennial face to face survey of residents; 
this includes satisfaction with services and the council generally. 
 
Our corporate priorities 
 
2015/16 was the final year of the council’s corporate plan 2012 – 2016.  This contained our 
strategic objectives and corporate priorities for the period: 
 

 Excellent delivery of key services 

 Effective management of resources 

 Meeting housing need 

 Building the local economy 

 Support for communities 

 
Excellent delivery of key services 
 
We undertook to deliver high performing services with particular emphasis on achieving excellent 
levels of recycling, keeping streets and public spaces clean and ensuring good quality sports and 
leisure provision. Also to put residents at the heart of service delivery, provide an excellent 
customer service; keep residents and other stakeholders informed about our services and ensure 
we took their views into account before making key decisions. 
 
Resident satisfaction 
 
Chart 1 below show how attitudes towards the council have changed over recent years.  All 
showed an improvement in the 2015/16 survey and an upward direction of travel over the longer 
term; with significant increases in relation to satisfaction with value for money and numbers who 
would speak positively about the council.  77 per cent of our residents are happy with the way the 
council runs things – an increase of six per cent in 2015/16.  
 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 5 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Chart 1 – Attitudes towards the Council 
 

 
1 question previously worded ‘would speak highly’ 

 
77 per cent of residents said that they felt informed about the council and its services.   
 
One area where the council is seeking to do more is on responsiveness, with a slight drop in those 
who felt they were able to influence decisions.  We have included a top line objective in our new 
Corporate Plan to improve engagement with residents and with town and parish councils.  
  
Quality of services – waste 
 
The council is proud of its record on waste and recycling; we have achieved efficiencies in our 
contract and maintained consistently high levels of recycling and customer satisfaction with the 
service provided.  Recycling rates are high and we have been in the top three in the country for 
recycling for several years, with the top spot in 2014/151. During 2014/15 we achieved a recycling 
rate of 67.32 per cent. 
 
In year we measure performance through our board report which uses our own figures, not yet 
verified by DEFRA.  Graph 1 below shows our performance in the past year. This also shows the 
breakdown of recycling by type. 
 
Alongside this, residual waste has increased slightly in year2. However, using the latest DEFRA 
published figures (2014/15) we were second best in our benchmark group.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
1 2014/15 is the latest year for which official figures published by DEFRA are available, the chart uses unverified 
figures 
2 Figures used are not yet verified by DEFRA 

61 63

78
73 71

77

33
30

52

61
57

62
67

72

66

78 80 8182
85

29

36

50

44

59

68

2005 2007 2009 2011 2014 2015

%
 R

e
sp

o
n

d
e

n
ts

Satisfied with the way the council runs things Would speak positively of the council ¹
Acts on the concerns of residents Quality of service good overall
Trust council Provides value for money

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 6 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Graph 1 – Recycling rate 2015/16 
 

 
 
Graph 2 – Residual waste 2015/16  
 

 
 
During the year we have introduced new kerbside recycling streams for textiles and Waste 
Electricals and Electronic Equipment (WEEE), and have invested in a recycling officer post which 
is responsible for marketing and education programmes to increase recycling even further. 
 
Latest figures for recycling credits show we received £825,912 for dry recycling and £173,943 for 
green (garden waste) recycling in 2014/153. For 2015/16 the credits for dry recycling are £837,612, 
and green (garden waste) recycling are £180,224. 
 
Customer satisfaction with our waste collection service is high, at 87 per cent. 
 

                                            
3 Latest available actual figures 

Recycling rate

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

% recycled 

(of all waste)

Food 9.57% 9.04% 9.47% 10.16% 9.42% 9.47% 9.80% 10.73% 11.99% 11.71% 11.81% 11.26%

Garden 25.96% 30.16% 24.66% 20.47% 22.59% 26.99% 26.20% 22.02% 12.38% 6.79% 10.44% 15.88%

Re-use + dry 35.30% 33.06% 31.26% 32.15% 35.50% 36.40% 34.65% 32.42% 38.18% 36.74% 38.38% 37.77%

All recycling 70.83% 72.25% 65.39% 62.78% 67.51% 72.86% 70.65% 65.17% 62.56% 55.25% 60.63% 64.91%

Year to date: all recycling 70.83% 71.55% 69.59% 67.94% 67.86% 68.76% 69.03% 68.59% 68.00% 66.76% 66.30% 66.19%

Target 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50% 67.50%

Officer prediction of year-end performance 66.80%

2014-2015 All recycling 70.26% 73.00% 70.48% 64.94% 64.11% 71.10% 72.85% 66.24% 62.11% 59.32% 62.63% 66.09%

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Residual waste per household

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

350.00

400.00

kg

Year to date 22.89 45.04 70.57 98.17 120.10 142.37 165.68 189.76 213.97 246.19 269.68 293.76

Target 23.51 46.38 69.29 96.44 120.23 142.19 163.22 185.50 210.22 239.17 260.51 283.28

Officer prediction of year-end performance 283.28

2014-2015 23.51 46.38 69.29 96.44 120.23 142.19 163.22 185.50 210.22 239.17 260.51 283.28

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 7 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Quality of services – cleanliness 
 
We know that cleanliness of the area is high on residents’ list of things they want us to focus on, 
and have made this a priority.  In recent years we have invested an additional £60,000 to fund an 
annual deep clean for every parish, which has been very popular.  We have high levels of resident 
satisfaction with cleanliness, at 79 per cent. 
 
Fly tipping 
 
The council’s action to tackle fly tipping aims to achieve two things: investigation and enforcement 
action against those who commit it, with the long term aim of reducing the amount of fly tipping 
that occurs; and to clear it as quickly as possible where it does happen.  Through our board report 
we monitor both of these; performance in 2015/16 is shown in the graphs below.  Average time to 
clear fly tips has decreased from an average of 34:14 hours in March 2015 to 28:34 in March 
2016. The average number of fly tips has also decreased from 41 to 394. 
 
Graph 3 - Fly tipping clearance time 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                            
4 Rolling six month average 

Average fly tip pickup times - public perspective: 

rolling six-month average

00:00

20:00

40:00

60:00

80:00

Time  

(Hours)

Average in-month pickup time (all zones) 30:41 31:09 31:10 29:07 35:51 29:16 31:07 29:20 26:07 28:34 25:39 28:34

Rolling six-month average 29:47 30:21 31:34 32:10 32:02 31:12 31:17 30:58 30:08 30:02 28:20 28:14

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 8 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Graph 4 - Number of fly tips 
 

 
 
Quality of services – Leisure 
 
Our key aim on leisure is to increase participation in sport and physical activity.  According to the 
latest Active People survey data5 we have seen a five per cent increase in the number of people 
aged 16+ participating in sport and active recreation at moderate intensity at least three times a 
week - from 22.8 per cent to 27.8 per cent.  Visits to our leisure centres have increased by 6.3 per 
cent over the past year. 
 
68 per cent of service users are satisfied with our sport and leisure services. 
 
Much of our sports development programme is provided through external funding; the team has 
secured  £400,057 between 2012/13 and 2015/16, this has enabled us to focus activity on many 
groups where participation is traditionally low such as older people, women with children, and 
teenagers  
 
We are very aware that development in the district needs to be matched by new facilities to meet a 
growing need.  The council has allocated £22.5 million for a new leisure centre in Didcot and is 
currently planning for leisure needs into the longer term.  
 
Other investment in leisure facilities during 2015/16 has included gym equipment replacement at 
Park Sports Centre, new boilers at Didcot Wave, replacement Thame sports hall floor and new 
entrance doors at Henley Leisure Centre. 
 
Effective management of resources 
 
Part of our philosophy, and one of our corporate priorities was to keep our share of council tax as 
low as possible whilst continuing to deliver high quality services.  Over a number of years the 
council has made significant savings through joint working, especially with our close partner the 
Vale of White Horse District Council with whom we have saved costs on staffing, contracts and 
office accommodation. 
 
The last 18 months has seen progress on our latest joint working, two joint contracts with Vale, 
Hart, Havant and Mendip district councils to outsource a number of council services, including 

                                            
5 Last survey results in 2015, compared to previous survey results in October 2006 

Number of fly tips: rolling six-month average

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Number of fly tips

(rolling average over

last six months)

Rolling six-month average 43 44 45 44 43 44 47 44 44 39 40 39

Fly tips 40 43 40 63 34 44 56 27 40 33 40 37

Rolling six-month average (previous year) 43 43 45 43 40 37 36 37 35 40 40 41

Fly tips (previous year) 33 36 47 35 38 33 29 38 35 66 39 39

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 9 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Human resources, Information technology and accountancy, facilities management, property, 
licensing, and land charges.  This work will reach a key stage in August 2016 with the first part of 
this contract going live for South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse. 
 
This outsourcing is expected to realise ongoing annual savings of in excess of £0.8 million 
inclusive of client management costs.  
 
This type of innovative joint working, along with sound financial management has helped to keep 
costs down and meant that we are able to keep the cost of council tax to our residents low.   
 
In recent years the level of council tax has been reduced, from £123.73 for a band “D” property in 
2011/12 to £111.24 for 2016/17, which is the seventh lowest of all non-metropolitan district 
councils.   
 
Through our board report we measure a number of key income streams, to ensure that we are 
both maximising income and understanding early where external factors might impact on budgets.  
During 2015/16: 
 

 Planning income totalled £1.5 million against a budget of £1.1 million this compared to 
income of £1.6 million in 2014/15. 

 

 Land charges income totalled £0.4 million compared to £0.4 million in the previous year. 
 

 At year end, sundry debtors more than 30 days old were £37,000 which was the second 
lowest debt figure ever for the council. 

 

 The New Homes Bonus paid to the council for 2015/16 was £2.9 million, compared to an 
average of £1.9 million, putting us 35th out of all 201 non-metropolitan district councils 

 
Our Council Tax collection rate of 98.73 per cent put us 24th when ranked against all district 
councils at end March 2015. 
 
Staff sickness absence is 5.82 per FTE at end March, compared to 4.97 in 2014/15 and 8.2 for 
English district councils in 2013/146 
 
Chart 1 above demonstrates that residents are recognising that we are a council that provides 
good value for money for them. 
 
Meeting housing need 
 
South Oxfordshire is an attractive place to live and demand for housing is high. During the year we 
have made progress on our Local Plan, preparing our Preferred Options which is scheduled for 
consultation in June 2016. The Preferred Options will allocate housing to settlements or specific 
sites for at least 8,673 new homes (working assumption) up to 2032. 
 
Because of high demand for housing, the attractive and accessible nature of the district and high 
house prices, our key challenge on housing is to ensure that we facilitate the delivery of new 
housing and achieve an appropriate mix of housing to meet local need. 
 
During the year 595 new homes have been built in the district, compared to 666 in 2014/15; 
completion of affordable homes is up from 118 in 2014/15 to 182 in 2015/16 (see graphs 4 and 5 
below). At March 2015 we were 42nd compared to all district councils for affordable homes built. 

                                            
6 Source LG Inform, latest available figures 

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 10 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Graph 5 - Net additional homes 2016/17 
 

 
 
Graph 6 - Affordable homes built 2015/16 
 

 
 
In planning we receive around 4,000 applications per year.  Planning performance is measured 
through the board report in relation to speed of planning application determination and action on 
enforcement cases.  We monitor the quality of decisions through the number of planning appeals 
allowed. 
 
Our performance on minor and major applications is way above the national targets of 65 and 60 
per cent respectively; at the end of the year we were achieving 85 per cent within eight weeks, and 
83 per cent within target time.  Other applications were three per cent above the national target at 
93 per cent.  According to the governments published figures for 2014/15 we were 132nd out of all 
district councils on major applications, 104th on minors and 77th on other applications7. 
 

                                            
7 source: government website 

Net additional homes, based on council tax data

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Number of 

homes

2015-2016 Cumulative completions 68 100 167 281 302 359 412 471 525 571 597 595

2014-2015 Cumulative Completions 135 180 259 371 448 469 524 548 612 643 669 666

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Affordable houses achieved against target

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Number of 

completions

2015-2016 Cumulative completions 48 48 64 76 85 90 103 103 115 151 155 182

Cumulative target 18 37 55 73 92 110 128 147 165 183 202 220

Officer prediction of year-end performance 220

2014-2015 Cumulative completions 40 46 54 54 54 63 63 77 84 88 100 118

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 11 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

To support the growth in housing and employment, we have secured section 106 (S106) 
contributions towards infrastructure from new development through S106 (legal) agreements. The 
secured amount for 2015/16 was £5.7 million.  
 
Following examination by an independent Inspector, we have adopted a Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) charging schedule, which comes into effect in April 2016. Alongside this schedule, we 
have adopted a revised S106 supplementary planning document, so it is clear to developers what 
falls under CIL and S106.  
 
For 2016/17 the council will receive £3.6 million of New Homes Bonus.  Due to the current 
Government consultation on allocation of New Homes Bonus we are unable to calculate with any 
certainty how much NHB we are likely to receive in future years. 
 
The number of households at risk of homelessness has gone up over recent years and we have 
increased our work on homelessness prevention, with 468 successful homelessness interventions 
in 2015/16, compared to 286 in 2014/15.  We have done this by proactively engaging with 
customers at the earliest point and through positive partnerships with organisations such as 
Citizen Advice Bureau, Soldiers, Sailors and Families Association (SSAFA) and Connections 
Floating Support, Christians Against Poverty to name but a few who provide debt and welfare 
advice to enable customers to remain in their own homes.   Nationally the ability to successfully 
prevent homelessness has decreased by 3 per cent.  
 
Our White Horse Lettings is dedicated to helping low income families remain in the local area, 
while securing good rental returns for private landlords. 
 

Working with both private landlords and many local lettings agencies, we currently support 
approximately 400 tenancies. We have increased the numbers of people in the private rented 
sector, and decreased the number who are presenting as statutory homeless.   
 
As at 31 March 2016 we have one family in temporary accommodation until alternative 
accommodation can be found, the average being 0.78 (see graph below); the average length of 
stay in temporary accommodation for the year is 13 days. 
 
Graph 7 - Number of households in temporary accommodation 
 

 
 

                                            
8 rolling six month average 

Number of households in first stage 

temporary accommodation

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Number 

of households

First stage 3 2 2 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 3 1

Ceiling 2015-2016 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Rolling six-month average 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.7 2.2 1.7 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.7

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 12 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Benefits 
 
We monitor both time to determine and accuracy.  At end March 2016 average time to determine 
claims was 4.67 days compared to 7.98 in 2014/15, and accuracy is 97.20 per cent. At end March 
2015 we were 21st for benefit determinations compared to all district councils9. 
 
Building the local economy 
 
Strategic growth 
 
Supporting business growth in appropriate locations across the district, whilst protecting the 
character of our towns and villages is a key challenge for us.  Didcot and the Science Vale area 
(including part of neighbouring Vale of White Horse District) are the focus for a significant amount 
of housing and business growth as we work to attract hi tech and design-based business into the 
area, and to support our Small and Medium sized Enterprises (SME’s) to grow. During 2015/16 we 
have: 
 

 Entered into a commercial partnership to secure phase two of the Orchard Centre, Didcot 
 

 Provided £1 million in funding towards improving broadband across the district, to increase 
coverage of superfast broadband to over 95 per cent of homes and businesses 

 

 been awarded Garden Town status for Didcot 
 

 had a second Enterprise Zone for Didcot approved to accelerate growth 
 
Support for market towns 
 
Along with our outstanding countryside, our historic markets towns of Henley, Wallingford and 
Thame are much of what draws visitors to our district.  The council has provided the following 
support to our market towns during 2015/16: 
 

 Part-funded market town co-ordinator posts in Wallingford and Henley and provided an 
equivalent project pot for Thame (total of £30,000 per annum). 

 

 Delivered annual action plans in our market towns to improve vitality and footfall of the 
towns, including £4,000 revenue funding per town per year. 

 

 Awarded £86,694 of capital infrastructure grants to support capital projects in our market 
towns and larger villages 

 

 Employed tourism marketing consultants at a cost of £20,000 to increase the number of 
visitors to South Oxfordshire and associated spend in the visitor economy, focusing on the 
district’s links with TV series Midsomer Murders. 

 
The estimated economic impact generated from Visit Midsomer in 2015 is £800,000-£1 million.10 
 
There are 104,331 unique visitors to the southernoxfordshire.com website a year.  In 2014, visitor 
activity generated nearly £213 million worth of expenditure to the district (overnight and day trips), 
and supported around 3,913 tourism jobs in South Oxfordshire. 
 

                                            
9 DWP published figures, not comparable with board report figures 
10 Source: Headline Achievements 2011-2016 Report prepared for the council by Team Tourism. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 13 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
Support for communities 
 
A fundamental part of our strategy to support communities to do things for themselves and create 
sustainable communities into the future, is our grant schemes.  
 
Grants 
 
We have a long history of supporting communities to help themselves through grant funding for 
projects, community led planning and more recently, Neighbourhood Plans. 
 
During the year we awarded £756,683 in capital funding towards 23 different projects in 
communities; examples range from new changing rooms for a local sports Trust to a community 
defibrillator.  We provided revenue funding to 16 local voluntary organisations, totalling £410,641, 
including the local Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) and a centre for disabled children, under a four 
year service level agreement.   Our Young Achievers Awards totalled £7,850 and supported 32 
young people aged 11- 18 to pursue their chosen arts, sports or citizenship goals. 
 
Community/Neighbourhood planning 
 
We are keen to encourage communities to take control of development in their local area through 
Neighbourhood Plans, and we provide support to communities to do so.  The district had some of 
the first Neighbourhood Plans in the country, and the numbers are increasing steadily, with three 
parishes who currently have an agreed plan, and a further 18 working towards it. 
 
We have supported a number of communities to produce or refresh Community Led Plans (CLP) 
in the year, and 69 of our 87 communities now have a CLP in place. 
 
Financial performance 2015/16 
 
The paragraphs below show the council’s financial performance for 2015/16 in the following areas: 
 

 revenue expenditure; 
 

 capital expenditure;  
 

 treasury management activities. 
 

It also discusses the council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for the 
year and its balance sheet at the end of the year. 
 
Revenue outturn 2015/16  
 
The council’s funding requirement for 2015/16, including parish precepts, was £14.5 million, after 
accounting for the use of reserves and investment income.  Net revenue spend for the year (i.e. 
expenditure less income) was £3.2 million below budget as shown in the table below, analysed 
across the council’s service areas. Of this £1.2 million was due to slippage and has been agreed 
as a budget carry forwards and there was unbudgeted one off grant income of £0.5 million for 
Didcot Garden Town and £0.4 million overachievement of Planning development income. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 14 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Service expenditure 
Budget 

£000 

Actual 

£000 

Variance 

£000 

Strategic management board 573 538 (35) 

Corporate strategy 6,086 5,680 (406) 

Development and housing 1,731 587 (1,144) 

Economy leisure and property (470) (934) (464) 

Finance 2,857 2,791 (66) 

HR, IT & technical services 1,360 1,454 94 

Legal and democratic services 1,123 799 (324) 

Planning 2,239 1,420 (819) 

Contingency 75 0 (75) 

Direct service expenditure 15,574 12,335 (3,239) 

Interest (2,088) (2,427) (339) 

Government grant income (2,944) (2,968) (24) 

Transfer to/from reserves (253) (253) 0 

Net revenue spend 10,289 6,687 (3,602) 

Transfer of surplus to reserves:       

Net revenue spend 0 3,602 3,602 

Retained business rates 0 309 309 

Budget requirement set by council 10,289 10,598 309 

Parish precepts 4,189 4,189 0 

Total funding requirement 14,478 14,787 309 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) (1,919) (1,919) 0 

Council tax income (10,372) (10,372) 0 

Retained business rates (2,187) (2,496) (309) 

Total funding (14,478) (14,787) (309) 

 
The major variations in service expenditure included within direct service expenditure in the table 
above are detailed below: 
 
Major variations in service revenue expenditure £000 

Strategic management board  
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (35) 

Total  (35) 

Corporate strategy  

Waste   
Majority of the favourable variance is due to increased income on garden waste 
bins, and higher than expected recycling tonnages which increased recycling 
income 

(150) 

Food safety  
Underspend due to delays with the mobile working project.  This budget has been 
carried forward into the next financial year 

(85) 

Environmental services 
There were no contaminated land projects this year 

(60) 

Communications and grants 
Underspend on Outlook distribution costs due to March 2015 edition coming out of 
previous year’s budget,  and underspend on the Young Achievers budget 

 
 

(52) 
Other  

Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (59) 

Total 
 

(406) 

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 15 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Major variations in service revenue expenditure £000 

Development and housing  
Didcot Growth Point  
One off budget for Didcot Growth Point, which has been carried forward into the next 
financial year 

 
(718) 

Didcot Garden Town  
Additional government grant for Didcot Garden Town.  This grant has been 
transferred to reserves. 

 
(470) 

Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 44 

Total (1,144) 
  
Economy, leisure & property  
Leisure  
£243k of under spend relates to Berinsfield co-location project which is on hold. The 
remaining under spend relates to an over accrual from previous year for repairs to 
the Thame swimming pool 

 
 

(361) 
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (103) 

Total (464) 
  

Finance  
Crowmarsh fire insurance claim  
The majority of the variance relates to money received from an insurance claim 
where the expenditure was incurred in the previous year  

 
(76) 

Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 10 

Total (66) 
  

HR IT and technical  
Facilities   
Reduction in rental income due to the closure of the council office in Crowmarsh 
Gifford 

166 

Car parking   
Parking fees and season ticket income were higher than budgeted. (58) 
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (14) 

Total 94 
  

Legal & democratic services  
Land charges   
Over recovery of income plus one-off government grant for claims regarding 
personal search fees, the costs of which had been incurred in the previous financial 
year. 

 
(165) 

Licensing  
Increased taxi licensing income compared to budget (111) 
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (48) 

Total (324) 
  

Planning  
Development services  
Increased planning income plus employee costs underspent due to vacancies, and 
reduced spend on consultants 

 
(443) 

Planning policy  
Staff vacancies resulted in a delay in progressing the Local Plan (273) 
Building control  
Under spend on employee costs and over achievement of building control income (103) 

Total (819) 

Page 66

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 16 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Major variations in service revenue expenditure £000 

  
Contingency  
Demand on contingency was less than anticipated (75) 

Total underspend on direct service expenditure (3,239) 

 
Capital outturn 2015/16 
 
Capital expenditure totalled £3.2 million in 2015/16, and was £3.1 million below budget. Material 
capital expenditure projects include 
 

 grants to local organisations £0.6 million 
 

 disabled facilities grants £0.7 million and 
 

 contributions to broadband projects £0.5 million 
 
Capital expenditure is paid for out of the money we have set aside from the sale of assets (capital 
receipts), investment income, reserves and external contributions.  We have no external debt and 
have no plans to borrow to pay for future capital expenditure.  Note 21a details how this year’s 
capital expenditure was financed. 
Further details on both revenue and capital expenditure for 2015/16 are provided in an outturn 
report to scrutiny committee considered at its meeting in September 2016, which includes an 
analysis of the underspend. 
 
Treasury management 2015/16 
 
By actively managing its investments, the council earned interest and investment income of £2.4 
million against a budget of £2.1 million.  The average rate earned on cash investments for the year 
was 1.8 per cent.  Of this income, £0.5 million represents dividends accumulated on the council’s 
unit trust holdings, which are distributed as additional units. The remaining income will fund 
revenue expenditure during 2016/17. 
 
Further details on treasury management for 2015/16 are provided in an outturn report to be 
considered by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee, Cabinet and Council. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 2015/16 
 
The CIES presents the council’s income and expenditure for the year based on accounting 
standards, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Councils raise taxation to cover 
expenditure in accordance with regulations but this is different to the accounting cost.   
 
The 2014/15 accounts included an exceptional item regarding the fire at the council’s offices at 
Crowmarsh Gifford.  The value of the building was impaired by over £3 million, but this was offset 
in the council balances by a debtor entry representing the eventual insurance claim. 
 
The building insurance claim for the fire damaged offices was submitted in 2015.  After a check 
and challenge exercise the insurer’s loss-adjuster and council’s consultant surveyor agreed a 
notional reinstatement valuation of approximately £5.2m including professional fees.  Ordinarily an 
insurance claimant would complete their claim by providing invoices or a contract commitment to 
demonstrate they have, or definitely will, incur the claimed costs in order for the insurer to 
settle.  In the council’s case, the council has yet to decide on its long term office solution and 
therefore no order, contract or invoice evidence is available to demonstrate the actual cost to  
 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 17 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

reinstate the building or to relocate elsewhere.  Therefore the council’s claim remains open.  The 
insurer has offered to settle the claim based on a cash discounted sum and the council has 
indicated its willingness to consider a sensible offer.  An offer has been received on a discounted 
basis and is under consideration.   
 
The table below reconciles the direct service expenditure for the year shown in the revenue 
outturn table on page 14 to the cost of services shown in the CIES, showing the adjusting 
transactions.  
 

2014/15 
£000  

2015/16 
£000 

12,212 Direct service expenditure (revenue outturn)  12,335 

 Net capital transactions:    
733 Depreciation, impairments and revaluations 610  

2,084 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under 
statute 

2,853  

100 Section 106 expenditure charged to revenue 413  

(179) New equity loans issued and existing loans revalued 
in year 

237  

2,738    4,113 
(227) Pension adjustments required under IAS 19 211  
1,214 Property trading accounts included in service 

expenditure  
1,422  

(85) Exceptional gain/(loss) 153  
(132) Overhead charged to items below cost of services (175)  

770   1,611 

15,720 Cost of services (CIES)   18,059 

 
From the net cost of services calculated as above, accounting adjustments, including adjustments 
for the council’s fixed assets, along with adjustments for investment income and notional charges 
for the council’s pension fund liability (under International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19), mean 
that after the total financing from taxation and non-specific grant income of £19.8 million, the 
council’s deficit on provision of services was £0.3 million.   
 
This surplus is then adjusted further to produce the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
figure for the year which is a surplus of £2.7 million.  This figure corresponds to the total 
movement on the balance sheet for the year. 
 
Balance sheet  
 
The reported net worth of the council increased from £110.6 million to £113.3 million at 31 March 
2016, an increase of £2.7 million.  This movement, which is also detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement (MiRS), is principally the result of a reduction in the estimate of the pensions 
liability of £2.1 million.  This results from an increase in the long-term expected rate of return on 
assets in the scheme. 
 
At the balance sheet date the council had usable reserves of £89.1 million, made up of £36.3 
million general fund balance, £20.4 million in earmarked revenue reserves, £26.6 million in capital 
receipts and £5.8 million in unapplied capital grants.   
 
Material events after the balance sheet date 
 
There are no material events after the balance sheet date. 
 

Page 68

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 18 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Collection fund 
 
The collection fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing authorities 
to maintain a separate collection fund.  The statement shows the transactions of the billing 
authority in relation to the collection from local taxpayers of council tax and Non Domestic Rates 
(NDR) and its distribution to precepting bodies.  For the council, the major council tax precepting 
bodies are Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) and the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Thames Valley. 
 
On council tax, income of £88.4 million was received and £88.6 million was paid out in precepts 
and demands.  After taking the provision for bad debts into account, the surplus on the council tax 
collection fund balance at the end of the year was £2.2 million.  This will be re-distributed to all 
major precepting authorities. 
 
On Non Domestic Rates (NDR), £43.2 million was received and £42.1 million was paid out to the 
council, central government and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC).  After taking the provision for 
bad debts and the provision for appeals into account, the deficit on the NDR collection fund 
balance at the end of the year was £2.9 million.  This will be shared between the council, central 
government and OCC. 
 
Future prospects  
 
As part of the annual budget setting process for 2016/17, council agreed both its Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) for 2016/17 to 2020/21, and the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 
for the same period.  The MTFS sets out the objectives to be achieved and principles to be 
followed in setting the budget. The MTFP meanwhile provides a forward budget model for the next 
five years, highlighting known estimated budget pressures for new responsibilities and changes in 
legislation, predicted investment and capital receipts. 
 
The MTFP highlights significant pressure the council anticipates in setting its revenue budget 
during the period covered.  The key pressures are the anticipated reduction in government grant 
funding, the introduction of full business rate retention and cost pressures in future years.  In 
addition the outcome of the New Homes Bonus consultation may have a significant impact on the 
council financial position in future years. 
 
For 2016/17 the revenue budget is forecast to use £3.0 million of reserves.  Based on the 
assumptions included within the MTFP it is estimated that the council’s usable reserves, excluding 
balances held for the long term under the MTFS, will reduce from £21.7 million at March 2017 to 
£12.8 million by March 2021.  This reflects the council’s revenue reserves being used to maintain 
a balanced budget unless further savings can be found.  
 
Officers consider that the pressures highlighted are manageable in this period, in light of the 
reserves and balances available to the council.  The council has already made considerable 
revenue savings in recent years by: 
 
 merging its management team with Vale of White Horse District Council; 

 
 merging many of its operational service teams with Vale of White Horse District Council;  

 
 undertaking joint procurement with other councils; 

 
 introducing “lean” business processes to save officer time. 

 
Continuation of initiatives like these is expected to help meet the financial challenges facing the 
council.    

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 19 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

As part of budget setting for 2016/17, council also agreed a capital programme to 2020/21 costing 
£46.9 million.  The agreed financing of this programme is as follows: 
 

 £44.4 million - council resources including New Homes Bonus; 

 £2.5 million - other contributions. 
 
A referendum was held on Thursday 23 June to decide whether the UK should leave or remain in 
the European Union.  Leave won by 52 per cent to 48 per cent.  At this stage the financial 
implications of this result for the council are uncertain but it could have an impact on the council’s 
future investment income and, potentially, grant funding and business rates income.  The impact 
of the result will be considered as part of future medium term financial planning. 
 
Council resources 
 
Based on the council’s budget proposals for revenue and capital, including assumptions about 
earnings on investment income, it is forecast that by 31 March 2021 the council will hold £12.8 
million in usable reserves excluding balances held for the long term under the MTFS, made up of 
£1.8 million general fund balance, £11.0 million in earmarked revenue reserves.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
William Jacobs 
Head of finance and chief finance officer 
26 September 2016 

Page 70

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 20 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

This page is intentionally blank. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 21 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 

 
1. The authority's responsibilities 

 
The authority is required to: 

 
 make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those 
arrangements.  In this council, that officer is the head of finance and chief finance 
officer;  

 manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; and 

 approve the statement of accounts. 
 

The statement of accounts was considered and approved at the joint audit and governance 
committee meeting on 26 September 2016. 
 

 
 
 ………………………………………….............. 
 Chairman of joint audit and governance committee 26 September 2016  
 

 
2. Responsibilities of the chief finance officer 

 
The chief finance officer’s responsibilities include the preparation of the council's statement 
of accounts, which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 
accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) is required to present a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the council at the accounting date and its income and expenditure 
for the year ended 31 March 2016. 

 
In preparing this statement of accounts, the chief finance officer has: 

 
 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently 
 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 
 complied with the local authority code. 
 
The chief finance officer has also: 
 
 kept proper accounting records which were up to date 
 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

 
I certify that this statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the authority at 31 March 2016 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 
31 March 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 ………………………………………………… 
 William Jacobs CPFA 
 Head of finance and chief finance officer              26 September 2016  

Page 72

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 22 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of South 

Oxfordshire District Council 

 
Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of South Oxfordshire District Council for the year ended 
31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements 
comprise the: 
 

 Movement in Reserves Statement,  

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,  

 Balance Sheet,  

 Cash Flow Statement,  

 Collection Fund11and the related notes 1 to 3  

 and the related notes 1 to 31.  
 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015/16. 
 
This report is made solely to the members of South Oxfordshire District Council, as a body, in 
accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, 
as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer and auditor 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the statement of accounts set out 
on page 21, the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of 
the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper 
practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom 2015/16, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our 
responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require 
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether 
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer; and the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in 
the Statement of Accounts 2015/16 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial  

                                            
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 23 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or 
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If  
we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the 
implications for our report. 
 
Opinion on financial statements 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of South Oxfordshire District Council as at 
31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16. 

 
Opinion on other matters 
 
In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16 for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 
 
Matters on which we report by exception 
 
We report to you if: 

 in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other 
information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council; 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; 

 we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;  

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to 
law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014; or 

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

 
We have nothing to report in these respects  
 
Conclusion on South Oxfordshire District Council’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 
 

Authority’s responsibilities  

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, 
and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.  
 

Auditor’s responsibilities  

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy 
ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit 
Office (NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements.  
 
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that 
the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and  
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 24 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.  
 

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 

of resources 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to 
the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in 
November 2015, as to whether the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that 
necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the 
[name of body] put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in 
all significant respects, the Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 
Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in November 2015, 
we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, South Oxfordshire District Council put in place 
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for 
the year ended 31 March 2016.  
 
Certificate 
 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of South Oxfordshire District Council 
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code 
of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Andrew Brittain (senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor 
Reading 
28 September 2016 

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 25 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Core financial statements 

 

The following pages show the council’s core financial statements, and the notes to the accounts.  
The core statements are as follows: 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) (page 27).  This shows the 
accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Authorities raise taxation 
(council tax) to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 
accounting cost.  This difference can be seen in the MiRS on the line “Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding basis under regulation”.   
 
Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) (page 28).  This shows the movement in the year on 
the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be 
applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.  The (surplus) or deficit 
on the provision of services line shows the true economic cost of providing the council’s services, 
more details of which are shown in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement.  These 
are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the general fund balance for 
council tax setting purposes.  The net increase/decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves 
line shows the statutory general fund balance before any discretionary transfers to or from 
earmarked reserves undertaken by the council. 
 
Balance Sheet (BS) (page 29). This shows the value (as at the balance sheet date) of the assets 
and liabilities recognised by the council.  The net assets of the council (being assets less liabilities) 
are matched by the reserves held by the council.  Reserves are reported in two categories.  The 
first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those that the council may use to provide 
services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 
on their use (e.g. the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or 
repay debt).  The second category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and 
losses (e.g. the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide 
services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the MiRS line 
‘adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 
 
Cash Flow Statement (CFS) (page 30).  This shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of 
the council during the reporting period.  The statement shows how the authority generates and 
uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing 
activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the 
extent to which the operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or 
from the recipients of services provided by the council.  Investing activities represent the extent to 
which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 
council’s future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (e.g. borrowing) to the council.            
 
Notes to the core financial statements (pages 31-64).  The core statements are supported by 
comprehensive notes to the accounts. 
 
Accounting policies (pages 69-83). These are the accounting policies adopted in compiling the 
council’s accounting statements which explain the basis on which the figures in the accounts have 
been prepared. 
 
Supplementary financial statements 
In addition to core financial statements and notes the council, as an authority that issues council 
tax and business rates bills, maintains a separate income and expenditure account, the collection 

Page 76

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 26 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

fund, showing transactions in relation to this income and how the demands on the fund from 
central government, Oxfordshire County Council, Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames 
Valley and town and parish councils have been satisfied.  This is shown on pages 65-68. 

  

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 27 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 

 
2014/15 restated   2015/16 

Exp Inc Net  Exp Inc Net 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

3,447  (994) 2,453  Central services to the public 3,713  (1,130) 2,583  

2,554  (984) 1,570  Cultural and related services12 2,953  (1,260) 1,693  

9,205  (3,297) 5,908  Environmental and regulatory services 9,082  (3,421) 5,661  

5,986  (3,123) 2,863  Planning services 7,333  (3,754) 3,579  

700  (954) (254) Highways and transport services 1,009  (1,080) (71) 

33,673  (32,490) 1,183  Other housing services 34,812  (32,362) 2,450  

2,177  (180) 1,997  Corporate and democratic core 2,321  (157) 2,164  

57,742  (42,022) 15,720  Cost of services 61,223  (43,164) 18,059  

4,212  0  4,212  Parish council precepts and other grants 4,367 0  4,367 

586  0  586  Exceptional loss (note 2) 0  0  0  

0  (500) (500) Exceptional gain (note 2) 0  (76) (76) 

892  0  892  Exceptional impairment (note 2) 0  (77) (77) 

0  (304) (304) (Gain)/loss on the disposal of non-current 
assets 

0  (197) (197) 

337  (279) 58  (Gain)/loss on other property accounts 604  (432) 172  

1  0  1  Payments to the government housing 
capital receipts pool 

0  0  0  

6,028  (1,083) 4,945  Other operating expenditure 4,971 (782) 4,189  

0  (1,762) (1,762) Interest receivable and similar income 0  (1,671) (1,671) 

0  (731) (731) Other investment income (dividends) 0  (756) (756) 

0  (395) (395) Other investment income (long leases) 0  (583) (583) 

45  (758) (713) Income and expenditure in relation to 
investment properties 

32  (629) (597) 

1,735  0  1,735  Net Interest on net defined benefit liability or 
asset 

1,652  0  1,652  

1,780  (3,646) (1,866) Financing and investment income and 
expenditure 

1,684  (3,639) (1,955) 

0  (904) (904) Recognised capital grants and contributions 0  (2,056) (2,056) 

  (3,108) (3,108) Extraordinary capital contribution   0  0  

0  (10,426) (10,426) Council tax 0  (10,492) (10,492) 

  (17,034) (17,034) Retained business rates   (16,502) (16,502) 

14,599  0  14,599  Business rates tariff 14,878  0  14,878  

0 (2,672) (2,672) Revenue support grant 0  (1,919) (1,919) 

0  (2,104) (2,104) Non-ringfenced government grants 0  (3,839) (3,839) 

14,599  (36,248) (21,649) Taxation and non-specific grant income 14,878  (34,808) (19,930) 

80,149  (82,999) (2,850) (Surplus) or deficit on provision of 
services 

82,756  (82,393) 363  

    1,225  Total surplus of deficit on revaluation of 
non-current assets 

   0  

    (1,310) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of available 
for sale financial assets  

   941  

    10,705  Remeasurement of net defined benefit 
liability 

   (3,977) 

    10,620  Total other comprehensive income and 
expenditure 

    (3,036) 

    7,770  Total comprehensive income and 
expenditure 

    (2,673) 

 
 
 

 

                                            
12 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 78

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 28 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Movement in reserves statement 

 

For the year ended 31 March 2016 
 

    General Earmarked Capital Capital Total Unusable Total 
   fund general fund receipts grants usable reserves authority 

   balance reserves reserve unapplied reserves   reserves 

   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance - 31 Mar 2015   (35,971) (18,957) (25,026) (5,140) (85,094) (25,570) (110,664) 

Movement in reserves 
during 2014/15 

              

(Surplus)/deficit on provision of 
services  

363 0 0 0 363 0.000 363 

Other comprehensive income 
and expenditure 

0 0 0 0 0 (3,036) (3,036) 

Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure  

363 0 0 0 363 (3,036) (2,673) 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations (note 
3) 

(4,162) 2,020 (1,549) (653) (4,344) 4,344 0 

Net increase/decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves 

(3,799) 2,020 (1,549) (653) (3,981) 1,308 (2,673) 

Transfers to/from earmarked 
reserves 

3,492 (3,525) 4 15 (14) 14 0 

Increase/decrease 
(movement) in year 

(307) (1,505) (1,545) (638) (3,995) 1,322 (2,673) 

Balance - 31 Mar 2016    (36,278) (20,462) (26,571) (5,778) (89,089) (24,248) (113,337) 

 
For the year ended 31 March 2015 

 
    General Earmarked Capital Capital Total Unusable Total 
   fund general fund receipts grants usable reserves authority 

   balance reserves reserve unapplied reserves   reserves 

   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance - 31 Mar 2014   (35,592) (15,867) (25,266) (5,073) (81,798) (36,636) (118,434) 

Movement in reserves 
during 2014/15 

              

(Surplus)/deficit on provision of 
services  

(2,850) 0 0 0 (2,850) 0 (2,850) 

Other comprehensive income 
and expenditure 

0 0 0 0 0 10,620 10,620 

Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure  

(2,850) 0 0 0 (2,850) 10,620 7,770 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding 
basis under regulations (note 
3) 

(1,585) 992 326 (178) (445) 445 0 

Net increase/decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves 

(4,435) 992 326 (178) (3,295) 11,065 7,770 

Transfers to/from earmarked 
reserves 

4,056 (4,082) (86) 111 (1) 1 0 

Increase/decrease in year (379) (3,090) 240 (67) (3,296) 11,066 7,770 

Balance - 31 Mar 2015 (35,971) (18,957) (25,026) (5,140) (85,094) (25,570) (110,664) 

 

 

 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 29 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Balance sheet 

 
31 March 

2015    
original 

31 March 
2015 

restated 

  31 March 2016   

£000 £000   £000  £000  Notes 

29,442  29,442  Property, plant & equipment 29,880  5  

15,914 10,304 Investment property13 8,950  6  

59 59 Intangible assets 92    
37,946 37,946 Long term investments 35,465   7 
16,679 22,289 Long term debtors 22,459   8 

100,040  100,040  Long term assets   96,846   

58,312 58,312 Short term investments 62,814   7 

7,133 7,133 Short term debtors 10,716   8  

12,517 12,517 Cash and cash equivalents 8,123   9  

77,962  77,962  Current assets   81,653   

(12,796) (12,796) Short term creditors (11,743)   11  

(1,087) (1,087) Provisions  (1,518)   12  

(833) (833) Capital grants receipts in advance (1,379)     

(14,716) (14,716) Current liabilities   (14,640)   

(52,622) (52,622) Other long term liabilities   (50,522) 17  

(52,622) (52,622) Long term liabilities   (50,522)   

            

110,664  110,664  Net assets   113,337    

(35,971) (35,971) Non-earmarked revenue reserves (36,278)     

(18,957) (18,957) Earmarked revenue reserves (20,462)     

(25,026) (25,026) Usable capital receipts reserve (26,571)     

(5,140) (5,140) Capital grants unapplied (5,778)     

(85,094) (85,094) Usable reserves   (89,089) See MIRS 

(6,426) (6,426) Revaluation reserve (6,261)   13a 

(2,028) (2,028) Available for sale financial 
instrument reserve  

(1,087)   13b  

(50,836) (45,226) Capital adjustment account  (42,948)   13c  

52,622 52,622 Pensions reserve 50,522   13d  

(19,793) (25,403) Deferred capital receipts reserve (25,567)   13e  

703  703  Collection fund adjustment Account 905     13f 

188  188  Short-term accumulating 
compensated absences 

188     13g 

(25,570) (25,570) Unusable reserves   (24,248)   

            

(110,664) (110,664) Total reserves   (113,337)   

 
The unaudited accounts were issued on 24 June 2016 and the audited accounts were authorised 
for issue on 26 September 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
13 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 80

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 30 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Cash flow statement 

 

2014/15   2015/16 Notes 
£000   £000   

2,850 Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services (363)   

5,408 Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 
for non-cash movements 

(1,268) 
  

(4,316) Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on 
the provision of services that are investing and financing 
activities on the provision of services that are investing 
and financing activities 

(2,253) 

  

3,942 Net cash flows from operating activities  (3,884) 14  

  Investing activities     
(3,405) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets 
(1,069) 

  
(45,092) Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (72,956)   

(55) Other payments for investing activities (25)   
304 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets 
197 

  
41,026 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 70,033   

4,995 Other receipts from investing activities 2,960   

(2,227) Total investing activities (860)   

  Financing activities     

(275) Billing authorities - council tax and NDR adjustments 350   
 Total financing activities    

1,440 Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,394)   

11,077 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
reporting period 

12,517 
  

12,517 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
reporting period 

8,123 9 

Page 81

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 31 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Notes to the accounts 2015/16 

 
1. Statement of accounting policies 

 
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices 
applied by the council in preparing and presenting these financial statements.  These can 
be reviewed in detail on pages 69-83.  

 
2. Exceptional items 

 
The following exceptional items are included in the CIES and relate to the fire at the 
council’s offices at Crowmarsh Gifford on 15 January 2015 
 

2014/15           2015/16 

£000           £000 

  Exceptional items included in other operating 
expenditure: 

  

586  Revenue expenditure relating to restocking and     
relocation of council head office  

0  

892 Impairment of office charged to CIES (77) 

(500) Interim insurance receipt on account (revenue) (76) 

  Exceptional item included in taxation and non-
specific grant income: 

  

(3,108) Impairment of office covered by insurance 0 

  Exceptional item included in other comprehensive 
income and expenditure: 

  

2,216 Impairment of office charged to revaluation reserve 0 

86 Total cost charged to CIES     (153) 

 
The exceptional item included in taxation and non-specific grant income referred to above 
in 2014/15 is the best estimate of the insurance receipt at this time. 

 
3. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 

 
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total CIES recognised by the council 
in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are 
specified by statutory provisions as being available to the council to meet future capital and 
revenue expenditure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 82

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 32 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

31st March 2015   31st March 2016 

Usable Reserves 

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s

 

  Usable Reserves 

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s
  

G
e
n

 f
u

n
d

 

b
a
l 
&

 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 

re
v
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 

re
c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s
e

rv
e

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

 

  

G
e
n

 f
u

n
d

 

b
a
l 
&

 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 

re
v
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s

 
C

a
p

it
a
l 

re
c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s
e

rv
e
  

C
a
p

it
a
l 

g
ra

n
ts

 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

  

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

        Adjustments primarily involving 
the capital adjustment account: 

        

        Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the CIES: 

        

(1,592)  0 0 1,592  Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 

(804) 0 0 804  

(57) 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

57  
0 

Amortisation of intangible assets 
Other 

(39) 
9 

0 
0 

0 
0 

39  
(9) 

(2,084) 0 0 2,084  Revenue expenditure funded from 
capital under statute 

(2,853) 0 0 2,853  

(54) 0 0 54  Amortisation of premium on 
financial instruments 

(61) 0 0 61  

        Adjustments primarily involving 
the capital grants unapplied 
account: 

        

4,012  0  (904) (3,108) Capital grants and contributions 
unapplied credited to the CIES 

2,254  (603)  (1,651) 0  

(100) 0  100  0  Expenditure funded by developers 
contributions 

 (413) 0 413  0 

        Adjustments primarily involving 
the capital receipts reserve: 

        

304  (304) 0 0 Transfer of cash sale proceeds 
credited as part of the gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES 

6  (1,520) 0 1,514  

992  886  626  (2,504) Use of the capital receipts reserve 
to finance new capital expenditure 

2,081 574 580 (3,235) 

(1) 1  0  0  Contribution from the capital 
receipts reserve to finance the 
payments to the government 
capital receipts pool. 

0 0  0 0 

        Adjustments primarily involving 
the deferred capital receipts 
reserve 

        

180  (257) 0  77  Transfer of deferred capital receipt 
relating to loans issued/redeemed 
in year 

(245) 0  5  240 

        Adjustments primarily involving 
the pensions reserve: 

        

(3,490) 0  0 3,490  Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the CIES 

(3,888) 0 0 3,888  

1,973  0 0 (1,973) Employer's pensions contributions 
and direct payments to pensioners' 
payable in the year. 

2,011  0 0 (2,011) 

        Adjustments primarily involving 
the Collection fund adjustment 
account: 

        

(676) 0 0 676  Amount by which council tax and 
NDR income credited to the CIES 
is different from income calculated 
for the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

(200) 0 0 200  

        Adjustment primarily involving 
the accumulated absences 
account: 

        

(593) 326  (178) 445  Total adjustments (2,142) (1,549) (653) 4,344 

Page 83

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 33 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

4. Transfers to/from general fund balance and earmarked reserves  
 

This note details all movements in the reserves that comprise the general fund balance and 
earmarked reserves. 

 
31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

01 Apr 
14 

Trans-
fers 

Trans-
fers    
out 

31 Mar 
15 

Balance 
carried 
forward 

  01 Apr 
16 

Trans-
fers 

Trans-
fers     
out 

01 Mar 
16 

Balance 
brought 
forward 

in Balance 
brought 
forward 

in Balance 
carried 
forward 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

        General fund balance         

(750) 0 0 (750) General fund balance (750) 0 0 (750) 

(24,233) (5,866) 5,487 (24,612) Enabling fund (a) (24,612) (4,098) 3,791 (24,919) 

(10,609) 0 0 (10,609) Interest allocated as principal  
(b) 

(10,609) 0 0 (10,609) 

(35,592) (5,866) 5,487 (35,971) Total general fund balance (35,971) (4,098) 3,791 (36,278) 

      Earmarked reserves       

(2,411) 0 992 (1,419) CIF Interest - capital 
unallocated (c) 

(1,419) 0 1,419 
 

0 

(1,697) (357) 0 (2,054) Revenue funding (d) (2,054) (34) 260 (1,828) 

(258) (1,191) 258 (1,191) Carry forwards (e) (1,191) (1,252) 1,191 (1,252) 

(154) 0 0 (154) Building control (f) (154) 0 0 (154) 

(1,884) (510) 256 (2,138) Revenue grants reserve (g) (2,138) (520) 35 (2,623) 

(1,834) (1,914) 0 (3,748) New homes bonus (h) (3,748) (2,878) 0 (6,626) 

(5,354) (128) 0 (5,482) Revenue budget smoothing 
reserve (i) 

(5,482) 0 887 (4,595) 

(2,275) (409) 0 (2,684) Unit trust dividend reinvested 
reserve (j) 

(2,684) (456) 0 (3,140) 

  (87)   (87) Didcot reserve (k) (87) (157) 0 (244) 

(15,867) (4,596) 1,506 (18,957) Total earmarked reserves (18,957) (5,297) 3,792 (20,462) 

 
The purpose of each reserve is as follows: 
(a) Accumulated surpluses in previous years, which have not yet been earmarked. 
(b) To hold sums received from the sale of capital assets and which have now been  

recycled into the equivalent amount of interest and thus could be used to meet any 
 future costs.  

(c) To hold interest distributed on CIF balances for capital expenditure. 
(d) From interest earnings in previous years which will be used to support the general 

fund revenue budget. 
(e) By departments from underspends to cover future specific costs. 
(f) From ring fencing the building control trading account. 
(g) To fund revenue expenditure from grants received in advance. 
(h) To hold receipts of new homes bonus funding. 

(i) To fund future revenue pressures. 
(j) To hold the dividends re-invested in the council’s unit trust investments. 
(k) To hold rental income received from land in Didcot for future investment in Didcot. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 34 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

5.  Property, plant and equipment 
 

Table 5a Movements in property, plant and equipment 2015/16     

  

Other 
land & 

buildings 

Vehicles, 
plant & 
equip-
ment 

Infra- 
structure 

assets 

Comm- 
unity 

assets 

Assets 
under 

constr- 
uction 

Total 
PP&E 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation             

At 1 April 2015  31,512  2,285  562  992  217  35,568  

Additions 134  302  12  0  0  448  

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
to RR 

0  0  0  0  0  0  

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
to SDPS 

(316) 0  0  0  0  (316) 

Reclassification 1,039  0  0  0  0 1,039  

Other movements in 
cost or valuation 

(72) 78  0  (1)  (217)  (212) 

At 31 March 2016 32,297  2,665  574  991 0  36,527  

Depreciation and impairments 

At 1 April 2015 (3,654) (2,082) (390) 0  0  (6,126) 

Depreciation charge 
for 2015/16 

(515) (61) (33) 0  0  (609) 

Impairment 
losses/reversals to 
RR 

0  0  0  0  0  0  

Impairment 
losses/reversals to 
SDPS 
Other movements in 
depreciation and 
impairments 

77 
 
 

11  

0  
 
 

0 

0  
 
 

0 

0  
 
 

0 

0  
 
 

0 

77  
 
 

11 

At 31 March 2016 (4,081) (2,143) (423) 0  0  (6,647) 

Balance sheet at 31 
March 2016 

28,216 522  151  991  0  29,880  

Balance sheet at 31 
March 2015 

27,858  203  172  992  217  29,442  

       

RR= Revaluation 
reserve       

SDPS=Surplus or deficit on the provision of services    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 35 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 

Table 5b Movements in property, plant and equipment 2014/15 

  

Other 
land & 

buildings 

Vehicles, 
plant & 
equip- 
ment 

Infra- 
structure 

assets 

Comm- 
unity 

assets 

Assets 
under 

constr- 
uction 

Total 
PP&E 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation 

At 1 April 2014 31,400  2,132  531  1  124  34,188  

Additions 112  153  31  0  93  389  

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
to SDPS 

0  0  0  991  0  991  

At 31 March 2015 31,512  2,285  562  992  217  35,568  

Depreciation and impairments 

At 1 April 2014 (8) (1,921) (389) 0  0  (2,318) 

Depreciation charge 
for 2015/16 

(538) (161) (1) 0  0  (700) 

Impairment 
losses/reversals to 
RR 

(2,216) 0  0  0  0  (2,216) 

Impairment 
losses/reversals to 
SDPS 

(892) 0  0  0  0  (892) 

At 31 March 2015 (3,654) (2,082) (390) 0  0  (6,126) 

Balance sheet at 31 
March 2015 

27,858  203  172  992  217  29,442  

Balance sheet at 31 
March 2014 

31,392  211  142  1  124  31,870  

 

RR= Revaluation reserve 

SDPS=Surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

 
Depreciation 
 
The following useful lives and depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation: 
 Other land and buildings –  on an individual basis as assessed by the valuer 
 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – 1 to 24 years 
 Infrastructure – 1 year. 

 
Capital commitments 
 
At 31 March 2016, the council had agreed its approved and provisional capital programme for 
2015/16 (total expenditure of £3.2 million including new capital growth) and an indicative 
programme up to the end of 2019/20.As at the end of March 2016 the council had one capital 
commitment of £0.3 million in respect of capital grants awarded.   
 
Revaluations 
 
The council has a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipment required 
to be measured at current value or fair value as appropriate is revalued at least every three years.  
Any assets that may be subject to special conditions will be valued more often, as required.  

Page 86

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 36 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Valuations are prepared in accordance with the recommendations contained within the RICS Red 
Book, UK Appendix 5, which covers the valuation of local authority assets.  A review by the 
council’s internal property manager has determined that the valuations have not altered 
significantly between the last date of valuation and 31 March 2016. 
 
The significant assumptions applied in estimating the 2015/16 values are that: 
 
 There is no contamination problem nor deleterious/hazardous substance present; 

 
 Good title can be shown and that the properties comply with all legal and statutory 

requirements regarding either the structure or its existing /past usage, 
 

 There will be an adequate level of expenditure on repairs and maintenance. 
 

Table 5c Revaluations property, plant and equipment 

  

Land & 
buildings 

Vehicles, 
plant & 

equipment 

Infrastructure 
& community 

assets 

Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Carried at historical cost 110 203 172 485 
Valued at fair value as 
at:        
31 January 2014 23,446 0 0 23,446 

31 January 2015 4,300 2,082 991 7,373 

31 January 2016 4,441 380 402 5,223 

Total value 32,297 2,665 1,565 36,527 

 
The council has no material surplus assets. 
 
6. Investment properties 

 
Income and expenditure in respect of investment properties is shown on the face of the CIES.   
There are no restrictions on the council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 
property or on the council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The 
council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or 
repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 
 
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the 
year: 
 

2014/15 
original 

2014/15 
restated14   

2015/16 

£000 £000   £000 

15,914 15,914 Balance at 1 April 10,304 

0 (5,610) Disposals (420) 
0 0 Reclassifications (1,039) 
0 0 Changes in fair value 105 

15,914 10,304 Balance at 31 March 8,950 

 
 

                                            
14 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 87

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 37 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Fair value hierarchy 
 
All the council’s investment properties have been value assessed as Level 2 on the fair value 
hierarchy for valuation purposes (see accounting policy xxii for an explanation of fair value levels). 
 
Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 for values for investment property 
 
The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes 
into account quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, 
research into market evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for 
existing tenants, and data and market knowledge gained in managing the council’s investment 
asset portfolio.  Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold 
and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised as 
level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 
 
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment 
properties. 
 
Highest and best use 
 
In estimating the fair value of the council’s investment properties, the highest and best use is their 
current use. 
 

Valuation process for investment properties 
 
The council’s investment property has been valued as at 31 January 2016 by Bruton Knowles in 
accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards 
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 
 

7. Financial instruments 
 

The borrowings and investments disclosed in the balance sheet are made up of the following 
categories of financial instruments: 
 

Table 7a Categories of financial instrument 

  Long term Current 

  

2014/15  
original 

2014/15  
restated 

2015/16 2014/15   2015/16 

  £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 

Investments           
Loans and receivables (principal amount) 16,056  16,056 16,023  58,001  62,156  
Plus accrued interest 132  132 143  311  363  
Cash equivalents (excluding bank overdraft) 0  0 0  12,861  9,685  

Loans and receivables at amortised cost (1) 16,188  16,188 16,166  71,173  72,204  

Available for sale financial assets (2)  21,758  21,758 19,299  0  295  

Total investments 37,946  37,946  35,465  71,173  72,499  

Debtors           
Financial assets carried at contract amount 16,679  22,289  22,459  1,210  3,646  

Total debtors 16,679  22,289  22,459  1,210  3,646  

Creditors           
Financial liabilities carried at contract amount 0  0  0  (7,469) (5,361) 

Total creditors 0  0  0  (7,469) (5,361) 

 
(1) Under accounting requirements the carrying value of the financial instrument value is 

shown in the balance sheet which includes the principal amount borrowed or lent and 
further adjustments for breakage costs including accrued interest.  Accrued interest is 

Page 88

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 38 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

shown separately in current assets/liabilities where payments/receipts are due within one 
year.  The effective interest rate is effectively accrued interest receivable under the 
instrument, adjusted for the amortisation of any premiums or discounts reflected in the 
purchase price. 

 
(2) Available for sale assets – the council holds £0.3 million of corporate bonds, £12.8 million in 

unit trusts with Legal & General, and £6.5 million in the CCLA pooled property fund. 
 
Financial instrument gains/losses 
 
The gains and losses recognised in the CIES in relation to financial instruments are made up as 
follows: 
 

Table 7b Financial instrument gains and losses 2015/16 

  Financial assets 

  

Loan and 
receivables 

Available-
for-sale 
assets 

Total 

  £000 £000 £000 

Interest receivable and similar income 1,691  4  1,695  

Other investment income (dividends) 0  756  756  

Total income in surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 

1,691  760  2,451  

Loss on revaluation 0  (941) (941) 

Surplus arising on revaluation of financial 
assets 

0  (941) (941) 

Net gain/(loss) for the year 1,691  (181) 1,510  

    

Table 7c Financial instrument gains and losses 2014/15 

  Financial assets 

  

Loan and 
receivables 

Available-
for-sale 
assets 

Total 

  £000 £000 £000 

Interest receivable and similar income 1,640  122  1,762  

Other investment income (dividends) 0  731  731  

Total income in surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services 

1,640  853  2,493  

 
 

   

Gain on revaluation 0  1,310  1,310  

Surplus arising on revaluation of financial 
assets 

0  1,310  1,310  

Net gain/(loss) for the year 1,640  2,163  3,803  

    
Fair values of assets and liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables, long-term debtors 
and creditors are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost (in long term assets/liabilities with 
accrued interest in current assets/liabilities).  Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the 
present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, 
using the following assumptions: 

Page 89

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 39 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 For loans receivable prevailing benchmark these have been used to provide the fair value; 
 Where an instrument will mature within the next 12 months, the fair value is taken to be the 

carrying amount; 
 No early repayment or impairment is recognised; 
 The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. 

 
The fair values calculated are as follows: 

 

Table 7d Fair value of assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost 

31 March 2015 restated15   31 March 2016 

Carrying Fair value   Carrying Fair value 

amount     amount   

£000 £000   £000 £000 

12,796  12,796  Short term creditors 11,743  11,743  

12,796  12,796  Total liabilities 11,743  11,743 

58,001  58,312  Short term investments 62,156  62,519  

7,464  7,516  Cash and cash equivalents 4,836  4,870  

5,345  5,345  Money market funds 4,815  4,815  

16,056  16,188  Long term investments 16,023  16,166  

21,758  21,758  Available for sale investments 19,594  19,594  

7,133  7,133  Short term debtors 10,716  10,716  

22,289 22,289  Long term debtors 22,459  22,459  

138,046  138,541 Total assets 140,599  141,139  

 
The fair values for loans and receivables include accrued interest.  
 
The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment rates at the 
balance sheet date.  In practice rates will be determined by the size of the transaction and the 
counterparty, but it is impractical to use these figures and the difference is likely to be immaterial. 
 
Available for sale assets are carried in the balance sheet at their fair value.  These fair values are 
based on public price quotations where there is an active market for the instrument.   
 
Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value. 
 
Long term debtors have been restated.  The original value shown in the 2014/15 Statement of 
Accounts was £16.7 million 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
On the 2 July 2007 the council agreed to deposit £2.5 million with Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander 
Ltd for the period 14 December 2007 to 12 December 2008 at an interest rate of 6.41 per cent.  
The bank went into administration at the start of October 2008, and as a result the full repayment 
of the deposit has not been made. 
 
At December 2008, the amount due to be repaid was the principal amount of £2.5 million plus 
interest of £159,811, giving a total amount of £2,659,810.  However the insolvency regulations 
only allow a claim up to the date that KSF went into administration on 7 October 2008. This means 
that the authority can only claim for £2,630,834. 
 

                                            
15 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 90

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 40 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The creditor report issued by the administrators Ernst & Young now indicates that the estimated 
return to creditors to be in the range of 84 to 86.5 per cent and an impairment to the asset was 
made at this time.  In 2015/16 the council received further dividends, bringing the total to date to 
£2.2 million (84 per cent).  Any further impairment is likely to be insignificant and therefore no 
change has been made to the previously recognised impairment. 
 
8. Debtors 
 

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

Long- 
term 

original 

Long- 
term 

restated16 

Short  
term 

  

Long 
term 

Short  
term 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 

0 0 241 Central government bodies 0 868 

0 0 1,873 Other local authorities 0 3,036 

16,679 22,289 5,019 Other entities and individuals 22,459 6,812 

16,679 22,289 7,133 Total debtors 22,459 10,716 

 
The 2014/15 restatement is due to the granting of long term leases. 
 
9. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

£000 £000 

2  Cash held by the council 1  

(344) 
7,514  

Bank Overdraft 
Bank current and instant access accounts 

(1,562) 
4,869 

5,345  Money market funds 4,815  

12,517  Total cash and cash equivalents 8,123  

 
10. Assets held for sale 
 
The council has no assets held for sale.  
 
11. Short–term creditors 
 

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

£000   £000 

(1,096) Central government bodies (822) 

(5,067) Other local authorities (5,218) 

(6,633) Other entities and individuals (5,703) 

(12,796)   (11,743) 

 
12. Provisions 
 
The provision in 2015/16 represents amounts set aside to meet future potential business rate 
appeals liabilities 
 

                                            
16 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 41 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

  
Provisions 

£000 

Balance at 1 April 2015 (1,087) 

Movement in year (431) 

Balance at 31 March 2016 (1,518) 

 
13. Unusable reserves 
 
Revaluation reserve 
 
The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from increases in the value 
of its property, plant and equipment.  The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains 
are: 
 
 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 
 used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or 
 disposed of and the gains are realised. 

 
The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 
reserve was created.  Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the capital adjustment account. 
 

Table 13a Revaluation reserve   

2014/15   2015/16 

£000   £000 

(7,816) Balance at 1 April (6,426) 

(991) Upward revaluation of assets 0 

2,216  Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not 
charged to the surplus/deficit on the provision of services 

0  

1,225  Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets 
not posted to the surplus or deficit on the provision of 
services 

0  

166  Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost 
depreciation 

113  

0  Other 52 

(6,426) Balance at 31 March (6,261) 

   

Available for sale financial instruments reserve 
 
The available for sale financial instruments reserve contains the gains made by the council arising 
from increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not 
have fixed or determinable payments.  The balance is reduced when investments with 
accumulated gains are: 
 
 Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 
 Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 42 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 13b Available for sale financial instruments reserve   

2014/15   2015/16 

£000 £000 

(718) Balance at 1 April (2,028) 

(1,310) Revaluation of investments 941  

(2,028) Balance at 31 March (1,087) 

 
Capital adjustment account 
 
The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The account 
is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment 
losses and amortisations are charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from the revaluation 
reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  The account is credited with the 
amounts set aside by the council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 
enhancement. 
 
The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains 
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the council. 
 
The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before 
1 April 2007, the date that the revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains. 
 
Note 3 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from 
those involving the revaluation reserve.   
 

Table 13c Capital adjustment account restated   

2014/15 
original 

2014/15 
restated   

2015/16 
 

£000 £000   £000 

(51,953) (51,953) Balance at 1 April (45,226) 

    Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited 
to the CIES: 

  

1,592  1,592  Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current assets 532  
0  0  Revaluations (gains)/losses on property, plant and equipment 211  

57  57  Amortisation of intangible assets 39  
2,084  2,084  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 2,853  

0  5,610  Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of 
the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES17 

420  

(166) (166) Adjusting amounts written out to the revaluation reserve (113) 

    Capital financing applied in the year:   
(843) (843) Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new capital expenditure (595) 

(669) (669) Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES that have been 
applied to capital financing 

(555) 

(992) (992) Capital expenditure charged against earmarked reserves (2,086) 

54  54  Other adjustments 1,572  

(50,836) (45,226) Balance at 31 March (42,948) 

 
 
 
 

                                            
17 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 93

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 43 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Pensions reserve 
 
The pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory  
provisions.  The council accounts for post-employment benefits in the CIES as the benefits are 
earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 
inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the 
costs.  However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the council 
makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is 
directly responsible.  The debit balance on the pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial 
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the council has 
set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set 
aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
 

Table 13d  Pensions reserve   

2014/15  2014/15 

£000  £000 

40,400 Balance at 1 April 52,622 

10,705 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) (3,977) 

  Actuarial Gain/(loss)   

3,490 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services in 
the comprehensive income and expenditure statement 

3,888  

(1,973) Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in the year 

(2,011) 

52,622 Balance at 31 March 50,522 

 
Deferred capital receipts reserve 
 
The deferred capital receipts reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current 
assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements, the 
council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are 
backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are 
transferred to the capital receipts reserve. 
 

Table 13e Deferred capital receipts reserve   

2014/15 2014/15 
restated   2015/16 

£000 £000   £000 

(16,763) (16,763) Balance at 1 April (25,403) 

(3,317) (3,317) New deferred capital receipts raised in year (98) 

0  (5,610) Deferred capital receipts relating to re-categorised long 
leases18 

(420)  

287  287  Transfer to the capital receipts reserve upon receipt of 
cash 

351  

0 0 Other 3 

(19,793) (25,403) Balance at 31 March (25,567) 

 
 
 
 

                                            
18 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 94

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 44 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Collection fund adjustment account 
 
The collection fund adjustment account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 
council tax income in the CIES as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the general fund from the collection fund. 
 

Table 13f Collection fund adjustment account   

2014/15   2015/16 
£000  £000 

27 Balance at 1 April 703 

676 Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates 
income credited to the CIES is different from council tax 
income and non-domestic rates calculated for the year in 
accordance with statutory requirements 

202 

703 Balance at 31 March 905 

 
Accumulated absences account 
 
The accumulated absences account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the 
general fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, 
e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.  Statutory arrangements require that the 
impact on the general fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the account.   
 

Table 13g Accumulated absences account   

2014/15   2015/16 

£000   £000 

188 Balance at 1 April 188 

(188) Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of 
the preceding year 

(188) 

188 Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 188 

188 Balance at 31 March 188 

 
14. Interest received, interest paid and dividends received 
 
The cash flow for operating activities included within the cash flow statement includes the following 
items: 
  

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

1,774 Interest received 1,525 

0 Interest paid 0 

883 Dividends received 862 

2,657 Total interest received, interest paid and dividends received 2,387 

 
15. Amounts reported for resource allocation decision 
 
The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the CIES is that specified by the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16.  However, decisions about resource allocation are 
taken by the council on the basis of budget reports analysed across services.  These reports are 
prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements.  In 
particular: 

Page 95

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 45 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 No charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses in excess of the balance on the revaluation reserve and amortisations are 
charged to services in the CIES); 

 
 The cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s pensions 

contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year; 
 

 Expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to services. 
 

The income and expenditure of the council’s principal services recorded in the budget reports for 
the year is as follows: 
 

Table 15a Income and expenditure of principal services in budget format   

2014/15 Service Group 2015/16 

Gross 
exp 

Gross 
inc 

Net   
exp  

Gross 
exp 

Gross 
inc 

Net   
exp 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

707 (344) 363 Strategic management board 824 (286) 538 
8,483 (2,822) 5,661 Corporate strategy 8,512 (2,832) 5,680 
1,589 (1,055) 534 Development & Housing 1,631 (1,044) 587 
2,034 (2,570) (536) Economy, leisure & property 2,164 (3,098) (934) 

35,369 (32,533) 2,836 Finance 37,400 (34,609) 2,791 
3,525 (2,266) 1,259 HR, IT and technical 3,784 (2,330) 1,454 
2,495 (1,628) 867 Legal & democratic 2,749 (1,950) 799 
4,153 (2,925) 1,228 Planning 4,554 (3,134) 1,420 

58,355 (46,143) 12,212 Direct service expenditure 
(explanatory foreword page 14) 

61,618 (49,283) 12,335 

 
Reconciliation to the net expenditure in the CIES 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the income and expenditure of principal services in 
budget format analysis reconciles to the net cost of services per in the CIES.  
 

Table 15b Reconciliation to net cost of services 

2014/15  2015/16 
£000  £000 

12,212 Net direct service expenditure per budget format analysis 12,335 
5,011 Amounts not included in the analysis but included in the CIES 7,721 

(1,503) Amounts included in the analysis but not included in the CIES (1,997) 

15,720 Net cost of services per the CIES 18,059 

 
Reconciliation to subjective analysis 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of service income and expenditure relate 
to a subjective analysis of the surplus or deficit on the provision of services included in the CIES.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 46 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 15c Reconciliation to subjective analysis 

2014/15  2015/16 
Service 
analysis 

 Service 
analysis 

£000  £000 

(46,143) Gross service income (see table 21a) (49,283) 
(304) Gain on the disposal of non-current assets (197) 

(2,084) Interest receivable and similar income (1,671) 
(409) Other investment income (dividends)  (756) 

(36,248) Taxation and non-specific grant income (34,808) 
            2,190 Allocation of recharges 2,168 

(179) Revaluation of equity loans in year 0 
178 Other service income 2,154 

(82,999) Total income (82,393) 

58,355 Gross service expenditure (see table 15a) 61,618 
4,212 Parish council precepts and other grants 4,367 

0 Equity loans 246 
14,599 Taxation and non-specific grant income 14,878 

0 Loss on the disposal of non-current assets (6) 
(2,190) Allocation of recharges (2,168) 

           1,649 
 

0 

Depreciation, amortisation and revaluation of fixed assets 
Mortgage 

843 
 

(9) 
100 Expenditure funded from developers contributions 413 

(177) Other service expenses (2,156) 
1,517 Employee expenses 1,877 
2,084 Revenue expenditure financed by capital under statute 2,853 

80,149 Total operating expenses 82,756 

(2,850) (Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services 363 

 
16. Members’ allowances 
 
The council paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year. 
 

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

137 Basic allowance 159 

71 Special responsibility allowance 86 

10 Expenses 9 

218   254 

 
17. Employee benefits 
 
Benefits payable during employment 
A senior employee is one who earns a salary in excess of £150,000 (there are none of these in the 
council), or holds a designated position (with a salary in excess of £50,000) – these are detailed in 
the table below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 47 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 17a Senior officers emoluments 

Post title Financial  
year 

Salary 
(including 

fees & 
allowances

) 

Expense
s 

Total 
remuneratio
n excluding 

pension 
contribution

s 

Pension 
contribution

s 

Total 
remuneratio
n including 

pension 
contribution

s 
    £ £ £ £ £ 

Head of 
paid 

service 

2015/16 134,919 1,435 136,354 16,595 152,949 

2014/15 132,274 270 132,544 16,270 148,814 

Chief 
finance 
officer 

(section 
151 

officer) 

2015/16 77,824 2,545 80,369 9,572 89,941 

2014/15 77,824 450 78,274 9,572 87,846 

Monitorin
g officer 

2015/16 79,623 231 79,854 9,794 89,648 

2014/15 79,623 69 79,692 9,794 89,486 

 
The current chief finance officer and monitoring officer are also heads of service. 
 
The spot point pay level for strategic directors and heads of service is as follows: 
 

Table 17b Spot pay point - strategic director and heads of service 

2014/15 
£   

2015/16 
£ 

101,115 Strategic directors 103,137 

75,900 Heads of service 77,418 

                                                
In total the council employed two strategic directors and seven heads of service.  In 2015/16, 
these posts were shared on a 50:50 basis with Vale of White Horse District Council; therefore the 
council only incurred 50 per cent of the costs shown above.   
 
The council is also obliged to disclose the numbers of other employees that were paid a salary in 
excess of £50,000 (these numbers do not include the senior officers detailed above).  The number 
of employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension  
contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 were: 
 

Table 17c Employee remuneration over £50,000     

Number of SODC employees     

Shared with 
VWHDC 2014/15 

SODC only                      
2014/15 

Remuneration 
band 
£ 

Shared with 
VWHDC 2015/16 

SODC only 
2015/16 

9 0 50,000 - 54,999 12 0 

4 1 55,000 - 59,999 3 1 

 
Under the shared working arrangements, the council recharged a total of £3.98 million of its salary 
costs to Vale of White Horse District Council, who in turn recharged £1.90 million of its salary 
costs to this council. 
 
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 48 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
Termination benefits 
 
The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below: 
 

Table 17d Exit packages 

Exit package 
cost band 
(including 

special 
payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of other 
departures 

agreed 

Total number of 
exit packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 

band 
 £ 

  
2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 

£0 - £20,000 2 3 1 3 3 6 34,748 45,071 

Total 2 3 1 3 3 6 34,748 45,071 

 
Post-employment benefits - defined benefit pension schemes 
 
Participation in pension schemes  
 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the council makes contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable 
until employees retire, the council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be 
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
The council participates in The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The LGPS is a 
defined statutory scheme administered in accordance with the Local Government Scheme 
regulations 2013, is contracted out of the State Second Pension and currently provides benefits 
based on career average revalued salary and length of service on retirement.   
 
The administering authority for the Fund is Oxfordshire County Council.  The Pension Fund 
Committee oversees the management of the Fund whilst the day to day fund administration is 
undertaken by a team within the administering authority.  Where appropriate some functions are 
delegated to the Fund’s professional advisers. 
 
As administering authority to the Fund, Oxfordshire County Council, after consultation with the 
Fund Actuary and other relevant parties, is responsible for the preparation and maintenance of the 
Funding Strategy Statement and the Statement of Investment Principles.  These should be 
amended when appropriate based on the Fund’s performance and funding. 
 
Contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund required 
by the Regulations.  The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried out as at 31 March 
2016 and will set contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020.  There are no 
minimum funding requirements in the LGPS but the contributions are generally set to target a 
funding level of 100 percent using the actuarial valuation assumptions. 
 
On the employer’s withdrawal from the Fund, a cessation valuation will be carried out in 
accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the termination 
contribution due by the employer, on a set of assumptions deemed appropriate by the Fund 
Actuary. 
 

Page 99

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 49 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

This is a funded defined benefit career, meaning that the council and employees pay contributions 
into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension’s liabilities with investment 
assets.  The fund has an independent global custodian, BNP Paribas, whose main duties include 
the safekeeping of the fund's investments, the collection of income and the execution of corporate 
actions, such as company mergers or takeovers.  
 
In addition arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits are awarded upon 
early retirement. This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement under which liabilities are 
recognised when awards are made.  However, there are no investment assets built up to meet 
these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension’s payments as they 
fall due 
 
In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the employer is exposed 
to a number of risks: 
 
 Investment risk. The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which have 

volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide real returns over the 
long-term, the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be required if a deficit 
emerges.  
 

 Interest rate risk. The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality 
corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows.  As the Fund holds assets such as 
equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in the same way.  
 

 Inflation risk. All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so deficits may 
emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation.  
 

 Longevity risk. In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will emerge in 
the Fund. There are also other demographic risks.  

 
In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Oxfordshire County Council Pension 
Fund, there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets 
to cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining employers. 
 
All of the risks above may also benefit the employer e.g. higher than expected investment returns 
or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by the remaining 
employers.  
 
These risks are also mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the 
general fund the amounts required by statute. 
 
Transactions relating to retirement benefits 
 
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned 
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the 
charge made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-
employment / retirement benefits is reversed out of the general fund via the movement in reserves 
statement.  The following transactions have been made in the CIES and the general fund balance 
via the movement in reserves statement during the year:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 100

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 50 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
 

Table 17e Transactions relating to retirement benefits 

2014/15 

 

2015/16 

£000 £000 

  Cost of services:   

1,678  Service cost 2,187  

77  Administrative expenses 49  

  Financing and investment income and expenditure   

1,735  Net interest expense 1,652  

3,490  Total post-employment benefit charged to the surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services 

3,888  

  Other post-employment benefit charged to the CIES   

  Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:   

(5,502) Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net 
interest expense) 

2,607  

16,200  Actual gain and losses arising on changes in financial 
assumptions 

(6,631) 

7  Other 47  

14,195  Total post-employment benefit charges to the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement 

(89) 

  Movement in Reserves Statement   

(3,490) Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit for the 
Provision of services for post-employment benefits in accordance 
with the code 

(3,888) 

  Actual amount charged against the general fund balance for 
pensions in the year: 

  

1,973  Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 2,011  

 
Pensions assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 
 
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its 
defined benefit plans is as follows: 
 

17f Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

81,571 Fair value of employer assets 80,044 

(130,189) Present value of funded liabilities (126,765) 

(4,004) Present value of unfunded liabilities (3,801) 

(52,622) Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (50,522) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 51 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 

17g Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of the scheme assets 

2014/15 

  

2015/16 

£000 £000 

75,373  Opening balance at 1 April 81,571  

3,262  Interest on assets 2,587  

5,502  Return on assets less interest (2,607) 

0  Other actuarial gains / (losses) 0  

(77) Administration expenses (49) 

1,721  Employer contributions 1,758  

557  Contributions by scheme participants 571  

(4,767) Benefits paid (3,787) 

81,571  Closing present value of scheme assets 80,044  

 

17h Reconciliation of the movements in the fair value of the scheme liabilities   

Funded 
liabilities   

Unfunded 
liabilities   

Funded 
liabilities   

Unfunded 
liabilities  

2014/15 2015/16 

 

2015/16 2015/16 

£000 £000 £000 £000 

(111,994) (3,779) Opening balance at 1 April (130,189) (4,004) 

(1,678) 0  Current service cost (2,187) 0  

(4,836) (161) Interest cost (4,115) (124) 

(557) 0  Contributions by scheme participants (571) 0  

    Remeasurement (gains) and losses:     

(15,891) (309) Actual gains and losses arising on 
changes in financial assumptions 

6,510  121  

0  (7) Other 0  (47) 

4,767  252  Benefits paid 3,787  253  

(130,189) (4,004) Closing present value of liabilities (126,765) (3,801) 

 
The discretionary benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The LGPS’ assets 
consist of the following categories.  
 

17i Breakdown of fund assets at fair value   

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

55,057 Equity instruments 51,202 

0 Private equity 0 

5,034 Property 6,359 

  Bonds:   

9,711 Government bonds 10,608 

2,993 Corporate bonds 2,815 

  Other investment funds:   

2,752 LLPs 3,154 

23 Hedge funds 0  

3,780 Diversified Growth Fund 3,512 

2,221 Cash and cash equivalents 2,394 

81,571 Total 80,044 

Page 102

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 52 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
The council’s share of the assets of the fund is approximately 4 per cent.  
 
Of the equities allocation above, 32.8 per cent are UK investments, 31.2 per cent are overseas 
investments, and the rest are private equities of unspecified origin.   Of the equities, 48.7 per cent 
are listed and 51.3 per cent are not.  
 
The gilts allocation consists of 5.4 per cent in UK fixed interest government securities, 2.7 per cent 
overseas fixed interest government securities and 5.2 per cent in UK index-linked government 
securities.  
 
The other bonds allocation consists of 3.1 per cent in UK corporate bonds and 0.4 per cent in 
overseas corporate bonds.  
 
The majority of scheme assets have quoted prices in active markets.  The proportion of assets 
held that do are; equities 49 per cent, Government bonds 100 per cent, corporate bonds 100 per 
cent, cash and cash equivalents 100 per cent.   
 
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 
 
To assess the value of the council’s liabilities at 31 March 2016, we have rolled forward the value 
of the employer’s liabilities calculated for the funding valuation as at 31 March 2013.  The full 
actuarial valuation involved projecting future cashflows to be paid from the Fund and placing a 
value on them.  These cashflows include pensions currently being paid to members of the Fund as 
well as pensions (and lump sums) that may be payable in the future to members of the Fund or 
the dependants.  These pensions are linked to inflation and will normally be payable on retirement 
for the life of the member or a dependant following a member’s death. 
 
To calculate the asset share we have rolled forward the assets allocated to the council at 31 
March 2013 allowing for investment returns (estimated where necessary), contributions paid into, 
and estimated benefits paid from, the Fund by and in respect of the employer and its employees. 
We have adopted a set of demographic assumptions that are consistent with those used for the 
most recent Fund valuation, which was carried out as at 31 March 2013.  The post retirement 
mortality tables adopted are the S1PA tables with a multiplier of 95 per cent.  These base tables 
are then projected using the CMI 2012 Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5 
per cent per annum. 
 

Table 17j Principal actuarial assumptions   

2014/15   2015/16 

  
Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the 
scheme   

3.2% All assets 3.5% 

  Mortality assumptions   

  Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:   

23.3yrs  Men 23.3yrs 

25.7yrs  Women 25.8yrs 

  Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:   

25.5yrs  Men 25.6yrs 

28.0yrs  Women 28.1yrs 

  Other assumptions   

3.1% Inflation - RPI 3.2% 

2.3% Inflation - CPI 2.3% 
Page 103

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 53 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

4.1% Rate of general increase in salaries 4.1% 

2.3% Rate of increase to pensions 2.3% 

3.2% Discount rate 3.5% 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in 
the table above.  The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably 
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain 
constant.  The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases for  
men and women. In practice this is unlikely to be correct, and changes in some of the assumptions 
may be interrelated.  The estimates in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting 
policies for then scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method.  The methods 
and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from 
those used in the previous period. 
 
Other assumptions are that: 
 

 Members will exchange half of their commutable pension for cash at retirement; 
 

 Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the 
pension weighted average tranche retirement age; and 
 

 10 per cent of active members will take up the option under the new LGPS to pay 50 per 
cent of contributions for 50 per cent of benefits. 

 

Table 17k Sensitivity analysis 

  

Increase in 
assumption 

2015/16 

Decrease in 
assumption 

2015/16 

  £000 £000 

Mortality (increase or decrease in 1 year) 4,096 (3,968) 

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1 
per cent) 

159 (159) 

Rate of increase in pensions and deferred revaluation 
(increase or decrease by 0.1 per cent)19 

2,021 (1,988) 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or 
decrease by 0.1 per cent) 

(2,120) 2,157 

 
Impact on the council’s cash flows 
 
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as 
possible, at a reasonable cost to the scheme employers and taxpayers, whilst ensuring the overall 
solvency of the fund.  There are no minimum funding requirements but contributions are generally 
set to target a funding level of 100 per cent.  Funding levels are monitored regularly and the next 
triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31 March 2016. 
 
The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public 
Pensions Services Act 2013.  Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England 
and Wales may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014.  The Act provides 
for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average 
revalued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits. 
 
The actuarial estimate of the duration of the council’s liabilities is 17 years. 
                                            
19 Pension increases and deferred revaluation are linked to inflation (CPI) 

Page 104

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 54 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The council anticipates paying £1.7 million in contributions to the scheme in 2016/2017. 
 
 
18. External audit costs 
 
The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the statement of accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the 
council’s external auditors. 
 
In 2015/16 external audit services were provided by Ernst & Young LLP. 
 

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

57 Fees payable with regard to external audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor for the year 

51 

0 Fees payable to audit commission in respect of statutory inspections 0  
12 Fees payable to external auditor for the certification of grant claims and 

returns for the year 

11 

69 Total 62 

 
19. Grant income 
 
The council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the CIES in 2014/15. 
 

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

  Credited to taxation and non-specific grant income   

2,435 Retained business rates 2,496 

10,426 Council tax income 10,492 

67 Council tax freeze grant 66 

8 Council tax relief 15 

526 Developers and other contributions 1,501 

493 Disabled facilities grant 555 

3,108 Extraordinary capital contribution 0 

1,914 New homes bonus 2,886 

2,672 Revenue support grant 1,919 

21,649 Total 19,930 

  Credited to services   

69 Council tax admin grant 0 

0 Didcot Garden Town 470 

49 Election reform 53 

395 Housing benefit - admin 316 

29,220 Housing benefit - subsidy 29,342 

0 Leader  42 

89 Localising CT admin subsidy 85 

64 New burdens revenue and other grants 351 

500 New Homes Zones 0 

189 NNDR collection allowance 187 

30,575 Total 30,846 

   
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 55 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
20.  Related parties 
 
The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 
that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the 
council.  Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the council 
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the 
ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the council. 
 
Related parties include: 
 
Central government.  Central government has effective control over the general operations of the 
council – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the council operates, 
provides a large proportion of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of 
the transactions that the council has with other parties (e.g. housing benefits).   Grants received 
from government are shown in note 19 above. 
 
Precepts.  Precept transactions in relation to Oxfordshire County Council, Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Thames Valley and the various town and parish councils, are shown within a 
note to the collection fund. 
 
Members of the council.  Members have direct control over the council’s financial and operating 
policies. During the year no members have undertaken any declarable, material transactions with 
the council.  Details of any transactions would be recorded in the register of members’ interests, 
open to public inspection at the council’s offices. This is in addition to a specific declaration 
obtained from all councillors in respect of related party transactions.  Members have declared an 
interest in one of the following organisations: 
 
 Interserve PLC 

 
 Total Pest Control 

 
In addition, one member has declared that they have received an equity loan for first-time buyers 
from Catalyst, under the council’s equity loan scheme. 
 
As at publication, one elected member had yet to return their declarations: 
 
Councillor Elaine Hornsby 
 
Members represent the council on various organisations. Appointments are reviewed annually, 
unless a specific termination date for the term of office applies.  None of these appointments 
places the member in a position to exert undue influence or control. 
 
Officers of the council.  The senior officers of the council have control over the day to day 
management of the council and all heads of service and management team members have been 
asked to declare any related party transactions.  For 2015/16 nothing was declared. 
 
Other organisations.  The council awards grants to support a number of voluntary or charitable 
bodies and individuals.  It does not attempt to exert control through this. 
 
21.  Capital expenditure and capital financing 
 

Page 106

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 56 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including 
the value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been 
used to finance it.  Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to 
revenue as assets are used by the council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 
council that has yet to be financed.   
 

Table 21a Capital expenditure and financing 

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

  Capital investment:   
389  Property, plant and equipment 448  

31  Intangible assets 67  

2,084  Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 2,720  

2,504  Total capital investment 3,235  

  Sources of finance:   
(843) Capital receipts (574) 

(669) Government grants and other contributions (603) 

(992) General fund and earmarked revenue reserves (2,058) 

(2,504) Total financing (3,235) 

The council’s CFR is made up of certain balances on the balance sheet and for a council with no 
debt should equal zero.   
 

Table 21b Capital financing requirement 

2014/15 
restated20   

2015/16 
 

£000   £000 

0  Opening CFR 0  

29,442  Property, plant and equipment 29,880  

10,304  Investment properties 8,950  

58  Intangible assets 92  

15,378  Long term investments (note 1) 13,061  

(45,226) Capital adjustment account (42,948) 

(6,426) Revaluation reserve (6,261) 

(846) Available for sale financial instruments reserve (note 1) 366  

(2,684) Unit trust dividend reinvested reserve (note 2) (3,140) 

0  Closing CFR (0) 

 
(1) Investments in corporate bonds and unit trusts only, excluding accrued interest. 
(2) Unit trust dividend reinvested reserve included to show full financing of unit trust investments. 
 
22.  Leases 
 
Council as lessee 
 
Finance leases – the council has no finance leases. 
 
Operating leases – the council has no material operating leases.  
 
Council as lessor 
 

                                            
20 For details of restatement see note 31. 

Page 107

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 57 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Finance leases – The granting of 3 long term leases on the following properties has resulted in a 
restatement of the balance sheet to recognise that these are finance leases and not operating 
leases:- 
 

 The Orchard Centre – 150 year lease 
 
 Gym, Cattle Market, Thame – 90 year lease 

 
 4 Bandet Way, Thame – 95 year lease 

 
The council has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments 
expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the 
property when the lease comes to an end.  The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of 
the long-term debtor for the interest in the property acquired by the lessee and finance income that 
will be earned by the council in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding. The gross 
investment is made up of the following amounts: 
 
Before the restatement there were no material finance leases, therefore tables 22a and 22b are 
new this year. 
 

Table 22a Interest in finance lease       

  

2014/15 
original 

£000 

2014/15 
restated 

£000 

2015/16 
 

£000 

Finance lease debtor (net present value of 
minimum lease payments): 

      

Non-current 0 6,027 6,027 

Unearned finance income 0 36,911 35,139 

Gross investment in the lease 0 42,938 41,166 

 
The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the 
following periods: 
 

Table 22b Minimum finance lease payments       

  
Gross investment in the 

lease 
Minimum lease payments 

  

2014/15 
restated 

£000 

2015/16 
 

£000 

2014/15 
restated 

£000 

2015/16 
 

£000 

Not later than 1 year 0 1 326 366 

Later than 1 year and not later 
than 5 years 

4 4 1,462 1,462 

Later than 5 years 6,023 6,022 35,123 33,311 

Total 6,027 6,027 36,911 35,139 

 
Operating leases – the council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the 
following purposes: 
 
 for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local 

business, and 
 

 for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities and community centres. 
 

Page 108

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 58 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 
 
 
 

Table 22c Future minimum lease payments receivable   

2014/15 
original 

£000 

2014/15 
restated21 

£000   

2015/16 
 

£000 

1,243 825 Not later than one year 811 

4,534 2,859 Later than one year and not later than five years 2,779 

49,884 18,659 Later than five years 16,623 

 
23.  Contingent liabilities 
 
 At 31 March 2016, the council had the following contingent liabilities: 
 
Compensation claims for injury and or damage.  The majority of claims for compensation are 
individually immaterial. They relate to personal injuries sustained where the council is alleged to 
be at fault (e.g. through a failure to repair a pavement properly).  Provision has not been made for 
such claims as the council’s liability is limited to the individual excess on the policy, which in most 
cases is £5,000. Until claims are settled by the council's insurers, the cost of the excess cannot be 
recognised.   
 
24.  Contingent assets 
 
At 31 March 2016, the council had no contingent assets. 
 
25.  Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments 
 
The council’s activities expose it to a variety of risks.  The main risks are: 
 
 Credit risk -  the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the council; 

 
 Liquidity risk - the possibility that the council might not have funds available to meet its 

commitments to make payments; 
 

 Re-financing risk -  the possibility that the council might be required to renew a financial 
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms; 
 

 Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the council as a result of changes 
in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

 
The council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial 
markets, and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund 
services. 
 
The council’s treasury team carry out the procedures for risk management which are set out in the 
approved policies which cover specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the 
investment of surplus cash.  The procedures are set out through a legal framework based on the 
Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations.  These require the council to comply with 
the CIPFA prudential code, the CIPFA code of practice on treasury management in the public 
services and investment guidance issued through the Act. 

                                            
21 For details of restatement see note 31 

Page 109

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 59 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to 
the council’s customers. 
 
The risk is managed through the council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that 
deposits are only placed with financial institutions that meet the identified minimum credit criteria, 
as laid down by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors credit ratings services.  The strategy also 
sets out the maximum amounts and time limits that an investment can be made with a financial 
institution within each category. 
 
The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the authority are as detailed as follows: 
 

Table 25a Credit criteria 

Financial Asset Criteria Short Long Asset  
Limit 
per Maturity 

Category  term term base Counter-
party 

Limit 

          £m   

Deposits with banks Short term F1+ AA-   15 4 years 
Long term F1+ A+  15 3 years 

  Long term F1 A  15 2 years 
  Long term F1 A-  15 1 year 
  Part nationalised n/a n/a   20 1 year 

Money Market fund AAA   5 liquid 

Deposits with 
Building     

Minimum total assets  £5,000m 15 12 
months 

Societies Minimum total assets  £1,000m 10 10 
months 

  Minimum total assets  £500m 6 9 months 

  Minimum total assets  £250m 4 6 months 

Housing 
Associations 

 F1+ A+  15 Variable 

Corporate Bonds  F1+ A+  5 Variable 

Supranationals   AAA  10 10 years 

Pooled property 
funds 

    10 Variable 

Local Authorities     15 5 years 

UK Government - 
Gilts 

   £15 15 years 

UK Equities    10 no limit 

Property related 
investments 

    £30m Variable 

 
The full annual investment strategy for 2015/16 was approved by full council on 19 February 2015 
and is available on the council’s website. The key areas of the strategy are that the minimum 
criteria for investments shown in the table 25a are met. 
 

Page 110

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 60 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past 
experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal 
ratings in accordance with parameters set by the council. 
 
The councils maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building 
societies of £100 million cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to repay 
the principal sum will be specific to each institution.  Recent experience has shown that it is rare 
for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments.  A risk of irrecoverability applies to all the 
councils’ deposits but there was no evidence at 31 March 2016 that this was likely to crystallise. 
 
Table 25b below analyses the council’s short-term debt by age. 
 

Table 25b Short term debtors aged debt analysis 
Total  
£000 

Less than three months 8,166 

Three months to six months 370 

six months to one year 700 

Over one year 1,480 

Total 10,716 

 
Statutory debts are included in the figures above to enable comparison with the short term debtors 
total as shown in the balance sheet and in note 8. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
The council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures set out in the 
treasury management strategy, as well as comprehensive cash management system that seeks to 
ensure that cash is available as needed.  If unexpected movements happen, the council is able to 
access borrowing from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. 
 
The council is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  Therefore there is 
no significant risk that the council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under 
financial instruments. 
 
The council has no debt and therefore is not exposed to refinancing risk of loans at this time.  All 
trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 
 
Refinancing and maturity risk 
 
The council maintains a significant investment portfolio.  There is a longer – term risk to the 
council which relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. 
 
Treasury indicator limits placed on investments for over one year in duration are used to manage 
this risk.  The council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the 
central treasury team manage the operational risks within the approved limits.  This includes 
monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the 
council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability 
of maturities in relation to longer term cash flow needs. 
 
The council has no longer term financial liabilities.  The maturity analysis of financial assets, 
excluding sums due from customers is as follows:  
 
 

Page 111

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 61 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
 

Table 25c Refinancing and maturity risk 

31 March   31 March 

2015   2016 

£000   £000 

71,173  Less than one year 72,499  

5,025  Between one and two years 7,040  

2,005  Between two and three years 2,003  

30,916  More than three years 26,422  

109,119  Total 107,964  

 
Market risk 
 
a) Interest rate risk 
  
The council is exposed to some risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its 
investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the council, depending on 
how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial instrument periods.  A rise in 
interest rates would have the following effects: 
 
 investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services will rise 
 

 investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 
 

Changes in interest receivable on variable rate investments will be posted to the surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services and affect the general fund balance.  Movements in the fair value of 
fixed rate investments that have a quoted market price will be reflected in other CIES. 
 
The council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury 
Management Strategy draws together council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected 
treasury operations, including forecast interest rate movements. 
 
According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2016, if interest rates had been one per cent 
higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 
 

Table 25d Interest rate risk 

2014/15   2015/16 

£000   £000 

(124) Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (90) 

(124) Impact on surplus or deficit on the provision of services (90) 

  Decrease in fair value of fixed rate investment assets   

22  Impact on other CIES 19  

22  Impact on other comprehensive income & expenditure 19  

 
The impact of a one per cent fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being 
reversed. 
 
b) Price risk  

Page 112

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 62 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The council, excluding the pension fund, holds an investment in unit trust equity shares to the 
value of £12.8 million and an investment in a pooled property fund to the value of £6.5  
million. Whilst these investments are primarily held for interest earning potential, the council is 
exposed to losses and gains arising from the movement in prices of the shares held. 
 
The shares are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.  This means that all movements in 
price will impact on gains and losses recognised in the available for sale financial instruments 
reserve. 
 
A movement of five per cent in the price of shares (positive or negative) would result in a £1.0 
million gain or loss being recognised in the available for sale financial instruments reserve. 
The council is not in a position to limit its exposure to price movements by further diversifying its 
portfolio. 
 
26.  Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 
 
Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the 
Code), the council is required to disclose information setting out the impact of an accounting 
change required by a new accounting standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the 
Code.  
 
This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 2016/17 code: 
 

 IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.  This standard provides guidance on the form of 

the financial statements.  The “Telling the Story” review of the presentation of the council’s 

financial statements as well as the December 2014 changes to IAS 1 under the International 

Accounting Standards Board (IASB) Disclosure Initiative will result in changes to the format of 

the accounts in 2016/17.  The format of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement and the Movement in Reserves Statement will change and introduce a new 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis. 

 
Other minor changes due to annual improvement to IFRSs cycles, IFRS11 Joint arrangements, 
IAS 16 Property, Plant, Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 19 Employee Benefits 
are minor and are not expected to have a material effect on the council’s Statement of Accounts. 
 
27.  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies set out on pages 72-87 the council has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  The 
critical judgements made in the statement of accounts are: 
 
Leases 
 
The council has examined its leases, and classified them as either operational or finance leases. 
In some cases the lease transaction is not always conclusive and the council uses judgement in 
determining whether the lease is a finance lease arrangement that transfers substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership.  In reassessing the lease the council has estimated the 
implied interest rate within the lease to calculate interest and principal payments. 
 
Funding 
 
There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, 
the council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the 

Page 113

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 63 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

assets of the council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of 
service provision. 
 
 
 
 
Investment properties 
 
Investment properties have been estimated using the identifiable criteria under IAS 40 of being 
held for rental income or for capital appreciation.  These properties have been assessed using 
these criteria, which is subject to interpretation to determine if there is an operational reason for 
holding the property such as regeneration. 
 
Icelandic banks 
 
In 2007 the council placed a deposit of £2.5 million with Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander Ltd, an 
Icelandic bank which is in administration.  The creditor progress report issued by the 
administrators Ernst and Young in May 2013 indicates that the estimated return to creditors to be 
in the range of 84 to 86.5 per cent of the original deposit and interest.  More details are contained 
in note 7. 
 
28.  Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 
uncertainty 
 
Business rates 
 
Since the introduction of business rates retention scheme effective from 1 April 2013, councils are 
liable for successful appeals against business rates charged to businesses in 2015/16 and earlier 
financial years in their proportionate share.  Therefore, a provision has been recognised for the 
best estimate of the amount that businesses have been overcharged up to 31 March 2016.  The 
estimate has been calculated using the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) ratings list of appeals and 
the analysis of successful appeals to date when providing the estimate of total provision up to and 
including 31 March 2016.  The council’s share of the balance of business rate appeals provision at 
this date amounted to £1.5 million.  This has increased by £0.4 million from the previous year. 
 
Property, plant and equipment 
 
Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of 
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.  If the council is 
unable to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance this could bring into doubt the 
useful lives currently assigned to assets.  If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation 
increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.  It is estimated that the annual charge for 
buildings would increase in these circumstances. 
 
Debt impairment 
 
At 31 March 2016 the council had a balance on short term debtors of £12.3 million.  A review of 
significant balances suggested that an impairment of doubtful debts of £1.6 million was 
appropriate.  If collection rates were to deteriorate an increase in the amount of the impairment of 
the doubtful debts would be required. 
 
Pensions 
 
The estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discounts used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in 

Page 114

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 64 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting 
actuaries (Barnett Waddington) is engaged (through Oxfordshire County Pension Fund) to provide 
the council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  Details of the pension 
liabilities are in note 17.  
 
 
29.  Material items of income and expenditure 
 
The council’s accounts include the following items of material income and expenditure: 
 

  £000 

Material items (of over £1 million):   

Expenditure items 
No material amounts over £1 million 

Total material expenditure items 0 

Income items   
Proceeds on redemption of corporate bond  1,500 

Total material income items 1,500 

 
30.  Events after the balance sheet date 
 
There are no material events after the balance sheet date. 
 
31.  Prior period adjustments 
 
As a result of a material error in the statements for 2014/15 an adjustment has been made to re-
categorise the long term lease entered into as part of the Orchard Centre redevelopment in Didcot, 
from investment properties to long term debtors.  The duration of the lease is 125 years and 
therefore should be treated as a disposal for accounting purposes. The table below details the 
impact of this restatement on the comparative figures for 2014/15.   
 
Note that this restatement makes no change to either the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure for 2014/15 or the council’s net assets as at 31 March 2015. 
 

2014/15 
original 

£000   

2014/15 
restated 

£000 

 Comprehensive income and expenditure statement  

 Financing and investment income and expenditure  

(1,108) Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties (713) 

0 Other investment income (long leases) (395) 

(1,108) Total of restated amounts  (1,108) 

   

 Balance sheet  

 Long term assets  

15,914 Investment property 10,304 

16,679 Long term debtors 22,289 

32,593 Total of restated amounts 32,593 

 Unusable reserves  

(50,836) Capital adjustment account  (45,226) 

(19,793) Deferred capital receipts reserve (25,403) 

(70,629) Total of restated amounts (70,629) 
Page 115

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 65 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Collection fund account 

 

2014/15 
£000    

2015/16 
£000  

2015/16 
£000  

2015/16 
£000  

Notes 

Total 
  

Council 
tax 

NNDR Total 
  

£000 Income £000 £000 £000   

(85,837) Council tax payers (88,440) 0 (88,440)   
  Transfers from general fund:         

(42,512)    - Income from business ratepayers 0 (43,184) (43,184)   

(128,349)   (88,440) (43,184) (131,624)   

  Expenditure         

  Precepts and demands:         
66,696    - Oxfordshire County Council 68,939 0 68,939   

8,859    - Police and Crime Commissioner 9,157 0 9,157   
10,483    - South Oxfordshire DC 10,551 0 10,551   

  Business Rates:         
0    - Payment to National Pool 0 0 0   

21,269    - Payments to Government  0 20,934 20,934   
4,254    - Payments to Oxfordshire County  

Council 
0 4,187 4,187 

  
17,015    - Payments to South Oxfordshire DC 0 16,747 16,747   

190    - Cost of Collection 0 187 187   
  Bad and doubtful debts:         

418    - Provision for bad debts 221 409 630 3 

1,108    - Provision for appeals 0 1,078 1,078 3 

130,292   88,868 43,542 132,410   

1,943 (Surplus)/deficit for the year 428 358 786   

            

  Collection fund balance         

(2,029) Balance brought forward at 1 April (2,655) 2,567 (88)   
1,943 (Surplus)/deficit for the year, as above 428 358 786   

(86) Balance carried forward at 31 March (2,227) 2,925 698   

            

  Allocated to:         

1,284    - Central Government 0 1,463 1,463   
(1,801)    - Oxfordshire County Council (1,732) 292 (1,440)   

(272)    - Police and Crime Commissioner (230) 0 (230)   
703    - South Oxfordshire District Council (265) 1,170 905   

(86)   (2,227) 2,925 698   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 116

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 66 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Notes to the collection fund account 

 
1. Business rates (Non Domestic Rates) 

 
Business rates are based on the rateable value of a property multiplied by a nationally 
determined rate (multiplier). The total amount collected by the council is paid into the 
national pool managed by central government. Each council then receives a redistributed 
amount from the pool based on an amount per head of population. 

 

    £ 

NDR rateable value as at 1 April 2015   106,264,396 
NDR rateable value as at 31 March 2016   106,216,837 

National multipliers: 2014/15 2015/16 

Small business non-domestic rating multiplier 47.1p 48.0p 
Non-domestic rating multiplier 48.2p 49.3p 

 
2. Council tax base calculation 

 
Council tax income is derived from charges according to the value of residential properties. 
Properties are classified into eight valuation bands. The council, as billing authority, 
calculates its tax base in accordance with governance regulations. The number of 
properties shown in the table below reflects the various discounts and exemptions allowed 
and a weighting is applied to calculate the equivalent band D dwellings. The tax base 
calculation is shown overleaf: 

 

Band Number of 
properties 

Band multiplier Band D 
equivalent 

A 2,172 6/9 1,448 
B 5,143 7/9 4,000 
C 15,777 8/9 14,024 
D 13,350 9/9 13,350 
E 9,484 11/9 11,592 
F 5,920 13/9 8,551 
G 5,569 15/9 9,282 
H 814 18/9 1,628 

  58,229   63,875 

Discounts and exemptions   (9,147) 

Class O exempt properties   600 

Sub total     55,328 

Assumed losses on collection   (1,094) 

Council tax base     54,234 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 67 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

3. Council tax/NDR bad debt provision and NDR provision for valuation appeals 
 

The collection fund account provides for bad debts on arrears on the basis of prior years’ 
experience. 
 

 

2014/15 Council tax  2015/16 
£000 £000 

(2,519) Balance at 1 April (2,713) 
(1) (Write back)/write off of debt during year 106 

(193) (increase)/decrease in provisions during year (221) 

(2,713) Balance at 31 March (2,828) 

  
        The council’s proportion of these write offs and movements in provision are shown below. 
 

2014/15 Council tax  2015/16 
£000  £000 

(307) Balance at 1 April (323) 
0 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 12 

(16) (increase)/decrease in provisions during year (20) 

(323) Balance at 31 March (331) 

 
 The collection fund account also provides for bad debt on NDR arrears. 
 

2014/15 NDR  2015/16 
£000  £000 

(837) Balance at 1 April (980) 
82 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 84 

(225) (increase)/decrease in provisions during year (409) 

(980) Balance at 31 March (1,305) 

 
 The council’s proportion of these write offs and movement in provision are shown below 
 

2014/15 NDR 2015/16 
£000  £000 

(335) Balance at 1 April (392) 
33 (Write back)/write off of debt offs during year 34 

(57) (increase)/decrease in provisions during year (130) 

(392) Balance at 31 March (522) 

 
The collection fund account also provides for provision for appeals against the rateable 
valuation set by the Valuation Office Agency not settled as at 31 March 2016.   
 

2014/15 NDR 2015/16 

£000 £000 

(1,609) Balance at 1 April (2,717) 

(1,108) (increase)/decrease in provisions during year (1,078) 

(2,717) Balance at 31 March (3,795) 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 118

Agenda Item 7



South Oxfordshire District Council 68 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The council’s proportion of this provision is shown below. 
 

2014/15 NDR 2015/16 
£000  £000 

(643) Balance at 1 April (1,087) 
(444) (increase)/decrease in provisions during year (431) 

(1,087) Balance at 31 March (1,518) 

 

Page 119

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 69 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Statement of accounting policies 

 
(i) General principles 
 
The statement of accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2015/16 financial year 
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2016.  The council is required to prepare an annual 
statement of accounts by 30 June 2016 and for the accounts to be prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Council Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2015/16, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance 
issued under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the statement of accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
(ii) Accruals of income and expenditure 

 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made 
or received.  In particular: 
 
 revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the council transfers the significant risks 

and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service 
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the council; 
 

 revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the council can measure reliably 
the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the council; 
 

 supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories 
on the balance sheet; 
 

 expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made; 
 

 interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as 
income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract; and 
 

 where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are defined as follows: 
 
 cash and cash equivalents shall include bank overdrafts that are an integral part of the 

council’s cash management; 
 

Page 120

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 70 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investment purposes; and 
 

 investments that can be liquidated or accessed within 30 days i.e. money market funds, call 
accounts and deposit accounts with a notice period of 30 days or less. 

 
Equity investments are excluded from the definition. 
 
(iv) Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
(v) Charges to revenue for non-current assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 
 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 

 
 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be written off; and 
 

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing required.  As at 31 March 2016 this council has no 
borrowing requirement, so this contribution is not required.  Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the contribution in the general fund balance, 
by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
(vi) Employee benefits 
 
Benefits payable during employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and 
non-monetary benefits for current employees.  They are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the council.  An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements and additional hours earned by employees but not taken as time off before 
the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is 

Page 121

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 71 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the MIR’s 
so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue. 
 
Termination benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable either as a result of a decision by the council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to 
accept voluntary redundancy. Such benefits are charged on an accruals basis to the non-
distributed costs line in the CIES when the council is demonstrably committed to the termination of 
the employment of an officer or group of officers or to making an offer to encourage voluntary 
redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
In the MiRS, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for 
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 
 The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are 

included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, 
etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees; 
 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
yield at the 17 year point on the Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve which has 
been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 and with consideration of the duration of the 
Council’s liabilities.  This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.   
 

 The assets of Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are included 
in the balance sheet at their fair value: 

 
- Quoted securities - current bid price 

 
- Unquoted securities - professional estimate 
- Unitised securities - current bid price 

 
- Property - market value. 

 
 The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 

 
 Service cost comprising: 

 
- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year - allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked. 
- Past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect 

relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services in the CIES as part of non-distributed costs. 

Page 122

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 72 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

- net interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (NDBL), i.e. net interest for the council – the 
change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of 
time charged to the CIES – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure 
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability 
at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 
liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

 
 Remeasurements comprising: 

 
- the return on scheme assets – excluding amounts included in the NDBL – charged to the 

pensions reserve as other CIES. 
- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 

have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the pensions reserves as other 
CIES. 

 
 Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County council pension fund - cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the general fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the MiRS this 
means that there are appropriations to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid a the year-end.   The 
negative balance that arises on the pensions reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to 
the general fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows 
rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary benefits 
 
The council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member 
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the 
same policies as are applied to the LGPS. 
 
(vii) Events after the balance sheet date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the statement of accounts is 
authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified: 
 
 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the 

statement of accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 
 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the statement of 

accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the statement of 
accounts. 
 
 
 

Page 123

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 73 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

(viii) Financial instruments 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the income and expenditure account for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest 
for the instrument.  The only financial liabilities the council has are trade creditors.   
 
The council currently has no borrowings and has issued no bonds to bond holders. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 
 loans and receivables - assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in 

an active market; and 
 

 available for sale assets - assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments. 

 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.  They 
are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the financing and 
investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are based on the 
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  For 
most of the loans that the council has made, this means that the amount presented in the balance 
sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the 
CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
However, if the council has made loans at less than market rates (soft loans), then a loss is 
recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that 
will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the 
outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure 
line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the 
voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in 
the balance sheet.  
 
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the general fund balance is the interest 
receivable for the financial year. However, the loss attributable to a loan of less than £20,000 is 
not material and at the current date the council has no material loans.  
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made 
to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the financing and investment 
income and expenditure line in the CIES.  The impairment loss is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at 
the asset’s original effective interest rate.  This figure is shown in the accounts for trade debtors as 
a provision for bad and doubtful debts.  This provision is recalculated annually by applying an 
estimate of the proportion of debt in each category that is unlikely to be collectable based on past 
experience.  Debts which are known to be un-collectable are written off. 

Page 124

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 74 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the 
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES. 
 
Available-for-sale assets 
 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair 
value.  Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the financing and 
investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are based on the 
amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  Where 
there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the CIES when 
it becomes receivable by the council. 
 
Assets are maintained in the balance sheet at fair value.  Values are based on the following 
principles: 
 
 instruments with quoted market prices - the market price; 

 
 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis; and 

 
 equity shares with no quoted market prices - independent appraisal of company valuations. 

 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: 
 
Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
authority can access at the measurement date, 
 
Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset, either directly or indirectly, 
 
Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the available-for-sale reserve financial 
instrument reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit on revaluation of 
available-for-sale financial assets.  The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred 
- these are debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along 
with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the available-for-sale financial instrument 
reserve. 
 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the financing and investment 
income and expenditure line in the CIES.  If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  
Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition 
cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any accumulated 
gains or losses previously recognised in the available-for-sale financial instruments reserve. 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 
impairment losses). 

Page 125

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 75 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

(ix) Foreign currency translation 
 
The council makes a number of small purchases in foreign currency.  However the transaction is 
made at the current prevailing exchange rate, the goods or services are received immediately and, 
therefore, there are no gains or losses as a result of variances in the exchange rate required to be 
recorded. 
 
(x) Government grants and contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
 
 the council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 

 
 the grants or contributions will be received. 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the CIES until conditions attached to 
the grant or contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified.  If this is not the case then 
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the balance sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution 
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or taxation 
and non-specific grant income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the general fund balance in 
the MiRS.  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the 
capital grants unapplied reserve.  When it has been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment 
account. 
 
(xi) Intangible assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the council. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the 
council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able 
to sell or use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as 
attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research 
expenditure cannot be capitalised). 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the council’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of 
the assets held by the council can be determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no 
intangible asset held by the council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at 
amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to 
the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an 

Page 126

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 76 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an 
intangible asset is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the general fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
general fund balance in the MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xii) Interests in companies and other entities – jointly controlled operations and jointly 

controlled assets 
 
The council has no material interests in other companies or entities that have the nature of 
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities and there is therefore no requirement to 
prepare group accounts. 
 
Jointly controlled operations are classified as activities undertaken by the council in conjunction 
with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than 
the establishment of a separate entity.  They are items of property, plant or equipment that are 
jointly controlled by the council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits 
for the venturers.  Whilst the council has entered into joint arrangements on the provision of 
services with Vale of White Horse District Council, none of the assets of that council can be said to 
be under joint control of the two councils. 
 
(xiii) Inventories and long term contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.   
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the CIES with the value of works 
and services received under the contract during the financial year. 
 
(xiv) Investment property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 
highest and best use value of the asset from the market participants’ perspective. . Investment 
properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and investment income and 
expenditure line in the CIES.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the financing and investment 
income line and result in a gain for the general fund balance. However revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the general 
fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the 
MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale proceeds greater than 
£10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
 
 
 

Page 127

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 77 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

(xv) Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 
lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
The council as lessee 
 
Finance leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for 
the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying amount 
of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment - applied to write 

down the lease liability; and 
 A finance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 

CIES). 
 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this 
is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to 
the council at the end of the lease period). 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue 
funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the general fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital 
adjustment account in the MiRS for the difference between the two. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services 
benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. 
 
The council as lessor 
 
Finance leases 
 
Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the balance sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the 

Page 128

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 78 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet (whether property, plant and 
equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES 
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the council’s net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease 
(long-term debtor) asset in the balance sheet. 
 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease 

debtor (together with any premiums received); and 
 

 Finance income (credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the general fund 
balance and is posted out of the general fund balance to the capital receipts reserve in the 
movement in reserves statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 
settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the general fund 
balance to the deferred capital receipts reserve in the movement in reserves statement.  When the 
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used 
to write down the lease debtor.  At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
capital receipts reserve. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
therefore appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the 
MiRS. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the balance sheet.  Rental income is a creditor to the other operating 
expenditure line in the CIES.   
 
(xvi) Overheads and support services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or 
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2015/16.  The total absorption costing principle is used - the full cost of overheads and support 
services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 
 
 Corporate and democratic core - costs relating to the council’s status as a multi-functional, 

democratic organisation;  
 

 Non distributed costs - the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early 
and impairment losses chargeable on assets held for sale. 

 
These two cost categories are defined in the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16 and 
accounted for as separate headings in the CIES as part of net expenditure on continuing services. 
 
 
 
 

Page 129

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 79 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

(xvii) Property, plant and equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 
during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 
 the purchase price;  
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
The council would not capitalise borrowing costs if required to be incurred for assets under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows 
of the council).  In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the council. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the taxation and non-specific grant income line of the CIES, 
unless the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in 
the donated assets account.  Where gains are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the 
general fund balance to the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 
 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost; 

 
 Surplus assets – fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s 

perspective; 
 

 All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 
its existing use. 

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as 
a minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation 

Page 130

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 80 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the CIES where 
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains); 
 

 where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the decrease in value the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and 
the remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 

 
 where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is written 

down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 
 

When assets are formally revalued, the accumulated depreciation and impairment balances are 
written down.  The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 
only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the capital adjustment account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired.   Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains);  
 

 Where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the carrying amount 
of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and the 
remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 
 

 Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is 
written down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 
 

 Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 

Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 

Page 131

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 81 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 Buildings and infrastructure assets – straight line allocation over the useful life of the property 
as estimated by the valuer; 
 

 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – on a straight line basis, generally over the useful life 
of the asset. 

 
More detail on depreciation rates for asset categories is included in note 5 to the accounts. 
Where an item of property, plant and equipment has major components whose cost is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.   
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the 
capital adjustment account. 
 
Disposals and non-current assets held for sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held 
for sale.  The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value 
less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES.  Gains in 
fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous loss recognised in the surplus or 
deficit on provision of services.  Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified 
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were 
classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have 
been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale and their recoverable amount at the 
date of the decision not to sell.   
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance 
sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other 
operating expenditure line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated 
for the asset in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  
Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 
(xviii) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.   
 

Page 132

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 82 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES in the year that 
the council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant 
risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance 
sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes 
less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement 
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the council settles the 
obligation. 
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
 (xix) Reserves 
 
The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the general fund balance in 
the movement in reserves statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, 
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the CIES.  The reserve is then 
appropriated back into the general fund balance in the MiRS so that there is no net charge against 
council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the 
council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note. 
 
(xx) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the CIES in the year.  Where the council has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources, a transfer in the MiRS from the general fund 

Page 133

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 83 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

balance to the capital adjustment account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is 
no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
(xxi) Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 
(xxii)  Fair Value Measurement 
 
The council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:  
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  
 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 
The council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the 
highest and best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the 
asset or liability being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.  
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the council’s fair value measurement of its assets 
and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date.  
 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly.    
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

Page 134

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 84 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Glossary of terms 

 
Accounting policies – those principles, bases, conventions rules and practices applied by an 
entity that specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its 
financial statements through: 
 

a) recognising 
b) selecting measurement bases for, and 
c) presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves. 

 
Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques. 
 
Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected in the 
financial statements.  For example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may 
specify whether an asset or a loss is to be recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; 
and where in the revenue account or balance sheet it is to be presented. 
 
Accrual – a fundamental accounting principle is that income and expenditure should be accounted 
for in the period to which it relates, irrespective of the date of settlement.  An accrual is a sum 
included in the accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to goods or services received 
within the accounting period but for which payment has not been received or made. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension liability that arises because events have 
not coincided with assumptions. Not charged to revenue. 
 
Agency – the provision of services by one organisation on behalf of another organisation. The 
organisation directly providing the services is reimbursed by the responsible organisation. 
 
Amortisation – the planned writing-down of the value of an asset (tangible or intangible) over its 
limited useful life. 
 
Asset – the creation or purchase of an item/building that has a monetary value.  Those assets of 
the council which are readily marketable are valued at market value.  Those which have a 
specialised use, such as leisure centres, are valued at depreciated replacement cost, which 
assesses the cost of providing a similar facility as a replacement but also allows a discount for the 
age of the asset.  Plant, equipment and community assets are valued at historic cost. 
 
Asset register – a register listing the book values of all the Council’s non-current fixed assets, 
both tangible and intangible. 
 
Balance sheet – the balance sheet is a statement of the assets and liabilities at the end of the 
accounting period.  It is a “snapshot” of the accounts at a single point in time. 
 
Capital adjustment account - accumulates (on the debit side) the write-down of the historical 
cost of fixed assets as they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on 
disposal. It accumulates (on the credit side) the resources that have been set aside to finance 
capital expenditure. The same process applies to capital expenditure that is only capital by 
statutory definition (deferred charges). The balance on the account thus represents timing 
differences between the amount of the historical cost of fixed assets that has been consumed and 
the amount that has been financed in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 
Capital expenditure – expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds 
to and not merely maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.  

Page 135

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 85 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
Capital financing – assembling the money to pay for capital expenditure.  The majority of the 
resources necessary to finance this council’s capital programme is capital receipts.  Other 
significant sources are government grants and contributions from developers. Also available are 
revenue monies and borrowing.  The council does not currently borrow to finance capital 
expenditure. 
 
Capital receipts – proceeds from the sale of an asset, e.g. land, buildings, equipment, vehicles. 
 
Central administration charges – central administration charges are an allocation of the net cost 
of the administrative and professional departments that support all of an authority’s services, e.g. 
finance, personnel. 
 
Central support services – the costs of providing those central functions which are concerned 
with the whole range of services and undertakings of the council and are not in the main 
identifiable with any particular service, e.g. the cost of office accommodation. 
 
Code of Practice – the CIPFA Code of Practice for Local Authority accounting developed as part 
of the accounting standards to be followed in compiling this statement of accounts. 
 
Collection fund – a fund maintained by collecting authorities into which is paid council taxes, 
NDR, and community charges. The fund then meets the requirements of the county, district and 
parish councils and the Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley, as well as paying 
NDR to the national pool. 
 
Community assets – assets that the council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no 
determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal.  Examples of community 
assets are parks and historical buildings.   
 
Consistency – the principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting 
period and from one period to the next is the same. 
 
Contingency - is money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of 
expenditure, or shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not included in 
individual budgets. 
 
Contingent asset – a contingent asset is a potential asset arising from past events whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the council’s control. 
 
Contingent liability – a contingent liability is either: 
 
a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or 
 
a present obligation arising from past events where it is not possible to measure the amount of 
obligation with sufficient reliability. 
 
Council tax – a charge levied by all councils on domestic property values to contribute to the cost 
of providing local services.  Council tax for the county council, the local police crime commissioner 
and local parishes is collected by this council and paid over to them throughout the year. 
 

Page 136

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 86 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Council tax benefit - is the assistance provided by billing authorities to adults on low incomes to 
help them pay their council tax bill. The cost to authorities of council tax benefit is largely met by 
government grant in 2014/15. 
Council tax requirement - is the estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services that 
needed to be financed from the Council Tax after deducting income from fees and charges, certain 
specific grants and any funding from reserves. 
 
Creditor – the amount owed by the council for work done, goods received or services rendered to 
the council within the accounting period but for which payment has not been made at the date of 
the balance sheet. 
 
Current asset – an asset where the value changes on a frequent basis e.g. stores, cash, debtors 
(as distinct from a fixed asset such as land and buildings). 
 
Current liability – an amount which will become payable or for which payment could be 
requested within the next accounting period, e.g. creditors, bank overdrafts, short term loans. 
 
Current service costs (pensions) – the increase in pension liabilities as a result of years of 
service earned this year. Allocated to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees 
worked. 
 
Debtor – an amount due to the council within the accounting period but not received at the date of 
the balance sheet. 
 
Deferred capital receipts - capital income still to be received after disposals have taken place. 
 
Defined benefit pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme where the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are 
not directly related to the investments of the scheme. 
 
Defined contribution pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme into 
which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or a percentage of pay and will 
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have 
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods. 
 
Depreciation – the measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that 
have been consumed during the period.  Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other 
reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, passage of time or 
obsolescence through either changes in technology, legislation or demand for goods and service 
produced by the asset. 
 
Direct revenue financing – the financing of capital expenditure from the current year’s revenue 
account. 
 
Earmarked reserves - The council holds a number of reserves earmarked to be used to meet 
specific, known or predicted future expenditure. 
 
Events after the balance sheet date – events after the balance sheet date are those events, 
favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date (normally 31 March) and 
the date when the statement of accounts is authorised for issue – also referred to as Post  
 
Balance Sheet Events (PBSE).  These may be classed as ‘adjusting’ or ‘non-adjusting’. 
 

Page 137

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 87 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Exceptional items – material items which derive from events of transactions that fall within the 
ordinary activities of the authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size 
or incidence to give a true and fair presentation of the accounts. 
External audit - The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities 
to ensure the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and 
proper practices and to ensure the council has made proper arrangements to secure value for 
money in its use of resources. 
 
Extraordinary items – material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive 
from events of transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the authority and which are 
not expected to recur.  They do not include exceptional items, nor do they include prior period 
items merely because they relate to a prior period.  
 
Fair value – the fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arms-
length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of 
the asset. 
 
Finance lease – this is a lease, usually of land or buildings, which is treated as capital borrowing 
and for which transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the 
lessee; or where the residual interest in the asset transfers to the lessee on completion of the 
lease term. 
 
Financial instrument – a financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of 
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ 
covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward 
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex 
ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives. 
 
Financial regulations - These are the written code of procedures approved by the council, 
intended to provide a framework for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually 
set out rules on accounting, audit, administrative and budgeting procedures. 
 
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) – accounting practice recommended by the Accounting 
Standards Board (ASB) for adoption in the preparation of accounts by applicable bodies (see also 
SSAP). 
 
Fixed asset – fixed assets are assets of the council that continue to have value and benefit for a 
period longer than one financial year. 
 
Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the results of actions to relieve the council of 
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees.  
Debited to the net costs of services as part of non-distributed costs. 
 
General fund – the main revenue account of an authority, which summarises the cost of all 
services provided by the council which are paid for from amounts collected from council tax 
payers, government grants and other income. 
 
Going concern – the concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future, in particular that the revenue accounts and Balance Sheet assume no intention 
to curtail significantly the scale of operations. 
 
Heritage asset - A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and 
culture. 

Page 138

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 88 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
Housing benefit - This is an allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or 
part, their rent. Benefit is allowed or paid by Local Authorities but Central Government refunds part 
of the cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits 
paid to the Authority’s own tenants are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as 
rent allowance. 
 
IAS 19 – International Accounting Standard 19 requires the council to account for assets and 
liabilities which are in held the pension fund administered by Oxfordshire County Council but 
relating to this authority, in the accounts of this authority. 
 
IAS 40 - International Accounting Standard 40 relates to the accounting for investment properties. 
 
iBoxx – iBoxx indices cover the cash bond market. Underlying bond prices and indices are 
available in real time. 
 
Impairment – an unexpected or sudden decline in the value of a fixed asset, such as property or 
vehicle, below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. 
 
Infrastructure assets - Fixed Assets which generally cannot be sold and from which benefit can 
be obtained only by continued use of the asset created. Examples of such assets are highways, 
footpaths, bridges and water and drainage facilities. 
 
Intangible fixed assets – some capital expenditure does not give rise to a physical asset but the 
benefits last a number of years.  These can be carried in the balance sheet as assets and written 
off over their useful life.  An example is computer software. 
 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) – defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting entities to all financial 
statements in order to provide a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position, and a 
standardised method of comparison with financial statements of the other entities. 
 
Liabilities – these are amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at 
some time in the future.  Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance 
Sheet date. 
 
Liquid resources – current asset investments that are readily disposable without disrupting the 
authority’s business and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the 
carrying amount or traded in an active market. 
 
Non Domestic Rates (NDR) (also known as business rates) – NDR is a tax charged on 
commercial properties.  It is calculated by multiplying a property's 'rateable value' by a nationally 
set amount (known as the ‘NDR multiplier’).  The council acts as a collecting agency for NDR and 
the proceeds are then redistributed to central government, the county council and the balance 
retained by the council. 
 
Net Book Value (NBV) – the amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet; i.e.: 
their historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 
 
Net current replacement cost – the cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its 
existing condition and in its existing use. 
 
Net debt – the authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources.  Where the cash and liquid 
resources exceed borrowings, reference should be to Net funds rather than net debt. 

Page 139

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 89 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
Net realisable value – the open market value of an asset in its existing use, less the expenses to 
be incurred in realising the asset. 
 
Non-operational assets – fixed assets held by the authority but not used or consumed in the 
delivery of services or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  Examples of non-
operational assets include investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, 
pending their sale.  
 
Operating lease – this is a lease where ownership of the fixed asset remains with the lessor and 
the lease costs are revenue expenditure to the Council – generally any lease other than a finance 
lease. 
 
Operational assets – fixed assets held and occupied, use or consumed by the authority in the 
direct delivery of those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility or 
for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  
 
Past service cost – the increase in pension liabilities arising from current year decisions whose 
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the net cost of services as part 
of non-distributed costs interest cost, and the expected increase in the present value of liabilities 
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid, debited to net operating expenditure. 
 
Post Balance Sheet Events (PBSE) – see events after the balance sheet date 
 
Precept – the levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the latter to 
collect income from council taxpayers on their behalf.  Precepts are paid from the Collection Fund. 
 
Prior period adjustment – those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from 
changes in accounting policies or form the correction of fundamental errors.  A fundamental error 
is one that is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements.  They do 
not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior 
years. 
Provisions - amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses which it is anticipated will be incurred 
but where the amount and/or the timing of such costs is uncertain. 
 
Remuneration – all sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of 
expenses allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money 
value of any other benefits received other than cash.  Pension contributions payable by the 
employer are excluded. 
 
Reporting standards - the Code prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures for all 
normal transactions of a Local Authority.  It is based on International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), International Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and 
Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 
 
Revenue expenditure - expenditure incurred on the day-to-day running of the Council.  This 
mainly includes employee costs, general running expenses and capital financing costs. 
 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) – (formerly known as a 
deferred charge) arises where: 
 Expenditure is charged to capital but there is no tangible asset e.g. improvement grants, 

compensatory payments. When the expenditure is incurred it is charged to the income and 

Page 140

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 90 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

expenditure account with a compensating entry in the statement of movement on the general 
fund balance to ensure that there is no impact on the council tax; and 
 

 Assets are transferred to another organisation and the associated transferred debt is being 
repaid over time. These charges are written-down by the loan repayments so that the total 
equates to the relevant loan debt outstanding. 

 
Since there are no long-term economic benefits in the control of the council, these are written off 
to revenue (CIES) in the year incurred and no longer feature as assets in the balance sheet. 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) – this main non-specific grant paid by central government to local 
authorities to help fund the services that they provide. The allocation to each authority is 
determined by a complex formula.  This comprises the council’s general government grant 
income. 
 
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) - prepared and published by CIPFA, the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) replaced the previous Best Value Accounting Code of 
Practice (BVACOP).  It is reviewed annually to ensure that it develops in line with the needs of 
modern local government, transparency, best value and public services reform. SeRCOP 
establishes proper practices with regard to consistent financial reporting for services and in 
England and Wales, it is given legislative backing by regulations which identify the accounting 
practices it propounds as proper practices under the Local Government Act 2003. 
 
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) – SSAPs were introduced to ensure that 
all statements of accounts are compiled on the same or similar basis.   
 
Trading account – a method of matching income and expenditure for a particular activity or group 
of activities.   An example of this is building control. 
 
Transferred debt – this is the term given to housing assets transferred to another council, for 
which the council receives repayment in the form of a loan. 
 
 Useful life – the period over which the authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 
 

Page 141

Agenda Item 7



 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 91 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Annual governance statement 

 
The annual governance statement forms part of the audited accounts and can be found by 
accessing the link below: 
 
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/our-finances/annual-governance-statement-0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 142

Agenda Item 7

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/our-finances/annual-governance-statement-0


 

    South Oxfordshire District Council 92 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

This page is intentionally blank. 

 
 

Page 143

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 1 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE 

DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

 

2015/16 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
  

Page 144

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 2 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 

Contents 
 
 

  Page 

Narrative statement 3 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 19 

Audit opinion 20 

The accounting statements: 23 

 Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 25 

 Movement in reserves statement 26 

 Balance Sheet 27 

 Cash flow statement 28 

Notes to the accounting statements 29 

Collection fund account 63 

 Notes to the collection fund account 64 

Statement of accounting policies 67 

Glossary of terms 82 

Annual governance statement 89 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park 
Milton 
Abingdon 
Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 145

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 3 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Narrative statement  

 
Introduction 
 
This narrative statement provides a commentary on the council’s performance during 2015/16.  It 
is a guide to the council’s performance against key targets, the most significant matters reported in 
the accounts, an explanation in overall terms of the council’s financial position at the end of the 
financial year and a commentary on the council’s future prospects.  The statement does not form 
part of the financial statements 
 
To assist the reader, a glossary of financial terms is provided on pages 82 to 88. 
 
The council’s accounts 
 
The council’s Statement of Accounts (SoA) shows the financial results of the council’s activities for 
the year ended 31 March 2016, and summarises the overall financial position of the council as at 
31 March 2016.  It is prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom (“the 
code”). The accounts have been compiled under International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS).  
 
In addition, the Annual Governance Statement sets out the purpose and nature of the council’s 
governance framework.  It also provides a review of the effectiveness of the governance 
framework, and highlights any significant governance issues.  This statement is published as a 
separate document and is available on the council’s website. 
 
Introduction to the district 
 
Vale of White Horse is the 10th most rural district in the south east region, around 39 per cent of 
the population live in rural areas, outside the main towns of Abingdon, Wantage and Grove, and 
the area adjacent to Oxford (including North Hinksey, Appleton and Cumnor wards).  Population in 
mid-2015 was 126,200, and is set to increase to 145,400 in 2025 (+19,200 or 15 per cent).  
  
In 2015 the population of Vale of White Horse aged 65 and over was 25,000, this is expected to 
increase to 31,000 by 2025.  Over half of this increase is predicted to be in rural wards i.e. outside 
the main towns of Abingdon, Faringdon, Grove and Wantage.  By 2037 the number of people 
aged 85+ living in the district is expected to reach 9,000, almost three times the number in this age 
group in 2013 and a higher rate of growth than the national average (+173 per cent vs +148 per 
cent in England).   
 
Between 2001 and 2011 the total number of households in Vale of White Horse increased by 
3,600 (+8 per cent).  As of 2011, there were 49,400 occupied households in Vale of White Horse, 
72 per cent of which were owned in full or with a mortgage.  The majority of this growth was in 
private rented households which increases reliance on the private rented sector.  
 
Employment is high with only 0.6 per cent of the economically active population claiming 
jobseekers allowance as of 2015, compared with a 2.2 per cent average for England. 
 
Whilst the district is generally affluent, this brings its challenges.  In 2013 the cheapest (lower 
quartile) market housing in Vale of White Horse was 8.33 times a lower band salary, and the Vale 
of White Horse ratio of lower quartile house prices to lower quartile earnings remains well above 
the national average.  This means that many people can’t afford to buy, and many young people 
need to move out of district. 
 
 Page 146

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 4 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Key challenges 
 
Our key challenges are: 
 

 the growing/ageing population 

 increasing housing to meet identified need 

 increasing prosperity and supporting business to grow 

 providing the infrastructure to support growth 

 protecting the natural environment 
 
How performance is measured 
 
The council’s activities are guided by our four-year corporate plan, and by fulfilling our statutory 
responsibilities.  Key performance indicators are measured via the monthly board report which is 
reported to the councils’ senior management board and cabinet; and an annual benchmarking 
report, which compares our performance to the other 200 ‘non-metropolitan’ English district 
councils.  Many of our services are provided through contractors, and the performance of our five 
major contractors is monitored through an annual review and report to the council’s scrutiny 
committee.  Customer satisfaction is measured through a biennial face to face survey of residents; 
this includes satisfaction with services and the council generally. 
 
Our corporate priorities 
 
2015/16 was the final year of the council’s corporate plan 2012 – 2016.  This contained our 
strategic objectives and corporate priorities for the period: 
 

 Excellent delivery of key services 

 Effective management of resources 

 Meeting housing need 

 Building the local economy 

 Support for communities 
 
Excellent delivery of key services 
 
We undertook to deliver high performing services with particular emphasis on achieving excellent 
levels of recycling, keeping streets and public spaces clean and ensuring good quality sports and 
leisure provision. Also to put residents at the heart of service delivery, provide an excellent 
customer service; keep residents and other stakeholders informed about our services and ensure 
we took their views into account before making key decisions. 
 
Resident satisfaction 
 
Chart 1 below show how attitudes towards the council have changed over recent years.  Most 
showed an increase in the 2015/16 survey and an upward direction of travel over the longer term; 
with significant increases in relation to satisfaction with value for money and numbers who would 
speak positively about the council.  73 per cent of our residents are happy with the way the council 
runs things – a slight increase since the last survey. 86 per cent say they trust the council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 147

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 5 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Chart 1 – Attitudes towards the Council 
 

 
 
1 question previously worded ‘would speak highly’ 
 

76 per cent per cent of residents said that they felt informed about the council and its services.   
 
One area where the council is seeking to do more is on responsiveness, with a drop in those who 
felt they were able to influence decisions. However, 59 per cent of residents agreed that the 
council acts on the concerns of residents, the same proportion as in 2014.  
  
Quality of services – waste 
 
The council is proud of its record on waste and recycling; we have achieved efficiencies in our 
contract and maintained consistently high levels of recycling and customer satisfaction with the 
service provided.  Recycling rates are high and we have been in the top three in the country for 
recycling for several years, with the 2nd spot in 2014/151. During 2014/15 we achieved a recycling 
rate of 65.57 per cent. 
 
In year we measure performance through our board report which uses our own figures, not yet 
verified by DEFRA.  Graph 1 below shows our performance in the past year. This also shows the 
breakdown of recycling by type. 
 
Alongside this residual waste has increased slightly in year2. However, using the latest DEFRA 
published figures (2014/15) we were first in our benchmark group.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
1 2014/15 is the latest year for which official figures published by DEFRA are available 
2 Figures used are not yet verified by DEFRA 

76
72 73

39

53

61

79
84

75

59 5958

66
69

85 86

2012 2014 2015/6

%
  R

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts

Satisfied with the way the council runs things Would speak positively of the council¹

Quality of service good overall Acts on the concerns of residents

Provides value for money Trust council

Page 148

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 6 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Graph 1 – Recycling rate 2015/16 
 

 
 
Graph 2 – Residual waste 2015/16  
 

 
 
During the year we have introduced new kerbside recycling streams for textiles and waste 
electricals and electronic equipment (WEEE), and have invested in a recycling officer post which is 
responsible for marketing and education programmes to increase recycling even further. 
 
Latest figures for recycling credits show we received £687,678 for dry recycling and £128,741 for 
green (garden waste) recycling in 2014/153. For 2015/16 the dry recycling credits are £715,605, 
and green (garden waste) recycling are £138,924. 
 
Customer satisfaction with our waste collection service is high, at 87 per cent. 
 
 
 

                                            
3 Latest available figures 

Recycling rate

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

% recycled

 (of all waste)

Food 9.57% 9.39% 8.73% 9.80% 10.12% 10.44% 11.29% 10.72% 11.50% 12.05% 12.40% 12.06%

Garden 20.18% 24.47% 28.55% 22.33% 21.83% 21.84% 21.28% 22.11% 10.81% 8.51% 7.93% 12.87%

Re-use + dry 32.18% 31.54% 34.95% 39.74% 35.43% 29.88% 30.19% 33.98% 36.49% 43.03% 35.65% 29.59%

All recycling 61.93% 65.40% 72.23% 71.87% 67.39% 62.16% 62.77% 66.81% 58.79% 63.59% 55.98% 54.53%

Year to date: all recycling 61.93% 63.65% 66.59% 67.94% 67.84% 66.87% 66.30% 66.36% 65.56% 65.36% 64.66% 63.87%

Target 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50% 66.50%

Officer prediction of year-end performance 64.50%

2014-2015 All recycling 64.82% 64.19% 70.43% 72.29% 67.30% 63.77% 61.06% 64.66% 65.63% 67.54% 61.85% 61.30%

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Residual waste per household

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

350.00

400.00

kg

Year to date 25.65 49.69 70.33 91.63 112.43 138.75 164.14 186.23 213.37 239.78 264.58 293.20

Target 24.13 49.80 71.11 92.14 113.22 137.54 163.02 184.34 206.44 228.97 249.54 273.63

Officer prediction of year-end performance 273.63

2014-2015 24.13 49.80 71.11 92.14 113.22 137.54 163.02 184.34 206.44 228.97 249.54 273.63

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 149

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 7 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Quality of services – cleanliness 
 
We have high levels of resident satisfaction with cleanliness, at 70 per cent, and have recently 
invested additional funding to introduce an annual ‘deep clean’ in each parish. 
 
Fly tipping 
 
The council’s action to tackle fly tipping aims to achieve two things: investigation and enforcement 
action against those who commit it, with the long term aim of reducing the amount of fly tipping 
that occurs; and to clear it as quickly as possible where it does happen.  Through our board report 
we monitor both of these; performance in 2015/16 is shown in the graphs below.  Average time to 
clear fly tips has decreased from an average of 34:14 hours in March 2015 to 23:54 in March 
2016. The average number of fly tips has also decreased from 30 to 234. 
 
Graph 3 - Fly tipping clearance time 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
4 Rolling six month average 

Average fly tip pickup times - public perspective: 

rolling six-month average

00:00

20:00

40:00

60:00

80:00

Time  

(Hours)

Average in-month pickup time (all zones) 33:16 43:15 15:48 17:35 27:18 30:14 22:41 33:39 22:09 61:30 18:52 23:54

Rolling six-month average 39:04 34:17 31:43 28:47 28:34 27:54 26:09 24:33 25:36 32:55 31:31 30:28

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 150

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 8 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Graph 4 - Number of fly tips 

 
 
Quality of services – Leisure 
 
Our key aim in regards to leisure is to increase participation in sport and physical activity.  
According to the latest Active People survey data (2015), there has been a 3.5 per cent increase 
in the number of people aged 16+ participating in sport and active recreation at moderate intensity 
at least three times a week since the last survey - from 25.3 per cent to 28.7 per cent.  Visits to our 
leisure centres have increased by 6.3 per cent over the past year. 
 
70 per cent of service users are satisfied with our sport and leisure services. 
 
Much of our sports development programme is provided through external funding; the team has 
secured £381,459 between 2012/13 and 2015/16. This has enabled us to focus activity on many 
groups where participation is traditionally low such as older people, women with children, and 
teenagers.  
 
We are very aware that development in the district needs to be matched by new facilities to meet a 
growing need.  The council has allocated £12 million for a new leisure centre in Grove/Wantage 
and is currently planning for leisure needs into the longer term. 
 
Investment during 2015/16 has included replacement of gym equipment at Wantage and White 
Horse Leisure and Tennis centres. 
 
Effective management of resources 
 
Part of our philosophy, and one of our corporate priorities was to keep our share of council tax low 
(in the lowest 20 of all district councils) whilst continuing to deliver high quality services.  Over a 
number of years the council has made significant savings through joint working, especially with our 
close partner South Oxfordshire District Council with whom we have saved costs on staffing, 
contracts and office accommodation. 
 
The last 18 months has seen progress on our latest joint working, two joint contracts with South 
Oxfordshire, Hart, Havant and Mendip district councils to outsource a number of council services, 
including HR, IT and accountancy, facilities management, property, licensing, and land charges.  Page 151

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 9 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

This work will reach a key stage in August 2016 with the first part of this contract going live for 
South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse. 
 
This outsourcing is expected to realise ongoing annual savings of in excess of £0.8 million 
inclusive of client management costs.  
 
This type of innovative joint working, along with sound financial management has helped to keep 
costs down and meant that we are able to keep the cost of council tax to our residents low.   
 
In recent years the level of council tax has remained frozen at £116.69, which in 2016/17 is the 
ninth lowest of all non-metropolitan district councils. 
 
Through our board report we measure a number of key income streams, to ensure that we are 
both maximising income and understanding early where external factors might impact on budgets.  
During 2015/16: 
 

 Planning income totalled £1.5 million against a budget of £1.3 million, this compared to 
income of £1.7 million in 2014/15. 

 

 Land charges income totalled £0.2 million compared to £0.3 million in the previous year. 
 

 At year end, sundry debtors more than 30 days were £126,000 (after adding back housing 
arrears and Westway service charges), which is the lowest debt figure ever for the council. 
 

 The New Homes Bonus paid to the council for 2015/16 was £2.8 million, compared to an 
average of £1.9 million, putting us 38th out of all 201 non-metropolitan district councils. 
 

 Our Council Tax collection rate of 98.68 per cent, put us 30th when ranked against all 
district councils at end March 2015. 
 

Staff sickness absence is 6.13 per FTE at end March, compared to 4.46 for English district 
councils in 2013/145 
 
Chart 1 above demonstrates that residents are recognising that we are a council that provides 
good value for money for them. 
 
Meeting housing need 
 
The Vale of White Horse is an attractive place to live and demand for housing is high. During the 
year we have made progress on our Local Plan, submitting the draft Local Plan for examination 
during March 2015. The examination hearings concluded during February 2016 and we are 
currently awaiting the Inspectors decision. The Preferred Options will allocate housing to 
settlements or specific sites for around 20,500 new homes and 23,000 new jobs up to 2032. 
 
Because of high demand for housing, the attractive and accessible nature of the district and high 
house prices, our key challenge on housing is to ensure that we facilitate the delivery of new 
housing and achieve an appropriate mix of housing to meet local need. 
 
During the year 1,061 new homes have been built in the district, compared to 724 in 2014/15; 
completion of affordable homes is up from 252 in 2014/15 to 329 in 2015/16 (see graphs 5 and 6 
below). At March 2015 we were 14th compared to all district councils for affordable homes built. 
 
 

                                            
5 Source LG Inform, latest available figures Page 152

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 10 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Graph 5 - Net additional homes 2016/17 

 
Graph 6 - Affordable homes built 2015/16 
 

 
 
In planning we receive around 2,900 applications per year.  Planning performance is measured 
through the board report in relation to speed of planning application determination and action on 
enforcement cases.  We monitor the quality of decisions through the number of planning appeals 
allowed. 
 
Our performance on minor and major applications is way above the national targets of 65 and 60 
per cent respectively; at the end of 2015/16 we were achieving 84 per cent within eight weeks, and 
88 per cent within target time.  Other applications were 18 per cent above the national target at 98 
per cent at end March 2015.   
 
To support the growth in housing and employment, we have secured section 106 (S106) 
contributions towards infrastructure from new development through S106 (legal) agreements. The 
secured amount for 2015/16 was £14.2 million. 
 
At the end of 2014/15, nationally published figures put us 136th out of all district councils on major 
applications, 85th on minors and 98th on other applications.6 
                                            
6 Source: Government website 

Net additional homes, based on council tax data

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Number of 

homes

2015-2016 Cumulative completions 130 178 258 349 487 530 677 785 895 1014 1065 1061

2014-2015 Cumulative completions 201 228 289 375 396 443 514 523 551 671 725 724

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Affordable houses achieved against target

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Number of

 completions

2015-2016 Cumulative completions 19 48 76 90 108 139 151 164 208 230 249 329

Cumulative target 29 58 88 117 146 175 204 233 263 292 321 350

Officer prediction of year-end performance 350

2014-2015 Cumulative completions 20 28 43 45 45 64 73 100 109 135 161 252

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 153

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 11 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

A draft Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule has been submitted for 
examination alongside the draft Local Plan. Once the draft Local Plan had been adopted, 
examination of the CIL Charging Schedule will commence.  
 
For 2016/17 the council will receive £3.9 million of New Homes Bonus.  Due to the current 
Government consultation on allocation of New Homes Bonus we are unable to calculate with any 
certainty how much we are likely to receive in future years. 
 
The number of households at risk of homelessness has gone up over recent years and we have 
increased our work on homelessness prevention, with 460 successful homelessness interventions 
in 2015/16, compared to 323 in 2014/15.  We have done this by proactively engaging with 
customers at the earliest point and through positive partnerships with organisations such as 
Citizen Advice Bureau, Soldiers, Sailors and Families Association (SSAFA), Connections Floating 
Support, Wantage Advice Centre and others who provide debt and welfare advice to enable 
customers to remain in their own homes.   Nationally the ability to successfully prevent 
homelessness has decreased by 3 per cent.  
 
Our White Horse Lettings is dedicated to helping low income families remain in the local area, 
while securing good rental returns for private landlords.  Working with both private landlords and 
many local lettings agencies, we currently support approximately 150 tenancies. We have 
increased the numbers of people in the private rented sector, and decreased the number who are 
presenting as statutory homeless.   
 
As at 31 March 2016 we have only one family in emergency temporary accommodation until 
alternative accommodation can be found.  The rolling six month average of households in 
emergency temporary accommodation being 1.2 (see graph below). The average length of stay in 
emergency temporary accommodation for the year is 36 days.  The number of households in 
temporary accommodation is decreasing in the Vale, despite numbers rising nationally in recent 
years. 
 
Graph 7 - Number of households in temporary accommodation 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Number of households in first stage

temporary accommodation

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Number of

 households

First stage 2 2 1 0 2 2 0 1 2 2 1 1

Ceiling 2015-2016 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7

Rolling six-month average 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.5 1.5 1.2 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.3 1.2

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16

Page 154

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 12 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Benefits 
 
We monitor both time to determine and accuracy.  Average time to determine claims at end 
2015/16 was 4.71 days compared to 6.52 in 2014/15, and accuracy is 95.12 per cent. At end 
March 2015 we were 35th for benefit determinations compared to all district councils7. 
 
Building the local economy 
 
Strategic growth 
 
Supporting business growth in appropriate locations across the district, whilst protecting the 
character of our towns and villages is a key challenge for us.  Didcot and the Science Vale area 
(including part of neighbouring South Oxfordshire District) are the focus for a significant amount of 
housing and business growth as we work to attract hi tech and design-based business into the 
area, and to support our Small and Medium sized Enterprises (SME’s) to grow. During 2015/16 we 
have: 
 

 provided £250,000 in funding towards improving broadband across the district, to increase 
coverage of superfast broadband to over 95 per cent of homes and businesses 
 

 been awarded Garden Town status for Didcot 
 

 had a second Enterprise Zone for Didcot approved 
 

Enterprise Zone monitoring: growth against baseline 
 
In 2015/16 over £0.8 million of business rates were retained from the Science Vale Enterprise 
Zone (EZ) for the Local Enterprise Partnership. This brings the total retained in the first three years 
of the EZ to £1.7 million.   
 
Support for market towns 
 
Along with our outstanding countryside, our historic markets towns of Abingdon, Faringdon and 
Wantage are much of what draws visitors to our district.  The council has provided the following 
support to our market towns during 2015/16: 
 

 Funded market town co-ordinator posts in Faringdon and Wantage (total of £46,000 per 
annum). 

 

 Supported the set up and establishment of the Abingdon Business Improvement District 
(set up costs £10,000 and ongoing costs of £12,000 per annum) 

 

 Promoted the district to visitors through Visit Southern Oxfordshire.  There are 104,331 
unique visitors to the southernoxfordshire.com website a year.  In 2014, visitor activity 
generated nearly £183 million worth of expenditure to the district (overnight and day trips), 
and supported around 3,350 tourism jobs in Vale of White Horse. 

 
Overall vacancy levels in the towns are below national average of at an average of five per cent in 
Vale, with the national average being 12.5 per cent and footfall has increased in Vale towns by 15 
per cent between 2014 and 2015, compared to national 0.9 per cent drop. 
 
 
 

                                            
7 DWP figures, not comparable with board report figures Page 155

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 13 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Support for communities 
 
A fundamental part of our strategy to support communities to do things for themselves and create 
sustainable communities into the future, is our grant schemes.  
 
Grants 
 
We have a long history of supporting communities to help themselves through grant funding for 
projects, community led planning and more recently, Neighbourhood Plans. 
During the year we awarded £117,786 in capital funding towards 18 different projects in 
communities; examples include Kingston Bagpuize Village Hall, Grove PCC Community Hall.  We 
provided revenue funding to nine local voluntary organisations, totalling £227,088, including 
Community First Oxfordshire for support to rural communities and Wantage Independent Advice 
under a four year SLA. Our festivals grants scheme provided £12,150 to 19 communities to help 
with the costs of local events. 
 
Community/neighbourhood planning 
 
We are keen to encourage communities to take control of development in their local area through 
Neighbourhood Plans, and we provide support to communities to do so.  The district had some of 
the first Neighbourhood Plans in the country, and the numbers are increasing steadily, with two 
parishes who currently have an agreed plan, and a further 14 working towards it. 
 
We have supported a number of communities to produce or refresh Community Led Plans (CLP) 
in the year, and 31 of our 68 communities now have a CLP in place. 
 
Financial performance 2015/16 
 
The paragraphs below show the council’s financial performance for 2015/16 in the following areas: 
 

 revenue expenditure 

 capital expenditure 

 treasury management activities. 
 
It also discusses the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for the year and 
its balance sheet at the end of the year. 
 
Revenue outturn 2015/16 
 
The council’s funding requirement for 2015/16, including parish precepts, was £12.4 million, after 
accounting for the use of reserves and investment income.  Net revenue spend for the year was 
£1.4 million below budget as shown in the table below, analysed across the council’s service 
areas.  Of this £0.2 million was due to slippage and has been agreed as budget carry forwards.  
There was overachievement of income of £0.3 million including Legal services and property 
income. Prior year provision was not required for leisure contact payment saving £0.3 million. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 156

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 14 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 

Service expenditure 
Budget 

£000 
Actual 
£000 

Variance 
£000 

Strategic management board 556 519 (37) 

Corporate strategy 5,292 5,170 (122) 

Development and housing 614 707 93 
Economy, leisure and property (1,125) (1,691) (566) 

Finance 2,179 2,216 37 

HR, IT and technical services 1,843 1,693 (150) 

Legal and democratic services 1,223 851 (372) 

Planning 1,196 1,408 212 

Contingency 322 0 (322) 

Direct service expenditure 12,100 10,873 (1,227) 

Interest (411) (542) (131) 

Government grant income (2,882) (2,898) (16) 

Transfer to/from reserves 604 620 16 

Net revenue spend 9,411 8,053 (1,358) 

Transfer of surplus to reserves:       
Net revenue spend 0 1,358 1,358 
Retained business rates 0 386 386 

Budget requirement set by council 9,411 9,797 386 

Parish precepts 3,027 3,027 0 

Total funding requirement 12,438 12,824 386 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) (1,741) (1,741) 0 

Council tax income (8,707) (8,707) 0 

Retained business rates (1,990) (2,376) (386) 

Total funding (12,438) (12,824) (386) 

 
The major variations in service expenditure included within direct service expenditure in the table 
above are detailed below: 
 

Major variations in service revenue expenditure £000 

Strategic management board  
  Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (37) 
Total 
 

(37) 

  Corporate strategy  
Community grants   
Received lower than budgeted requests for community grants (134) 
Waste services  
Under achievement of recycling income due to actual tonnage being less than budget 54 
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (42) 
Total   
 

(122) 

  Development and housing  
Housing register and homelessness  
A successful homelessness prevention program reduced the need to put people into 
temporary accommodation which has resulted in an under achievement of temporary 
accommodation income 

79 

Other 
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 

13 

Total 
 

92 

  
Page 157

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 15 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Major variations in service revenue expenditure £000 

Economy leisure and property  
Sport & recreation  
Prior year provision for contract payments was not required (258) 
Leisure  
Underspend on Wantage Grove leisure centre facility due to covenant negotiations 
taking longer than expected  

(179) 

Property trading   
More rental income received than anticipated (136) 

Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 8 

Total  (565) 
  Finance  

Revenues and benefits  
Additional housing benefit expenditure was partly offset against additional government 
grant income 

74 

Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (37) 

Total 
 

37 

  HR, IT and technical services  
Human resources  
Past service costs were less than budgeted (51) 
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (99) 

Total 
 

(150) 

  Legal and democratic services  
Land charges  
Over recovery of income plus one-off government grant for claims regarding personal 
search fees the cost of which had been incurred in the previous financial year. 

(193) 

Legal  
Over recovery of income on section 106 agreements and property transactions (103) 
Licensing  
Taxi income exceeded budget  (63) 
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 (13) 
Total 
 

(372) 

  Planning  
Planning policy  
Increased expenditure due to receipt of major planning applications         174 
Other  
Balance of other variances that individually were less than £50,000 37 

Total  211 
  Contingency  
Demand on contingency was less than anticipated  (322) 

Total underspend on direct service expenditure (1,228) 

 
Capital outturn 2015/16 
 
Capital expenditure totalled £2.6 million in 2015/16 and spend for the year was £1.4 million below 
budget.  The largest scheme expenditure in year was on disabled facilities grants totalling £1.1 
million. 
 

Page 158

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 16 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The main source of funding for the programme was the council’s own reserves of capital receipts 
(money we have set aside from the sale of assets), with the balance made up by grants from 
government departments and contributions from developers.   
 
Further details on both revenue and capital expenditure for 2015/16 are provided in an outturn 
report to scrutiny committee considered at its meeting in September 2016, which includes an 
analysis of the underspend. 
 
Treasury management 2015/16 
 
In accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, by actively managing its investments, the 
council earned interest and investment income of £0.5 million against a budget of £0.4 million.  
The average rate earned on cash investments for the year was 1.3 per cent.  In accordance with 
the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) income from interest on investments is applied 
in year to support the revenue account.   
 
Further details on treasury management for 2015/16 are provided in an outturn report to be 
considered by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee, Cabinet and Council. 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 2015/16  
 
The CIES presents the council’s income and expenditure for the year based on accounting 
standards, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Councils raise taxation to cover 
expenditure in accordance with regulations but this may be different to the accounting cost.  The 
table below reconciles the direct service expenditure for the year shown in the net revenue table 
on page 14 to the cost of services shown in the CIES, showing the adjusting transactions.  
 

2014/15 
£000  

2015/16 
£000 

10,841 Direct service expenditure (revenue outturn)        10,873 

 Net capital transactions:    

2,620 Depreciation and amortisation 1,473  

1,354 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 2,131  

116 Expenditure funded by developers contributions 828  

(47) Revaluation of equity loans (24)  

4,043    4,408 

(412) Pension adjustments required under IAS 19 (222)  

1,195 Property trading accounts included in service expenditure 1,063  

(212) Overhead charged to items below cost of services (151)  

571   690 

15,455 Cost of services (CIES)                    15,971 

 
From the net cost of services calculated as above, accounting adjustments, including adjustments 
for the council’s fixed assets, such as depreciation, along with adjustments for interest income and 
notional charges for the council’s pension fund liability (under International Accounting Standard 
(IAS) 19), mean that after the total financing from government grants and local taxpayers of £17.4 
million, the council’s surplus on provision of services was £1.8 million.   
 
This surplus is then adjusted further to produce the total comprehensive income and expenditure 
figure for the year which is a surplus of £6 million.  This figure corresponds to the total movement 
on the balance sheet for the year. 
 
 
 
 
 Page 159

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 17 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Balance sheet 
 
The reported net worth of the council increased from £41.8 million to £47.8 million at 31 March 
2016, an increase of £6 million.  This movement, which is also detailed in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement (MiRS), is principally the result of the following material items:  
 
a)  Fixed assets.  The value of the council’s fixed assets (restated) rose by £0.9 million.  This 

includes depreciation charges of £1.5 million, disposals of £1.1 million and a £3.5 million 
increase in the value of the council’s investment and property assets revalued as part of the 
periodic cycle of asset revaluations.   

 
b) Investments and cash balances.  The council has £34.4 million of investments and cash 

balances as at 31 March 2016, a net increase of £3.7 million from the previous year.  This 
reflects a net transfer to revenue reserves in year of £2 million based on the revenue 
outturn position and New Homes Bonus receipts, plus an increase in capital grants and 
receipts in advance of £1 million. 

 
c) Pension liability.  The statement of accounts identifies details of the council’s future 

commitments with regard to pension provision for its current and former employees.  The 
council’s net pension liability decreased by £1.9 million to £38 million.  This results from an 
increase in the long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme. 

 
At the balance sheet date the council had usable reserves of £28.4 million, made up of £6.1 million 
general fund balance, £9.3 million in earmarked revenue reserves, £5.5 million in capital receipts 
and £7.5 million in unapplied capital grants. 
 
It should be noted that the general fund balance includes an accrual for council tax and NDR 
collection fund balances as per the collection fund statement on page 63.  This is offset by the 
collection fund adjustment account (unusable reserve).  This means that although the general fund 
balance is correct in accounting terms, the actual amount available as a useable reserve is 
actually £4.6 million.   
 
Material events after the balance sheet date  
 
There are no material events after the balance sheet date.  
 
Collection fund 
 
The collection fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of billing authorities 
to maintain a separate Collection Fund.  The statement shows the transactions of the billing  
authority in relation to the collection from local taxpayers of Council Tax and Non Domestic Rates 
(NDR) and its distribution to precepting bodies.  For the council, the major council tax precepting  
bodies are Oxfordshire County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames 
Valley. 
 
On council tax, income of £77.6 million was received and £77.2 million was paid out in precepts 
and demands.  After taking the provision for bad debts into account, the surplus on the council tax 
collection fund balance at the end of the year was £2.5 million.  This will be re-distributed to all 
major precepting authorities. 
 
On NDR, £52.2 million was received and £49.8 million was paid out to the council, central 
government and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC).  After taking the provision for bad debts and 
the provision for appeals into account, the deficit on the NDR collection fund balance at the end of 
the year was £4.9 million.  This will be shared between the council, central government and OCC. 
 

Page 160

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 18 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The council is acting as the accountable body for the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
(OxLEP) and is retaining additional business rates collected from within the Science Vale 
Enterprise Zone on their behalf.  As at 31 March 2016, the amount of business rates retained by 
the council on behalf of OxLEP was calculated to be £1.7 million. 
 
Future prospects 
  
As part of the annual budget setting process for 2016/17, council agreed its Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) for 2016/17 to 2020/21.  The MTFP provides a forward budget model for 
the next five years, highlighting known estimated budget pressures for new responsibilities and 
changes in legislation, predicted investment and capital receipts. 
 
The MTFP highlights pressures the council anticipates in setting its revenue budget during the 
period covered.  The key pressures are the anticipated reduction in government grant funding, and 
cost pressures in future years.  In addition, the outcome of the New Homes Bonus consultation 
and the introduction of full business rate retention may have a significant impact on the council’s 
financial position in future years.   
 
Officers consider that the pressures highlighted are manageable in this period, in light of the 
reserves and balances available to the council.  The council has already made considerable 
revenue savings in recent years by: 
 

 merging its management team with South Oxfordshire District Council, 
 

 merging many of its operational service teams with South Oxfordshire District Council,  
 

 undertaking joint procurement with other councils, and 
 

 introducing “lean” business processes to reduce duplication and save officer time. 
 
Continuation of initiatives like these is expected to help meet the financial challenges facing the 
council.  As part of budget setting for 2016/17, council also agreed a capital programme to 
2020/21 costing £32.7 million.  This will be funded from a combination of the council’s usable 
capital and revenue reserves and other contributions. 
 
A referendum was held on Thursday 23 June to decide whether the UK should leave or remain in 
the European Union.  Leave won by 52 per cent to 48 per cent.  At this stage the financial 
implications of this result for the council are uncertain but it could have an impact on the council’s 
future investment income and, potentially, grant funding and business rates income.  The impact 
of the result will be considered as part of future medium term financial planning. 
 
Council resources 
 
Based on the council’s budget proposals for revenue and capital, it is forecast that by 31 March 
2021 the council will hold £5.7 million in usable reserves, made up of £1 million general fund 
balance and £4.7 million in earmarked revenue reserves.  It is anticipated that the council’s capital 
receipts will be fully expended by 2021.   
 
 
 
William Jacobs 
Head of finance and chief finance officer     26 September 2016 
 
 
 

Page 161

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 19 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Statement of responsibilities for the statement of accounts 

 
1. The authority's responsibilities 

 
The authority is required to: 

 
 make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that 

one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those arrangements.  In this 
authority, that officer is the head of finance and chief finance officer;  
 

 manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 
safeguard its assets; and 
 

 approve the statement of accounts. 
 

The statement of accounts was considered and approved at the joint audit and governance 
committee meeting on 26 September 2016. 

 
 
 

 ………………………………………….............. 
 Chairman of joint audit and governance committee 26 September 2016  

 
2. Responsibilities of the chief finance officer 
 
The chief finance officer’s responsibilities include the preparation of the council's statement of 
accounts, which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in 
the United Kingdom (the Code) is required to present a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the council at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 
2016. 
 
In preparing this statement of accounts, the chief finance officer has: 
 

 selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently 
 

 made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent 
 

 complied with the local authority code. 
 
The chief finance officer has also: 
 

 kept proper accounting records which were up to date 
 

 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
I certify that this statement of accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
authority at 31 March 2016 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
 
 
 
………………………………………………… 
William Jacobs CPFA 
Head of finance and chief finance officer    26 September 2016 

Page 162

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 20 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Vale of 

White Horse District Council 

 
Opinion on the Authority’s financial statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Vale of White Horse District Council for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements 
comprise the: 
 

 Movement in Reserves Statement,  

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,  

 Balance Sheet,  

 Cash Flow Statement,  

 Collection Fund8and the related notes 1 to 3  

 and the related notes 1 to 30.  
 
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015/16. 
 
This report is made solely to the members of Vale of White Horse District Council, as a body, in 
accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, 
as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies 
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we 
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer and auditor 
 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the statement of accounts set out 
on page 21, the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of 
the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper 
practices as set out in the  

 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16, 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express 
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether 
the accounting policies are appropriate to the Authority’s circumstances and have been 
consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by the Head of Finance and Chief Financial Officer; and the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

                                            
 Page 163

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 21 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts 
2015/16 to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify 
any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the 
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any 
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

 

Opinion on financial statements 
 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

 give a true and fair view of the financial position of Vale of White Horse District Council as 
at 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and 

 have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16. 

 
Opinion on other matters 
 
In our opinion, the information given in the Statement of Accounts 2015/16 for the financial year for 
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

 

Matters on which we report by exception 
 
We report to you if: 

 in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other 
information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the Council; 

 we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014; 

 we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;  

 we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to 
law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 

 we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014; or 

 we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. 

 
We have nothing to report in these respects  
 
Conclusion on Vale of White Horse District Council’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 
 

Authority’s responsibilities  

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, 
and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.  

  

Page 164

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 22 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Auditor’s responsibilities  

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy 
ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit 
Office (NAO) requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements.  
 
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that 
the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.  
 
 

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 

of resources 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to 
the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in 
November 2015, as to whether the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly 
informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 
taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that 
necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the 
[name of body] put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in 
all significant respects, the Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 
Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the C&AG in November 2015, 
we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Vale of White Horse District Council put in place 
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for 
the year ended 31 March 2016.  
 
Certificate 
 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Vale of White Horse District 
Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 
the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office. 
 
 
 
 
 
Andrew Brittain (senior statutory auditor) 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor 
Reading 
28 September 2016 

 

 

 

Page 165

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 23 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Core financial statements 

 

The following pages show the council’s core financial statements, and the notes to the accounts.  
The core statements are as follows: 
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) (page 25).  This shows the 
accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation.  Authorities raise taxation 
(council tax) to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the 
accounting cost.  This difference can be seen in the MiRS on the line “Adjustments between 
accounting basis and funding basis under regulation”.   
 
Movement in Reserves Statement (MiRS) (page 26).  This shows the movement in the year on 
the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be 
applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves.  The (surplus) or deficit 
on the provision of services line shows the true economic cost of providing the council’s services, 
more details of which are shown in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement.  These 
are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the general fund balance for 
council tax setting purposes.  The net increase/decrease before transfers to earmarked reserves 
line shows the statutory general fund balance before any discretionary transfers to or from 
earmarked reserves undertaken by the council. 
 
Balance Sheet (BS) (page 27).  This shows the value (as at the balance sheet date) of the assets 
and liabilities recognised by the council.  The net assets of the council (being assets less liabilities) 
are matched by the reserves held by the council.  Reserves are reported in two categories.  The 
first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those that the council may use to provide 
services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations 
on their use (e.g. the capital receipts reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or 
repay debt).  The second category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and 
losses (e.g. the revaluation reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide 
services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the MiRS line 
‘adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’. 
 
Cash Flow Statement (CFS) (page 28).  This shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of 
the council during the reporting period.  The statement shows how the authority generates and 
uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing 
activities.  The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the 
extent to which the operations of the council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or 
from the recipients of services provided by the council.  Investing activities represent the extent to 
which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 
council’s future service delivery.  Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in 
predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (e.g. borrowing) to the council. 
 
Notes to the core financial statements (pages 29 to 62).  The core statements are supported by 
comprehensive notes to the accounts.   
 
Accounting policies (pages 67 to 81).  These are the accounting policies adopted in compiling 
the council’s accounting statements which explain the basis on which the figures in the accounts 
have been prepared. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 166

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 24 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Supplementary financial statements 
In addition to core financial statements and notes the council, as an authority that issues council 
tax and business rates bills, maintains a separate income and expenditure account, the 
collection fund, showing transactions in relation to this income and how the demands on the fund 
from Oxfordshire County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames Valley and 
town and parish councils have been satisfied.  This is shown on pages 63 to 66. 
  

Page 167

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 25 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Comprehensive income and expenditure statement 

 
2014/15  

Restated9 
     2015/16   

   

Exp Inc Net  Exp Inc Net 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

2,531  (1,147) 1,384  Central services to the public 2,617  (1,200) 1,417  
4,675  (1,171) 3,504  Cultural and related services 2,985  (1,722) 1,263  
7,516  (2,305) 5,211  Environmental and regulatory services 7,790  (2,441) 5,349  
4,697  (2,679) 2,018  Planning services 6,432  (2,662) 3,770  

700  (535) 165  Highways and transport services 721  (518) 203  
31,123  (29,481) 1,642  Other housing services 31,601  (29,157) 2,444  
1,585  0  1,585  Corporate and democratic core 1,525  0  1,525  

52,827 (37,318) 15,509  Cost of services 53,671  (37,700) 15,971  

3,075  0  3,075  Parish council precepts and other 
grants 

3,147  0  3,147  

10  (167) (157) (Gain)/loss on the disposal of non-
current assets 

0  (64) (64) 

424  (51) 373  (Gain)/loss on other trading accounts  603  (1,043) (440) 
3,509  (218) 3,291  Other operating expenditure 3,750  (1,107) 2,643  

0  (349) (349) Interest receivable and similar income 0  (419) (419) 
0  (119) (119) Other investment income (dividends) 0  (123) (123) 

37  0  37  Gains/loss on disposal of investments 0  (989) (989) 
0  0  0  Changes in fair values of investment 

properties 
0  (2,322) (2,322) 

273  (1,578) (1,305) Income and expenditure in relation to 
investment properties 

147  (543) (396) 

1,339  0  1,339  Net Interest on net defined benefit 
liability or asset 

1,250  0  1,250  

1,649  (2,046) (397) Financing and investment income 
and expenditure 

1,397  (4,396) (2,999) 

0  (7,650) (7,650) Recognised capital grants and 
contributions 

0  (1,686) (1,686) 

0  (8,625) (8,625) Council tax income 0  (8,858) (8,858) 
0  (22,595) (22,595) Retained business rates 0  (22,568) (22,568) 

20,489  0  20,489  Business rates tariff 20,880  0  20,880  
0  (2,428) (2,428) Revenue support grant 0  (1,741) (1,741) 
0  (2,158) (2,158) Non-ringfenced government grants 0  (3,465) (3,465) 

20,489  (43,456) (22,967) Taxation and non-specific grant 
income 

20,880  (38,318) (17,438) 

78,474  (83,038) (4,564) (Surplus) or deficit on provision of 
services 

79,698  (81,521) (1,823) 

    (205) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of 
non-current assets 

    (1,152) 

    (298) Surplus or deficit on revaluation of 
available for sale financial assets  

    (108) 

    7,729  Remeasurement of net defined benefit 
liability 

    (2,910) 

    7,226  Other comprehensive income and 
expenditure 

    (4,170) 

    2,662  Total comprehensive income and 
expenditure 

    (5,993) 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
9 .Details of restatement can be found in note 25. Page 168

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 26 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Movement in reserves statement 

For the year ended 31 March 2016 

 
  General Earmarked Capital Capital Total Unusable Total 

  fund 
balance 

general fund 
reserves 

receipts 
reserves 

grants 
unapplied 

usable 
Reserves 

reserves reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 31 March 2015 – 
restated – see note 25 

(7,443) (6,662) (5,099) (7,404) (26,608) (15,171) (41,779) 

Movement in reserves 
during 2015/16 

              

(Surplus) or deficit on 
provision of services  

(1,823) 0 0 0 (1,823) 0 (1,823) 

Other comprehensive income 
and expenditure 

0 0 0 0 0 (4,170) (4,170) 

Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 
restated 

(1,823) 0 0 0 (1,823) (4,170) (5,993) 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations (note 
2) 

426 0 (367) (52) 7 (7) 0 

Net increase/decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves 

(1,397) 0 (367) (52) (1,816) (4,177) (5,993) 

Transfers to/from earmarked 
reserves 

2,674 (2,675) (1) 0 (2) 2 0 

Increase/decrease 
(movement) in year 

1,277 (2,675) (368) (52) (1,818) (4,175) (5,993) 

Balance at 31 March 2016 
carried forward 

(6,166) (9,337) (5,467) (7,456) (28,426) (19,346) (47,772) 

 

For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 

      

  General Earmarked Capital Capital Total Unusable Total 

  fund general fund receipts grants usable reserves reserves 

  balance reserves reserve unapplied reserves     

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Balance at 31 March 2014 (9,513) (3,304) (6,207) (580) (19,604) (24,837) (44,441) 

Movement in reserves 
during 2014/15 

              

(Surplus) or deficit on 
provision of services -  
restated 

(4,564) 0 0 0 (4,564) 0 (4,564) 

Other comprehensive income 
and expenditure 

0 0 0 0 0 7,226 7,226 

Total comprehensive 
income and expenditure 
restated - see note 25 

(4,564) 0 0 0 (4,564) 7,226 2,662 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis & funding 
basis under regulations – 
restated – see note 25 

3,266 0 1,249 (6,955) (2,440) 2,440 0 

Net increase/decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves - 
restated 

(1,298) 0 1,249 (6,955) (7,004) 9,666 2,662 

Transfers to/from earmarked 
reserves 

3,368 (3,358) (141) 131 0 0 0 

Increase/decrease 
(movement) in year - 
restated 

2,070 (3,358) 1,108 (6,824) (7,004) 9,666 2,662 

Balance at 31 March 2015 
carried forward 

(7,443) (6,662) (5,099) (7,404) (26,608) (15,171) (41,779) 

 

 

Page 169

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 27 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Balance sheet 

 
31 March 

2015 
31 March 

2015 
  

31 March  
2016 

original restated10   

£000  £000    £000  £000  Notes 

33,313 30,557 Property, plant & equipment 44,073   4 

140 141 Heritage assets 0     
20,568 20,568 Investment property 8,210   5  

178 179 Intangible assets 135     

6,473 6,473 Long term investments 8,581    6 
2,922 5,621 Long term debtors 5,962    7 

63,594 63,539  Long term assets   66,961   

17,508 17,508 Short term investments 23,008    6 

6 6 Inventories 9     
7,405 7,405 Short term debtors 8,794   7 
6,755 6,755 Cash and cash equivalents 2,773   8  

31,674  31,674  Current assets   34,584   

(9,112) (9,112) Short term creditors (10,002)   10  
(1,460) (1,460) Provisions  (1,736)   11  
(3,089) (3,088) Capital grants and receipts in 

advance 
(4,140)     

(13,661) (13,660) Current liabilities   (15,878)   

      

(39,774) (39,774) Long term liabilities   (37,895)  

           

41,833  41,779  Net assets   47,772   

(7,443) (7,443) Non-earmarked revenue reserves (6,166)     

(6,662) (6,662) Earmarked revenue reserves (9,337)     

(5,099) (5,099) Usable capital receipts reserve (5,467)     

(7,404) (7,404) Capital grants unapplied (7,456)     

(26,608) (26,608) Usable reserves   (28,426) MiRS  

(4,333) (4,142) Revaluation reserve (5,179)   12a 

(473) (473) Available for sale financial instrument 
reserve  

(581)   12b 

(49,867) (47,305) Capital adjustment account  (47,240)   12c 
39,774 39,774 Pensions reserve 37,895   12d 
(2,870) (5,569) Deferred capital receipts reserve (5,909)   12e 

2,425 2,425 Collection fund adjustment account 1,548    12f 
119 119 Short-term accumulating 

compensated absences 
120     

(15,225) (15,171) Unusable reserves   (19,346)   

            

(41,833) (41,779) Total reserves   (47,772)   

 
The unaudited accounts were issued on 24 June 2016 and the audited accounts will be authorised 
for issue on 26 September 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
10.Details of restatement can be found in note 25. Page 170

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 28 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 

Cash flow statement 

 

31 March  
2015 

  
31 March  

2016 Notes 
£000  £000   

4,618 Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services 1,823  

(54) Adjustment relating to restatement of CIES 0  

4,564 Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services -restated 1,823  

161 Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-
cash movements 

1,294  

(7,817) Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services that are investing and financing activities 

(3,866)  

54 Adjustment relating to restatement of CIES - for items included in 
the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are 
investing and financing activities 

0  

(3,038) Net cash flows from operating activities  (749) 13 

  Investing activities    
(512) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 

and intangible assets 
(604)  

(26,500) Purchase of short and long term investments (38,000)  

(47) Other payments for investing activities (43)  

167 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 
investment property and intangible assets 

2,180  

22,912 Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 30,500  

9,691 Other receipts from investing activities 2,737  

5,711 Total investing activities (3,230)  

  Financing activities    
0 Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing 0  

1,550 Billing authorities - council tax and NDR adjustments (3)  

0 Other receipts from financing activities 0  

1,550 Total financing activities (3)  

4,223 Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,982)  

2,532 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 6,755  

6,755 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 2,773 8 

 

  

Page 171

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 29 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Notes to the accounts 2015/16 

 
1. Statement of accounting policies 
 
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by 
the council in preparing and presenting these financial statements.  These can be reviewed in 
detail on pages 67 to 81. 
 
2. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations 
 
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total CIES recognised by the council in the 
year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory 
provisions as being available to the council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 
 

31 March 2015 restated 

  

31 March 2016 

Usable reserves Usable reserves 

G
e
n

 f
u

n
d

 b
a
l 
&

 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 r
e
v
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s
e

rv
e

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
g

ra
n

ts
 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

 

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

 

G
e
n

 f
u

n
d

 b
a
l 
&

 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 r
e
v
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s
e

rv
e

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
g

ra
n

ts
 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

 

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

       Adjustments primarily involving the 
capital adjustment account: 

       

       Reversal of items debited or credited to 
the CIES: 

       

(1,552) 0 0 1,552 Charges for depreciation and 
impairment of non-current assets 

(1,442) 0 0 1,442 

(1,065) 0  0 1,065 Revaluation losses on property, plant 
and equipment 

0 0 0 0 

0 0  0  0  Movement in the fair value of 
investment properties 

2,322 0 0 (2,322) 

(51) 0 0 51 Amortisation of intangible assets (58) 0 0 58 

(1,354) 0 0 1,354 Revenue expenditure funded from 
capital under statute 

(2,177) 0 0 2,177 

(54) 0 0 54 Revenue expenditure funded from 
capital under statute  -restated 

0 0 0 0 

(10) 0 0 10 Amounts of non-current assets written 
off on disposal or sale as part of the 
gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 

(1,128) 0 0 1,128 

       Adjustments primarily involving the 
capital grants unapplied account: 

       

7,650 (33) (7,025) (592) Capital grants and contributions 
unapplied credited to the 
comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement 

1,686 (97) (1,588) (1) 

0 0 0 0 Use of capital receipts reserve to 
finance new capital expenditure 

(828) 0 828 0 

       Adjustments primarily involving the 
capital receipts reserve: 

       

167 (167) 0 0 Transfer of cash sale proceeds 
credited as part of gain/loss on 
disposal to the CIES 

2,181 (2,181) 0 0 

(117) 1,449 117 (1,449) Use of capital receipts reserve to 
finance new capital expenditure 
 
 
 
 

0 1,911 708 (2,619) 

Page 172

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 30 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

31 March 2015 restated 

  

31 March 2016 

Usable reserves Usable reserves 
G

e
n

 f
u

n
d

 b
a
l 
&

 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 r
e
v
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s
e

rv
e

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
g

ra
n

ts
 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

 

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

 

G
e
n

 f
u

n
d

 b
a
l 
&

 

e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 r
e
v
 

re
s
e

rv
e
s

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

 

re
s
e

rv
e

 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
g

ra
n

ts
 

u
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

 

M
o

v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 

u
n

u
s
a
b

le
 

R
e
s
e

rv
e

s
 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

 
 

47 

 
 

0 

 
 

(47) 

 
 

0 

Adjustments primarily involving the 
deferred capital receipts reserve 

Transfer of deferred capital receipt 
relating to equity loan issued in year 

 
 

24 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
 

(24) 

       Adjustments primarily involving the 
pensions reserve: 

       

(2,344) 0 0 2,344 Reversal of items relating to retirement 
benefits debited or credited to the 
comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement 

(2,439) 0 0 2,439 

1,414 0 0 (1,414) Employer's pensions contributions and 
direct payments to pensioners payable 
in the year. 

1,408 0 0 (1,408) 

      Adjustments primarily involving the 
collection fund adjustment account:  

      

535 0 0 (535) Amount by which council tax and NDR 
income credited to the CIES differs 
from council tax income calculated for 
the year in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

877 0  0 (877) 

3,266 1,249 (6,955) 2,440 Total adjustments 426 (367) (52) (7) 

 

Page 173

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 31 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

3.   Transfers to/from general fund balance and earmarked reserves 
 
This note details all movements in the reserves that comprise the general fund balance and 
earmarked reserves.  
 

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

1 Apr 14 
balance 
brought 
forward 

Trans- 
fers in 

Trans- 
fers 
out 

31 Mar 
15 

balance 
carried 
forward 

 

1 Apr 15 
balance 
brought 
forward 

Trans- 
fers in 

Trans- 
fers 
out 

31 Mar 
16 

balance 
carried 
forward 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

(9,513) (25) 2,095 (7,443) General fund balance (7,443) (2,794) 4,071 (6,166) 

(9,513) (25) 2,095 (7,443) Total general fund balance (7,443) (2,794) 4,071 (6,166) 

       Earmarked reserves         
(27) 0 0 (27) Community grants (a) (27) 0 0 (27) 
(80) (40) 20 (100) Election equalisation (b) (100)  0 100 0 

(153) 0 0 (153) Local development framework (c) (153) 0 0 (153) 
(10) 0 0 (10) Reservoir (d) (10) 0 0 (10) 
(69) 0 0 (69) Building regulations (e) (69) 0 0 (69) 
(1) 0 0 (1) Besselsleigh Wood management (f) (1) 0 0 (1) 

(12) 0 0 (12) Rent deposit guarantee (g) (12) 0 0 (12) 
(50) 0 0 (50) Cabinet grants (h) (50) 0 0 (50) 

(2,853) (2,094) 131 (4,816) Service & infrastructure grants (i) (4,816) (2,673) 100 (7,389) 
(49) 0 0 (49) Self-insurance (j) (49) 0 0 (49) 

0 (1,375)   (1,375) Revenue grants reserve (k) (1,375) (75) 30 (1,420) 
0 0 0 0 Affordable homes (l) 0 (157) 0 (157) 

(3,304) (3,509) 151 (6,662) Total earmarked reserves (6,662) (2,905) 230 (9,337) 

 
The purpose of each reserve is as follows: 
  
(a) Grants awarded in previous years that have not yet been taken up 
(b) District council elections are held every four years and this reserve is used so that all the 

costs are not met in one year but spread over the term of the council 
(c) To meet the cost of any inquiries that have to be set up as a result of the updating of the local 

development framework 
(d) To meet any costs associated with Thames Water's proposal for a new reservoir 
(e) The building control trading account 
(f) To cover contributions to the management costs of Besselsleigh Wood 
(g) To guarantee rent deposits for private tenants 
(h) To provide matched funding to organisations 
(i) Fund to provide revenue support to service and infrastructure projects 
(j) To cover the excess payable on insurance claims 
(k) To fund revenue expenditure from grants received in advance 
(l) To allocate funds for affordable homes 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Page 174

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 32 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

4. Property, plant and equipment 
 

Table 4a Movements in property plant & equipment 2015/16       

  

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 &

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e

h
ic

le
s
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
s
s

e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

a
s
s

e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 a

s
s

e
ts

 

T
o

ta
l 
P

P
&

E
 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or revaluation             

At 1 April 2015 29,278  4,749  141  654  0  34,822  

Additions 0  410  0  0  0  410  

Revaluation  
increases/(decreases) to RR 

1,152  0  0  0  0  1,152  

Disposals (375) 0  0  0  0  (375) 

Other movements in cost or 
valuation 

13,375  157  0  0  245  13,777  

At 31 March 2016 43,430  5,316  141  654  245  49,786  

Depreciation and impairments           

At 1 April 2015 (665) (3,483) (116) 0  0  (4,264) 

Depreciation charge (678) (751) (13) 0  0  (1,442) 

Disposals 9  0 0  0  0  9  

Other movements 0 (16) 0  0  0  (16) 

At 31 March 2016 (1,334) (4,250) (129) 0  0  (5,713) 

Balance sheet amount as 31 
March 2016 

42,096  1,066  12  654  245  44,073 

Balance sheet amount as 31 
March 2015 

28,613  1,267  25  654  0  30,557  

RR = Revaluation reserve             

SDPS = Surplus or deficit on the provision of services         

 
  

Page 175

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 33 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 4b Movements in property plant & equipment 2014/15 restated 

  

O
th

e
r 

la
n

d
 &

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
 

V
e

h
ic

le
s
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
s
s

e
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

a
s
s

e
ts

 

S
u

rp
lu

s
 a

s
s

e
ts

 

A
s

s
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 

T
o

ta
l 
P

P
&

E
 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost or revaluation               

At 1 April 2014 31,250  5,210  138  1,514  0  0  38,112  

Additions 472  93  3  0  0 0 568  

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to RR 

0  0 0 205  0 0 205  

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) to 
SDPS 

0  0 0 (1,065) 0 0 (1,065) 

Disposals - restated (2,446) (554) 0  0 0 0 (3,000) 

Other movements in cost or 
valuation 

2  0  0  0 0 0 2  

At 31 March 2015 - 
restated11 

29,278  4,749  141  654  0  0  34,822  

Depreciation and impairments             

At 1 April 2014 0  (2,865) (96) 0  0  0  (2,961) 

Depreciation charge - restated (665) (643) (20) 0  0 0 (1,328) 

Disposals 0  26  0 0 0 0 26  

At 31 March 2015 (665) (3,482) (116) 0  0  0  (4,263) 

Balance sheet amount as 31 
March 2015 - restated 

28,613  1,267  25  654  0  0  30,557  

Balance sheet amount as 31 
March 2014 

31,250  2,345  42  1,514  0  0  35,151  

RR = Revaluation reserve               

SDPS = Surplus or deficit on the provision of services           

 
Depreciation 
 
Where required, assets are depreciated in equal annual amounts over the assumed life of the 
asset.  The following useful lives have been used: 
 
 Buildings –  on an individual basis as assessed by the valuer 

 
 Vehicles, equipment, cctv, computer hardware – 5 years 

 
 Parks equipment, running track, boilers, large plant – 10 years 

 
 Infrastructure assets (sewage treatment works) – 10 years 

 
 Special items individually assessed (including heritage assets) 

 
 
 
 
 

                                            
11 For detail of restatement see note 25 Page 176

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 34 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
Capital commitments 
 
As at the end of March 2016 the council had capital commitments on a number of contracts in 
2016/17 and future years, budgeted to cost £2.1 million.  The commitments are: 
 
 Capital grants awarded - £0.2 million 

 
 Leisure contracts - £1.9 million 
 
Revaluations 
 
The council has a rolling programme that ensures that all property, plant and equipment required 
to be measured at current value or fair value as appropriate, is revalued at least every three years.  
Any assets that may be subject to special conditions will be valued more often, as required.   
 
Valuations are prepared in accordance with the recommendations contained within the RICS Red 
Book, UK Appendix 5, which covers the valuation of local authority assets.  A review has 
determined that the valuations have not altered significantly between the date of the last valuation 
and 31 March 2016. 
 
The significant assumptions applied in estimating the 2015/16 values are that: 
 
 There is no contamination problem nor deleterious/hazardous substance present; 

 
 Good title can be shown and that the properties comply with all legal and statutory  

 
 Requirements regarding either the structure or its existing /past usage, 

 
 There will be an adequate level of expenditure on repairs and maintenance. 
 

Table 4c Revaluations property, plant and equipment       

  

Land & 
buildings 

Vehicles, 
plant & 

equipment 

Infrastructure 
& community 

assets 

Surplus 
Assets 

Total 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Carried at historical cost 474  5,278  141  0  5,893  

            
Valued at fair value as at:           

31 January 2014 31,237  0  0  0  31,237  

31 January 2015 0  0  654  0  654  

31 January 2016 11,719  38  0  245  12,002  

Total value 43,430  5,316  795  245  49,786  

 
5. Investment properties 

 
Income and expenditure in respect of investment properties is shown on the face of the CIES.   
 
There are no restrictions on the council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment 
property or on the council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The 
council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or 
repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 
The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the 
year: Page 177

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 35 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

2014/15    2015/16 

£000   £000 

20,568 Balance at 1 April 20,568 

0 Disposals (1,057) 

0 Reclassifications (13,623) 

0 Changes in fair value 2,322 

20,568 Balance at 31 March 8,210 

 
Fair value hierarchy 
 
All the council’s investment properties have been value assessed as level 2 on the fair value 
hierarchy for valuation purposes (see accounting policy xxii for an explanation of fair value levels). 
 

Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 for values for investment property 
 
The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes 
into account quoted prices for similar assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, 
research into market evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant strength for 
existing tenants, and data and market knowledge gained in managing the council’s investment 
asset portfolio.  Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold 
and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised as 
level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 
 
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment 
properties. 
 
Highest and best use 
 

In estimating the fair value of the council’s investment properties, the highest and best use is their 
current use. 
 

Valuation process for investment properties 
 
The council’s investment property has been valued as at 31 January 2016 by Bruton Knowles in 
accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards 
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 
 
6. Financial instruments 
 
The borrowings and investments disclosed in the balance sheet are made up of the following 
categories of financial instruments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 178

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 36 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 6a Categories of financial instrument 

  Long-term Current 

  2014/15 2015/16 2014/15 2015/16 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Investments         

Loans and receivables (principal amount) 4,000  6,000  17,508  23,008  

Cash equivalents 0  0  6,755  3,821  

Plus accrued interest 0  0  93  105  

Loans and receivables at amortised cost 4,000  6,000  24,356  26,934  

Available-for-sale financial assets 2,473  2,581  0  0  

Total investments 6,473  8,581  24,356  26,934  

Debtors        
Financial assets carried at contract amounts - 
restated12 

5,621 5,962  2,707  5,711  

Total debtors 5,621  5,962  2,707  5,711  

Creditors         

Financial liabilities carried at contract amount 0  0 6,106  4,715  

Total creditors 0  0  6,106  4,715  
 
(1) Under accounting requirements the carrying value of the financial instrument value is shown in the balance 

sheet which includes the principal amount borrowed or lent and further adjustments for breakage costs 
including accrued interest.  Accrued interest is shown separately in current assets/liabilities where 
payments/receipts are due within one year.  The effective interest rate is effectively accrued interest receivable 
under the instrument, adjusted for the amortisation of any premiums or discounts reflected in the purchase price     

(2) Available-for-sale financial assets – the council holds £2.6 million in the CCLA pooled property fund. 

 
Financial instrument gains/losses 
 
The gains and losses recognised in the income and expenditure account in relation to financial 
instruments are made up as follows; 
 

Table 6b Financial instrument gains and losses 
  

2014/15 Loans and receivables 2015/16 

£000 £000 

431  Investment income (interest, dividends, gains/loss on 
disposal) 

542  

298  Net increase in fair value 108  

729  Net gain/(loss) for the year 650  

 
Fair values of assets and liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables, long-term debtors 
and creditors are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost. (in long term assets / liabilities 
with accrued interest in current assets / liabilities).  Their fair value can be assessed by calculating 
the present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments, 
using the following assumptions: 
 
 
 
 

                                            
12 For details of restatement see note 25 Page 179

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 37 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 For loans receivable prevailing benchmark rates have been used to provide the fair value; 
 

 Where an instrument will mature within the next 12 months, the fair value is taken to be the 
carrying amount; 
 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised; 
 

 The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount. 
 
The fair values calculated are as follows: 
 

Table 6c Fair value of assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost 

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

Carrying 
amount 

Fair value   Carrying 
amount 

Fair value 

£000 £000   £000 £000 

9,112  9,112  Short term creditors 10,002  10,002  

9,112  9,112  Total liabilities 10,002  10,002  

          

6,005  6,010  Cash and cash equivalents 51  51  

750  751  Money market funds 3,770  3,773  

17,508  17,552  Short term investments 23,008  23,054  

4,000  4,044  Long term investments 6,000  6,056  

2,473  2,473  Available for sale investments 2,581  2,581  

7,405  7,405  Short term debtors 8,794  8,794  

2,922  2,922  Long term debtors 5,962  5,962  

41,063  41,157  Total assets 50,166  50,271  

 
The fair values for loans and receivables include accrued interest.  
 
The comparator market rates prevailing have been taken from indicative investment rates at the 
balance sheet date.  In practice rates will be determined by the size of the transaction and the 
counterparty, but it is impractical to use these figures and the difference is likely to be immaterial. 
 
Short term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair approximation of their value. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 180

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 38 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

7. Debtors 
 

31 March 2015 31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

Long 
term 

Short 
term 

Long 
term 

restated13 

Short 
term 

 Long 
term 

Short 
term 

£000 £000 £000 £000   £000 £000 

 0 2,329 0 2,329 Central government bodies 0 2,955 

0 2,420 0 2,420 Other local authorities 0 2,721 

2,922 2,656 5,621 2,656 Other entities and 
individuals 

5,962 3,118 

2,922 7,405 5,621 7,405 Total debtors 5,962 8,794 

 
8. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

£000 £000 

1  Cash held by the council 1  

6,004  Bank current and instant access accounts (998) 

750  Money market funds 3,770  

6,755  Total cash and cash equivalents 2,773  

 
9. Assets held for sale 
 
At the balance sheet date, the council has no material assets held for sale. 
 
10. Short–term creditors 
 

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

£000   £000 

(77) Central government bodies (257) 

(4,434) Other local authorities (7,319) 

(4,601) Other entities and individuals (2,426) 

(9,112) Total short-term creditors (10,002) 

 
11. Provisions 
 
The provision in 2015/16 represents amounts set aside to meet future business rate appeals 
liabilities. 
 

Provisions £000 

Balance at 1 April 2015 (1,460) 

Business rate appeals - movement in year (276) 

Balance at 31 March 2016 (1,736) 

 
 
 
 

                                            
13 For details of restatement see note 25 Page 181

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 39 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

12. Unusable reserves 
 

Revaluation reserve 
 
The revaluation reserve contains the gains made by the council arising from increases in the value 
of its property, plant and equipment (including intangible assets).  The balance is reduced when 
assets with accumulated gains are: 
 

 revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost 
 

 used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation,  
 

 disposed of and the gains are realised. 
 
The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the 
reserve was created.  Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the 
balance on the capital adjustment account. 
 

Table 12a Revaluation reserve restated 
  

2014/15 2014/15   2015/16 

original restated14    

£000 £000   £000 

(4,219) (4,219) Balance at 1 April (4,142) 

(205) (205) Upward revaluation of assets (1,152) 
0  191  Restated downward revaluation of assets and 

impairment losses not charged to the surplus/deficit 
on the provision of services 

0  

(205) (14) 
Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current 
assets not posted to the surplus or deficit on 
the provision of services 

(1,152) 

91  91  Difference between fair value depreciation and 
historical cost depreciation 

75  

91  91  
Amount written off to the capital adjustment 
account 75  

 0  0 Other  40 

(4,333) (4,142) Balance at 31 March (5,179) 

 
The restatement in 2014/15 relates to the granting of a long lease for Tilsley Park. 
 
Available for sale financial instruments reserve 
 
The available for sale financial instruments reserve contains the gains made by the council arising 
from increases in the value of its investments that have quoted market prices or otherwise do not 
have fixed or determinable payments.  The balance is reduced when investments with 
accumulated gains are: 
 
 Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost; 

 
 Disposed of and the gains are realised. 

 
 

                                            
14 For details of restatement see note 25 Page 182

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 40 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 12b Available for sale financial instruments reserve 

2014/15   2015/16 

£000 £000 

(175) Balance at 1 April (473) 

(298) Revaluation of investments (108) 

(473) Balance at 31 March (581) 

 
Capital adjustment account 
 
The capital adjustment account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the 
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  The account 
is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment 
losses and amortisations are charged to the CIES (with reconciling postings from the revaluation 
reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  The account is credited with the 
amounts set aside by the council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and 
enhancement. 
 
The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains 
recognised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the council.  The account also 
contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before 1 April 2007, the 
date that the revaluation reserve was created to hold such gains.  Note 2 provides details of the 
source of all the transactions posted to the account, apart from those involving the revaluation 
reserve. 
 
 

Table 12c Capital adjustment account restated 

2014/15 2014/15  2015/16 
£000 £000  £000 

original restated15    

(51,814) (51,814) Balance at 1 April (47,305) 

    Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited 
to or credited to the CIES: 

  

1,553  1,553  Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current 
assets 

1,442 

1,065  3,627 Revaluations (gains)/losses on property, plant and 
equipment 

0 

50  50  Amortisation of intangible assets 58  
1,354 

0  
1,354 

0  
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 
Movement in the fair value of investment properties 

2,195 
(2,319) 

10  10  Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or 
sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES 

1,376  

(91) (91) Adjusting amounts written out to the revaluation reserve (75) 
    Capital financing applied in year:   

(1,402) (1,402) Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new capital 
expenditure 

(1,911) 

(592) 
 

(1) 

(592) 
 

0 

Capital grants and contributions credited to the CIES that 
have been applied to capital financing 
Other adjustments 

(708) 
 

7 

(49,867) (47,305) Balance at 31 March (47,240) 

 
 
 
 

                                            
15 For details of restatement see note 25 Page 183

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 41 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Pension’s reserve 
 
The pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory 
provisions.  The council accounts for post-employment benefits in the CIES as the benefits are 
earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect 
inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the 
costs.  However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the council 
makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is 
directly responsible.  The debit balance on the pensions reserve therefore shows a substantial 
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the council has 
set aside to meet them.  The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set 
aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
 

Table 12d Pensions reserve   

2014/15   2015/16 

£000   £000 

31,115 Balance at 1 April 39,774 

7,729 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) (2,910) 

  actuarial gain/(loss)   

2,344 Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the surplus or deficit on the provision of services 
in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement 

2,439 

(1,414) Employer's pensions contributions and direct payments to 
pensioners payable in the year 

(1,408) 

39,774 Balance at 31 March 37,895 

 
Deferred capital receipts reserve 
 
The deferred capital receipts reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current 
assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements, the 
council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital expenditure until they are 
backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are 
transferred to the capital receipts reserve. 
 

Table 12e Deferred capital receipts reserve restated 

2014/15 2014/15   2015/16 

£000 £000   £000 

original restated16     

(2,823) (2,823) Balance at 1 April (5,569) 

(47) 
0 

(47) 
(2,699) 

New deferred capital receipts received in year 

New deferred capital receipts received in year - restated 

(340) 
0 

(2,870) (5,569) Balance at 31 March (5,909) 

 
The restatement in 2014/15 relates to the granting of a long lease for Tilsley Park. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
16 For details of restatement see note 25 Page 184

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 42 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Collection fund adjustment account 
 
The collection fund adjustment account manages the differences arising from the recognition of 
council tax income in the CIES as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory 
arrangements for paying across amounts to the general fund from the collection fund. 
 

Table 12f Collection fund adjustment account   

2014/15   2015/16 

£000  £000 

2,960 Balance at 1 April 2,425 

(535) Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income 
credited to the CIES is different from council tax income and 
non-domestic rates calculated for the year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

(877) 

2,425 Balance at 31 March 1,548 

 
13. Interest received and interest paid 
 
The cash flow for operating activities includes the following items: 
 

2014/15   2015/16 
£000  £000 

430 Interest and dividends received 542 

430   542 

 
14.  Amounts reported for resource allocation decision 
 
The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the CIES is that specified by the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16.  However, decisions about resource allocation are 
taken by the council on the basis of budget reports analysed across services.  These reports are 
prepared on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements.  In 
particular: 
 

 No charges are made in relation to capital expenditure (whereas depreciation, revaluation 
and impairment losses in excess of the balance on the revaluation reserve and 
amortisations are charged to services in the CIES); 

 
 The cost of retirement benefits is based on cash flows (payment of employer’s pensions 

contributions) rather than current service cost of benefits accrued in the year; 
 

 Expenditure on some support services is budgeted for centrally and not charged to 
services. 

 
The income and expenditure of the council’s principal services recorded in the budget reports for 
the year is as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 185

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 43 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 14a Income and expenditure of principal services in budget format   

2014/15 Service Group 2015/16 

Gross 
exp 

Gross 
inc 

Net 
exp  

Gross 
exp 

Gross 
inc Net exp 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 

684 (144) 540 Strategic management board 610 (91) 519 

7,094 (2,079) 5,015 Corporate strategy 7,232 (2,062) 5,170 

1,211 (1,116) 95 Development & housing 1,232 (525) 707 

2,200 (2,786) (586) Economy, leisure & property 1,567 (3,258) (1,691) 

30,944 (28,806) 2,138 Finance 31,497 (29,280) 2,217 

3,273 (1,520) 1,753 HR, IT and technical 3,377 (1,684) 1,693 

2,146 (1,007) 1,139 Legal & democratic 2,211 (1,360) 851 

3,349 (2,602) 747 Planning 3,951 (2,544) 1,407 

50,901 (40,060) 10,841 Direct service expenditure 51,677 (40,804) 10,873 

 
Reconciliation to the net expenditure in the CIES 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the income and expenditure of principal services in 
budget format analysis reconciles to the net cost of services per in the CIES.  
 

Table 14b Reconciliation to net cost of services 

2014/15  2015/16 

£000  £000 

10,841 Net direct service expenditure per budget format 
analysis 

10,873 

6,028 amounts not included in the analysis but included in the CIES 6,519 

(1,414) amounts included in the analysis but not included in the CIES (1,421) 

15,455 Net cost of services per the CIES 15,971 

 
Reconciliation to subjective analysis 
 
This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of service income and expenditure relate 
to a subjective analysis of the surplus or deficit on the provision of services included in the CIES. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 186

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 44 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
15. Members’ allowances 
 
The council paid the following amounts to members of the council during the year. 
 

2014/15 
Members' allowance 

2015/16 

£000 £000 

202 Basic allowance 177 

75 Special responsibility allowance 95 

10 Expenses 9 

287   281 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
17 For details of restatement see note 25 
18 The comparative figures for 2014/15 have been updated to include £54,000 of expenditure relating 

to a long lease reclassified in the prior period.  

 

Table 14c Reconciliation to subjective analysis 

2014/15  2015/16 
Service analysis 

restated17 
 Service analysis 

£000  £000 

(40,060) Gross service income (see table 14a) (40,804) 
(468) Interest receivable and similar income (542) 

(43,456) Taxation and nonspecific grant incomes (38,318) 
0 Section 106 revenue receipts 0 

858 Allocation of recharges 1,445 

(167) Receipt on disposal of non-current assets (1,052) 
0 Gain on disposal of investment properties  

(47) Revaluation of equity loans in year (24) 
0 Revaluation of assets (2,319) 

302 Other service income 93 

(83,038) Total income (81,521) 

50,901 Gross service expenditure (see table 14a) 51,677 
3,075 Parish council precepts and other grants 3,147 

0 Payments to the government housing capital receipts pool 0 
37 Loss on disposal of investments 0 
10 Cost of disposal of non-current assets 0 

(858) Allocation of recharges (1,445) 
0 Icelandic bank investment - impairment 0 

20,489 Taxation and nonspecific grant incomes 20,880 
2,667 Depreciation, amortisation, revaluation and impairment  1,500 
(302) Other service expenses (115) 

930 Employee expenses 1,031 
116 Section 106 expenditure 828 
54 Expenditure written off as a result of long lease 

reclassification in 2014/15 
0 

1,354 Revenue expenditure funded by capital under statute18 2,195 

78,473 Total operating expenses 79,698 

(4,565) (Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services (1,823) 

Page 187

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 45 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

16. Employees benefits 
 
Officers’ remuneration 
 
A senior employee is one who earns a salary in excess of £150,000 (there are none of these in the 
council), or holds a designated position (with a salary in excess of £50,000) – these are detailed in 
the table below: 
 

Table 16a Senior officers emoluments       

Post title Financial  
year 

Salary 
(including 

fees & 
allowances) 

Expenses Total 
remuneration 

excluding 
pension 

contributions 

Pension 
contributions 

Total 
remuneration 

including 
pension 

contributions 

   £ £ £ £ £ 

Head of paid 
service 

2015/16 134,919 1,435 136,354 16,595 152,949 

  2014/15 132,274 270 132,544 16,270 148,814 

Chief finance 
officer (section 
151 officer) 

2015/16 
 

2014/15 

77,824 
 

77,824 

2,545 
 

450 

80,369 
 

78,274 

9,572 
 

9,572 

89,941 
 

87,846 

Monitoring 
officer 

2015/16 79,623 231 79,854 9,794 89,648 

  2014/15 79,623 69 79,692 9,794 89,486 

 
The chief finance officer and monitoring officer are also heads of service. 
 

Table 16b Spot pay point - strategic director and heads of service 

2014/15 
£   

2015/16 
£ 

101,115 Strategic directors 103,137 

75,900 Heads of service 77,418 

 
In total the council employed two strategic directors and seven heads of service.  In 2015/16, 
these nine posts were shared on a 50:50 basis with South Oxfordshire District Council; therefore 
the council only incurred 50 per cent of the costs shown above. 
The council is also obliged to disclose the numbers of other employees that were paid a salary in 
excess of £50,000 (these numbers do not include the senior officers detailed above).  The number 
of employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension contributions, was £50,000 or 
more in bands of £5,000 were: 
 

Table 16c Employee remuneration over £50,000     

Number of VWHDC employees     

Shared with 
SODC 

2014/15 

VWHDC 
only 2014/15 

Remuneration band 
£ 

Shared with 
SODC 

2015/16 

VWHDC 
only 

2015/16 

2 1 50,000 - 54,999 2 0 

1 0 55,000 - 59,999 1 1 

1 0 60,000 - 64,999 1 0 

 
Under the shared working arrangements, the council recharged a total of £1.90 million of its salary 
costs to South Oxfordshire District Council, which in turn recharged £3.98 million of its salary costs 
to this council. 
 
 Page 188

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 46 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Termination benefits 
 
The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other 
redundancies are set out in the table below: 
 

Table 16d Exit packages                 

Exit package cost band 
(including special 

payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 

redundancies 

Number of 
other 

departures 
agreed 

Total 
number of 

exit 
packages by 

cost band 

Total cost of 
exit packages 
in each band 

 £ 

  
2014/ 

15 
2015/ 

16 
2014/ 

15 
2015/ 

16 
2014/ 

15 
2015/ 

16 
2014/ 

15 
2015/ 

16 

£0 - £20,000 0 0 1 0 1 0 11,500 0 

£70,000 - £75,000 0 0 1 0 1 0 72,619 0 

Total 0 0 2 0 2 0 84,119 0 

 
Post-employment benefits – Defined benefit pension schemes 
 
Participation in pension schemes 
 
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the council makes contributions 
towards the cost of post-employment benefits.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable 
until employees retire, the council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be 
disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
The council participates in The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  The LGPS is a 
defined statutory scheme administered in accordance with the Local Government Scheme 
regulations 2013, is contracted out of the State Second Pension and currently provides benefits 
based on career average revalued salary and length of service on retirement.   
 
The administering authority for the Fund is Oxfordshire County Council.  The Pension Fund 
Committee oversees the management of the Fund whilst the day to day fund administration is  
undertaken by a team within the administering authority.  Where appropriate some functions are 
delegated to the Fund’s professional advisers. 
 
As administering authority to the Fund, Oxfordshire County Council, after consultation with the 
Fund Actuary and other relevant parties, is responsible for the preparation and maintenance of the 
Funding Strategy Statement and the Statement of Investment Principles.  These should be 
amended when appropriate based on the Fund’s performance and funding. 
 
Contributions are set every three years as a result of the actuarial valuation of the Fund required 
by the Regulations.  The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried out as at 31 March  
2016 and will set contributions for the period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020.  There are no 
minimum funding requirements in the LGPS but the contributions are generally set to target a 
funding level of 100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions. 
 
On the Employer’s withdrawal from the Fund, a cessation valuation will be carried out in 
accordance with Regulation 64 of the LGPS Regulations 2013 which will determine the termination 
contribution due by the Employer, on a set of assumptions deemed appropriate by the Fund 
Actuary. 
 
This is a funded defined benefit career, meaning that the council and employees pay contributions 
into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension’s liabilities with investment 

Page 189

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 47 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

assets.  The fund has an independent global custodian, BNP Paribas, whose main duties include 
the safekeeping of the fund's investments, the collection of income and the execution of corporate 
actions, such as company mergers or takeovers.  
 
In addition arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits are awarded upon 
early retirement. This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement under which liabilities are 
recognised when awards are made.  However, there are no investment assets built up to meet 
these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet actual pension’s payments as they 
fall due 
 
In general, participating in a defined benefit pension scheme means that the Employer is exposed 
to a number of risks: 
 
 Investment risk. The Fund holds investment in asset classes, such as equities, which have 

volatile market values and while these assets are expected to provide real returns over the 
long-term, the short-term volatility can cause additional funding to be required if a deficit 
emerges.  
 

 Interest rate risk. The Fund’s liabilities are assessed using market yields on high quality 
corporate bonds to discount future liability cashflows.  As the Fund holds assets such as 
equities the value of the assets and liabilities may not move in the same way.  
 

 Inflation risk. All of the benefits under the Fund are linked to inflation and so deficits may 
emerge to the extent that the assets are not linked to inflation.  
 

 Longevity risk. In the event that the members live longer than assumed a deficit will emerge in 
the Fund. There are also other demographic risks.  

 
In addition, as many unrelated employers participate in the Oxfordshire County Council Pension 
Fund, there is an orphan liability risk where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient assets 
to cover their pension obligations so that the difference may fall on the remaining employers. 
All of the risks above may also benefit the Employer e.g. higher than expected investment returns 
or employers leaving the Fund with excess assets which eventually get inherited by the remaining 
employers. 
 
These risks are also mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the 
general fund the amounts required by statute. 
 
Transactions relating to retirement benefits 
 
The cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the reported cost of services when they are earned 
by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.  However, the 
charge made against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-
employment / retirement benefits is reversed out of the general fund via the movement in reserves 
statement.  The following transactions have been made in the CIES and the general fund balance 
via the movement in reserves statement during the year: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 190

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 48 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 16e Transactions relating to retirement benefits   

2014/15 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

2015/16 

£000 £000 

  Cost of Services:   
957  Service cost 1,158  

48  Administrative expenses 31  
  Financing and investment income and expenditure   

1,339  Net interest expense 1,250  

2,344  Total post-employment benefit charged to the surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services 

2,439  

  Other post-employment benefit charged to the CIES   
  Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:   

(3,422) Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net 
interest expense) 

1,626  

11,191  Actual gain and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions (4,495) 
(40) Other (41) 

0  Actuarial gains and losses 0  

10,073  Total post-employment benefit charges to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement 

(471) 

  Movement in Reserves Statement   
(2,344) Reversal of net charges made to the surplus or deficit for the 

Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in accordance with 
the code 

(2,439) 

  Actual amount charged against the general fund balance for pensions 
in the year: 

  

1,414  Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 1,408  

 
Pensions assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 
 
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its 
defined benefit plans is as follows: 
 

Table 16f Pension assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet 

2014/15   2015/16 

£000   £000 

51,127 Fair value of employer assets 49,668 

(88,712) Present value of funded liabilities (85,556) 

(2,189) Present value of unfunded liabilities (2,007) 

(39,774) Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (37,895) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 191

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 49 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 16g Reconciliation of the movements in fair value of the scheme asset 

LGPS   LGPS 

2014/15  2015/16 

£000   £000 

46,515  Opening balance at 1 April 51,127  

0  Expected rate of return 0  
2,031  Interest on assets 1,614  
3,422  Return on assets less interest (1,626) 

0  Other actuarial gains / (losses) 0  
0  Total actuarial gains/(losses) 0  

(48) Administration expenses (31) 
639  Settlement prices received / paid 0  

1,257  Employer contributions 1,256  
283  Contributions by scheme participants 290  

(2,972) Benefits paid (2,962) 

51,127  Closing present value of scheme assets 49,668  

 

Table 16h Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities     

Funded 
liabilities 
2014/15 

£000 

Unfunded 
liabilities 
2014/15 

£000   

Funded 
liabilities 
2015/16 

£000 

Unfunded 
liabilities 
2015/16 

£000 

(75,488) (2,142) Opening balance at 1 April (88,712) (2,189) 

(960) 0 Current service cost (1,158) 0 
(3,279) (91) Interest cost (2,796) (68) 

(283) 0 Contributions by scheme participants (290) 0 
(11,038) (153) Gain and losses on changes in financial 

assumptions 
4,495 0 

 
(636) 40 Other 41 0 
2,972 157 Benefits paid 2,962 152 

(88,712) (2,189) Closing present value of liabilities (85,458) (2,105) 

 
The discretionary benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local 
Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories.  
 

 
The council’s share of the assets of the fund is approximately 3 per cent.  
 
Of the equities allocation above, 32.8 per cent are UK investments, 31.2 per cent are overseas 
investments. 48.7 per cent of equities are listed and 51.3 per cent are not.  

Table 16i Breakdown of fund assets at fair value   

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

34,508 Equity instruments 31,771 
3,155 Property 3,946 

  Bonds:   
6,087 Government bonds 6,583 
1,876 Corporate bonds 1,747 

  Other investment funds:   
1,725 LLPs 1,957 

15 Hedge funds 0 
2,369 Diversified Growth Fund 2,179 
1,392 Cash and cash equivalents 1,485 

51,127 Total 49,668 

Page 192

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 50 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The Gilts allocation consists of 5.4 per cent in UK fixed interest government securities, 2.7 per 
cent overseas fixed interest government securities and 5.2 per cent in UK index-linked 
government securities.  
 
The other bonds allocation consists of 3.1 per cent in UK corporate bonds and 0.4 per cent in 
overseas corporate bonds.  
 
The majority of scheme assets have quoted prices in active markets.  The proportion of assets 
held that do are; equities 49 per cent, government bonds 100 per cent, corporate bonds 100 per 
cent, cash and cash equivalents 100 per cent.   
 
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities 
 
To assess the value of the Council’s liabilities at 31 March 2016, we have rolled forward the value 
of the Employer’s Liabilities calculated for the funding valuation as at 31 March 2013.  The full 
actuarial valuation involved projecting future cashflows to be paid from the Fund and placing a 
value on them.  These cashflows include pensions currently being paid to members of the Fund as 
well as pensions (and lump sums) that may be payable in the future to members of the fund or the 
dependants.  These pensions are linked to inflation and will normally be payable on retirement for 
the life of the member or a dependant following a member’s death. 
 
To calculate the asset share we have rolled forward the assets allocated to the Council at 31 
March 2013 allowing for investment returns (estimated where necessary), contributions paid into, 
and estimated benefits paid from, the Fund by and in respect of the Employer and it’s employees. 
We have adopted a set of demographic assumptions that are consistent with those used for the 
most recent Fund valuation, which was carried out as at 31 March 2013.  The post retirement 
mortality tables adopted are the S1PA tables with a multiplier of 95 per cent.  These base tables  
are then projected using the CMI 2012 Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5 
per cent per annum. 
 

Table 16j Principal actuarial assumptions   

2014/15   2015/16 

  Long-term expected rate of return on assets in the scheme:   
3.2% All assets 3.5% 

  Mortality assumptions   
  Longevity at 65 for current pensioners - retiring today:   

23.3yrs  Men 23.3yrs 

25.7yrs  Women 25.8yrs 
  Longevity at 65 for future pensioners - retiring in 20 years:   

25.5yrs  Men 25.6yrs 

28.0yrs  Women 28.1yrs 
  Other assumptions   

3.1% Inflation - RPI 3.2% 
2.3% Inflation - CPI 2.3% 
4.1% Rate of general increase in salaries 4.1% 
2.3% Rate of increase to pensions 2.3% 
3.2% Discount rate 3.5% 

  
The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in 
the table above.  The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably 
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for 
each change that the assumption analysed changes while all the other assumptions remain 
constant.  The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases for  
men and women. In practice this is unlikely to be correct, and changes in some of the assumptions 
may be interrelated.  The estimates in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting 
policies for then scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method.  The methods 

Page 193

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 51 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did not change from 
those used in the previous period. 
Other assumptions are that: 
 

 Members will exchange half of their commutable pension for cash at retirement; 
 

 Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which will be the 
pension weighted average tranche retirement age; and 
 

 10 per cent of active members will take up the option under the new LGPS to pay 50 per 
cent of contributions for 50 per cent of benefits. 

 

 
* Pensions increases and deferred revaluation are linked to inflation (CPI) 
 
Impact on the council’s cash flows 
 
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as 
possible, at a reasonable cost to the scheme employers and taxpayers, whilst ensuring the overall 
solvency of the fund.  There are no minimum funding requirements but contributions are generally 
set to target a funding level of 100 per cent.  Funding levels are monitored regularly and the next 
triennial valuation is due to be completed on 31 March 2016. 
 
The scheme will need to take account of the national changes to the scheme under the Public 
Pensions Services Act 2013.  Under the Act, the Local Government Pension Scheme in England 
and Wales may not provide benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014.  The Act provides 
for scheme regulations to be made within a common framework, to establish new career average 
re-valued earnings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits. 
 
The actuarial estimate of the duration of the council’s liabilities is 17 years. 
 
The council anticipates paying £1.3 million contributions to the scheme in 2016/2017. 
 

17. External audit costs 
 
The council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the statement of accounts, 
certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the 
council’s external auditors. 
 
In 2015/16 external audit services were provided by Ernst & Young LLP (EY) 
 
 
 

Table 16k Sensitivity analysis     

  

Increase in 
Assumption 

2015/16 

Decrease in 
Assumption 

2015/16 
  £000 £000 

Mortality (increase or decrease in 1 year) 2,752 (2,665) 

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1 per 
cent) 

95 (95) 

Rate of increase in pensions and deferred revaluation (increase 
or decrease by 0.1 per cent)* 

1,380 (1,358) 

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 
0.1 per cent) 

(1,434) 1,460 

Page 194

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 52 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

2014/15 

Audit Fees 

2015/16 

£000 £000 

58 Fees payable with regard to external audit services 
carried out by the appointed auditor for the year. 

50 

16 Fees payable with regard to external auditor for the 
certification of grant claims and returns for the year. 

12 

74   62 

  
18. Grant income 

 
The council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the CIES in 2015/16. 
 

2014/15   2015/16 

£000   £000 

  Credited to taxation and nonspecific grant income   

2,106 Retained business rates 2,255 

8,625 Council tax income 8,858 

58 Council tax freeze grant 59 

6 Council tax reliefs 8 

127 Developers and other capital contributions 1,104 

523 Disabled facilities grant 583 

7,000 Enterprise zones commercial capacity (Capital) 0 
2,094 New homes bonus 2,830 

2,428 Revenue support grant 1,741 

22,967 Total 17,438 

  Credited to Services   

0 Abingdon Partnerships 18 

188 Business rates collection allowance 185 

26 Community right to challenge/bid 0 

49 Electoral reform 43 

12 Efficiency and transformation business rates 0 

535 Housing zones 0 

425 Housing benefit - admin 376 

27,425 Housing benefit - subsidy 27,795 

87 Localising council tax admin subsidy 82 

71 New burdens revenue and other grants 131 

55 Neighbourhood planning  75 

28 Partnership & community safety 10 

0 Universal credit 26 

28,901   28,741 

 
19. Related parties 
 
The council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals 
that have the potential to control or influence the council or to be controlled or influenced by the 
council.  Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent to which the council 
might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the 
ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the council.  Related parties include: 
Central government.  Central government has effective control over the general operations of the 
council – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the council operates, 
provides a large proportion of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of 

Page 195

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 53 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

the transactions that the council has with other parties (e.g. housing benefits).  Grants received 
from government are shown in note x above. 
 
Precepts.  Precept transactions in relation to Oxfordshire County Council, Thames Valley Police 
Authority and the various town and parish councils, are shown within a note to the collection fund. 
  
Members of the council.  Councillors have direct control over the council’s financial and 
operating policies. During the year no councillors have undertaken any declarable, material 
transactions with the council.  Details of any transactions would be recorded in the register of 
members’ Interests, open to public inspection at the council’s offices. This is in addition to a 
specific declaration obtained from all councillors in respect of related party transactions.  One 
member has declared an interest in the following organisation: 
 
 Faringdon Community Bus 

 
Members represent the council on various organisations. Appointments are reviewed annually, 
unless a specific termination date for the term of office applies.  None of these appointments 
places the member in a position to exert undue influence or control. 
 
Officers of the council.  The senior officers of the council have control over the day to day 
management of the council and all heads of service and management team members have been 
asked to declare any related party transactions.  In 2015/16 nothing was declared.   
 
Other organisations.  The council awards grants to support a number of voluntary or charitable 
bodies and individuals.  It does not attempt to exert control through this. 
 

20.  Capital expenditure and capital financing 
 
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including 
the value of assets acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been 
used to finance it.  Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to 
revenue as assets are used by the council, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the 
council that has yet to be financed.   
 

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

0  Opening capital financing requirement 0  

  Capital investment   

568  Property, plant and equipment 410  

72  Intangible assets 14  

1,354  REFCUS and deferred charges 2,195  

  Sources of finance   

(1,402) Capital receipts (1,911) 

(592) Government grants and other contributions (708) 

0  Closing capital financing requirement 0  

0  Increase/(decrease) in capital financing requirement 0  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 196

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 54 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

21. Leases 
 
Council as lessee 
 
Finance leases – the council has no finance leases. 
 
Operating leases – the council has no material operating leases.  
 
Council as lessor 
 
Finance leases - In July 2012 the council leased out the Abbey Shopping Centre, to Scottish 
Widows Investment Partnership (SWIP) on a 250 year finance lease, Tilsley Park, to Abingdon 
School for 125 years and The Upper Reaches Hotel to Contemporary Hotels Ltd for 125. 
 
The council has a gross investment in the lease, made up of the minimum lease payments 
expected to be received over the remaining term and the residual value anticipated for the 
property when the lease comes to an end.  The minimum lease payments comprise settlement of 
the long-term debtor for the interest in the property acquired by the lessee and finance income that 
will be earned by the council in future years whilst the debtor remains outstanding. The gross 
investment is made up of the following amounts: 
 

Table 21a Interest in finance lease       

  

2014/15 
original 

£000 

2014/15 
restated 

£000 

2015/16 
£000 

Finance lease debtor (net present 
value of minimum lease payments): 

      

Current 0 0 0 

Non-current 2,626 4,968 5,251 

Unearned finance income 45,786 46,694 48,410 

Gross investment in the lease 48,412 51,662 53,661 

 
The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received over the 
following periods: 
 

Table 21b Minimum finance lease payments         

  

Gross investment in the 
lease 

Minimum lease payments 

  

2014/15 
original 

£000 

2014/15 
restated 

£000 

2015/16               
       

£000 

2014/15 
original 

£000 

2014/15 
restated 

£000 

2015/16 
       

£000 

Not later than 1 year 0 13 16 196 209 212 

Later than 1 year and 
not later than 5 years 

0 53 64 784 835 848 

Later than 5 years 2,626 4,902 5,171 44,806 45,650 47,350 

Total 2,626 4,968 5,251 45,786 46,694 48,410 

 
Operating leases – the council leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the 
following purposes: 
 

 for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local 
business, and 

 for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities and community centres. 

Page 197

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 55 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
 The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future 

years are: 
 

Table 21c Future minimum lease payments receivable   

2014/15 
original 

£000 

2014/15 
restated19 

£000   

31 March 
2016 
£000 

1,204 972 Not later than one year 1,873 

3,908 2,980 Later than one year and not later than five years 4,474 

2,942 2,941 Later than five years 2,517 

 
The minimum lease payments receivable do not include rents that are contingent on events taking 
place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.  In 2015/16, no 
contingent rents were receivable by the council (2014/15 nil also). 
 
22. Contingent liabilities 
 
At 31 March 2016, the council had identified the following contingent liabilities: 
 

 Compensation Claims for injury and or damage.  The majority of claims for compensation 
are individually immaterial.  They relate to personal injuries sustained where the Authority is 
alleged to be at fault (for example, through a failure to repair a pavement properly).  
Provision has not been made for such claims as the authority’s liability is limited to the 
individual excess on the policy, which in most cases is £5,000.  Until claims are settled by 
the authority's insurers, the cost of the excess cannot be recognised.  It is also considered 
that collectively the sum of these claims in any one year is not material. 

 
23. Contingent assets 
 
At 31 March 2016, the council had no contingent assets. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
19 Details of restatement can be found in note 25 Page 198

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 56 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

24. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments  
 
The council’s activities expose it to a variety of risks.  The main risks are: 
 

 Credit risk -  the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the council; 
 

 Liquidity risk - the possibility that the council might not have funds available to meet its 
commitments to make payments; 
 

 Re-financing risk -  the possibility that the council might be required to renew a financial 
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms; 
 

 Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the council as a result of 
changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements. 

 
The council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial 
markets, and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund 
services. 
 
The central treasury team carry out the procedure for risk management which are set out in the 
approved policies which cover specific areas such as interest rate risk, credit risk and the  
investment of surplus cash. The procedures are set out through a legal framework based on the 
Local Government Act 2003 and associated regulations.  These require the council to comply with  
the CIPFA prudential code, the CIPFA code of practice on treasury management in the public 
services and investment guidance issued through the Act. 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to 
the council’s customers. 
 
The risk is managed through the council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that 
deposits are only placed with financial institutions that meet the identified minimum credit criteria, 
as laid down by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors credit ratings services.  The strategy also 
sets out the maximum amounts and time limits that an investment can be made with a financial 
institution within each category. 
 
The credit criteria in respect of financial assets held by the authority are as detailed as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 199

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 57 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 24a Credit criteria           

Financial Asset 
Minimum Fitch 

Rating Asset Limit per Maturity 

Category (or equivalent) Base Counterparty Limit 

  
Short 
Term 

Long 
Term       

Banks with a minimum rating 
of 

F1+ AA-   £10.0m 5 years 

F1 A-  £7.5m 2 year 

  F2 BBB  £5.00 1 year 

Banks - part nationalised UK    £15.0m 3 years 

Banks - eligible institutions n/a n/a  £5.0m 2 years 

Banks - house bank n/a n/a   £5.0m 3 months 

Building Societies with assets 
greater than 

n/a n/a £5,000m £5.0m 12 months 

n/a n/a £3,000m £3.5m 12 months 

n/a n/a £1,000m £3.0m 10 months 

Money Market Funds (CNAV)   AAA   £20.0m Liquid 

Enhanced cash funds (VNAV)  AAA / V1  £15.0m Variable 

UK Local Authorities n/a n/a  £20.0m 25 years 

Corporate Bonds  AA-  £5.0m Variable 

UK Government - Gilts UK sovereign  Unlimited 25 years 

UK Government - DMADF UK sovereign  Unlimited 6 months 

Pooled property funds n/a n/a  £3.0m Variable 

Direct property investment n/a n/a  Unlimited Variable 

Supranationals  AAA  £10.0m 10 years 

Share capital/Equities n/a n/a  £3.0m Variable 

Managed Bond Funds n/a n/a   £15.0m Variable 

 
The full annual investment strategy for 2015/16 was approved by full council on 18 February 2015 
and is available on the council’s website. 
Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past 
experience and other factors, with individual credit limits being set in accordance with internal 
ratings in accordance with parameters set by the council. 
 
The councils maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building 
societies cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to repay the principal 
sum will be specific to each institution.  Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such 
entities to be unable to meet their commitments.  A risk of non-recoverability applies to all the 
councils’ deposits but there was no evidence at 31 March 2016 that this was likely to crystallise. 
 
The credit limits were not exceeded during the reporting period and the council does not expect 
any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to deposits and bonds. 
 
The council does not generally allow credit for its customers.  A provision is made for bad debt 
based on the debtors’ information at the year end.  The ‘past due’ amount is analysed below.  
During the reporting period the council held no collateral as security. 
 
Table 24b below analyses the short-term debt figure by age. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 200

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 58 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Table 24b Short term debtors aged debt analysis 
Total  
£000 

Less than three months 6,639 

Three months to six months 378 

Six months to one year 694 

Over one year 1083 

Total 8,794 

 
Statutory debts are included in the figures above to enable comparison with the short term debtors 
total as shown in the balance sheet and in note 7. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
The council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures set out in the 
treasury management strategy, as well as comprehensive cash management system that seeks to 
ensure that cash is available as needed.  If unexpected movements happen, the council is able to 
access borrowing from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. 
 
The council is required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.  Therefore there is 
no significant risk that the council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under 
financial instruments. 
 
The council has no debt and therefore is not exposed to refinancing risk of loans at this time.  All 
trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year. 
 
Refinancing and maturity risk 
 
The council maintains an investment portfolio.  There is a longer-term risk to the council which 
relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature. 
 
Treasury indicator limits placed on investments for over one year in duration are used to manage 
this risk.  The council approved treasury and investment strategies address the main risks and the 
central treasury team manage the operational risks within the approved limits.  This includes 
monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for the 
council’s day to day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer term investments provide stability 
of maturities in relation to longer term cash flow needs. 
 
The maturity analysis of financial assets, excluding sums due from customers is as follows: 
 

Table 24c Refinancing and maturity risk   

31 March 2015   31 March 2016 

£000   £000 

23,680  Less than 1 year 26,820  

0  Between one and two years 2,000  

6,473  More than three years 6,581  

30,153  Total 35,401  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Market risk Page 201

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 59 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 
a) Interest rate risk.  The council is exposed to some risk in terms of its exposure to interest 
rate movements on its investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the 
council, depending on how variable and fixed interest rates move across differing financial 
instrument periods.  A rise in interest rates would have the following effects: 
 

 investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services will rise 

 
 investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall. 

 
Changes in interest receivable on variable rate investments will be posted to the surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services and affect the general fund balance.   
 
The council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk.  The Annual Treasury 
Management Strategy draws together council’s prudential and treasury indicators and its expected 
treasury operations, including forecast interest rate movements. 
 
According to this assessment strategy, at 31 March 2016, if interest rates had been one per cent 
higher with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would be: 
 

Table 24d Interest rate risk   

2014/15   2015/16 
£000   £000 

(62) Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (38) 

(62) Impact on surplus or deficit on the provisions of services (38) 

 
The impact of a one per cent fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being 
reversed. 
 
b)   Price risk.  The council, excluding the pension fund, holds an investment in a pooled 
property fund with shares to the value of £2.6 million.  Whilst this investment holding is generally 
for interest earning potential, the council is exposed to losses and gains arising from the 
movement in prices of the shares held. 
 
The shares are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.  This means that all movements in 
price will impact on gains and losses recognised in the available for sale financial instruments 
reserve. 
 
A movement of five per cent in the price of shares (positive or negative) would result in a £0.1 
million gain or loss being recognised in the available for sale financial instruments reserve. 
 
The council is not in a position to limit its exposure to price movements by further diversifying its 
portfolio. 
 
25. Prior period adjustments  
 
The long lease of Tilsley Park was entered into in 2014/15. The duration of the lease is greater 
than 50 years and therefore it should be treated as a disposal for accounting purposes.  
Expenditure relating to Tilsley park was written off as part of this process in 2014/15 leading to a 
reduction in net assets of £54,000 
 
The table below details the impact of this restatement on the comparative figures for 2014/15.  
 

Page 202

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 60 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

2014/15 
original   

2014/15 
restated 

£000   £000 

 Comprehensive income and expenditure statement  

 Cost of services  

3,450 Cultural and related services 3,504 

15,455 Cost of services – restated total 15,509 

2,608 Total comprehensive income and expenditure  - restated 
total 

2,662 

   

 Balance sheet  

 Long term assets  

33,313 Property, plant & equipment 30,557 

2,922 Long term debtors 5,621 

63,594 Long term assets – restated total 63,539 

   

41,833 Net assets – restated total 41,779 

   

 Unusable reserves  

(4,333) Revaluation reserve (4,142) 

(49,867) Capital adjustment account  (47,305) 

(2,870) Deferred capital receipts reserve (5,569) 

(15,225) Unusable reserves (15,171) 

   

(41,833) Total reserves – restated total (41,779) 

 
26. Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted 
 
Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the 
Code), the council is required to disclose information setting out the impact of an accounting 
change required by a new accounting standard that has been issued but not yet adopted by the 
Code.  
 
This applies to the adoption of the following new or amended standards within the 2016/17 code. 
 

 IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.  This standard provides guidance on the form 
of the financial statements.  The “Telling the story” review of the presentation of the 
council’s financial statements as well as the December 2014 changes to IAS 1 under the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) Disclosure Initiative will result in changes 
to the format of the accounts in 2016/17.  The format of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the Movement in Reserves Statement will change and 
introduce a new Expenditure and Funding Analysis. 

 
Other minor changes due to Annual improvement to IFRSs cycles, IFRS11 Joint Arrangements, 
IAS 16 Property, Plant, Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets and IAS 19 Employee benefits, 
are minor and are not expected to have a material effect on the council’s Statement of Accounts. 
 
27. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
 
In applying the accounting policies set out on pages 69-84, the council has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.  The 
critical judgements made in the statement of accounts are: 
 

Page 203

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 61 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Leases 
The council has examined its leases, and classified them as either operational or finance leases. 
In some cases the lease transaction is not always conclusive and the council uses judgement in 
determining whether the lease is a finance lease arrangement that transfers substantially all the  
risks and rewards incidental to ownership.  In reassessing the lease the council has estimated the 
implied interest rate within the lease to calculate interest and principal payments. 
 
Funding 
 
There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, 
the council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the 
assets of the council might be impaired as a result of a need to close facilities and reduce levels of 
service provision. 
 
Investment Properties 
Investment properties have been estimated using the identifiable criteria under IAS 40 of being 
held for rental income or for capital appreciation.  These properties have been assessed using 
these criteria, which is subject to interpretation. 
 
28. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation 

uncertainty 
 
Business rates 
 
Since the introduction of Business Rates Retention Scheme effective from 1 April 2013, Local 
Authorities are liable for successful appeals against business rates charged to businesses in 
2015/16 and earlier financial years in their proportionate share.  Therefore, a provision has been 
recognised for the best estimate of the amount that businesses have been overcharged up to 31 
March 2016.  The estimate has been calculated using the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) ratings 
list of appeals and the analysis of successful appeals to date when providing the estimate of total 
provision up to and including 31 March 2016.  The council’s share of the balance of business rates 
appeals provision at this date amounted to £1.7 million.  This has increased by £0.3 million from 
the previous year. 
 
Property, plant and equipment 
Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of 
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets.  If the council is 
unable to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance this could bring into doubt the 
useful lives currently assigned to assets.  If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation 
increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.  It is estimated that the annual charge for 
buildings would increase in these circumstances. 
 
Debt impairment 
 
At 31 March 2016 the council had a balance on short-term debtors of £910.0 million.  A review of 
significant balances suggested that an impairment of doubtful debts of £1.2 million was 
appropriate.  If collection rates were to deteriorate an increase in the amount of the impairment of 
the doubtful debts would be required. 
 
Pensions 
The estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements 
relating to the discounts used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in 
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.  A firm of consulting 
actuaries (Barnett Waddington) is engaged (through Oxfordshire County Pension Fund) to provide 

Page 204

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 62 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

the council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.  Details of the pension 
liabilities are in note 16 on pages 48-53. 
 
29. Material items of income and expenditure 
 
The council’s accounts include the following items of material income and expenditure: 
 

  £000 

Material items (of over £1 million):   

Expenditure items 
No material amounts over £1 million 

Total material expenditure items 0 

Income items   
Proceeds for sale of an investment property 1,489 
Change in fair value of investment properties 2,319 
Revaluation of other land and buildings 1,152 

Total material income items 4,960 

 
30. Events after the balance sheet date 

 
There are no material events after the balance sheet date. 

Page 205

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 63 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Collection fund account 

 
2014/15 

£000    
2015/16 

£000  
2015/16 

£000  
2015/16 

£000  
Notes 

Total 
  

Council 
tax 

NDR Total 
 

  INCOME        

(74,706) Council tax payers (77,621) 0 (77,621)  

  Transfers from general fund:        

(51,452)   - Income from business ratepayers 0 (52,229) (52,229)  

(1)   - Council tax reduction scheme grant 0 0 0  

(126,159)   (77,621) (52,229) (129,850)  

  EXPENDITURE        

  Precepts and demands:        

57,943   - Oxfordshire County Council 60,312 0 60,312  

7,696   - Police and Crime Commissioner 8,011 0 8,011  

8,594   - Vale of White Horse District Council 8,828 0 8,828  

  Business Rates:        

0   - Payment to National Pool 0 0 0  

25,733   - Payments to Government 0 24,907 24,907  

5,147   - Payments to Oxfordshire County 0 4,981 4,981  

  Council        

20,586   - Payments to VWHDC 0 19,925 19,925  

188   - Cost of Collection 0 185 185  

  Bad and doubtful debts:        

414   - Provision for bad debts 181 242 423 3 

(2,210)   - Provision for appeals 0 688 688 3 

124,091   77,332 50,928 128,260  

(2,068) (Surplus)/deficit for the year (289) (1,301) (1,590)  

           

  COLLECTION FUND BALANCE        

6,010 Balance brought forward at 1 April (2,256) 6,199 3,943  

(2,068) (Surplus)/deficit for the year, as above (289) (1,301) (1,590)  

3,942 Balance carried forward 31 March (2,545) 4,898 2,353  

           

  Allocated to:        

3,099  - Central Government 0 2,449 2,449  

(1,141)  - Oxfordshire County Council (1,990) 490 (1,500)  

(234)  - Police and Crime Commissioner (264) 0 (264)  

2,218  - Vale of White Horse District Council (291) 1,959 1,668  

3,942   (2,545) 4,898 2,353  

 
  

Page 206

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 64 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Notes to the collection fund account 

 
1. Business rates (Non Domestic Rates) 
 
Business rates are based on the rateable value of a property multiplied by a nationally determined 
rate (multiplier). The total amount collected by the council is paid into the national pool managed 
by central government. Each council then receives a redistributed amount from the pool based on 
an amount per head of population. 
 

    £ 

NDR rateable value as at 1 April 2015   141,262,359 

NDR rateable value as at 31 March 2016   142,705,075 

National multipliers: 2014/15 2015/16 

Small business non-domestic rating multiplier 47.1p 48.0p 

Non-domestic rating multiplier 48.2p 49.3p 

 
2. Council tax base calculation 
 
Council tax income is derived from charges according to the value of residential properties. 
Properties are classified into eight valuation bands. The council, as billing authority, calculates its 
tax base in accordance with governance regulations. The number of properties shown in the table 
below reflects the various discounts and exemptions allowed and a weighting is applied to 
calculate the equivalent band D dwellings. The tax base calculation is as follows:     
 

Band 
Number of 
properties 

Band multiplier Band D equivalent 

A 1,625 6/9 1,083 

B 5,484 7/9 4,265 

C 15,580 8/9 13,849 

D 11,810 9/9 11,810 

E 8,782 11/9 10,734 

F 4,907 13/9 7,088 

G 3,932 15/9 6,553 

H 423 18/9 846 

  52,543   56,228 

Discounts and exemptions   (8,969) 

Class O exempt properties   1,250 

Sub total     48,509 

Assumed losses on collection   (946) 

Council tax base     47,563 

 
3. Council tax/NDR bad debt provision and NDR provision for valuation appeals 
 
The collection fund account provides for bad debts on council tax arrears on the basis of prior 
years’ experience. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 207

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 65 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

2014/15 
Council tax  

2015/16 
£000 £000 

(1,420) Balance at 1 April (1,581) 

22 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 48 

(183) Net increase in provision (181) 

(1,581) Balance 31 March (1,714) 

 
The council’s proportion of these write offs and movement in provision are shown below. 
 

2014/15 
Council tax  

2015/16 
£000 £000 

(164) Balance at 1 April (181) 

3 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 6 

(20) Net increase in provisions during year (20) 

(181) Balance at 31 March (195) 

 
The collection fund account also provides for bad debt on NDR arrears. 
 

2014/15 
NDR  

2015/16 

£000 £000 

(561) Balance at 1 April (788) 

4 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 33 

(231) Net increase in provisions during year (242) 

(788) Balance 31 March (997) 

 
The council’s proportion of these write offs and movement in provision are shown below. 
 

2014/15 
NDR  

2015/16 
£000 £000 

(224) Balance at 1 April (315) 

2 (Write back)/write off of debt during year 13 

(93) Net increase in provisions during year (97) 

(315) Balance 31 March (399) 

 
The collection fund account also provides for provision for appeals against the rateable valuation 
set by the Valuation Office Agency not settled as at 31 March 2016.  
 

2014/15 
NDR 

2015/16 
£000 £000 

(5,861) Balance at 1 April (3,651) 

2,210 Net decrease/(increase) in provisions during year (688) 

(3,651) Balance 31 March (4,339) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 208

Agenda Item 7



Vale of White Horse District Council 66 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

The council’s proportion of this provision is shown below. 
 

2014/15 
NDR 

2015/16 
£000 £000 

(2,344) Balance at 1 April (1,460) 

884 Net decrease/(increase) in provisions during year (276) 

(1,460) Balance 31 March (1,736) 

Page 209

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 67 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Statement of accounting policies 

 

(i) General principles 
 
The statement of accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2015/16 financial year 
and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2016.  The council is required to prepare an annual 
statement of accounts by 30 June 2016 and for the accounts to be prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices.  These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local 
Council Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2015/16, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance 
issued under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the statement of accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
(ii) Accruals of income and expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made 
or received.  In particular: 
 
 revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the council transfers the significant risks 

and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the council; 

 
 revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the council can measure reliably 

the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the council; 

 
 supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap 

between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as 
inventories on the balance sheet; 

 
 expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 

recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made; 

 
 interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively 

as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract; and 

 
 where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 

paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet.  Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.  Cash equivalents are defined as 
follows: 

 
 cash and cash equivalents shall include bank overdrafts that are an integral part of the 

council’s cash management; 
Page 210

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 68 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investment purposes; 

 
 investments that can be liquidated or accessed within 30 days i.e. money market funds, call 

accounts and deposit accounts with a notice period of 30 days or less. 
 
Equity investments are excluded from the definition. 
 
(iv) Prior period adjustments, changes in accounting policies and estimates and errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a 
material error.  Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the 
current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or 
the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other 
events and conditions on the council’s financial position or financial performance.  Where a 
change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening 
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been 
applied.  Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
(v) Charges to revenue for non-current assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record 
the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 
 

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 
 

 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the revaluation reserve against which the losses can be written off; 
and 
 

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment 
losses or amortisations.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue 
towards the reduction in its overall borrowing required.  As at 31 March 2016 this council has no 
borrowing requirement, so this contribution is not required.  Depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the contribution in the general fund balance, 
by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
(vi) Employee benefits 
 
Benefits payable during employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.  They 
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and 
non-monetary benefits for current employees.  They are recognised as an expense for services in 
the year in which employees render service to the council.  An accrual is made for the cost of 
holiday entitlements and additional hours earned by employees but not taken as time off before 
the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.  The accrual is 
charged to surplus or deficit on the provision of services, but then reversed out through the MiRS 
so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue. 
 

Page 211

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 69 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Termination benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable either as a result of a decision by the council to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to 
accept voluntary redundancy. Such benefits are charged on an accruals basis to the non-
distributed costs line in the CIES when the council is demonstrably committed to the termination of 
the employment of an officer or group of officers or to making an offer to encourage voluntary 
redundancy. 
 
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the 
general fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or 
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
In the MIRS, appropriations are required to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for 
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 
 
 The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are 

included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an 
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned 
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, 
etc. and projections of projected earnings for current employees; 
 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
yield at the 17 year point on the Merill Lynch AA rated corporate bond yield curve which has 
been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 and with consideration of the duration of the 
Council’s liabilities.  This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date.   
 

 The assets of Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the council are included 
in the balance sheet at their fair value: 

 
- Quoted securities - current bid price 

 
- Unquoted securities - professional estimate 

 
- Unitised securities - current bid price 
 
- Property - market value. 

 
The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

 Service cost comprising: 
- current service cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this 

year - allocated in the CIES to the services for which the employees worked. 
- past service cost - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose 

effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the surplus or deficit 
on the provision of services in the CIES as part of non-distributed costs. 

- net interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (NDBL), i.e. net interest for the council – 
the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability that arises from the 
passage of time charged to the CIES – this is calculated by applying the discount rate 

Page 212

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 70 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net 
defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period – taking into account any changes in 
the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit 
payments. 

 
 Remeasurements comprising: 
 

- the return on scheme assets – excluding amounts included in the NDBL – charged to the 
pensions reserve as other CIES 

- actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the 
actuaries have updated their assumptions - charged to the pensions reserves as other 
CIES. 

 
 Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire County council pension fund - cash paid as employer’s 

contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense. 
 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the general fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the 
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  In the MiRS this 
means that there are appropriations to and from the pensions reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid a the year-end.   The 
negative balance that arises on the pensions reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to 
the general fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows 
rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 
 
Discretionary benefits 
 
The council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member 
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the 
same policies as are applied to the LGPS. 
 
(vii) Events after the balance sheet date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the statement of accounts is 
authorised for issue.  Two types of events can be identified: 
 
 Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the 

statement of accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and 
 Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the statement of 

accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a 
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated 
financial effect. 

 
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the statement of 
accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 213

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 71 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

(viii) Financial instruments 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are 
carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the income and expenditure account for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest 
for the instrument.  The only financial liabilities the council has are trade creditors.   
The council currently has no borrowings and has issued no bonds to bond holders. 
 
Financial assets 
 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 
 
 loans and receivables - assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted 

in an active market; and 
 

 available for sale assets - assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or 
determinable payments. 

 
Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value.  They 
are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  Annual credits to the financing and 
investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are based on the 
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  For 
most of the loans that the council has made, this means that the amount presented in the balance 
sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the 
CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 
 
However, if the council has made loans at less than market rates (soft loans), then a loss is 
recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that 
will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the 
outstanding principal.  Interest is credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure 
line in the CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the 
voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in 
the balance sheet.   
 
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the general fund balance is the interest 
receivable for the financial year.  However, the loss attributable to a loan of less than £20,000 is 
not material and at the current date the council has no material loans. 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made 
to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the financing and investment 
income and expenditure line in the CIES.  The impairment loss is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at 
the asset’s original effective interest rate.  This figure is shown in the accounts for trade debtors as 
a provision for bad and doubtful debts.  This provision is recalculated annually by applying an 
estimate of the proportion of debt in each category that is unlikely to be collectable based on past 
experience.  Debts which are known to be un-collectable are written off. 
 

Page 214

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 72 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the 
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES. 
 
Available-for-sale assets 
 
Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the balance sheet when the council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair 
value.  Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the financing and 
investment income and expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are based on the 
amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  Where 
there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the CIES when 
it becomes receivable by the council. 
 
Assets are maintained in the balance sheet at fair value.  Values are based on the following 
principles: 
 
 instruments with quoted market prices - the market bid price; 

 
 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments - discounted cash flow analysis; and 

 
 equity shares with no quoted market prices - independent appraisal of company valuations. 
 
The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three 
levels: 
  
 Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 

authority can access at the measurement date, 
 

 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset, either directly or indirectly, 
 

 Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 
 
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the available-for-sale financial instrument 
reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale 
financial assets.  The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred - these are 
debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any 
net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the available-for-sale financial instrument reserve. 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair value 
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the financing and investment 
income and expenditure line in the CIES.  If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the 
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value 
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.  
Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition 
cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the 
financing and investment income and expenditure line in the CIES, along with any accumulated 
gains or losses previously recognised in the available-for-sale financial instrument reserve. 
 
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 
impairment losses). 
 
 

Page 215

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 73 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

(ix) Foreign currency translation 
 
The council makes a number of small purchases in foreign currency.  However the transaction is 
made at the current prevailing exchange rate, the goods or services are received immediately and, 
therefore, there are no gains or losses as a result of variances in the exchange rate, required to be 
recorded. 
 
(x) Government grants and contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 
 
 the council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and 

 
 the grants or contributions will be received. 

 
Amounts recognised as due to the council are not credited to the CIES until conditions attached to 
the grant or the contribution have been satisfied.  Conditions are stipulations that specify that the 
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified.  If this is not the case then 
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the balance sheet as creditors.  When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution 
is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or taxation 
and non-specific grant income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 
 
Where capital grants are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the general fund balance in 
the MIRS.  Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the 
capital grants unapplied reserve.  When it has been applied, it is posted to the capital adjustment 
account.   
 
(xi) Intangible assets 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the 
council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the council. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically 
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the 
council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able 
to sell or use the asset.  Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as 
attributable to the asset and is restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research 
expenditure cannot be capitalised). 
 
Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily 
intended to promote or advertise the council’s goods or services. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost.  Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of 
the assets held by the council can be determined by reference to an active market.  In practice, no 
intangible asset held by the council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at 
amortised cost.  The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to 
the relevant service line(s) in the CIES.  An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an 

Page 216

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 74 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

indication that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an 
intangible asset is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the general fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
general fund balance in the MIRS and posted to the capital adjustment account and (for any sale 
proceeds greater than £10,000) the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xii) Interests in companies and other entities – jointly controlled operations and jointly 

controlled assets 
 
The council has no material interests in other companies or entities that have the nature of 
subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities and there is therefore no requirement to 
prepare group accounts. 
 
Jointly controlled operations are classified as activities undertaken by the council in conjunction 
with other venturers that involve the use of the assets and resources of the venturers rather than 
the establishment of a separate entity.  They are items of property, plant or equipment that are 
jointly controlled by the council and other venturers, with the assets being used to obtain benefits 
for the venturers.  Whilst the council has entered into joint arrangements on the provision of 
services with South Oxfordshire District Council, none of the assets of that council can be said to 
be under joint control of the two councils. 
 
(xiii) Inventories and long term contracts 
 
Inventories are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.   
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the CIES with the value of works 
and services received under the contract during the financial year. 
 
(xiv) Investment property 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.  
The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or 
production of goods or is held for sale. 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the 
highest and best use value of the asset from the market participants perspective.  Investment 
properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the 
year-end.  Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the financing and investment income and 
expenditure line in the CIES.  The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the financing and investment 
income line and result in a gain for the general fund balance.  However, revaluation and disposal 
gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have an impact on the general 
fund balance.  The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the general fund balance in the 
MiRS and posted to the capital adjustment account (for any sales proceeds greater than £10,000) 
and the capital receipts reserve. 
 
(xv) Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the 
lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Page 217

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 75 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in 
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
The council as lessee 
 
Finance leases 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the balance sheet at the 
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present 
value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset recognised is matched by a liability for 
the obligation to pay the lessor.  Initial direct costs of the council are added to the carrying amount 
of the asset.  Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 
 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment - applied to 

write down the lease liability; and 
 

 A finance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies 
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this 
is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to 
the council at the end of the lease period). 
 
The council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment 
losses arising on leased assets.  Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue 
funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements.  
Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the general fund balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the capital 
adjustment account in the MiRS for the difference between the two. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense of the services 
benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment. 
 
The council as lessor 
 
Finance leases 
 
Where the council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
relevant asset is written out of the balance sheet as a disposal.  At the commencement of the 
lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet (whether property, plant and 
equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES 
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.  A gain, representing the council’s net investment in the 
lease, is credited to the same line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. 
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease 
(long-term debtor) asset in the balance sheet. 

Page 218

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 76 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the lease 

debtor (together with any premiums received); and 
 

 Finance income (credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure line in the 
CIES). 

 
The gain credited to the CIES on disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the general fund 
balance and is posted out of the general fund balance to the capital receipts reserve in the 
movement in reserves statement.  Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be 
settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the general fund 
balance to the deferred capital receipts reserve in the movement in reserves statement.  When the 
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used 
to write down the lease debtor.  At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
capital receipts reserve. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
therefore appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the 
MiRS. 
 
Operating leases 
 
Where the council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the 
asset is retained in the balance sheet.  Rental income is a creditor to the other operating 
expenditure line in the CIES.   
 
(xvi) Overheads and support services 
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or 
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2015/16.  The total absorption costing principle is used - the full cost of overheads and support 
services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 
 
 Corporate and democratic core - costs relating to the council’s status as a multi-functional, 

democratic organisation;  
 

 Non distributed costs - the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early 
and impairment losses chargeable on assets held for sale. 

 
These two cost categories are defined in the service reporting code of practice 2015/16 and 
accounted for as separate headings in the CIES as part of net expenditure on continuing services. 
 
(xvii)  Property, plant and equipment 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used 
during more than one financial year are classified as property, plant and equipment. 
 
Recognition 
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or 
service potential associated with the item will flow to the council and the cost of the item can be 

Page 219

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 77 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver 
future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred. 
 
Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 
 the purchase price; 

 
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be 

capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
The council would not capitalise borrowing costs if required to be incurred for assets under 
construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows 
of the council).  In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the 
acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the council. 
 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value.  The difference between fair value and any 
consideration paid is credited to the taxation and non-specific grant income line of the CIES, 
unless the donation has been made conditionally.  Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in 
the donated assets account.  Where gains are credited to the CIES, they are reversed out of the 
general fund balance to the capital adjustment account in the MiRS. 
 
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement bases: 
 
 Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost; 

 
 Surplus assets – fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s 

perspective; 
 

 All other assets - current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in 
its existing use. 

 
Where there is no market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of an 
asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of current value. 
 
Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for current value. 
Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure 
that their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as 
a minimum every five years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation 
reserve to recognise unrealised gains.  Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the CIES where 
they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains); 
 

Page 220

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 78 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

 where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the decrease in value the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and 
the remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 

 
 

 where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is 
written down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 

 
When assets are formally revalued, the accumulated depreciation and impairment balances are 
written down.  The revaluation reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 
only, the date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the capital adjustment account. 
 
Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired.   Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of 
the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 
 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, the 

carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the 
accumulated gains); 
 

 Where the balance on the revaluation reserve is less than the impairment the carrying 
amount of the asset is written down firstly against the balance on the revaluation reserve and 
the remaining balance against the relevant service line(s) in the CIES; 

 
 

 Where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve the carrying amount of the asset is 
written down straight to the relevant service line(s) in the CIES. 

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the CIES, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that 
would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain community assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 
 Buildings and infrastructure assets – straight line allocation over the useful life of the property 

as estimated by the valuer; 
 
 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – on a straight line basis, generally over useful life of 

the asset. 
 
More detail on depreciation rates for asset categories is included in note 4 to the accounts. 

Page 221

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 79 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment has major components whose cost is significant 
in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.   
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current 
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable 
based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the revaluation reserve to the 
capital adjustment account. 
 
Disposals and non-current assets held for sale 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an asset held 
for sale.  The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of 
this amount and fair value less costs to sell.  Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value 
less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the other operating expenditure line in the CIES.  Gains in 
fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous loss recognised in the surplus or 
deficit on provision of services.  Depreciation is not charged on assets held for sale. 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are reclassified 
back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were 
classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have 
been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale and their recoverable amount at the 
date of the decision not to sell.   
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assets held for sale.  
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the balance 
sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the other 
operating expenditure line in the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off 
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).  Any revaluation gains accumulated 
for the asset in the revaluation reserve are transferred to the capital adjustment account. 
 
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts.  
Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  Amounts are 
appropriated to the capital adjustment account from the general fund balance in the MiRS. 
 
(xviii) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the council a legal or constructive 
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.   
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES in the year that 
the council becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant 
risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the balance 
sheet.  Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it becomes 

Page 222

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 80 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement 
than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from 
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant 
service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the council settles the 
obligation. 
 
Contingent liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the council.  Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the council a possible asset 
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events 
not wholly within the control of the council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts 
where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential. 
 
(xix) Reserves 
 
The council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies.  Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the general fund balance in 
the movement in reserves statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, 
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the CIES.  The reserve is then 
appropriated back into the general fund balance in the MIRS so that there is no net charge against 
council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial 
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the 
council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note. 
 
(xx) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the CIES in the year.  Where the council has determined to meet the cost of 
this expenditure from existing capital resources, a transfer in the MIRS from the general fund 
balance to the capital adjustment account then reverses out the amounts charged so that there is 
no impact on the level of council tax. 
 
(xxi) Value Added Tax (VAT) 
 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 

Page 223

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 81 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

(xxii)   Fair Value Measurement 
 

The council measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability at the measurement date.  The fair value measurement assumes that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
 
a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  

 
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

 
The council uses external valuers to provide a valuation of its assets and liabilities in line with the 
highest and best use definition within the accounting standard. The highest and best use of the 
asset or liability being valued is considered from the perspective of a market participant.  
 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of the council’s fair value measurement of its assets 
and liabilities are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as follows: 
 
Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
authority can access at the measurement date.  
 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly.    
 
Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Page 224

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 82 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Glossary of terms 

 
Accounting policies – those principles, bases, conventions rules and practices applied by an 
entity that specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its 
financial statements through: 
 

 recognising 
 selecting measurement bases for, and 
 presenting 

 
assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves. 
 
Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques. 
 
Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events are reflected in the 
financial statements.  For example, an accounting policy for a particular type of expenditure may 
specify whether an asset or a loss is to be recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; 
and where in the revenue account or balance sheet it is to be presented. 
 
Accrual – a fundamental accounting principle is that income and expenditure should be 
accounted for in the period to which it relates, irrespective of the date of settlement.  An accrual is 
a sum included in the accounts to cover income or expenditure attributable to goods or services 
received within the accounting period but for which payment has not been received or made. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension liability that arises because events have 
not coincided with assumptions. Not charged to revenue. 
 
Agency – the provision of services by one organisation on behalf of another organisation. The 
organisation directly providing the services is reimbursed by the responsible organisation. 
 
Amortisation – the planned writing-down of the value of an asset (tangible or intangible) over its 
limited useful life. 
 
Asset – the creation or purchase of an item/building that has a monetary value.  Those assets of 
the council which are readily marketable are valued at market value.  Those which have a 
specialised use, such as leisure centres, are valued at depreciated replacement cost, which 
assesses the cost of providing a similar facility as a replacement but also allows a discount for the 
age of the asset.  Plant, equipment and community assets are valued at historic cost. 
 
Asset register – a register listing the book values of all the Council’s non-current fixed assets, 
both tangible and intangible. 
 
Balance sheet – the balance sheet is a statement of the assets and liabilities at the end of the 
accounting period.  It is a “snapshot” of the accounts at a single point in time. 
 
Capital Adjustment Account - accumulates (on the debit side) the write-down of the historical 
cost of fixed assets as they are consumed by depreciation and impairments or written off on 
disposal. It accumulates (on the credit side) the resources that have been set aside to finance 
capital expenditure. The same process applies to capital expenditure that is only capital by 
statutory definition (deferred charges). The balance on the account thus represents timing 
differences between the amount of the historical cost of fixed assets that has been consumed and 
the amount that has been financed in accordance with statutory requirements. 
 

Page 225

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 83 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Capital expenditure – expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds 
to and not merely maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.  
 
Capital financing – assembling the money to pay for capital expenditure.  The majority of the 
resources necessary to finance this council’s capital programme is capital receipts.  Other 
significant sources are government grants and contributions from developers. Also available are 
revenue monies and borrowing.  The council does not currently borrow to finance capital 
expenditure. 
 
Capital receipts – proceeds from the sale of an asset, e.g. land, buildings, equipment, vehicles. 
 
Central administration charges – central administration charges are an allocation of the net cost 
of the administrative and professional departments that support all of an authority’s services, e.g. 
finance, personnel. 
 
Central support services – the costs of providing those central functions which are concerned 
with the whole range of services and undertakings of the council and are not in the main 
identifiable with any particular service, e.g. the cost of office accommodation. 
 
Code of Practice – the CIPFA Code of Practice for Local Authority accounting developed as part 
of the accounting standards to be followed in compiling this statement of accounts. 
 
Collection fund – a fund maintained by collecting authorities into which is paid council taxes, 
NDR, and community charges. The fund then meets the requirements of the county, district and 
parish councils, the Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley and central 
government (NDR only).   
 
Community assets – assets that the council intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no 
determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal.  Examples of community 
assets are parks and historical buildings.   
 
Consistency – the principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting 
period and from one period to the next is the same. 
 
Contingency - is money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of 
expenditure, or shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not included in 
individual budgets. 
 
Contingent asset – a contingent asset is a potential asset arising from past events whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the council’s control. 
 
Contingent liability – a contingent liability is either: 
 
a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the authority’s control; or 
a present obligation arising from past events where it is not possible to measure the amount of 
obligation with sufficient reliability. 
 
Council tax – a charge levied by all councils on domestic property values to contribute to the cost 
of providing local services.  Council tax for the county council, the local police crime commissioner 
and local parishes is collected by this council and paid over to them throughout the year. 
 

Page 226

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 84 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Council Tax Benefit - is the assistance provided by billing authorities to adults on low incomes to 
help them pay their council tax bill.  The cost to authorities of council tax benefit is largely met by 
government grant in 2013/14. 
 
Council Tax Requirement - is the estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services that 
needed to be financed from the Council Tax after deducting income from fees and charges, certain 
specific grants and any funding from reserves. 
 
Creditor – the amount owed by the council for work done, goods received or services rendered to 
the council within the accounting period but for which payment has not been made at the date of 
the balance sheet. 
 
Current asset – an asset where the value changes on a frequent basis e.g. stores, cash, debtors 
(as distinct from a fixed asset such as land and buildings). 
 
Current liability – an amount which will become payable or for which payment could be 
requested within the next accounting period, e.g. creditors, bank overdrafts, short term loans. 
 
Current service costs (pensions) – the increase in pension liabilities as a result of years of 
service earned this year. Allocated to the revenue accounts of services for which the employees 
worked. 
 
Debtor – an amount due to the council within the accounting period but not received at the date of 
the balance sheet. 
 
Deferred Capital Receipts - capital income still to be received after disposals have taken place. 
 
Defined benefit pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme where the 
scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions payable and the benefits are 
not directly related to the investments of the scheme. 
 
Defined contribution pension scheme – a pension or other retirement benefit scheme into 
which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount or a percentage of pay and will 
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have 
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior 
periods. 
 
Depreciation – the measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed asset that 
have been consumed during the period.  Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other 
reduction in the useful life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, passage of time or 
obsolescence through either changes in technology, legislation or demand for goods and service 
produced by the asset. 
 
Direct revenue financing – the financing of capital expenditure from the current year’s revenue 
account. 
 
Earmarked Reserves - The Council holds a number of reserves earmarked to be used to meet 
specific, known or predicted future expenditure. 
 
Events after the balance sheet date – events after the balance sheet date are those events, 
favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the balance sheet date (normally 31 March) and 
the date when the statement of accounts is authorised for issue – also referred to as Post 
Balance Sheet Events (PBSE).  These may be classed as ‘adjusting’ or ‘non-adjusting’. 
 

Page 227

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 85 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Exceptional items – material items which derive from events of transactions that fall within the 
ordinary activities of the authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size 
or incidence to give a true and fair presentation of the accounts. 
 
External audit - The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities 
to ensure the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and 
proper practices and to ensure the Council has made proper arrangements to secure value for 
money in its use of resources. 
 
Extraordinary items – material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive 
from events of transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the authority and which are 
not expected to recur.  They do not include exceptional items, nor do they include prior period 
items merely because they relate to a prior period.  
 
Fair value – the fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in am arms-
length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use of 
the asset. 
   
Finance lease – this is a lease, usually of land or buildings, which is treated as capital borrowing 
and for which transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the 
lessee; or where the residual interest in the asset transfers to the lessee on completion of the 
lease term. 
 
Financial instrument – a financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of 
one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ 
covers both financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward 
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex 
ones such as derivatives and embedded derivatives. 
 
Financial regulations - These are the written code of procedures approved by the Council, 
intended to provide a framework for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually 
set out rules on accounting, audit, administrative and budgeting procedures. 
 
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) – accounting practice recommended by the Accounting 
Standards Board (ASB) for adoption in the preparation of accounts by applicable bodies (see also 
SSAP). 
 
Fixed asset – fixed assets are assets of the council that continue to have value and benefit for a 
period longer than one financial year. 
 
Gains/losses on settlements and curtailments – the results of actions to relieve the council of 
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees.  
Debited to the net costs of services as part of non-distributed costs. 
 
General fund – the main revenue account of an authority, which summarises the cost of all 
services provided by the council which are paid for from amounts collected from council tax 
payers, government grants and other income. 
 
Going concern – the concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future, in particular that the revenue accounts and Balance Sheet assume no intention 
to curtail significantly the scale of operations. 
 

Page 228

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 86 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Heritage asset - A tangible asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or 
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and 
culture. 
 
Housing benefit - This is an allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or 
part, their rent. Benefit is allowed or paid by Local Authorities but Central Government refunds part 
of the cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits 
paid to the Authority’s own tenants are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants as 
rent allowance. 
 
IAS 19 – International Accounting Standard 19 requires the council to account for assets and 
liabilities which are in held the pension fund administered by Oxfordshire County Council but 
relating to this authority, in the accounts of this authority. 
 
IAS 40 - International Accounting Standard 40 relates to the accounting for investment properties. 
 
iBoxx – iBoxx indices cover the cash bond market. Underlying bond prices and indices are 
available in real time. 
 
Impairment – an unexpected or sudden decline in the value of a fixed asset, such as property or 
vehicle, below its carrying amount on the balance sheet. 
 
Infrastructure Assets - Fixed Assets which generally cannot be sold and from which benefit can 
be obtained only by continued use of the asset created. Examples of such assets are highways, 
footpaths, bridges and water and drainage facilities. 
 
Intangible fixed assets – some capital expenditure does not give rise to a physical asset but the 
benefits last a number of years.  These can be carried in the balance sheet as assets and written 
off over their useful life.  An example is computer software. 
 
International Accounting Standards (IAS)  and  International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) – defined Accounting Standards that must be applied by all reporting entities to all financial 
statements in order to provide a true and fair view of the entity’s financial position, and a 
standardised method of comparison with financial statements of the other entities. 
 
Liabilities – these are amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at 
some time in the future.  Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance 
Sheet date. 
 
Liquid resources – current asset investments that are readily disposable without disrupting the 
authority’s business and are readily convertible to known amounts of cash at or close to the 
carrying amount or traded in an active market. 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) - this is a funded, defined benefit, final salary 
scheme, which means that the council and employees pay contributions into a fund; these 
contributions are calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions’ liabilities with investment 
assets.  
 
Non Domestic Rates (NDR) (also known as business rates) – NDR is a tax charged on 
commercial properties.  It is calculated by multiplying a property's 'rateable value' by a nationally 
set amount (known as the ‘NDR multiplier’).  The council acts as a collecting agency for NDR and 
the proceeds are then redistributed to central government, the county council and the balance 
retained by the council. 
 

Page 229

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 87 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Net Book Value (NBV) – the amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet; ie: 
their historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation. 
Net current replacement cost – the cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its 
existing condition and in its existing use. 
 
Net debt – the authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources.  Where the cash and liquid 
resources exceed borrowings, reference should be to Net Funds rather than net debt. 
 
Net realisable value – the open market value of an asset in its existing use, less the expenses to 
be incurred in realising the asset. 
 
Non-operational assets – fixed assets held by the authority but not used or consumed in the 
delivery of services or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  Examples of non-
operational assets include investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, 
pending their sale.  
 
Operating lease – this is a lease where ownership of the fixed asset remains with the lessor and 
the lease costs are revenue expenditure to the Council – generally any lease other than a finance 
lease. 
 
Operational assets – fixed assets held and occupied, use or consumed by the authority in the 
direct delivery of those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility or 
for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.  
 
Past service cost – the increase in pension liabilities arising from current year decisions whose 
effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years, debited to the net cost of services as part 
of non distributed costs interest cost, and the expected increase in the present value of liabilities 
during the year as they move one year closer to being paid, debited to net operating expenditure. 
 
Post Balance Sheet Events (PBSE) – see events after the balance sheet date 
 
Precept – the levy made by precepting authorities on billing authorities, requiring the latter to 
collect income from council taxpayers on their behalf.  Precepts are paid from the Collection Fund. 
 
Prior period adjustment – those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from 
changes in accounting policies or form the correction of fundamental errors.  A fundamental error 
is one that is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial statements.  They do 
not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior 
years. 
 
Provisions - amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses which it is anticipated will be incurred 
but where the amount and/or the timing of such costs is uncertain. 
 
Remuneration – all sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by way of 
expenses allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the money 
value of any other benefits received other than cash.  Pension contributions payable by the 
employer are excluded. 
 
Reporting Standards - the Code of Practice prescribes the accounting treatment and disclosures 
for all normal transactions of a Local Authority.  It is based on International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS), International Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and 
Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 
 

Page 230

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 88 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Revenue Expenditure - expenditure incurred on the day-to-day running of the Council.  This 
mainly includes employee costs, general running expenses and capital financing costs. 
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) – (formerly known as a 
deferred charge) arises where: 
  
 Expenditure is charged to capital but there is no tangible asset e.g. improvement grants, 

compensatory payments. When the expenditure is incurred it is charged to the income and 
expenditure account with a compensating entry in the statement of movement on the general 
fund balance to ensure that there is no impact on the council tax; and 

 
 Assets are transferred to another organisation and the associated transferred debt is being 

repaid over time. These charges are written-down by the loan repayments so that the total 
equates to the relevant loan debt outstanding. 

 
Since there are no long-term economic benefits in the control of the council, these are written off 
to revenue (CIES) in the year incurred and no longer feature as assets in the balance sheet. 
 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) – this main non-specific grant paid by central government to local 
authorities to help fund the services that they provide. The allocation to each authority is 
determined by a complex formula.  This comprises the council’s general government grant 
income. 
 
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) - prepared and published by CIPFA, the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) replaced the previous Best Value Accounting Code of 
Practice (BVACOP).  It is reviewed annually to ensure that it develops in line with the needs of 
modern local government, transparency, best value and public services reform. SeRCOP 
establishes proper practices with regard to consistent financial reporting for services and in 
England and Wales, it is given legislative backing by regulations which identify the accounting 
practices it propounds as proper practices under the Local Government Act 2003. 
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP) – SSAPs were introduced to ensure that 
all statements of accounts are compiled on the same or similar basis.   
 
Trading account – a method of matching income and expenditure for a particular activity or group 
of activities.   An example of this is building control. 
 
Useful life – the period over which the authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset. 
  

Page 231

Agenda Item 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council 89 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

Annual governance statement 

 
The annual governance statement forms part of the audited accounts and can be found by 
accessing the link below: 
 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/our-finances/annual-governance-statement

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 232

Agenda Item 7

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/about-us/how-we-work/our-finances/annual-governance-statement


 

Vale of White Horse District Council 90 Statement of Accounts 2015/16 

This page is intentionally blank. 

 
 
 

Page 233

Agenda Item 7



1

Annual Governance Statement 2015/16
CONTENTS

Scope of responsibility .............................................................................................2
The purpose of the governance framework............................................................3
The governance framework......................................................................................3

The strategic planning framework ........................................................................4
Performance management framework .................................................................6
Legal framework ...................................................................................................6
Financial framework .............................................................................................6
Risk management framework...............................................................................7

Review of effectiveness of the governance framework.........................................8
Review of objectives.............................................................................................8
Performance management and service work planning ........................................8
Legal framework.................................................................................................10
Financial framework ...........................................................................................11
Councillors’ and senior officers’ development ....................................................14
Internal audit and the assurance manager.........................................................15
Risk management...............................................................................................16
Anti-fraud, bribery, money laundering and whistleblowing .................................17
Business continuity.............................................................................................17
Joint Audit and Governance Committee.............................................................18
Scrutiny Committee ............................................................................................18
Councillors’ code of conduct ..............................................................................18
External sources of assurance on the governance framework ..........................19

Significant governance issues...............................................................................19

 

Page 234

Agenda Item 8



2

Scope of responsibility 

1. South Oxfordshire District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively.  

2. The council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in exercising its functions, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

3. In discharging this overall responsibility, the council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise 
of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.  

4. The council has in place corporate governance arrangements, and has adopted a local 
code of governance.  This local code of governance is consistent with the “Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government” publication produced by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy and the Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives, which was published in 2007.  

5. This statement explains how South Oxfordshire District Council has complied with its 
code of governance, and how the council met the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, in relation to an annual review of the 
effectiveness of the council’s systems of internal control, and the preparation and 
approval of an annual governance statement.  

6. Our website at www.southoxon.gov.uk has a copy of the local code of corporate 
governance within its Constitution or it can be obtained from: 

Democratic Services
South Oxfordshire District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park 
Milton 
Abingdon 
OX14 4SB

Tel. 01235 422520 
Email: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk 

Page 235

Agenda Item 8

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk


3

The purpose of the governance framework 

7. The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by 
which the council is directed and controlled, and activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads the community.  The governance framework enables the 
council to monitor achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have delivered appropriate, cost-effective services.  

8. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the 
council’s objectives, and therefore can only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing 
process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of the council’s 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

9. The council has had the governance framework described below in place for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the 2015/16 statement of 
accounts in September 2016.  

The governance framework 

10. The purpose of the governance framework is to do the right things, in the right way, for 
the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.  Full 
Council is responsible for directing and controlling the organisation in this manner.  Full 
Council’s responsibilities include agreeing the Constitution and key governance 
documents, the policy framework, and the budget.  

11. The council has executive arrangements in place consisting of a cabinet, a scrutiny 
committee and a joint scrutiny committee with Vale of White Horse District Council.  
Cabinet is responsible for proposing the budget and policy framework, and 
implementing them once approved by Council.  The scrutiny function allows a 
committee to question and challenge the policy and performance of Cabinet and 
promote public debate.  

12. The chief executive, who was appointed joint chief executive of this council and Vale of 
White Horse District Council in September 2008, advises councillors on policy and 
procedures to drive the aims and objectives of the council.  As head of the officer staff, 
the chief executive oversees the employment and conditions of staff.  The chief 
executive leads a strategic management board that is shared with Vale of White Horse 
District Council.  The chief finance officer, the monitoring officer and heads of service 
are responsible for advising Cabinet and scrutiny committees on legislative, financial 
and other policy considerations to achieve the council’s objectives, and are responsible 
for implementing councillors’ decisions.  

13. The governance framework for 2015/16 was based on our local code of governance.  
Within the framework the council aims to meet the principles of good governance in all 
aspects of its work, giving particular attention to the main principles:

Page 236

Agenda Item 8



4

 Focusing on the council’s purpose and on outcomes for the community and 
creating and implementing a vision for the local area

 Councillors and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles

 Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour

 Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny 
and managing risk

 Developing the capacity and capability of councillors and officers to be effective
 Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 

accountability

THE STRATEGIC PLANNING FRAMEWORK
14. To ensure the council does the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a 

timely, inclusive, open, honest, cost-effective and accountable manner, the strategic 
planning framework incorporates residents’ and service-providers’ views as well as 
national and local priorities.  

15. The councils’ strategic objectives and corporate priorities, are set out in their Corporate 
Plans. For 2015/16 these were:  

Invest in the district’s future
 Create the right conditions for economic growth, so that businesses, residents and 

workers can prosper
 Seek to further improve Broadband and mobile phone coverage
 Provide New Leisure facilities
 Secure our Financial Future

Unlock the potential of Didcot 
 Unlock the potential of Didcot through the garden town initiative

Homes and jobs for everyone 
 Facilitate sustainable communities 
 Reduce homelessness
 Optimise employment opportunities 

Build thriving communities
 Make communities clean and safe 
 Help people to be healthy and active 
 Support communities to help themselves 

Services that reflect residents’ needs
 Engage with residents and service users to ensure that services and facilities 

reflect their needs

Be tough on enforcement 
 Take a proactive approach to planning enforcement
 Maintain high standards in food safety

Page 237

Agenda Item 8



5

 Continue to take action on flytipping, dog fouling and litter.  

16. The four-year Corporate Plan (which has been revised for 2016-2020), along with 
Oxfordshire-wide plans, guide decisions on how the council invests financial and 
staffing resources.  These plans determine the types of projects the council supports 
through grant funding.  Arising from the Corporate Plan, there are detailed service work 
plans, identifying how services undertake specific activities to deliver the council’s 
priorities.  

17. The council’s work with partners takes place both locally to address local issues and 
also through some formal partnerships, which may be either service specific or more 
broadly strategic.  Some of the key formal partnerships include: 

 South and Vale Community Safety Partnership - this focuses on joint working to 
reduce crime and the fear of crime, and addresses broader community safety 
issues affecting local people.  It has an annual plan that sets out the partnership’s 
key aims and objectives for the year and is available on the council’s website.  

 Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership – this is a body made up of 
representatives from business, academia and the wider public sector.  The 
partnership’s aim is to be the catalyst for realising Oxfordshire’s economic and 
commercial potential.  The partnership is responsible for delivering the Science 
Vale Oxford enterprise zone.   

18. Our other key strategies include:

 The South Oxfordshire Core Strategy, which is the first part of a new Local Plan 
for the district.  It provides the strategic planning framework for South Oxfordshire 
and sets out the high level vision for the district.  The core strategy sets out the 
overall amount of new development in the district and the broad locations for 
housing, employment, shopping and transport.  It also allocates strategic sites and 
sets out what infrastructure is needed.  The core strategy has replaced some of 
the Local Plan 2011, but a number of non-strategic policies still remain in place.   
The Local Plan 2011 will eventually be replaced by the next planning document, to 
be known as the Local Plan: Sites and General Policies.  Work has commenced 
on this plan and the council will work closely with local communities throughout 
the process.  Several neighbourhood plans have also been produced by local 
communities in South Oxfordshire which form part of the development plan.  

 Equality objectives: the council has set equality objectives in line with the 
requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and to support the delivery of the council’s 
Corporate Plan priorities.  

 Boosting the local economy: partnership working is the key theme behind South 
Oxfordshire District Council’s plans to boost its three market towns of Henley, 
Thame and Wallingford.  The South Oxfordshire market towns action plan brings 
together new ideas alongside ongoing projects, as the council continues to work 
with the Henley Business Partnership, 21st Century Thame and the Wallingford 
Partnership, as well as the three respective town councils and various local 
groups, to help strengthen the local economy and bring more people to the towns. 
The action plan is designed to support the council’s objectives of building the local 

Page 238

Agenda Item 8



6

economy, continuing to invest to improve the viability and attractiveness of our 
towns, and supporting business growth

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
19. The council sets performance targets to achieve its strategic objectives and corporate 

priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.  To ensure the council meet targets and 
achieves objectives, it has multi-year service work plans and service targets, ensuring 
that a golden thread aligns the council’s top-level objectives to the work of each council 
officer.  Separately, the council reports performance to the government in accordance 
with the single data list.  

20. The council will measure performance on its corporate plan through regular reports to 
Cabinet members and annual reports to the Scrutiny Committee. The Strategic 
Management Board and Cabinet receive monthly board reports which monitor 
performance on a basket of key measures linked to the corporate plan; and an annual 
report which benchmarks our performance against other relevant district councils.    

21. The council has an individual development and performance review scheme focusing 
on agreement of targets linked to service work plans between managers and 
individuals.  Throughout the year, staff have meetings with their managers to review 
progress and discuss and plan personal development in line with the council’s 
objectives.  

22. As the council outsources a significant number of services, it operates a formal 
framework for monitoring contractors’ performance, and reporting these to the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee.  

LEGAL FRAMEWORK
23. The council’s Constitution sets out how it is managed and guides decision-making 

towards objectives, and includes a set of procedure rules that govern how we conduct 
our business.  It also includes protocols covering the disclosure of interests in 
contracts, and the relationship between officers and councillors.    The monitoring 
officer is responsible for ensuring the lawfulness of decision-making and maintaining 
the Constitution.  

24. All decisions are made in accordance with the requirements of the Constitution and the 
scheme of delegation, which forms part of the Constitution.  The monitoring officer will 
report to full Council or to Cabinet if she considers that any proposal, decision or 
omission would give rise to unlawfulness, or to the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee if any decision or omission has given rise to maladministration.  

25. In the role of monitoring officer, the head of legal and democratic services contributes 
to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct by councillors.  To this 
end, the council’s Constitution incorporates the councillors’ code of conduct.  

FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK
26. The section 151 officer is responsible for the overall management of the financial 

affairs of the council.  The section 151 officer determines all financial systems, 

Page 239

Agenda Item 8



7

procedures and supporting records of the council, after consultation with heads of 
service.  Any new or amended financial systems, procedures or practices are agreed 
with the section 151 officer before implementation.

27. Full Council is responsible for approving the treasury management strategy and for 
setting the revenue and capital budgets.  

28. The treasury management strategy governs the operation of the council’s treasury 
function, and is reviewed at least annually or during the year if it becomes necessary to 
do so.  This strategy includes parameters for lending and borrowing, and identifies the 
risks of treasury activity.  

29. Both revenue and capital budgets are set by full Council in February each year.  
Revenue budget setting includes both the calculation of the council tax base and the 
surplus or deficit arising from the collection fund.  

30. Cabinet has overall responsibility for the implementation of the council’s financial 
strategies and spending plans, and is authorised to make financial decisions subject to 
these being consistent with the budget and policy framework and the Constitution.  

31. Heads of service are responsible for ensuring the proper maintenance of financial 
procedures and records, and the security of assets, property, records, and data within 
their service area.  

32. The chief executive, strategic directors and heads of service consult with the head of 
finance and the head of legal and democratic services on the financial and legal 
implications of any report that they are proposing to submit to full Council, a committee 
(or sub-committee), or Cabinet.  

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
33. Paragraphs 34 – 39 below describe the council’s framework for risk management 

which has operated effectively for several years.  During 2015/16 there was little 
proactive risk management activity. A risk management resource is now in place 
reviewing the current arrangements and will deliver a revised risk management 
framework across the council. 

34. Risk management is important to the successful delivery of the council’s objectives.  An 
effective risk management system identifies and assesses risks, decides on 
appropriate responses and provides assurance that the chosen responses are 
effective.  The overall responsibility for effective risk management in the council lies 
with the chief executive supported by the strategic management board.  The council 
uses a standard risk management methodology which encompasses the identification, 
analysis, prioritisation, management and monitoring of risks.

35. Councillors have a responsibility to understand the strategic risks that the council 
faces, and are made aware of how these risks are being managed through reports to 
the Joint Audit and Governance Committee. 

Page 240

Agenda Item 8



8

36. The strategic management board is responsible for the identification, analysis and 
management of strategic risks and undertakes regular reviews of those risks.  

37. The council has operational risk registers in place for each service area and all heads 
of service are responsible for ensuring that risks are identified and prioritised and 
entered onto the risk register.  The council reviews and refreshes the operational risk 
registers each quarter.  

38. All line managers are responsible for implementing strategies at team level by ensuring 
adequate communication, training and the assessment and monitoring of risks.  All 
officers are responsible for considering risk as part of everyday activities and provide 
input to the risk management process.

39. The council also has business continuity management arrangements in place to ensure 
that priority services can continue to be delivered to our customers in the event of an 
unforeseen disruption.

Action: To implement and embed the revised risk management arrangements in 2016/17.

Review of effectiveness of the governance framework

40. The council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  The 
review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the managers within the council who 
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the assurance manager’s annual report, and also by comments made by 
the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

41. The following highlights our review of our governance framework and sets out the 
assurances of committees, officers and external organisations.

REVIEW OF OBJECTIVES
42. The section entitled the strategic planning framework (paragraph 14) sets out the 

council’s current strategic objectives following a major review of the Corporate Plan in 
2015/16.  This review included consideration of residents’ feedback from the biennial 
residents’ survey to ensure that the new plan reflects residents’ priorities.  

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE WORK PLANNING
43. The council has a monthly board report which contains a smaller set of key 

performance indicators selected by the strategic management board and Cabinet 
members.  
This graphically details performance in the main areas of council activity, including:
 planning
 housing
 finance
 waste management
 benefits administration

Page 241

Agenda Item 8



9

44. The charts in the board report present:
 current performance
 last year's performance for comparison
 year-end target
 latest year-end prediction by officers, where appropriate
 a narrative supplied by the responsible officer, where appropriate.

45. Monthly analysis of the board report demonstrates that the council is meeting the 
majority of key performance measures.  In addition, the analysis shows a long-term, 
on-going trend of improvement.

46. The board report is subject to a rigorous approval process, whereby it is checked by 
heads of service as data owners, and then by the strategic management board.  The 
council then publishes the report to its website and notifies all councillors.  Councillors 
may then request the addition of any aspects of poor performance to the agenda of the 
next Scrutiny or, where appropriate, Joint Scrutiny Committee meeting.  On a quarterly 
basis, Cabinet members discuss the report.  

47. The report has been well received by both councillors and senior management, and is 
constantly evolving to reflect management requirements.  Many graphs are automated 
so that they now take data directly from the underlying systems.  

48. The council has continued its approach of asking target and action owners to forecast 
whether they are on track to deliver year-end outcomes.  For each target or action that 
is 'below target’, the owner must provide an action to get back on track or an 
explanation.  

49. The council's approach to performance management has received critical acclaim from 
an independent report by the Advanced Performance Institute.  The council has made 
significant progress over the past years and has implemented a performance 
management system based on clearly defined output deliverables and priorities.  

50. In addition to the monthly board report, the council also produces an annual report that 
compares the council’s performance with all other non-metropolitan district councils.  
This is used internally to identify any relatively weak areas requiring attention.  

51. The council continues to operate a strong approach to service work planning, ensuring 
that targets and actions are SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and 
time-bound).  Following the management restructure with Vale of White Horse District 
Council, there is now a combined approach to service work planning across the two 
councils.  During 2013 and 2014 the council trained all managers on strategic 
objective-setting and briefed all staff on it.  Programme managers oversee actions 
owned by others and thus maximise the chances of the programme meeting its targets.  

52. As a further enhancement to the service work planning process, many teams are using 
‘performance points’.  A performance point is a regularly-updated notice board, 
displayed in a team’s service area, which shows how the team is performing against 
key performance targets.  However, there are also electronic performance points 
displaying real-time data.    Performance points:

Page 242

Agenda Item 8



10

 are divided into three main sections – customer excellence, business management 
and staff investment

 increase the visibility of targets and the progress against them
 increase the relevance of targets to teams
 are used at regular meetings to discuss performance
 are used to review performance with politicians and strategic directors

53. In 2012, following a review by Scrutiny Committee, the council made improvements to 
the system for monitoring the performance of contractors.

54. The combination of all of the approaches listed above is that the council has a strong 
focus on delivering priorities, managing performance against targets, and progressing 
actions.  

Action: To deliver the year one targets in the new four year corporate plan 2016-2020 
during 2016/17.  

LEGAL FRAMEWORK
55. In July 2008, the Council approved the creation of a shared senior management team 

with Vale of White Horse District Council.  In September 2008, the chief executive was 
appointed to the post of shared chief executive.  In December 2008, strategic directors 
were appointed to the shared management team, in February 2009 shared heads of 
service were appointed, and in April 2010 service managers took up their positions.  
Since then, most staff have progressively moved into a role shared across the two 
councils.  At the outset of this shared process, the council’s monitoring officer was 
satisfied that the procedure adopted in the recruitment process complied with all 
relevant legislation.

56. Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority to enter into an 
agreement with another local authority to place its officers at the disposal of another 
authority.  Staff who are made available under such an arrangement are able to take 
binding decisions on behalf of the council at whose disposal they are placed, although 
they remain an employee of their original authority for employment and superannuation 
purposes.  This legislation therefore allows officers to be shared between the two 
councils.  Council authorised the head of legal and democratic services to enter into an 
agreement under section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 for this joint 
arrangement.  The section 113 agreement was completed on 26 September 2008 and 
updated on 18 February 2011.

57. In September 2008, Council agreed that all references to the chief executive, head of 
paid service, electoral registration officer and returning officer contained in the 
Constitution should apply to the shared chief executive when acting in those roles for 
each council with effect from 17 September 2008.  Following the appointment of the 
strategic directors and heads of service in 2008 and 2009 respectively, a harmonised 
scheme of delegation to officers and harmonised contract procedure rules were 
introduced to meet the requirements of joint working with Vale of White Horse District 
Council.

Page 243

Agenda Item 8



11

58. The Joint Constitution Review Group has been holding regular meetings during 
2015/16 with a view to creating, as far as possible a, single constitution for both 
Councils.  Some more time critical issues have already been approved by Council with 
a fully revised joint Constitution to be brought before this Council and Vale of White 
Horse District Council for approval in 2016/17.  

59. The monitoring officer did not need to use her statutory powers during the year.

60. Part 3 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 required all 
principal authorities to adopt either an elected mayor and cabinet or a new style ‘strong’ 
leader and cabinet.  The Council has adopted the strong leader model.  

61. Lexcel is the accreditation quality mark which the Law Society has developed.  This 
was awarded to the council’s legal team, which must undergo a rigorous independent 
assessment each year to ensure it meets the required standards of excellence in areas 
such as customer care, case management and risk management.  

Action: To continue to review the Constitution to meet the requirements of good governance 
arising from the joint working arrangements with Vale of White Horse District Council and to 
submit a joint Constitution to this Council and Vale of White Horse District Council in 
2016/17.

FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK

FINANCIAL REPORTING

62. The council produced budget monitoring information for both revenue and capital 
income and expenditure every quarter from June onwards during the 2015/16 financial 
year.  Budget monitoring reports are available from the council’s financial management 
system, which are profiled, to heads of service and managers every quarter, within two 
weeks of the end of the period.  This ensures up-to-date information, for example by 
ensuring that all cash received up to the end of the previous period is reflected in the 
figures.  Heads of service and service managers are able to generate their own reports 
from the financial system at any time.

63. From quarter two onwards, heads of service are required to submit a return to 
accountancy, which provides reasons for budget variances, and forecasts the end of 
year outturn position.  These are collated into a budget monitoring report which is 
considered by the strategic management board before being reviewed by finance 
portfolio holders and circulated to other councillors.  These reports highlight the key 
budget variances being reported by each service, allowing management to focus on 
them.  If required, budget virements can be made during the year.  By making such 
budget virements in-year, the council is able to realign resources to ensure that 
overspends do not impact on its ability to deliver other services.  This is assisted by the 
prudent inclusion of a contingency budget. 

64. Budgetary control is subject to an internal audit review every three to four years.  
Otherwise, budgetary control is generally reviewed in audits of teams or service areas.  

Page 244

Agenda Item 8



12

65. For all committee reports for which a decision is required, a “financial implications” 
section is included which details the actual, and potential, financial consequences of 
the decision being taken.  An accountant ensures that this information is accurate and 
relevant.

66. In September 2015, the Joint Audit and Governance Committee approved the council’s 
financial statements for 2014/15, and the council’s external auditors issued an 
unqualified audit opinion.  

67. Officers keep up to date with the latest accounting developments, which enable them to 
be prepared for the changes in accounting practice that affect the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements.  The council subscribes to the Chartered 
Institute of Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) finance advisory network and 
accountants regularly attend these network events, enabling the council’s accountants 
to prepare for changes to accounting requirements.  Accountants that attend training 
courses report back to the rest of the accountancy team on the content of the course.  

68. Each year’s accounts and annual audit letter are available to the public and are 
published on the council’s website.  These are available in accessible formats on 
request.  To assist the public in understanding the accounts, there is an explanatory 
foreword in the financial statements that explains the purpose of the accounts and 
summarises the key messages arising from them.  There is also a glossary of terms 
within the accounts to aid understanding. 

BUDGET SETTING

69. Accountants meet with all service heads or their staff at least every quarter during the 
financial year to discuss performance against budget and to highlight areas of 
potentially significant over- or under-spend.  This information is used to prepare the 
budget monitoring reports presented to the strategic management board, and to 
substantiate any in-year budget transfers or supplementary estimates required to meet 
changing circumstances.  The in-year monitoring of budgets enables the following 
year’s budget setting process to be based on the latest estimates of income and 
expenditure.  

70. Every year the council sets a comprehensive and balanced budget, which provides 
adequate resources and there has been an absence of overspends against total 
budget in recent years.  

71. The council’s budget planning cycle is well established, starting with a base budget 
position produced by officers.  Officers complete the annual budget for consideration by 
Cabinet in early February, before it is discussed and approved at full Council later that 
month.  Scrutiny Committee reviews the budget during February.  Throughout the 
budget setting process the council’s financial position, and budget proposals, are 
regularly discussed informally by Cabinet and the strategic management board, which 
ensure that they have a good understanding of the financial situation.  

71. Once the budget is set, the monitoring of income and expenditure against budget 
continues throughout the financial year by the strategic management board, 

Page 245

Agenda Item 8



13

culminating in an outturn report that reflects on the overall performance against budget 
for the previous year.  These are based on returns provided by the heads of service.  

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
 
72. Supporting the annual budget-setting process, each year the council publishes a five-

year medium term financial plan.  This provides a forward-looking budget model that 
estimates the council’s budget needs in future years, and indicates the required level of 
savings needed in future years to balance the budget.  This is based on assumptions of 
the most likely levels of such critical factors as government grant funding, the level of 
investment interest, and inflation.  These are subject to fluctuations. 

73. By using the medium term financial plan to estimate future council income and 
expenditure the council was able to reduce the council tax for 2015/16.  To ensure that 
the council can continue to focus on delivering services more efficiently during difficult 
economic times, it has taken a pro-active approach to identifying and delivering 
efficiency savings.  Savings realised when the council merged its management team 
with Vale of White Horse District Council and embraced “lean” business process re-
engineering have been added to by the sharing of offices.  These savings, along with 
other savings generated by service teams, enabled the reduction in council tax for 
2015/16.  All the savings identified to date were reasonable, having been subject to 
review by the strategic management board and Cabinet.  

74. The budget report presented to Cabinet included a summary of the estimated balance 
on key reserves at the end of the capital programme period.  Assumptions 
underpinning the estimates of reserves were deemed reasonable by the section 151 
chief finance officer.  

75. The council communicates key messages from its financial planning process to staff 
and stakeholders.  New staff undertake an induction process that includes an 
introduction to local government finance.  This makes staff aware of how the council’s 
budgets are constructed and of the financial pressures the council faces Staff involved 
in the budget setting process received appropriate guidance and training from 
accountancy staff.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

76. The council’s treasury management strategy, which Council agrees annually, sets out 
the council’s policy on managing its investments, which ensures that it has sufficient 
cash to meet its needs, and that returns are maximised whilst maintaining the security 
of the council’s assets.  The strategy has regard to the Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management, and the CIPFA Prudential Code.  Cabinet and the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee monitor performance against the strategy twice each year.

77. The council enjoys a healthy financial position.  It has significant reserves that generate 
interest income, which it uses to support the revenue budget.  The council uses interest 
earned during the one financial year to support the following year’s revenue budget.  
This provides a more stable platform on which to plan, and means that the prolonged 

Page 246

Agenda Item 8



14

low interest rates that have been experienced in recent years do not impact on in-year 
service delivery 

78. The Joint Audit and Governance Committee takes responsibility for ensuring effective 
scrutiny of the treasury management strategy, policies and performance in accordance 
with the CIPFA Prudential code and CIPFA Treasury Management code.

79. All the arrangements detailed above demonstrate that Cabinet and strategic 
management board exercise collective responsibility for financial matters.  All members 
of the strategic management board accept individual and collective responsibility for 
the stewardship of use of resources and financial accountability.

COMMENT ON THE ROLE OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

80. The council has reviewed its financial management arrangements to ensure that they 
conform with the requirements of CIPFA’s Application Note to Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Public 
Service Organisations.  

81. The section 151 officer, or chief financial officer, has a responsibility to ensure that an 
effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained.  The council requires its 
internal audit team to provide an effective service in accordance with professional 
standards, and internal audit officers must abide by the Institute of Internal Auditors 
Code of Ethics and receive suitable training and development to maintain the 
appropriate skills, experience and competence.  The performance of internal audit is 
subject to quarterly review by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

COUNCILLORS’ AND SENIOR OFFICERS’ DEVELOPMENT
82. Councillors are offered a comprehensive induction programme.  Soon after their 

election, councillors are invited to an induction to sign their declarations of acceptance 
of office and meet the service teams.  Training sessions on planning and licensing law 
have been held , along with a range of other skills based training e.g. chairing 
meetings, effective scrutiny, personal influencing, with needs assessment taking place 
in order to provide further relevant training.  Members of the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee also have a training programme.

83. Senior officers take part in induction sessions with all staff, along with the leader of the 
council.  The development opportunities for senior officers include support towards a 
nationally recognised qualification e.g. a Master of Business Administration.  They can 
attend programmes such as aiming to be a corporate director.  Attendees evaluate 
these programmes, provide feedback at the end of each session, and line managers 
review training during the development and performance review and the formal one to 
one process.  

84. The corporate management team has attended a leadership development programme, 
consisting of several workshops covering the principles of high performing teams and 
elements of the Mastering Management programme that had previously been delivered 
to service managers.  This was to further improve the relationships and quality of 
conversations between senior managers, to ensure that they provided clear and 

Page 247

Agenda Item 8



15

consistent leadership for the two organisations and understood the principles of what 
was covered in the Mastering Management programme.

85. The council launched a management development programme (Mastering 
Management) for the newly appointed shared service managers, team leaders and 
supervisors.  It includes a module on leading impact and influence that covered skills to 
influence others, work collaboratively and to have challenging and difficult 
conversations.  Another module is on leading performance that covered skills to raise 
performance through coaching within their teams. 

86. As part of the programme, the team leaders attend action learning sets where they 
discuss individual challenges and receive ideas on how to handle these situations from 
their colleagues.  In addition, some team leaders are being mentored by a service 
manager.  All these programmes ensure consistency of management practices across 
all levels of managers.  

87. The council will continue to develop councillors’ roles through a councillor development 
programme.  Following the elections in 2015, the council undertook a shared 
programme with Vale of White Horse District Council.  The programme included 
training and support to develop the effectiveness of councillors in their different roles in 
order to make decision-making in council and committee meetings more effective.  The 
programme encouraged councillors to engage in training to meet their needs as well as 
the council's needs.  

88. The council will continue to offer senior managers, service managers, and team 
leaders/supervisors further opportunities to consolidate their management development 
through refresher and follow-up sessions.  The council has offered an element of the 
mastering management programme (an introduction to Transactional Analysis) to all 
employees, to provide them with the opportunity to benefit from an understanding of 
how to apply this technique for interpersonal relationships.  This will continue to be 
offered to all employees.

Action: To continue to develop councillors’ and officers’ roles through ongoing training and 
development programmes during 2016/17.  

INTERNAL AUDIT AND THE ASSURANCE MANAGER
89. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 

opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievement of the council’s objectives.  It assists the council by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary.

90. The assurance manager contributes to the assurance process by commenting on the 
effectiveness and outcome of the programme of internal audits and comments on the 
effectiveness of the internal control environment of the council.  The internal audit 
services are completely harmonised with Vale of White Horse District Council.

Page 248

Agenda Item 8



16

91. The assurance manager’s overall opinion offers satisfactory assurance on the basis of 
internal audit’s own work during 2015/16.  There is basically a sound system of internal 
control in place, but there are some weaknesses, which may put some system 
objectives at risk.  

92. Internal audit is committed to providing anti-fraud and corruption training.  During 
2015/16, the internal audit team has undertaken proactive anti-fraud compliance testing 
to evaluate whether the control environment is sufficiently robust and to highlight areas 
of concern with regards to fraud and corruption issues. .  

93. One suspicion of fraud and corruption by officers/contractors was reported to the 
assurance manager in 2015/16.  This was investigated in accordance with the council’s 
anti-fraud and corruption policy, and no evidence could be found to support the 
allegation.  The assurance manager has reviewed the entries in the gifts and hospitality 
register and there are no concerns.    

94. Internal audit provides assurance that it has complied with the CIPFA Code and a 
formal quality assurance programme continues to be in place.  The internal audit 
framework was reviewed in 2015/2016 and no changes were required.  Internal audit 
has now adopted a full electronic approach to working papers.  

Action: To assess the need for anti-fraud and corruption training for councillors and officers 
in 2016/17.

RISK MANAGEMENT
95. Paragraphs 96 – 100 below describe the council’s framework for risk management.  

During 2015/16 there was little proactive risk management activity. A risk management 
resource is now in place reviewing the current arrangements and will deliver a revised 
risk management framework across the council.

96. The risk management approach ensures that all risks are linked to strategic objectives, 
the likelihood and impact are assessed, the gross and net risks are identified and 
responsibility for mitigating actions is assigned to appropriate officers.  The council has 
designated risk champions for all service areas who refresh the operational risk 
registers quarterly, which heads of service review.  The process requires the strategic 
management board to regularly review the strategic risk registers and also requires a 
report to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee summarising the contents of 
operational risk registers. 

97. The council has a strategic risk register, owned by the strategic management board, 
with clear links between risks and strategic objectives.  The process requires the 
strategic management board to review the strategic risk register.  Responsibility for 
implementing the required mitigating actions is assigned to a strategic director or the 
chief executive.  

98. Risk management is included in the induction package given to new employees.  
Guidance documents and procedures are available to all staff via a designated risk 
management area on the council’s intranet.  

Page 249

Agenda Item 8



17

99. The strategic management board has identified dependence on partnerships as a 
strategic risk and included this in the strategic risk register.    

100. Risk management has been incorporated into the council’s approach to writing report 
synopses where officers are required to detail the risks that the council faces in making 
its decision.

Action: To implement and embed the revised risk management arrangements in 2016/17.

ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY, MONEY LAUNDERING AND WHISTLEBLOWING
101. Internal audit’s rolling audit plan includes areas such as gifts and hospitality and the 

register of interests.  A pro-active anti-fraud review is completed each year, and testing 
will identify if existing management controls are sufficient.  The council has raised the 
profile of the anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy and the whistleblowing policy by 
increasing their visibility through inclusion on the council’s website and the inclusion of 
anti-fraud and corruption arrangements in induction packages for new employees.  

102. The council actively participates in the national anti-fraud initiative; publicises 
successful cases against fraud; has effective working arrangements; and shares 
intelligence with relevant partner organisations e.g. the police, Department for Work 
and Pensions, and the Housing Benefit Matching Service.  The council has a good 
record of prosecuting fraudsters and administering penalties and cautions.  It 
undertakes active recovery of fraudulent overpayments and ensures policies are 
applied consistently.

103. The internal control arrangements in place include the council’s Constitution, the 
provision of an internal audit service, the presence of an active Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee, transparent governance reporting through an assurance 
framework, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.  

104. The risk of money laundering to the council remains low.  However, the council has an 
anti-money laundering policy and procedure and has designated the section 151 officer 
to be the council’s anti-money laundering reporting officer.  

105. In 2011, the council reviewed the anti-money laundering policy making it a joint policy 
with Vale of White Horse District Council.  At the same time the anti-fraud and 
corruption policy was updated to build in the requirements of the Bribery Act.  In 
2015/16 the council reviewed the anti-fraud and corruption policy and the 
whistleblowing policy.  A review of the council’s anti-money laundering arrangements 
was also undertaken and an action plan is in place which includes the need to review 
and update the anti-money laundering policy. 

Action: To review the anti-money laundering policy in 2016/17.  

BUSINESS CONTINUITY 
106. The council completed a full review of its business continuity arrangements and how 

we responded to the Crowmarsh fire in January 2015.  A number of lessons learnt 
were identified, and the business continuity framework is now being revised to 

Page 250

Agenda Item 8



18

incorporate those.  The council has a joint disaster recovery site with Vale of White 
Horse District Council.  As part of the procurement process, contract specifications 
include a requirement for potential suppliers to provide the council with details of their 
business continuity arrangements.  

Action: To implement and embed the revised business continuity framework in 2016/17.

JOINT AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
107. In May 2015 the Council agreed to establish a joint audit and governance committee 

with Vale of White Horse District Council to replace both councils’ individual 
committees. The purpose of a joint committee is to ensure a consistent approach, 
avoid duplication of resources and improve joint working between both councils. The 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee undertakes the core functions of an audit 
committee as set out in CIPFA’s Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities (2005).  

Action: To continue to embed the joint audit and governance committee in 2016/17, in place 
of the individual committees at South and Vale.

108. Each council continues to have an individual audit and governance sub-committee to 
agree procedures for and handle individual code of conduct complaints against district, 
town and parish councillors. The joint committee and the sub-committees reviewed the 
procedures for dealing with code of conduct complaints in March 2016.

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
109. The scrutiny committees continue to help develop council policy and reviews 

performance in meeting council objectives, and the district scrutiny committee holds 
Cabinet accountable for its decisions.  In May 2015 the council agreed to establish a 
joint scrutiny committee with Vale of White Horse District Council to meet at least twice 
a year to review a number of standing items that affect both Councils.

Action: To continue to embed the joint scrutiny committee in 2016/17, meeting at least twice 
a year, to review a number of standing items that affect both councils such as the 
performance of contractors.

COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
110. The current code of conduct came into effect on 1 July 2012.  Following the elections in 

2015, we provided code of conduct training for district councillors and parish council 
clerks and chairman in 2015/16.  As the need arises, officers provide advice on the 
code to district and parish and town councillors as well as to parish and town clerks. 
The monitoring officer issued guidance on bias in decision-making in February 2016.  

111. In order to comply with the statutory requirements, the council appoints two 
independent persons to advise the monitoring officer and councillors on code of 
conduct complaints.  The monitoring officer decides what action to take on complaints.  

Page 251

Agenda Item 8



19

The monitoring officer did not refer any complaints to the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee in 2015/16.  

EXTERNAL SOURCES OF ASSURANCE ON THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

112. Issues raised by our external auditor, and other external inspectors are used to identify 
improvement areas in our governance arrangements.  Ernst & Young was appointed as 
the council’s external auditor from 1 September 2012.  

113. The council prepares its accounts under International Financial Reporting Standards 
and Ernst & Young issued an unqualified opinion on the council’s 2014/15 financial 
statements in September 2015.  

CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL CLAIMS

114. In January 2016, the Joint Audit and Governance Committee considered the annual 
certification report 2014/15 from the council’s external auditor, EY (previously known as 
Ernst & Young).  This looked at the sums the council claimed from the government in 
grants and subsidies and checked whether the council had correctly accounted for 
these in its returns to government.  EY had certified one claim worth £29.5m.  No 
qualification letter was issued.  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN

115. The Local Government Ombudsman provides summary information on complaints 
about the council to enable it to incorporate any feedback into service improvement.  

116. At its meeting in January 2016, the Joint Audit and Governance Committee considered 
the Ombudsman’s letter for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015.  During 2014/15 
the Local Government Ombudsman determined five complaints and found no evidence 
of maladministration by the council.  

Current governance issues

MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE

117. Since 31 March 2016, the chief executive has confirmed that he will retire on 31 August 
2016. The council has appointed a new chief executive shared with Vale of White 
Horse District Council and he will take up his role on 1 September 2016. One of his 
early tasks will be to bring forward proposals for and then implement a senior 
management restructure.

Action: To agree and implement a senior management restructure in 2016/17.

CORPORATE SERVICES PROJECT

118. The corporate services project commenced in April 2014, attracting three new
district council partners in addition to South and Vale and generating substantial market 

Page 252

Agenda Item 8



20

interest ahead of two simultaneous EU procurement exercises. In addition to re-
tendering services which South and Vale contracted out ten years ago to Capita, the 
councils also invited firms to tender for a range of services currently delivered by in 
house teams. In January 2016, Cabinet designated Capita as the preferred bidder for 
Lot 1 services (revenues and benefits, customer services, accountancy, licensing, land 
charges, IT operations, HR and procurement) and Vinci as the preferred bidder for Lot 
2 services (property management, facilities management and car parks).  Contracts are 
now in place with a service commencement date of 1 August 2016 for South and Vale.

119. The council entered into an inter authority agreement (IAA) with the other councils to 
cover the procurement and the governance of the future partnership of the councils 
(the 5 Councils Partnership).  In addition a joint client team, a joint committee and a 
joint scrutiny committee has been established to oversee the delivery of the contracts. 

Action: To embed the agreed governance arrangements for the corporate services 
contracts and the 5 Councils Partnership and to ensure that they are operating effectively.

120. The council proposes over the coming year to take steps to address the matters set out 
in the action boxes above to further enhance our governance arrangements.  We, the 
undersigned, are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that 
were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of our next annual review.  

Signature Date
David Hill, Chief Executive

Signature Date
John Cotton, Leader of the Council 

Page 253

Agenda Item 8



1

Annual Governance Statement 2015/16
CONTENTS

Scope of responsibility .............................................................................................2
The purpose of the governance framework............................................................3
The governance framework......................................................................................3

The strategic planning framework ........................................................................4
Performance management framework .................................................................5
Legal framework ...................................................................................................6
Financial framework .............................................................................................6
Risk management framework...............................................................................7

Review of effectiveness of the governance framework.........................................8
Review of objectives.............................................................................................8
Performance management and service work planning ........................................8
Legal framework.................................................................................................10
Financial framework ...........................................................................................11
Councillors’ and senior officers’ development ....................................................14
Internal audit and the assurance manager.........................................................15
Risk management...............................................................................................16
Anti-fraud, bribery, money laundering and whistleblowing .................................16
Business continuity.............................................................................................17
Joint Audit and Governance Committee.............................................................17
Scrutiny Committee ............................................................................................18
Councillors’ code of conduct ..............................................................................18
External sources of assurance on the governance framework ..........................18

Current governance issues ....................................................................................19

 

Page 254

Agenda Item 9



2

Scope of responsibility 

1. Vale of White Horse District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively.  

2. The council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in exercising its functions, having 
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

3. In discharging this overall responsibility, the council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise 
of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.  

4. The council has in place corporate governance arrangements, and has adopted a local 
code of governance.  This local code of governance is consistent with the “Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government” publication produced by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy and the Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives, which was published in 2007.  

5. This statement explains how Vale of White Horse District Council has complied with its 
code of governance, and how the council met the requirements of regulation 4(2) of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011, in relation to an annual review of the 
effectiveness of the council’s systems of internal control, and the preparation and 
approval of an annual governance statement.  

6. Our website at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk has a copy of the local code of corporate 
governance within its Constitution or it can be obtained from: 

Democratic Services
Vale of White Horse District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue
Milton Park 
Milton 
Abingdon 
OX14 4SB

Tel. 01235 422520 
Email: democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk 

Page 255

Agenda Item 9

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@southandvale.gov.uk


3

The purpose of the governance framework 

7. The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by 
which the council is directed and controlled, and activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads the community.  The governance framework enables the 
council to monitor achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have delivered appropriate, cost-effective services.  

8. The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve the 
council’s objectives, and therefore can only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an ongoing 
process designed to identify and prioritise risks to the achievement of the council’s 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

9. The council has had the governance framework described below in place for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the 2015/16 statement of 
accounts in September 2016.  

The governance framework 

10. The purpose of the governance framework is to do the right things, in the right way, for 
the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable manner.  Full 
Council is responsible for directing and controlling the organisation in this manner.  Full 
Council’s responsibilities include agreeing the Constitution and key governance 
documents, the policy framework, and the budget.  

11. The council has executive arrangements in place consisting of a cabinet, a scrutiny 
committee and a joint scrutiny committee with South Oxfordshire District Council.  
Cabinet is responsible for proposing the budget and policy framework, and 
implementing them once approved by Council.  The scrutiny function allows a 
committee to question and challenge the policy and performance of Cabinet and 
promote public debate.  

12. The chief executive, who was appointed joint chief executive of this council and South 
Oxfordshire District Council in September 2008, advises councillors on policy and 
procedures to drive the aims and objectives of the council.  As head of the officer staff, 
the chief executive oversees the employment and conditions of staff.  The chief 
executive leads a strategic management board that is shared with South Oxfordshire 
District Council.  The chief finance officer, the monitoring officer and heads of service 
are responsible for advising Cabinet and scrutiny committees on legislative, financial 
and other policy considerations to achieve the council’s objectives, and are responsible 
for implementing councillors’ decisions.  

13. The governance framework for 2015/16 was based on our local code of governance.  
Within the framework the council aims to meet the principles of good governance in all 
aspects of its work, giving particular attention to the main principles:

Page 256

Agenda Item 9



4

 Focusing on the council’s purpose and on outcomes for the community and 
creating and implementing a vision for the local area

 Councillors and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with 
clearly defined functions and roles

 Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour

 Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny 
and managing risk

 Developing the capacity and capability of councillors and officers to be effective
 Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 

accountability

THE STRATEGIC PLANNING FRAMEWORK
14. To ensure the council does the right things, in the right way, for the right people, in a 

timely, inclusive, open, honest, cost-effective and accountable manner, the strategic 
planning framework incorporates residents’ and service-providers’ views as well as 
national and local priorities.  

15. The councils’ strategic objectives and corporate priorities, are set out in their Corporate 
Plans. For 2015/16 these were:  

Housing and infrastructure
 Develop an ambitious housing strategy
 Reduce homelessness
 Tackle infrastructure challenges

Sustainable communities and wellbeing
 Facilitate sustainable communities
 Increase participation in sport and leisure
 Continue to improve our environment

Building an even stronger economy
 Create the right conditions for economic growth, so that businesses, residents 

and workers can prosper
 Optimise employment opportunities
 Support tourism in Vale
 Ensure the success of our town centres

Running an efficient council 
 Maintain high levels of resident satisfaction with how the council runs things

16. The four-year Corporate Plan (which has been revised for 2016-2020), along with 
Oxfordshire-wide plans, guide decisions on how the council invests financial and 
staffing resources.  These plans determine the types of projects the council supports 
through grant funding.  Arising from the Corporate Plan, there are detailed service work 
plans, identifying how services undertake specific activities to deliver the council’s 
priorities.  

Page 257

Agenda Item 9



5

17. The council’s work with partners takes place both locally to address local issues and 
also through some formal partnerships, which may be either service specific or more 
broadly strategic.  Some of the key formal partnerships include: 

 South and Vale Community Safety Partnership - this focuses on joint working to 
reduce crime and the fear of crime, and addresses broader community safety 
issues affecting local people.  It has an annual plan that sets out the partnership’s 
key aims and objectives for the year and is available on the council’s website.  

 Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership – this is a body made up of 
representatives from business, academia and the wider public sector.  The 
partnership’s aim is to be the catalyst for realising Oxfordshire’s economic and 
commercial potential.  The partnership is responsible for delivering the Science 
Vale Oxford enterprise zone.   

18. Our other key strategies include:

 The local plan: the council is developing its local plan to cover the period up to 
2031.  

 Equality objectives: the council has set equality objectives in line with the 
requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and to support the delivery of the council’s 
Corporate Plan priorities.  

 Boosting the local economy: partnership working is the key theme behind the 
council’s plans to boost its three market towns of Abingdon, Faringdon and 
Wantage.  The market towns action plans bring together new ideas alongside 
ongoing projects, as the council continues to work with the Choose Abingdon 
Partnership, and the Joint Economic Forums/Town Teams for Faringdon and 
Wantage, as well as the three respective town councils and various local groups, 
to help strengthen the local economy and bring more people to the towns.  The 
action plans are designed to support the council’s objectives of building the local 
economy, continuing to invest to improve the viability and attractiveness of our 
towns, and supporting business growth.  The Vale4Business partnership is a 
recently established Vale-wide business partnership that provides local 
businesses with a strategic business voice through closer working with the 
council.  

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
19. The council sets performance targets to achieve its strategic objectives and corporate 

priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.  To ensure the council meet targets and 
achieves objectives, it has multi-year service work plans and service targets, ensuring 
that a golden thread aligns the council’s top-level objectives to the work of each council 
officer.  Separately, the council reports performance to the government in accordance 
with the single data list.  

20. The council will measure performance on its corporate plan through regular reports to 
Cabinet members and annual reports to the Scrutiny Committee. The Strategic 
Management Board and Cabinet receive monthly board reports which monitor 
performance on a basket of key measures linked to the corporate plan; and an annual 
report which benchmarks our performance against other relevant district councils.    

Page 258

Agenda Item 9



6

21. The council has an individual development and performance review scheme focusing 
on agreement of targets linked to service work plans between managers and 
individuals.  Throughout the year, staff have meetings with their managers to review 
progress and discuss and plan personal development in line with the council’s 
objectives.  

22. As the council outsources a significant number of services, it operates a formal 
framework for monitoring contractors’ performance, and reporting these to the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee.  

LEGAL FRAMEWORK
23. The council’s Constitution sets out how it is managed and guides decision-making 

towards objectives, and includes a set of procedure rules that govern how we conduct 
our business.  It also includes protocols covering the disclosure of interests in 
contracts, and the relationship between officers and councillors.    The monitoring 
officer is responsible for ensuring the lawfulness of decision-making and maintaining 
the Constitution.  

24. All decisions are made in accordance with the requirements of the Constitution and the 
scheme of delegation, which forms part of the Constitution.  The monitoring officer will 
report to full Council or to Cabinet if she considers that any proposal, decision or 
omission would give rise to unlawfulness, or to the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee if any decision or omission has given rise to maladministration.  

25. In the role of monitoring officer, the head of legal and democratic services contributes 
to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct by councillors.  To this 
end, the council’s Constitution incorporates the councillors’ code of conduct.  

FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK
26. The section 151 officer is responsible for the overall management of the financial 

affairs of the council.  The section 151 officer determines all financial systems, 
procedures and supporting records of the council, after consultation with heads of 
service.  Any new or amended financial systems, procedures or practices are agreed 
with the section 151 officer before implementation.

27. Full Council is responsible for approving the treasury management strategy and for 
setting the revenue and capital budgets.  

28. The treasury management strategy governs the operation of the council’s treasury 
function, and is reviewed at least annually or during the year if it becomes necessary to 
do so.  This strategy includes parameters for lending and borrowing, and identifies the 
risks of treasury activity.  

29. Both revenue and capital budgets are set by full Council in February each year.  
Revenue budget setting includes both the calculation of the council tax base and the 
surplus or deficit arising from the collection fund.  

Page 259

Agenda Item 9



7

30. Cabinet has overall responsibility for the implementation of the council’s financial 
strategies and spending plans, and is authorised to make financial decisions subject to 
these being consistent with the budget and policy framework and the Constitution.  

31. Heads of service are responsible for ensuring the proper maintenance of financial 
procedures and records, and the security of assets, property, records, and data within 
their service area.  

32. The chief executive, strategic directors and heads of service consult with the head of 
finance and the head of legal and democratic services on the financial and legal 
implications of any report that they are proposing to submit to full Council, a committee 
(or sub-committee), or Cabinet.  

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
33. Paragraphs 34 – 39 below describe the council’s framework for risk management 

which has operated effectively for several years.  During 2015/16 there was little 
proactive risk management activity. A risk management resource is now in place 
reviewing the current arrangements and will deliver a revised risk management 
framework across the council. 

34. Risk management is important to the successful delivery of the council’s objectives.  An 
effective risk management system identifies and assesses risks, decides on 
appropriate responses and provides assurance that the chosen responses are 
effective.  The overall responsibility for effective risk management in the council lies 
with the chief executive supported by the strategic management board.  The council 
uses a standard risk management methodology which encompasses the identification, 
analysis, prioritisation, management and monitoring of risks.

35. Councillors have a responsibility to understand the strategic risks that the council 
faces, and are made aware of how these risks are being managed through reports to 
the Joint Audit and Governance Committee. 

36. The strategic management board is responsible for the identification, analysis and 
management of strategic risks and undertakes regular reviews of those risks.  

37. The council has operational risk registers in place for each service area and all heads 
of service are responsible for ensuring that risks are identified and prioritised and 
entered onto the risk register.  The council reviews and refreshes the operational risk 
registers each quarter.  

38. All line managers are responsible for implementing strategies at team level by ensuring 
adequate communication, training and the assessment and monitoring of risks.  All 
officers are responsible for considering risk as part of everyday activities and provide 
input to the risk management process.

39. The council also has business continuity management arrangements in place to ensure 
that priority services can continue to be delivered to our customers in the event of an 
unforeseen disruption.

Action: To implement and embed the revised risk management arrangements in 2016/17.
Page 260

Agenda Item 9



8

Review of effectiveness of the governance framework

40. The council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  The 
review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the managers within the council who 
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the assurance manager’s annual report, and also by comments made by 
the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

41. The following highlights our review of our governance framework and sets out the 
assurances of committees, officers and external organisations.

REVIEW OF OBJECTIVES
42. The section entitled the strategic planning framework (paragraph 14) sets out the 

council’s current strategic objectives following a major review of the Corporate Plan in 
2015/16.  This review included consideration of residents’ feedback from the biennial 
residents’ survey to ensure that the new plan reflects residents’ priorities.  

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE WORK PLANNING
43. The council has a monthly board report which contains a smaller set of key 

performance indicators selected by the strategic management board and Cabinet 
members.  
This graphically details performance in the main areas of council activity, including:
 planning
 housing
 finance
 waste management
 benefits administration

44. The charts in the board report present:
 current performance
 last year's performance for comparison
 year-end target
 latest year-end prediction by officers, where appropriate
 a narrative supplied by the responsible officer, where appropriate.

45. Monthly analysis of the board report demonstrates that the council is meeting the 
majority of key performance measures.  In addition, the analysis shows a long-term, 
on-going trend of improvement.

46. The board report is subject to a rigorous approval process, whereby it is checked by 
heads of service as data owners, and then by the strategic management board.  The 
council then publishes the report to its website and notifies all councillors.  Councillors 
may then request the addition of any aspects of poor performance to the agenda of the 
next Scrutiny or, where appropriate, Joint Scrutiny Committee meeting.  On a quarterly 
basis, Cabinet members discuss the report.  

Page 261

Agenda Item 9



9

47. The report has been well received by both councillors and senior management, and is 
constantly evolving to reflect management requirements.  Many graphs are automated 
so that they now take data directly from the underlying systems.  

48. The council has continued its approach of asking target and action owners to forecast 
whether they are on track to deliver year-end outcomes.  For each target or action that 
is 'below target’, the owner must provide an action to get back on track or an 
explanation.  

49. The council's approach to performance management has received critical acclaim from 
an independent report by the Advanced Performance Institute.  The council has made 
significant progress over the past years and has implemented a performance 
management system based on clearly defined output deliverables and priorities.  

50. In addition to the monthly board report, the council also produces an annual report that 
compares the council’s performance with all other non-metropolitan district councils.  
This is used internally to identify any relatively weak areas requiring attention.  

51. The council continues to operate a strong approach to service work planning, ensuring 
that targets and actions are SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and 
time-bound).  Following the management restructure with South Oxfordshire District 
Council, there is now a combined approach to service work planning across the two 
councils.  During 2013 and 2014 the council trained all managers on strategic 
objective-setting and briefed all staff on it.  Programme managers oversee actions 
owned by others and thus maximise the chances of the programme meeting its targets.  

52. As a further enhancement to the service work planning process, many teams are using 
‘performance points’.  A performance point is a regularly-updated notice board, 
displayed in a team’s service area, which shows how the team is performing against 
key performance targets.  However, there are also electronic performance points 
displaying real-time data.    Performance points:

 are divided into three main sections – customer excellence, business management 
and staff investment

 increase the visibility of targets and the progress against them
 increase the relevance of targets to teams
 are used at regular meetings to discuss performance
 are used to review performance with politicians and strategic directors

53. In 2012, following a review by Scrutiny Committee, the council made improvements to 
the system for monitoring the performance of contractors.

54. The combination of all of the approaches listed above is that the council has a strong 
focus on delivering priorities, managing performance against targets, and progressing 
actions.  

Action: To deliver the year one targets in the new four year corporate plan 2016-2020 
during 2016/17.  

Page 262

Agenda Item 9



10

LEGAL FRAMEWORK
55. In July 2008, the Council approved the creation of a shared senior management team 

with South Oxfordshire District Council.  In September 2008, the chief executive of 
South Oxfordshire District Council was appointed to the post of shared chief executive.  
In December 2008, strategic directors were appointed to the shared management 
team, in February 2009 shared heads of service were appointed, and in April 2010 
service managers took up their positions.  Since then, most staff have progressively 
moved into a role shared across the two councils.  At the outset of this shared process, 
the council’s monitoring officer was satisfied that the procedure adopted in the 
recruitment process complied with all relevant legislation.

56. Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority to enter into an 
agreement with another local authority to place its officers at the disposal of another 
authority.  Staff who are made available under such an arrangement are able to take 
binding decisions on behalf of the council at whose disposal they are placed, although 
they remain an employee of their original authority for employment and superannuation 
purposes.  This legislation therefore allows officers to be shared between the two 
councils.  Council authorised the head of legal and democratic services to enter into an 
agreement under section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 for this joint 
arrangement.  The section 113 agreement was completed on 26 September 2008 and 
updated on 18 February 2011.

57. In September 2008, Council agreed that all references to the chief executive, head of 
paid service, electoral registration officer and returning officer contained in the 
Constitution should apply to the shared chief executive when acting in those roles for 
each council with effect from 17 September 2008.  Following the appointment of the 
strategic directors and heads of service in 2008 and 2009 respectively, a harmonised 
scheme of delegation to officers and harmonised contract procedure rules were 
introduced to meet the requirements of joint working with South Oxfordshire District 
Council.

58. The Joint Constitution Review Group has been holding regular meetings during 
2015/16 with a view to creating, as far as possible a, single constitution for both 
Councils.  Some more time critical issues have already been approved by Council with 
a fully revised joint Constitution to be brought before this Council and South 
Oxfordshire District Council for approval in 2016/17.  

59. The monitoring officer did not need to use her statutory powers during the year.

60. Part 3 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 required all 
principal authorities to adopt either an elected mayor and cabinet or a new style ‘strong’ 
leader and cabinet.  The Council has adopted the strong leader model.  

61. Lexcel is the accreditation quality mark which the Law Society has developed.  This 
was awarded to the council’s legal team, which must undergo a rigorous independent 
assessment each year to ensure it meets the required standards of excellence in areas 
such as customer care, case management and risk management.  

Page 263

Agenda Item 9



11

Action: To continue to review the Constitution to meet the requirements of good governance 
arising from the joint working arrangements with South Oxfordshire District Council and to 
submit a joint Constitution to this Council and South Oxfordshire District Council in 2016/17.

FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK

FINANCIAL REPORTING

62. The council produced budget monitoring information for both revenue and capital 
income and expenditure every quarter from June onwards during the 2015/16 financial 
year.  Budget monitoring reports are available from the council’s financial management 
system, which are profiled, to heads of service and managers every quarter, within two 
weeks of the end of the period.  This ensures up-to-date information, for example by 
ensuring that all cash received up to the end of the previous period is reflected in the 
figures.  Heads of service and service managers are able to generate their own reports 
from the financial system at any time.

63. From quarter two onwards, heads of service are required to submit a return to 
accountancy, which provides reasons for budget variances, and forecasts the end of 
year outturn position.  These are collated into a budget monitoring report which is 
considered by the strategic management board before being reviewed by finance 
portfolio holders and circulated to other councillors.  These reports highlight the key 
budget variances being reported by each service, allowing management to focus on 
them.  If required, budget virements can be made during the year.  By making such 
budget virements in-year, the council is able to realign resources to ensure that 
overspends do not impact on its ability to deliver other services.  This is assisted by the 
prudent inclusion of a contingency budget. 

64. Budgetary control is subject to an internal audit review every three to four years.  
Otherwise, budgetary control is generally reviewed in audits of teams or service areas.  

65. For all committee reports for which a decision is required, a “financial implications” 
section is included which details the actual, and potential, financial consequences of 
the decision being taken.  An accountant ensures that this information is accurate and 
relevant.

66. In September 2015, the Joint Audit and Governance Committee approved the council’s 
financial statements for 2014/15, and the council’s external auditors issued an 
unqualified audit opinion.  

67. Officers keep up to date with the latest accounting developments, which enable them to 
be prepared for the changes in accounting practice that affect the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements.  The council subscribes to the Chartered 
Institute of Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) finance advisory network and 
accountants regularly attend these network events, enabling the council’s accountants 
to prepare for changes to accounting requirements.  Accountants that attend training 
courses report back to the rest of the accountancy team on the content of the course.  

Page 264

Agenda Item 9



12

68. Each year’s accounts and annual audit letter are available to the public and are 
published on the council’s website.  These are available in accessible formats on 
request.  To assist the public in understanding the accounts, there is an explanatory 
foreword in the financial statements that explains the purpose of the accounts and 
summarises the key messages arising from them.  There is also a glossary of terms 
within the accounts to aid understanding. 

BUDGET SETTING

69. Accountants meet with all service heads or their staff at least every quarter during the 
financial year to discuss performance against budget and to highlight areas of 
potentially significant over- or under-spend.  This information is used to prepare the 
budget monitoring reports presented to the strategic management board, and to 
substantiate any in-year budget transfers or supplementary estimates required to meet 
changing circumstances.  The in-year monitoring of budgets enables the following 
year’s budget setting process to be based on the latest estimates of income and 
expenditure.  

70. Every year the council sets a comprehensive and balanced budget, which provides 
adequate resources and there has been an absence of overspends against total 
budget in recent years.  

71. The council’s budget planning cycle is well established, starting with a base budget 
position produced by officers.  Officers complete the annual budget for consideration by 
Cabinet in early February, before it is discussed and approved at full Council later that 
month.  Scrutiny Committee reviews the budget during February.  Throughout the 
budget setting process the council’s financial position, and budget proposals, are 
regularly discussed informally by Cabinet and the strategic management board, which 
ensure that they have a good understanding of the financial situation.  

71. Once the budget is set, the monitoring of income and expenditure against budget 
continues throughout the financial year by the strategic management board, 
culminating in an outturn report that reflects on the overall performance against budget 
for the previous year.  These are based on returns provided by the heads of service.  

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN
 
72. Supporting the annual budget-setting process, each year the council publishes a five-

year medium term financial plan.  This provides a forward-looking budget model that 
estimates the council’s budget needs in future years, and indicates the required level of 
savings needed in future years to balance the budget.  This is based on assumptions of 
the most likely levels of such critical factors as government grant funding, the level of 
investment interest, and inflation.  These are subject to fluctuations. 

73. By using the medium term financial plan to estimate future council income and 
expenditure the council was able to freeze its council tax for 2015/16.  To ensure that 
the council can continue to focus on delivering services more efficiently during difficult 
economic times, it has taken a pro-active approach to identifying and delivering 
efficiency savings.  Savings realised when the council merged its management team 
with South Oxfordshire District Council and embraced “lean” business process re-

Page 265

Agenda Item 9



13

engineering have been added to by the sharing of offices.  These savings, along with 
other savings generated by service teams, enabled the freeze in council tax for 
2015/16.  All the savings identified to date were reasonable, having been subject to 
review by the strategic management board and Cabinet.  

74. The budget report presented to Cabinet included a summary of the estimated balance 
on key reserves at the end of the capital programme period.  Assumptions 
underpinning the estimates of reserves were deemed reasonable by the section 151 
chief finance officer.  

75. The council communicates key messages from its financial planning process to staff 
and stakeholders.  New staff undertake an induction process that includes an 
introduction to local government finance.  This makes staff aware of how the council’s 
budgets are constructed and of the financial pressures the council faces Staff involved 
in the budget setting process received appropriate guidance and training from 
accountancy staff.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

76. The council’s treasury management strategy, which Council agrees annually, sets out 
the council’s policy on managing its investments, which ensures that it has sufficient 
cash to meet its needs, and that returns are maximised whilst maintaining the security 
of the council’s assets.  The strategy has regard to the Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management, and the CIPFA Prudential Code.  Cabinet and the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee monitor performance against the strategy twice each year.

77. The council has reserves and short-term cash flow surpluses that generate interest 
income, which we use to support the revenue budget in year.  This can prove volatile 
and therefore prudent budget estimates of interest (based on market advice) are used 
when setting the medium term financial plan.  Prolonged low interest rates that have 
been experienced in recent years have had an impact on the funding available to the 
council.    

78. The Joint Audit and Governance Committee takes responsibility for ensuring effective 
scrutiny of the treasury management strategy, policies and performance in accordance 
with the CIPFA Prudential code and CIPFA Treasury Management code.

79. All the arrangements detailed above demonstrate that Cabinet and strategic 
management board exercise collective responsibility for financial matters.  All members 
of the strategic management board accept individual and collective responsibility for 
the stewardship of use of resources and financial accountability.

COMMENT ON THE ROLE OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

80. The council has reviewed its financial management arrangements to ensure that they 
conform with the requirements of CIPFA’s Application Note to Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Public 
Service Organisations.  

Page 266

Agenda Item 9



14

81. The section 151 officer, or chief financial officer, has a responsibility to ensure that an 
effective internal audit function is resourced and maintained.  The council requires its 
internal audit team to provide an effective service in accordance with professional 
standards, and internal audit officers must abide by the Institute of Internal Auditors 
Code of Ethics and receive suitable training and development to maintain the 
appropriate skills, experience and competence.  The performance of internal audit is 
subject to quarterly review by the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.

COUNCILLORS’ AND SENIOR OFFICERS’ DEVELOPMENT
82. Councillors are offered a comprehensive induction programme.  Soon after their 

election, councillors are invited to an induction to sign their declarations of acceptance 
of office and meet the service teams.  Training sessions on planning and licensing law 
have been held , along with a range of other skills based training e.g. chairing 
meetings, effective scrutiny, personal influencing, with needs assessment taking place 
in order to provide further relevant training.  Members of the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee also have a training programme.

83. Senior officers take part in induction sessions with all staff, along with the leader of the 
council.  The development opportunities for senior officers include support towards a 
nationally recognised qualification e.g. a Master of Business Administration.  They can 
attend programmes such as aiming to be a corporate director.  Attendees evaluate 
these programmes, provide feedback at the end of each session, and line managers 
review training during the development and performance review and the formal one to 
one process.  

84. The corporate management team has attended a leadership development programme, 
consisting of several workshops covering the principles of high performing teams and 
elements of the Mastering Management programme that had previously been delivered 
to service managers.  This was to further improve the relationships and quality of 
conversations between senior managers, to ensure that they provided clear and 
consistent leadership for the two organisations and understood the principles of what 
was covered in the Mastering Management programme.

85. The council launched a management development programme (Mastering 
Management) for the newly appointed shared service managers, team leaders and 
supervisors.  It includes a module on leading impact and influence that covered skills to 
influence others, work collaboratively and to have challenging and difficult 
conversations.  Another module is on leading performance that covered skills to raise 
performance through coaching within their teams. 

86. As part of the programme, the team leaders attend action learning sets where they 
discuss individual challenges and receive ideas on how to handle these situations from 
their colleagues.  In addition, some team leaders are being mentored by a service 
manager.  All these programmes ensure consistency of management practices across 
all levels of managers.  

87. The council will continue to develop councillors’ roles through a councillor development 
programme.  Following the elections in 2015, the council undertook a shared 
programme with South Oxfordshire District Council.  The programme included training 

Page 267

Agenda Item 9



15

and support to develop the effectiveness of councillors in their different roles in order to 
make decision-making in council and committee meetings more effective.  The 
programme encouraged councillors to engage in training to meet their needs as well as 
the council's needs.  

88. The council will continue to offer senior managers, service managers, and team 
leaders/supervisors further opportunities to consolidate their management development 
through refresher and follow-up sessions.  The council has offered an element of the 
mastering management programme (an introduction to Transactional Analysis) to all 
employees, to provide them with the opportunity to benefit from an understanding of 
how to apply this technique for interpersonal relationships.  This will continue to be 
offered to all employees.

Action: To continue to develop councillors’ and officers’ roles through ongoing training and 
development programmes during 2016/17.  

INTERNAL AUDIT AND THE ASSURANCE MANAGER
89. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 

opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievement of the council’s objectives.  It assists the council by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary.

90. The assurance manager contributes to the assurance process by commenting on the 
effectiveness and outcome of the programme of internal audits and comments on the 
effectiveness of the internal control environment of the council.  The internal audit 
services are completely harmonised with South Oxfordshire District Council.

91. The assurance manager’s overall opinion offers satisfactory assurance on the basis of 
internal audit’s own work during 2015/16.  There is basically a sound system of internal 
control in place, but there are some weaknesses, which may put some system 
objectives at risk.  

92. Internal audit is committed to providing anti-fraud and corruption training.  During 
2015/16, the internal audit team has undertaken proactive anti-fraud compliance testing 
to evaluate whether the control environment is sufficiently robust and to highlight areas 
of concern with regards to fraud and corruption issues; the compliance testing resulted 
in one low risk recommendation.  

93. No suspicion of fraud and corruption by councillors was reported to the assurance 
manager in 2015/16.  The assurance manager has reviewed the entries in the gifts and 
hospitality register and there are no concerns.    

94. Internal audit provides assurance that it has complied with the CIPFA Code and a 
formal quality assurance programme continues to be in place.  The internal audit 
framework was reviewed in 2015/2016 and no changes were required.  Internal audit 
has now adopted a full electronic approach to working papers.  

Page 268

Agenda Item 9



16

Action: To assess the need for anti-fraud and corruption training for councillors and officers 
in 2016/17.

RISK MANAGEMENT
95. Paragraphs 96 – 100 below describe the council’s framework for risk management.  

During 2015/16 there was little proactive risk management activity. A risk management 
resource is now in place reviewing the current arrangements and will deliver a revised 
risk management framework across the council.

96. The risk management approach ensures that all risks are linked to strategic objectives, 
the likelihood and impact are assessed, the gross and net risks are identified and 
responsibility for mitigating actions is assigned to appropriate officers.  The council has 
designated risk champions for all service areas who refresh the operational risk 
registers quarterly, which heads of service review.  The process requires the strategic 
management board to regularly review the strategic risk registers and also requires a 
report to the Joint Audit and Governance Committee summarising the contents of 
operational risk registers. 

97. The council has a strategic risk register, owned by the strategic management board, 
with clear links between risks and strategic objectives.  The process requires the 
strategic management board to review the strategic risk register.  Responsibility for 
implementing the required mitigating actions is assigned to a strategic director or the 
chief executive.  

98. Risk management is included in the induction package given to new employees.  
Guidance documents and procedures are available to all staff via a designated risk 
management area on the council’s intranet.  

99. The strategic management board has identified dependence on partnerships as a 
strategic risk and included this in the strategic risk register.    

100. Risk management has been incorporated into the council’s approach to writing report 
synopses where officers are required to detail the risks that the council faces in making 
its decision.

Action: To implement and embed the revised risk management arrangements in 2016/17.

ANTI-FRAUD, BRIBERY, MONEY LAUNDERING AND WHISTLEBLOWING
101. Internal audit’s rolling audit plan includes areas such as gifts and hospitality and the 

register of interests.  A pro-active anti-fraud review is completed each year, and testing 
will identify if existing management controls are sufficient.  The council has raised the 
profile of the anti-fraud, bribery and corruption policy and the whistleblowing policy by 
increasing their visibility through inclusion on the council’s website and the inclusion of 
anti-fraud and corruption arrangements in induction packages for new employees.  

102. The council actively participates in the national anti-fraud initiative; publicises 
successful cases against fraud; has effective working arrangements; and shares 
intelligence with relevant partner organisations e.g. the police, Department for Work 

Page 269

Agenda Item 9



17

and Pensions, and the Housing Benefit Matching Service.  The council has a good 
record of prosecuting fraudsters and administering penalties and cautions.  It 
undertakes active recovery of fraudulent overpayments and ensures policies are 
applied consistently.

103. The internal control arrangements in place include the council’s Constitution, the 
provision of an internal audit service, the presence of an active Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee, transparent governance reporting through an assurance 
framework, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.  

104. The risk of money laundering to the council remains low.  However, the council has an 
anti-money laundering policy and procedure and has designated the section 151 officer 
to be the council’s anti-money laundering reporting officer.  

105. In 2011, the council reviewed the anti-money laundering policy making it a joint policy 
with South Oxfordshire District Council.  At the same time the anti-fraud and corruption 
policy was updated to build in the requirements of the Bribery Act.  In 2015/16 the 
council reviewed the anti-fraud and corruption policy and the whistleblowing policy.  A 
review of the council’s anti-money laundering arrangements was also undertaken and 
an action plan is in place which includes the need to review and update the anti-money 
laundering policy. 

Action: To review the anti-money laundering policy in 2016/17.  

BUSINESS CONTINUITY 
106. The council completed a full review of its business continuity arrangements and how 

we responded to the Crowmarsh fire in January 2015.  A number of lessons learnt 
were identified, and the business continuity framework is now being revised to 
incorporate those.  The council has a joint disaster recovery site with South Oxfordshire 
District Council.  As part of the procurement process, contract specifications include a 
requirement for potential suppliers to provide the council with details of their business 
continuity arrangements.  

Action: To implement and embed the revised business continuity framework in 2016/17.

JOINT AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
107. In May 2015 the Council agreed to establish a joint audit and governance committee 

with South Oxfordshire District Council to replace both councils’ individual committees. 
The purpose of a joint committee is to ensure a consistent approach, avoid duplication 
of resources and improve joint working between both councils. The Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee undertakes the core functions of an audit committee as set out 
in CIPFA’s Audit Committees – Practical Guidance for Local Authorities (2005).  

Action: To continue to embed the joint audit and governance committee in 2016/17, in place 
of the individual committees at South and Vale.

Page 270

Agenda Item 9



18

108. Each council continues to have an individual audit and governance sub-committee to 
agree procedures for and handle individual code of conduct complaints against district, 
town and parish councillors. The joint committee and the sub-committees reviewed the 
procedures for dealing with code of conduct complaints in March 2016.

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
109. The scrutiny committees continue to help develop council policy and reviews 

performance in meeting council objectives, and the district scrutiny committee holds 
Cabinet accountable for its decisions.  In May 2015 the council agreed to establish a 
joint scrutiny committee with South Oxfordshire District Council to meet at least twice a 
year to review a number of standing items that affect both Councils.

Action: To continue to embed the joint scrutiny committee in 2016/17, meeting at least twice 
a year, to review a number of standing items that affect both councils such as the 
performance of contractors.

COUNCILLORS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
110. The current code of conduct came into effect on 1 July 2012.  Following the elections in 

2015, we provided code of conduct training for district councillors and parish council 
clerks and chairman in 2015/16.  As the need arises, officers provide advice on the 
code to district and parish and town councillors as well as to parish and town clerks. 
The monitoring officer issued guidance on bias in decision-making in February 2016.  

111. In order to comply with the statutory requirements, the council appoints two 
independent persons to advise the monitoring officer and councillors on code of 
conduct complaints.  The monitoring officer decides what action to take on complaints.  
The monitoring officer did not refer any complaints to the Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee in 2015/16 but referred one complaint for investigation.  

EXTERNAL SOURCES OF ASSURANCE ON THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

112. Issues raised by our external auditor, and other external inspectors are used to identify 
improvement areas in our governance arrangements.  Ernst & Young was appointed as 
the council’s external auditor from 1 September 2012.  

113. The council prepares its accounts under International Financial Reporting Standards 
and Ernst & Young issued an unqualified opinion on the council’s 2014/15 financial 
statements in September 2015.  

CERTIFICATION OF ANNUAL CLAIMS

114. In January 2016, the Joint Audit and Governance Committee considered the annual 
certification report 2014/15 from the council’s external auditor, EY (previously known as 
Ernst & Young).  This looked at the sums the council claimed from the government in 
grants and subsidies and checked whether the council had correctly accounted for 
these in its returns to government.  EY had certified one claim worth £27.7m.  No 
qualification letter was issued

Page 271

Agenda Item 9



19

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN

115. The Local Government Ombudsman provides summary information on complaints 
about the council to enable it to incorporate any feedback into service improvement.  

116. At its meeting in January 2016, the Joint Audit and Governance Committee considered 
the Ombudsman’s letter for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015.  During 2014/15 
the Local Government Ombudsman determined five complaints and found two 
instances of maladministration by the council.  

Current governance issues

MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE

117. Since 31 March 2016, the chief executive has confirmed that he will retire on 31 August 
2016. The council has appointed a new chief executive shared with South Oxfordshire 
District Council and he will take up his role on 1 September 2016. One of his early 
tasks will be to bring forward proposals for and then implement a senior management 
restructure.

Action: To agree and implement a senior management restructure in 2016/17.

CORPORATE SERVICES PROJECT

118. The corporate services project commenced in April 2014, attracting three new
district council partners in addition to South and Vale and generating substantial market 
interest ahead of two simultaneous EU procurement exercises. In addition to re-
tendering services which South and Vale contracted out ten years ago to Capita, the 
councils also invited firms to tender for a range of services currently delivered by in 
house teams. In January 2016, Cabinet designated Capita as the preferred bidder for 
Lot 1 services (revenues and benefits, customer services, accountancy, licensing, land 
charges, IT operations, HR and procurement) and Vinci as the preferred bidder for Lot 
2 services (property management, facilities management and car parks).  Contracts are 
now in place with a service commencement date of 1 August 2016 for South and Vale.

119. The council entered into an inter authority agreement (IAA) with the other councils to 
cover the procurement and the governance of the future partnership of the councils 
(the 5 Councils Partnership).  In addition a joint client team, a joint committee and a 
joint scrutiny committee has been established to oversee the delivery of the contracts. 

Action: To embed the agreed governance arrangements for the corporate services 
contracts and the 5 Councils Partnership and to ensure that they are operating effectively.

120. The council proposes over the coming year to take steps to address the matters set out 
in the action boxes above to further enhance our governance arrangements.  We, the 
undersigned, are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that 
were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of our next annual review.  

Page 272

Agenda Item 9



20

Signature Date
David Hill, Chief Executive

Signature Date
Matthew Barber, Leader of the Council 

Page 273

Agenda Item 9



South Oxfordshire District Council, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Abingdon, Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB www.southoxon.gov.uk 

Finance
HEAD OF SERVICE: WILLIAM JACOBS 

Andrew Brittain
Ernst & Young 
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading
RG1 1YE

Contact officer:  William Jacobs  
william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk

Tel: 01235 422480
 

Textphone users add 18001 before you dial

Your reference: 
Our reference:

26 September 2016

Dear Andrew

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of South Oxfordshire District Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 
March 2016. We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the 
information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form 
an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of South Oxfordshire District Council as of 31 March 2016 and of its 
expenditure and income for the year then ended in accordance with the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015-16.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to 
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an examination 
of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you 
considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor 
necessarily be expected to disclose – all fraud, shortages, errors and other 
irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for 
the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for 
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations (England) 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16.

Page 274

Agenda Item 10

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial 
statements. We believe the financial statements referred to above give a true and 
fair view of the financial position and of its expenditure and income of the Council 
in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16 and are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.

4. We believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to enable 
the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015-16 that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in 
the accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and 
pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in 
the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. We have not 
corrected these differences identified by and brought to the attention from the 
auditor because they do not have a material impact on the financial position of 
the council as shown in the financial statements.

B. Fraud 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud

2. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management or 
other employees who have a significant role in the Council’s internal controls 
over financial reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or 
suspected fraud involving other employees in which the fraud could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. We have no knowledge of any 
allegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud, 
(regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations 
by “whistleblowers”) which could result in a misstatement of the financial 
statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1. We have disclosed to you all known actual or suspected noncompliance with 
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
financial statements.

D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 
other matters as agreed in terms of the audit engagement.

Page 275

Agenda Item 10



 Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 
audit.

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence and

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Joint Scrutiny Committee and Joint Audit and Governance Committees 
(or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been 
prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting on the following date: 
26 September 2016. 

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification 
of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related 
parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are 
aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and 
services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and 
transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related 
balances due to or from such parties at the year end. These transactions have 
been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

5. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of 
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or 
other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, 
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately 
reflected in the financial statements. 

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, 
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation 
and claims, both actual and contingent. 

F. Subsequent Events 

1. There have been no events subsequent to period end which require adjustment 
of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

G. Accounting Estimates 

1. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting 
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

2. Accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in the financial statements:

 We believe the measurement processes, including related assumptions and 
models, we used in determining accounting estimates is appropriate and the 
application of these processes is consistent. Page 276

Agenda Item 10



 The disclosures relating to accounting estimates are complete and appropriate 
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

 The assumptions we used in making accounting estimates appropriately 
reflects our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of 
the entity, where relevant to the accounting estimates and disclosures.

 No subsequent event requires an adjustment to the accounting estimates and 
disclosures included in the financial statements.

H Retirement benefits 

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate 
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme 
liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All significant 
retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 
properly accounted for. 

I Use of the Work of an Expert

1. We agree with the findings of Barnett Waddingham engaged to provide IAS19 
valuation services for the defined benefit pension scheme as set out in Note 17 
and have adequately considered the qualifications of the experts in determining 
the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the 
underlying accounting records. 

2. We believe the measurement processes employed, including related 
assumptions and models, in determining accounting estimates is appropriate and 
consistent with our expectations.

3. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the experts with respect 
to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not 
otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or 
objectivity of the experts.

Yours sincerely 

________________________
Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed at the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee on 26 September 2016

_____________________
Chairman of Joint Audit and Governance Committee

Page 277

Agenda Item 10



Vale of White Horse District Council, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Abingdon, Oxfordshire 
OX14 4SB www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

Finance
HEAD OF SERVICE: WILLIAM JACOBS 

Andrew Brittain
Ernst & Young 
Apex Plaza
Forbury Road
Reading
RG1 1YE

Contact officer: William Jacobs  
william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk

Tel: 01235 422480
 

Textphone users add 18001 before you dial

Your reference: 
Our reference: 

26 September 2016

Dear Andrew

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial 
statements of Vale of White Horse District Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 
31 March 2016. We recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the 
information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form 
an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of Vale of White Horse District Council as of 31 March 2016 and of 
its expenditure and income for the year then ended in accordance with the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015-16.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to 
express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), which involves an examination 
of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you 
considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor 
necessarily be expected to disclose – all fraud, shortages, errors and other 
irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for 
the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for 
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations (England) 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16.

Page 278

Agenda Item 11

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial 
statements. We believe the financial statements referred to above give a true and 
fair view of the financial position and of its expenditure and income of the Council 
in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16 and are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions. We have approved the financial statements.

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are appropriately described in the financial statements.

4. We believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to enable 
the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015-16 that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

B. Fraud 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud

2. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

3. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management or 
other employees who have a significant role in the Council’s internal controls 
over financial reporting. In addition, we have no knowledge of any fraud or 
suspected fraud involving other employees in which the fraud could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. We have no knowledge of any 
allegations of financial improprieties, including fraud or suspected fraud, 
(regardless of the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations 
by “whistleblowers”) which could result in a misstatement of the financial 
statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of the Council.

C. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

1. We have disclosed to you all known actual or suspected noncompliance with 
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the 
financial statements.

D. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 
other matters as agreed in terms of the audit engagement.

 Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 
audit.

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence and

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements. Page 279

Agenda Item 11



3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Joint Scrutiny Committee and Joint Audit and Governance Committees 
(or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been 
prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting on the following date: 
26 September 2016. 

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification 
of related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related 
parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are 
aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and 
services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and 
transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related 
balances due to or from such parties at the year end. These transactions have 
been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the financial statements.

5. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of 
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or 
other requirements of all outstanding debt.

E. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, 
whether written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately 
reflected in the financial statements. 

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, 
whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation 
and claims, both actual and contingent. 

F. Subsequent Events 

1. There have been no events subsequent to period end which require adjustment 
of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

G. Accounting Estimates 

1. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting 
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

2. Accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in the financial statements:

 We believe the measurement processes, including related assumptions and 
models, we used in determining accounting estimates is appropriate and the 
application of these processes is consistent.

 The disclosures relating to accounting estimates are complete and appropriate 
in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

 The assumptions we used in making accounting estimates appropriately 
reflects our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of 
the entity, where relevant to the accounting estimates and disclosures.

Page 280

Agenda Item 11



 No subsequent event requires an adjustment to the accounting estimates and 
disclosures included in the financial statements.

H Retirement benefits 

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate 
enquiries, we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme 
liabilities are consistent with our knowledge of the business. All significant 
retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 
properly accounted for. 

I Use of the Work of an Expert

1. We agree with the findings of Barnett Waddingham engaged to provide IAS19 
valuation services for the defined benefit pension scheme as set out in Note 16 
and have adequately considered the qualifications of the experts in determining 
the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the 
underlying accounting records. 

2. We believe the measurement processes employed, including related 
assumptions and models, in determining accounting estimates is appropriate and 
consistent with our expectations.

3. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the experts with respect 
to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not 
otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or 
objectivity of the experts.

Yours sincerely

________________________
Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer 

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed at the Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee on 26 September 2016

_____________________
Chairman of Joint Audit and Governance Committee

Page 281

Agenda Item 11



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Assurance Manager
Author: Adrianna Partridge
Telephone: 01235 540389
Textphone: 18001 01235 540455
E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 26 September 2016

Internal audit activity report quarter two 
2016/2017 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 
at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been 
taken where necessary. 

2 The contact officer for this report is Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager for South 
Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC), 
telephone 01235 422485.

Strategic Objectives 

3. Managing our business effectively.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 282

Agenda Item 12

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Background 

4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary. After each audit 
assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the control 
environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements where 
applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses. 

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following:

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied.

Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk.

Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk.

Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls.

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings:

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control

2016/2017 Audit Reports

7. Since the last audit and governance committee meeting, the following audits and follow 
up reviews have been completed:

Completed Audits

Full Assurance: 0
Substantial Assurance: 2
Satisfactory Assurance: 2
Limited Assurance: 1
Nil Assurance: 0

Page 283

Agenda Item 12



Assurance 
Rating

N
o.

 o
f R

ec
s

H
ig

h 
R

is
k 

R
ec

s.

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

  R
is

k 
R

ec
s.

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

 R
is

k 
R

ec
s.

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Joint
Gifts and Hospitality 
1617

Substantial 1 0 0 1 1 0 0

Risk Management 1617 Limited 14 8 8 4 4 2 2
Safeguarding Children & 
Young People and 
Vulnerable Adults 1617

Substantial 3 0 0 1 1 2 2

Training and 
Development 1617

Satisfactory 1 1 1 0 0 0 0

Comments and 
Complaints 1617

Satisfactory 5 0 0 4 4 1 1

VWHDC Investigation
West Way Botley August 
2016

N/A 13 6 6 4 4 3 3

Follow Up Reviews

Initial
Assurance 
Given

N
o.

 o
f R

ec
s

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

N
ot

 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

O
ng

oi
ng

Joint
Partnership Performance 
Monitoring Limited 4 0 0 4 0

8. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 
audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee 

9. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 
and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.  

10. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the strategic 
management board, the section 151 officer and the relevant member portfolio holder. In 
addition to the above arrangements, reports are now published on the councils’ intranet.

11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-financial and non-
key financial audits to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   
All key financial system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual 
assurance cycle.

Page 284

Agenda Item 12



Overdue Recommendations

12. Appendix 2 of this report summarises all overdue recommendations within each service 
area.  The report has been circulated to the relevant service manager, heads of service, 
the strategic management board and the portfolio holder.  

Financial Implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

14. None.

Risks

15.  Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

ADRIANNA PARTRIDGE
ASSURANCE MANAGER

 

Page 285

Agenda Item 12



APPENDIX 1

1. JOINT RISK MANAGEMENT 2016/2017

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and 
the management of risk in relation to risk management.  The audit has a 
priority score of 28.  The draft report was issued on 21 June 2016 and the 
final report was issued on 13 July 2016.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review 
to provide assurance that:

 adequate policies, procedures and guidance notes are in place for 
risk management;

 the risk management process is in line with best practice;
 all appropriate members and officers have received risk 

management training;
 the risk management process is embedded within councils’ 

processes;
 risk identification, management and analysis processes are 

operating effectively;
 adequate risk management performance and management 

reporting processes are in place.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Risk can be defined as the combination of the probability of an event and its 
consequences.  In all types of undertaking, there is the potential for events 
and consequences that constitute opportunities for benefit (upside) or 
threats to success (downside).  Risk management is a central part of any 
organisation’s strategic management.  It is the process whereby 
organisations methodically address the risks attaching to their activities, with 
the goal of achieving sustained benefit within each activity and across the 
portfolio of all activities.

2.2 Each service area has in place an operational risk register, which either the 
heads of service or a nominated officer should be reviewing regularly.  The 
strategic management board should be regularly reviewing the strategic risks.  
Both of these activities include the development of risk mitigation actions 
designed to reduce the likelihood and/or consequences of adverse events 
occurring and preventing the councils’ from achieving its corporate priorities.  
The councils’ approach to risk management, according to the Constitution, is 
overseen by the joint audit and governance committee.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 SODC
Risk management was last subject to an internal audit review in August 
2012 and eight recommendations were raised.  Of the eight 
recommendations, four were agreed and a satisfactory assurance opinion 
was issued.

Page 286

Agenda Item 12



3.2 Of the four recommendations, one has been implemented and three 
recommendations are no longer applicable and have been superseded.  
No joint recommendations have been restated as part of this review.

3.3 VWHDC
Risk management was last subject to an internal audit review in August 
2012 and nine recommendations were raised.  Of the nine 
recommendations, five were agreed and a satisfactory assurance opinion 
was issued.

3.4 Of the five recommendations, one has been implemented and four 
recommendations are no longer applicable and have been superseded.  
No joint recommendations have been restated as part of this review.

4. 2016/2017 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the 
internal control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the 
level of non-compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2 14 joint recommendations have been raised in this review.  Eight high 
risk, four medium risk and two low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Policies, procedures and guidance notes

5.1.1 A risk management strategy 2013-2016 is in place and was approved by the 
audit and governance committee in July 2013 (SODC) and June 2013 
(VWHDC).  The strategy is available to all officers via the councils’ intranet; 
however review found that the strategy is not in line with best practice.

5.1.2 In support of the risk management strategy, detailed guidance have been 
developed on the following areas:-
 identifying equality and diversity related risks;
 risk management process;
 risk register;
 partnership risks.
Review found that the guidance required updating as they were last reviewed 
between 2009 and 2011.  It was also established that currently there is no 
guidance in place for undertaking risk assessments prior to all projects or an 
impact guide to assist in scoring the potential risk.

5.1.3 Raising the awareness of risk management to new officers is not occurring as 
risk management is not part of corporate induction.  It is however part of the 
employees’ handbook.  Currently within service areas there are no risk 
champions to review their operational risk register and make staff risk aware.  
Also, a risk management working group has not been developed to meet on a 
regular basis to discuss and exchange ways of better managing risks.  It is 
noted that there was no specific risk management resource from November 
2013, but a new risk and insurance officer post started in April 2016 when the 
responsibility for risk management moved to finance.

Page 287

Agenda Item 12



5.1.4 Area assurance: Limited
Four recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Recs 1, 2, 3 & 4).

5.2 Best practice

5.2.1 In December 2013, CIPFA published audit committee in local authorities and 
police guidance, which sets out CIPFA’s best practice guidance of the roles 
and responsibilities of the audit committees and states that one of the core 
functions of the committee is risk management.  Review of the roles and 
functions of the councils’ audit and governance committee confirmed that the 
committee has responsibility for ensuring risk management operates 
effectively at the councils.  Risk management updates were reported annually 
to the committee, however review of committee reports found that a risk 
management update report last went to committee in March 2014 and the 
report did not give the committee appropriate and full information to fulfil their 
duties.

5.2.2 The risk management standards, produced by the Institute of Risk 
Management (IRM), sets out best practice guidance for the whole risk 
management process, including having a designated risk officer in place.  In 
April 2016, the councils appointed a designated risk officer who replaced the 
officer that left in November 2013.  The standards also gives details of the 
role and responsibilities of the risk officer, which review of the risk officer’s job 
description confirmed that roles and responsibilities are in line with best 
practice.

5.2.3 Assurance has currently not integrated its processes in line with the risk 
management process.  The current risk register cannot be relied upon to 
develop the annual audit plan, individual audit terms of reference and audit 
working papers.  However, risk is considered when developing the audit plan 
as it determines the priority of the audits to undertake in coming year.  Any 
risks identified during the audit review and recommended actions made are 
also not fed back into the risk management process and entered onto the 
appropriate risk register.  A dedicated risk officer is now in place and is 
currently developing a new risk management framework, which will include 
ensuring that the risk registers are up-to-date, regularly reviewed and any 
significant risks identified in the audit review, are added onto that service 
area’s risk register.

5.2.4 IRM risk management standards also include details which should be 
considered when developing a risk register.  Review of the risk register 
template for both SODC and VWHDC confirmed that the risk register meets 
best practice requirements.  However, it is proposed that the risk register 
templates are reviewed and updated to make it more user friendly.

5.2.5 Area assurance: Limited
Three recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area 
(Recs 5, 6 & 7).

Page 288

Agenda Item 12



5.6 Risk management performance reporting

5.6.1 Roles and responsibilities are clearly stated in the risk management strategy, 
which is available on the intranet.  Review of the operational risk register 
found that they are not reviewed on a regular basis or reported to the 
designated risk officer.  The strategic management board (SMB) also does 
not receive risk management update reports on a regular basis, but it is noted 
that the audit and governance committee’s update report is sent to SMB prior 
to committee for review, which was last sent to committee in March 2014.

5.6.2 Area assurance: Limited
Two recommendations have been made and a further discrepancy was 
noted, which is included in other objective recommendations, as a result of 
our work in this area (Recs 13 & 14).

5.3 Risk management training

5.3.1 Risk management is not part of the councils’ corporate induction, but is 
included in the employee handbook.  It is also noted that risk management 
training has not been offered to make staff aware that they are responsible 
for considering risk as part of everyday activities and provide input to the risk 
management process.  Audit and governance committee members last 
received risk management guidance training in March 2013, but with turnover 
of members since, further training is required.

5.4 Embedment of risk management

5.4.1 It was identified that the strategic management board (SMB) does not discuss 
risk management as a separate agenda item, however it is noted that at each 
meeting SMB focuses on the both current and future business-critical issues 
which need to be planned for and risk is considered.

5.4.2 Nominated risk champions are not in place to support their heads of service 
with promoting risk management; hence operational risk registers have not 
been reviewed and updated since 2013/2014.  However, risk management is 
an agenda item and discussed during service manager meetings.  It is noted 
that a risk & insurance officer has been in place since April 2016 and is 
responsible for reviewing, updating and maintaining the risk management 
process.

5.4.3 Area assurance: Limited
Three discrepancies were noted as a result of our work in this area, which 
have been included in other objective recommendations (Recs 4, 11 & 14).

5.5 Risk identification, management and analysis

5.5.1 Guidance on risk identification, management and analysis are in place and 
available to all staff via the councils’ intranet site.  Review of both the 
strategic and operational risk registers found that they are not regularly 
reviewed and were last updated in 2013/2014.  Due to the risk registers not 
being reviewed regularly, services areas are not continuously reviewing 
emerging risks.  Review of the strategic risk register also found that key risks 
were identified for three out of the five corporate priorities.  It is noted that the 
corporate plan 2016-2020 was approved by Cabinet on 7 April 2016 (SODC) 
and 15 April 2016 (VWHDC), but this update has yet to take place in the risk 
registers.

5.5.2 The project business case template includes a section on risk, which should 
be completed to identify any possible risks that could prevent the project from 
succeeding.  Review of ten projects, from the projects register, found that 
risks were identified for all ten projects.  However, the risk management 
process was not fully completed and a consistent approach was not 
undertaken.  It is noted that during the audit review, the risk and insurance 
officer implemented a new project risk assessment framework.

5.5.3 Area assurance: Limited
Three recommendations have been made and a further two discrepancies 
were noted, which are included in other objective recommendations, as a 
result of our work in this area (Recs 2, 4, 10, 11, & 12).

Page 289

Agenda Item 12



6. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

6.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 
recommendations according to their level of priority as follows:

High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action

Recs 1, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 
10 and 11

Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action

Recs 2, 3, 13 and 14

Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control

Recs 7 and 12

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND GUIDANCE NOTES

1. Risk management strategy review (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A risk management strategy is in 
place, which is:-
 in line with best practice;
 version controlled;
 approved by the audit & 

governance committee and 
made available to all staff via 
the councils’ intranet site.

Findings
Review of the risk management 
strategy 2013-2016 found that it is 
not in line with best practice as the 
strategy does not:-
 include a risk management 

policy statement;
 states the purpose or objective 

of the strategy;
 give details of undertaking risk 

assessments before starting a 
project;

 define the role and 
responsibilities of the councils’ 
board or committee;

 link the strategy to health and 
safety, insurance, and 
information governance.

Review also found that the strategy 
is not version controlled to 
confirm:-
 the author;
 the date the strategy was 

reviewed;
 the next review date;

a) A review of the risk 
management strategy 
should be undertaken to 
ensure that all best 
practice areas are 
covered.

b) The risk management 
strategy should also be 
version controlled stating:-
 the author of the 

strategy;
 the date the strategy 

was reviewed;
 the date the strategy 

was approved and by 
whom;

 the next review date 
due.

c) After the risk management 
strategy is finalised, the 
strategy should be:-
 approved by the joint 

audit & governance 
committee;

 made available to the 
all staff via the 
councils’ intranet site.

Risk and insurance officer

Page 290

Agenda Item 12



 who approved the strategy.

It is noted that the risk 
management strategy 2013-2016 
was approved by the audit & 
governance committee in July 2013 
(SODC) and June 2013 (VWHDC).  
The current strategy requires 
updating and requires approval 
from the joint audit & governance 
committee.

Risk
If the risk management strategy is 
not in line with best practice, there 
is a risk that the councils do not 
fully embed risk management 
resulting in the council’s corporate 
priorities not being achieved.

If the risk management strategy is 
not version controlled, there is a 
risk of the strategy not being 
reviewed and updated on a regular 
basis.

If the joint audit & governance 
committee does not approve the 
revised risk management strategy, 
there is a legislative risk as the 
councils are not approving 
strategies as required by the 
Constitution.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A risk management action plan is in place to deliver a new risk 
management framework to the councils.  The aim is to present the 
new risk management strategy and framework for approval to the 
audit and governance committee at the January 2017 meeting.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

23 January 2017

2. Guidance notes review (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Guidance on risk management 
fully developed, regularly reviewed 
and up-to-date. 

Findings
Review of the risk management 
guidance on the intranet found 
that:-
 A guide to identifying equality 

and diversity related risks was 
last reviewed in April 2010;

 A guide to the risk 

a) A review of the risk 
management guidance 
currently in place should 
be reviewed and updated.

b) Guidance should be 
developed on steps of 
undertaking risk 
assessments on projects, 
so that project managers 
can consistently evaluate 
the potential risks and 
develop strategies to 
address them to improve 

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Page 291

Agenda Item 12



management process was last 
reviewed in August 2011;

 An explanation of the risk 
register was last reviewed in 
February 2009;

 A guide to partnership risks 
was last reviewed in January 
2010.

Review of the risk management 
guidance intranet page found that 
there was no guidance in place 
on:-
 Risk management impact -

assisting relevant officers on 
determining the impact the risk 
will have in achieving the 
councils’ corporate priorities, 
when scoring their risks.

 Project risk management - 
assisting project managers on 
undertaking risk assessments 
on projects, prior to 
undertaking the project.

Risk
If risk management guidance is not 
up-to-date, there is a risk of staff 
not having guidance to 
appropriately undertake their risk 
assessments.

the chances of an 
effective, if not faultless, 
project.

c) A risk management impact 
guide should be 
developed to assist senior 
management and service 
managers, when 
identifying new risks 
and/or reviewing existing 
risks, in establishing the 
impact the risk has on the 
councils’ strategic 
objectives.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A new risk management framework is being implemented across 
the councils.  It is anticipated that this will be completed by the end 
of December 2016, and rolled out across service areas between 
January - March 2017.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

31 March 2017

3. Corporate induction (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Risk management is included as 
part of the council’s corporate 
induction.

Findings
Risk management is not part of the 
council’s corporate induction 
programme.

Risk
If risk management is not part of 
corporate induction, there is a risk 

Risk management should be 
included in corporate 
induction to make all new 
starters aware of their risk 
management responsibilities.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Page 292

Agenda Item 12



of new starters not being aware of 
the council’s policy for risk 
management.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
We will liaise with the HR team.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

31 March 2017

4. Risk champions (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A risk champion has been 
identified for each service area, 
who regularly attends a risk 
management working group.

Findings
Currently, the service areas do not 
have risk champions to regularly 
review their operational risk 
registers and making staff in their 
service area aware of risk 
management.

The councils also does not have a 
risk management working group in 
place for risk champions to discuss 
risk issues, seek advice and/or 
highlight risks may be inefficiently 
managed.

Risk
If risk champions are not in place, 
there is a risk of risk management 
not being embedded into the 
councils resulting in the councils’ 
corporate priorities not being 
achieved.

If a risk management working 
group is not set up, there is a risk 
of staff not able to exchange ideas 
or give/receive advice about risk 
management.

a) Risk champions should be 
identified within each 
service area to ensure that 
their operational risk 
register is regularly 
reviewed and staff within 
the service area are made 
aware of risk.

b) After the risk champions 
have been identified within 
each service area, the risk 
champions should be 
listed on the intranet to 
ensure all staff are made 
aware.

c) A risk management 
working group is 
developed and should 
meet on a regular basis to 
discuss risk.  The working 
group should consist of 
the risk champions from 
each of the service areas.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
This is dependent upon the new service area and management 
structures being agreed.  The role of risk champions, including key 
measures for success, will be confirmed as part of the 
implementation of the risk management framework.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

31 March 2017

BEST PRACTICE

Page 293

Agenda Item 12



5. Risk management reporting (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The audit & governance committee 
is undertaking its role in risk 
management with best practice.

Findings
Review of the last risk 
management update report issued 
to audit and governance committee 
on the 18 March 2014 (SODC) and 
17 March 2014 (VWHDC) against 
the CIPFA audit committee 
guidance found that the committee 
do not fully receive risk 
management information to fulfil 
the requirements of CIPFA.

Risk
If the audit & governance 
committee does not undertake its 
role in line with best practice, there 
is a risk that the committee is not 
used appropriately and in line with 
CIPFA guidance.

The risk management update 
report sent to audit & 
governance committee 
should be reviewed and 
updated to ensure that the 
committee undertakes its role 
in risk management in line 
CIPFA’s audit committee 
guidance.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
As part of the new risk management framework, audit and 
governance committee can expect to approve the 3 year risk 
management strategy and then receive six monthly risk 
management updates. 

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

23 January 2017 and then 
ongoing

6. Integrated internal audit and risk management 
framework

(High Risk)

Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The internal audit framework is 
integrated with the risk 
management processes.

Findings
Review of the internal audit 
framework against risk 
management processes found that 
both are not integrated with each 
other.

Risk
If the internal audit framework is 
not integrated with the risk 
management processes, there is a 
risk of:-
 any significant risks identified, 

as stated on both the strategic 
and operational risk register, 

The internal audit and risk 
management functions 
should assess how they can 
integrate their frameworks, so 
that greater reliance can be 
placed on the risk 
management assessments by 
internal audit, and key risks 
and control weaknesses 
identified by internal audit can 
be fed into the risk 
management process.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer/ Assurance 
Manager

Page 294

Agenda Item 12



are not reviewed by internal 
audit to confirm internal 
controls are in place;

 any significant risks identified 
from the audit review are not 
fed back into the risk 
management process and 
included in the risk registers.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
An integrated risk and internal audit framework is a key priority for 
the assurance team.

Management response: Assurance Manager

31 December 2016

7. Risk register template (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The risk register is up-to-date, in 
line with best practice and user 
friendly.

Findings
Review of the current risk register 
template against IRM risk 
management standard confirmed 
that the risk register is in line with 
best practice.  However, it is 
proposed that the risk register 
templates are reviewed and 
updated to make it more user 
friendly as they were last reviewed 
2009.

Risk
If the risk registers are not updated 
and made user friendly, there is a 
risk of staff not understanding the 
information required when 
updating the registers, resulting in 
incomplete risk registers.

A review is undertaken on 
the current risk register 
template to make it more 
user friendly for staff and 
members of the councils.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A new risk management framework is being implemented across 
the councils, which will include revised templates.  It is anticipated 
that this will be completed by the end of December 2016, and rolled 
out across service areas between January - March 2017.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

31 March 2017

RISK MANAGEMENT TRAINING

8. Risk management training for staff (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice a) Risk management training Risk and Insurance 

Page 295

Agenda Item 12



Risk management is given to all 
staff so they are aware of ways of 
identifying and managing risks.

Findings
No specific risk management 
training has been or is being 
offered to staff.  The compulsory 
training list was received, which 
confirms that risk management 
training is not offered to staff.

Risk
If risk management training is not 
given, there is a risk of staff not 
being aware of how to identify and 
manage emerging risks resulting in 
the councils not achieving their 
objectives.

should be offered to all 
staff to ensure that they 
are aware of ways of 
identifying and managing 
risk.

b) Risk management training 
should be given to all 
senior management and 
service managers on 
identifying the risks within 
their area, undertaking 
risk assessments and 
establishing controls 
making the risks 
manageable.

Officer/ Assurance 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A new risk management framework is being implemented across 
the councils.  It is anticipated that this will be completed by the end 
of December 2016, and rolled out across service areas between 
January - March 2017.

A risk management training programme will be developed that will 
be aimed at a range of target audiences from new starters, 
managers and councillors, and will be supported by the risk 
champions. 

Management response: Assurance Manager

30 June 2017

9. Risk management training for members (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee are given 
risk management training so they 
understand the area and are aware 
of their role in the committee.

Findings
The audit & governance committee 
last received risk management 
training in March 2013.  It is noted 
that due to the turnover of 
members on the committee, only 
one current member received the 
risk management training. 

Risk
If members of the Audit and 
Governance Committee do not 
receive any risk management 
training, there is a risk of members 
approving risk management 
reports without any understanding.

Risk management training 
should be given to Audit & 
Governance Committee 
members, so that they can 
execute the role effectively.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Page 296

Agenda Item 12



Date
Recommendation is Agreed
A new risk management framework is being implemented across 
the councils.  It is anticipated that this will be completed by the end 
of December 2016, and rolled out across service areas between 
January - March 2017.

A risk management training programme will be developed that will 
be aimed at a range of target audiences from new starters, 
managers and councillors, and will be supported by the risk 
champions. 

Management response: Risk and Insurance officer

31 March 2017

RISK IDENTIFICATION, MANAGEMENT AND ANALYSIS

10. Updating of risk register (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Both the strategic and operational 
risk registers are up-to-date and 
include the corporate priorities from 
the latest corporate plan 2016-
2020.

Findings
Review of the strategic risk 
registers found that risks were 
identified for three of the five 
corporate priorities suggesting that 
SMB does not deem there are any 
high level risks preventing the 
achievement of two corporate 
priorities: building the local 
economy & support for 
communities.

It is noted that the corporate plan 
2016-2020 went to SODC Cabinet 
on 7 April 2016 and VWHDC 
Cabinet on 15 April 2016 for 
approval, which will require both 
the strategic and operational risk 
registers to be updated as the 
corporate priorities within the 
corporate plan have changed.

Risk
If both the strategic and operational 
risk registers are not reviewed and 
up-to-date, there is a risk that 
objectives not being achieved.

The strategic and operational 
risk registers should be 
updated to identify risks for 
the latest corporate priorities 
in corporate plan 2016-2020.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A new risk management framework is being implemented across 
the councils, which will include revised templates.  Once the new 
service area and management structures have been agreed, during 
the roll out of the new framework across the service areas the risk 
registers will be populated.  In the meantime service areas have 

31 March 2017

Page 297

Agenda Item 12



been advised to keep their current risk registers up-to-date.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

11. Regular review of risk register (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Both the strategic and operational 
risk registers are reviewed on a 
regular basis to take any emerging 
risks into consideration.

Findings
Review of both strategic and 
operational risk register found that 
they were last reviewed in:-
 Strategic risk register - Jan 13;
 Finance risk register - Qtr 4 

1314;
 HR, IT & technical services - 

Qtr 3 1213;
 Legal & democratic - Qtr 2 

1314;
 Corporate strategy - Qtr 3 

1213;
 Economy, leisure & property - 

Qtr 2 1314;
 Planning - Qtr 2 1314;
 Development & housing - Qtr 4 

1112.

Risk
If both the strategic and operational 
risk registers are not regularly 
reviewed, there is a risk that any 
new emerging risks that occur will 
not be identified and controls put in 
place resulting in the councils not 
achieving their objectives.

A process should be 
developed and put in place to 
ensure that SMB and service 
areas review their risk 
registers on a regular a basis 
so that they can manage any 
new emerging risks which 
could potentially prevent the 
councils from achieving their 
objectives.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
Service areas should already be reviewing their current risk 
registers on a quarterly basis, and a reminder will be sent to them.  
The new risk management framework will embed a quarterly 
review, with a six monthly risk management report being presented 
to SMB and the audit and governance committee.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

Immediate and ongoing

12. Service areas’ work plan (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Risk management is included in all 
service areas’ work plans.

Findings
Review of all seven service areas’ 

During the annual update of 
the service areas’ work plan, 
risk management should be 
included as an objective for 
monitoring purposes.

Risk and Insurance 
Officer/ Risk Champions

Page 298

Agenda Item 12



work plans found that no work 
plans included risk management 
as an objective.

Risk
If risk management is not included 
in service areas’ work plans, there 
is a risk of service managers not 
monitoring and reviewing their risk 
register.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
This will be outlined in the risk management framework.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

31 March 2017

RISK MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE REPORTING

13. Risk register reporting (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The service areas regularly review 
and update their operational risk 
register on a quarterly basis and 
then send the risk register to the 
designated risk officer.

Findings
After the service areas have 
reviewed operational risk registers, 
the risk registers are sent to the 
designated risk officer.  However, 
review of the operational risk 
registers found that they are not 
reviewed on a regular basis; 
therefore not reported to the 
designated risk officer.

Risk
If the operational risk registers are 
not regularly reviewed and sent to 
the councils’ designated risk 
officer, there is a risk of risks and 
controls not being identified or 
missed resulting in the councils not 
achieving their objectives.

After the service areas have 
reviewed their operational 
risk registers on a quarterly 
basis, the risk registers 
should be reported to the risk 
and insurance officer.

Risk and Insurance 
officer/ Risk Champion

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
This will be outlined in the risk management framework.

Management response: Risk and Insurance Officer

31 March 2017

14. Risk management reporting (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The audit & governance committee 

Both the strategic 
management board and the 

Assurance Manager

Page 299

Agenda Item 12



are updated on risk management 
on a regular basis.

Findings
The strategic management board 
does not receive regular risk 
management update reports.  It is 
noted that the risk management 
update report that goes to the audit 
& governance committee is sent to 
SMB beforehand to review.  
However the update reports are 
also not regularly sent to 
committee and the last update 
report was sent to committee was 
in March 2014.

Risk
If the audit & governance 
committee do not receive risk 
management updates, there is a 
risk that the committee are not 
undertaking their duties as stated 
in the councils’ Constitution.

joint audit & governance 
committee should be updated 
on a bi-annual basis 
regarding risk management.

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
This will be outlined in the risk management framework.

Management response:  Assurance Manager

23 January 2017 and 
ongoing

Page 300

Agenda Item 12



2. VWHDC WEST WAY BOTLEY AUGUST 2016

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the findings from an investigation that has been 
conducted by internal audit in relation to the West Way development, 
Botley. The investigation has been undertaken at the request of the chief 
executive, under the direction of the council’s monitoring officer.  This 
work has been undertaken as part of the contingency allowance within 
internal audit’s 2016/2017 audit plan, agreed with the joint audit and 
governance committee of South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and 
the Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC).  The draft report was 
issued on the 8 August 2016, and the final report was issued on the 12 
September 2016.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review:

 To review the draft Botley Centre Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) consultation held between 21 August and 25 
September 2015 and the further consultation on a revised draft of 
the Botley Centre SPD held between 20 November and 18 
December 2015, to ensure they were managed in accordance with 
the council’s planning consultation process as outlined in the 
Statement of Community Involvement December 2009.

 To ascertain whether there has been inappropriate 
communication, information sharing and decision making between 
the council’s property team and the planning team in progressing 
the West Way development since December 2014.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Concerns were raised by a councillor regarding the accuracy and 
completeness of consultations held in regard to the Botley Centre, and the 
appearance of inappropriate communication, information sharing and 
decision making between the council’s property team and planning team in 
progressing the West Way development, Botley.  

3. MAIN FINDINGS

Botley Centre SPD consultation

3.1 The council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) is the leading 
document for ensuring effective community engagement in planning 
processes.  It was noted that at the time of the SPD consultations, the 
SCI was out of date, there was no clear statement on what documents 
members of the public can expect to view as part of a planning 
consultation and it did not actively complement the council’s corporate 
policy on community engagement.  It was also evidenced that there are 
no specific procedures in place for planning officers on how to carry out 
planning consultations and there is no clear methodology established for 
analysing and categorising consultation responses.  (Recs 1 and 2)

Page 301

Agenda Item 12



3.2 The SCI states that the council (as the local planning authority) will be 
guided by a number of general principles in its community consultation.  
In order to ascertain whether the council achieved those principles in 
these consultations, internal audit reviewed the end to end consultation 
process and re-performed the consultation response analysis to ascertain 
if internal audit could validate the consultation report outcomes.

3.3 In regards to ensuring early involvement, internal audit would conclude 
that the council adequately recognised the needs of different groups in 
the community and provided clear opportunities for involvement.  
However, it was identified that the council failed to involve local 
councillors at the earliest opportunity. Whilst the council provided various 
points of access to the relevant information, internal audit noted that the 
online consultation system used (Objective) is not sufficiently user 
friendly and may act as a deterrent to effective community engagement. 
(Rec 1 and 3)

3.4 It could be confirmed that the council fed back on the consultation 
outcomes through all relevant avenues in accordance with the SCI, but it 
is internal audit’s opinion that the council’s analysis of the responses was 
not well presented and open to different interpretations.  

3.5 August/September 2015 consultation
Internal audit ascertained that all of the data within the consultation 
database had been reviewed whilst analysing the responses, and there 
was a record for each of the scanned responses (i.e. responses not 
entered directly into Objective by the consultee). However, when 
comparing the scanned documentation with the detail transferred to the 
database, issues were identified with the completeness of the data 
recorded. (Recs 4 - 6)

3.6 After allowing for duplicates and test data, internal audit reconciled the 
number of responses to be 357 as recorded in the SPD consultation 
report.  This excludes late responses from the Environment Agency (Jack 
Moeran) and Savills (Neil Rowley), which have subsequently been 
recorded in Objective (but not considered) and are visible in the online 
consultation portal. However, internal audit arrived at a differing 
breakdown of how the responses were received and was unable in the 
review timeframe to establish why the consultation report states there are 
396 individual responses but the web portal lists 395. (Rec 9)

3.7 The responses to the questions with agreed/disagreed style answers are 
represented in pie charts and bar graphs within the consultation report. 
Where free text comments are provided, instead of an agreed/disagreed 
answer, these are recorded as a ‘no response’ within the charts even 
though the text may express agreement or disagreement. Internal audit is 
of the opinion that this may be misleading and not portray the true 
strength of the responses. (Rec 7)

3.8 Twelve specific questions were asked in the consultation, and seven of 
these included more than one question to cover different paragraphs 
within the draft SPD. Five of these seven did not seek a response to all of 

Page 302

Agenda Item 12



the relevant sections within the SPD. Furthermore, questions were not 
invited on all of the sections of the draft SPD such as regional context 
and existing baseline. (Rec 8)

3.9 From analysis of the free text comments, internal audit noted some 
omissions and a lack of emphasis in some areas of the consultation 
report. There was limited indication as to the strength of the responses 
and use of words such as ‘a notable number’ or ‘the cohort of 
respondents supported’ rather than stated quantities which were 
available to provide context. Paragraph 75 refers to the majority of 
respondents agreeing with a diagram, which internal audit identified is a 
suggestion of a stronger feeling than the actual figures illustrate. It was 
observed that some comments are acknowledged only within the ‘how 
comments informed the final Botley SPD’ and not within the previous 
comments section. Hence, on initial view, it may appear that not all 
comments and themes are captured in the general comments section. 
Negative comments about the design, wording etc. such as in question 
11, are also split out over several categories which appears to minimise 
the impact and strength of the negative feeling about the SPD. (Rec 9)

3.10 The SPD consultation report explains within each section how comments 
have fed into the SPD or why they have not resulted in changes. Those 
changes recorded in the consultation report as agreed had been made to 
the SPD. However, there were several comments regarding a lack of use 
of ‘plain English’ and request for definitions that do not appear to have 
been fully addressed. Taking account of the scale of the comments 
received, these are not significant but may still have impacted upon some 
responses due to a lack of understanding of what was included. In 
addition, internal audit has identified that the consultation report is not 
easily accessible to the public on the council’s website. (Recs 10 and 11)

3.11 November/December 2015 consultation
The revised consultation report states on page 4 that 39 responses were 
received for the second consultation. A total of 38 responses are made 
available on the consultation database which excludes a response from 
the Environment Agency received after the consultation period ended. 

3.12 From checks undertaken on the comments captured, it was noted that 
two responses from persons at the same household had been recorded 
under one person identifier which had been listed twice. As far as the 
comments, one email had been recorded in general text but the second 
response had been attached as a document without the comments being 
recorded. Also, two organisations had their comments correctly recorded 
but the name of the officer submitting the responses differed.

3.13 Internal audit would conclude, from independent analysis of the 
responses, that the SPD consultation report correctly identified the main 
areas of concern noted by respondents. However, there are some issues 
identified with the analysis of the consultation responses, particularly the 
free text comments, completeness of data recorded and other minor 
weaknesses within the consultation process.  Furthermore, the way the 
data from the consultation is reported lacks some clarity and is open to 
different interpretations. Eleven recommendations have been made as a 

Page 303

Agenda Item 12



result of our work in this area (Recs 1 – 11).

Communication, information sharing and decision making between the 
council’s property team and the planning team.

3.14 Internal audit has ascertained that there is no specific legislation and/or 
statutory guidance in place relating to the role officers and/or councillors 
can or should take when a council is both the landowner and the local 
planning authority.  Therefore, the advice of the Royal Town Planning 
Institute (RTPI) was sought as to what process should be followed to 
avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of conflicts of interest 
occurring.  Reference was also made to Local Government Association 
guidance ‘Probity in planning for councillors and officers’ 2009 and 2013, 
and Oxfordshire Monitoring Officers guidance on bias in decision making.

3.15 Based on the advice provided and guidance viewed, it was concluded 
that in such matters where the council is both the landowner and the local 
planning authority: 
 The council must abide by its own policies and procedures with 

regards to actual and apparent conflicts of interest.
 Any application must be determined in accordance with the council’s 

development plan, unless there is a material consideration not to do 
so.

 To ensure transparency, any major application where there is a 
conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest should go 
to a public committee for deliberation and decision.  

The RTPI also stated that any decision can be judicially reviewed, and 
this by itself adds a layer of independence and accountability.

3.16 Internal audit reviewed the council’s own policies and procedures, and 
ascertained that conflict of interest matters and expectations in regards to 
those are adequately documented within the council’s constitution and 
the employee handbook.  

3.17 Through discussion with relevant officers, and a review of all evidence 
obtained and provided to internal audit on cabinet and committee 
meetings, councillor briefings and officer/consultant meetings held in 
relation to the West Way development, and taking into consideration 
RTPI’s advice and guidance reviewed, internal audit would conclude that:

 Officer and councillor roles and responsibilities in relation to the West 
Way development were clear.  The planning policy team led the 
development of the supplementary planning document (SPD), the 
development management team in planning continues to lead on the 
relevant planning application and the property team continues to lead 
on the contract sale of the land and buildings.  All formal decisions 
relating to those functions were taken by cabinet or planning 
committee in accordance with the council’s constitution and scheme of 
delegation, and were subject to scrutiny by the council’s scrutiny 
committee where relevant.  

3.18  Records of officer/consultant meetings in relation to West Way are 
Page 304

Agenda Item 12



limited on both the planning and property side, and therefore internal 
audit has been restricted in its analysis of officer/consultant 
communication, information sharing and decision making regarding 
West Way (Rec 12).  However, from a review of the information 
provided, internal audit ascertained the attendance of the economic 
development manager (property lead) at two planning policy meetings 
(SPD lead) at the commencement of the process.    Based on a 
review of the minutes, it was ascertained that the focus of the 
meetings were background discussions to provide context, agreement 
on stakeholder involvement and agreement of the programme.  There 
were no discussions involving the economic development manager 
which focused on findings.  Internal audit does not consider this 
involvement to be a direct conflict of interest, but internal audit does 
conclude that it could infer the appearance of bias and 
inappropriateness.  However, based on the advice from the RTPI and 
the guidance reviewed, internal audit would conclude that this 
observation does not breach the conflict of interest bar between 
planning and property and therefore no recommendation has been 
made.

3.19  Analysis of all cabinet and committee meetings and councillor 
briefings from December 2012 identified that five councillors have 
attended meetings on both the property side and planning policy side 
at cabinet and cabinet briefing level.  This included making property 
decisions to approve sale negotiations, being involved in property 
updates, being involved in planning policy discussions regarding the 
SPD, approving the SPD to go out for consultation and approving the 
SPD itself.  It was also determined that at the cabinet briefing meeting 
held on 19 December 2014, West Way property and planning issues 
were discussed at the same meeting with all councillors in attendance 
for the full discussion.  Reference was made to the fact that the 
planning committee had refused the planning application, that the 
applicant intended to appeal the decision but if the council agreed to 
extend the contract the applicant would withdraw its appeal.  
Following that meeting a cabinet member present at the meeting 
made a cabinet member decision to extend the contract.  Internal 
audit would conclude that at a formal decision-making level, taking 
into consideration the advice from RTPI, the guidance reviewed and in 
accordance with the council’s constitution, whilst no illegality has 
occurred there is an indication of a conflict of interest and/or the 
appearance of bias. (Rec 13).

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 Internal audit would conclude that:

 There are some minor control weaknesses with the end to end 
consultation process, and internal audit has identified concerns with the 
analysis of the consultation responses.  Whilst internal audit does not 
consider the concerns significant enough to change the overall outcome 
of the consultation report, internal audit concludes that the council’s 
analysis of the responses was not executed effectively, it was not well 
presented and the consultation report was open to different 

Page 305

Agenda Item 12



interpretations.  

 Whilst no illegality has occurred, there has been communication, 
information sharing and decision making at a cabinet, committee and 
councillor briefing level which indicates a conflict of interest and/or the 
appearance of bias.  It was identified that five councillors discussed and 
made decisions in relation to planning and property matters concerning 
the West Way development.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Internal audit has made a number of recommendations to improve control 
processes operating within West Way, Botley.

To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 
recommendations according to their level of priority as follows:

High risk Fundamental control weakness for senior 
management action

Recs 1, 2, 5, 9, 12 
and 13

Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action

Recs 3, 7, 8 and 11

Low risk Recommended best practice to improve 
overall control

Recs 4, 6 and 10

REVIEW OF CONSULTATION

1. Statement of community involvement (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) is regularly 
reviewed and up to date.

Findings
The SCI is the leading document for 
ensuring effective community 
engagement in the planning process. 
The council has a corporate policy on 
community engagement and a 
community engagement charter, but 
the SCI does not directly dovetail in to 
these two. There is a lack of clarity 
with regards to the responsible 
officer/team for the SCI.  
The SCI was last reviewed in 
December 2009. Internal audit is 
aware that the SCI is currently being 
reviewed.

Risk
If an up to date SCI is not in place, 
there is a risk that the council is not 
ensuring effective community 
involvement leading to reputational 
damage.  

The statement of community 
involvement (SCI) should be 
reviewed and updated, to 
include:
 Clearly identifying a 

responsible officer/team 
for the policy.

 Ensuring the SCI 
adequately reflects the 
council’s corporate policy 
on customer engagement 
and the customer 
engagement charter to 
ensure consistency.

 Identifying how 
councillors will be 
involved in planning 
consultations. 

 Specifying what 
documents consultees 
will be entitled to view as 
part of any planning 
consultation process.

Andrew Maxted, Senior 
Planning Officer

Page 306

Agenda Item 12



Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management Response: Head of Planning

31 December 2016

2. Planning consultation methodology (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All planning policy consultations have 
an officer methodology statement to 
support the analysis of consultation 
responses.  

Findings
There are no specific procedures in 
place for planning officers on how to 
carry out planning consultations, 
officers currently only use the SCI as 
the baseline. Some written guidance 
was offered to staff on how to process 
the SPD responses and it was 
identified that they were very limited in 
content and did not offer any 
guidance/methodology to officers on 
how to categorise and analyse the 
consultation responses.  As this 
analysis was undertaken by numerous 
officers, some only temporary officers, 
there is no evidence of a clear 
methodology being set to ensure 
consistency in the analysis of the 
consultation responses.  

Risk
If there is no evidence of a clear 
methodology being set to ensure 
consistency in the analysis of the 
consultation responses, there is a risk 
that the consultation feedback is 
inaccurate.  

All planning consultations 
should be supported by 
comprehensive procedures 
and have an officer 
methodology statement to 
support the analysis of 
consultation responses.  This 
should document officer 
responsibilities for the end to 
end consultation process, and 
clearly specify the 
methodology for analysing, 
categorising and recording 
consultation responses.

Andrew Maxted, 
Senior Planning Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management Response: Head of Planning

31 December 2016

3. Consultation system (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The consultation system is user 
friendly and allows input through all 
methods and devices.

Findings
General comments were noted in the 
consultation responses stating the 
online system was not user friendly. 
Three examples of users that had 
issues with using the system were 

Consideration should be 
given to replacing the existing 
Objective consultation system 
with a more user friendly 
system that also allows users 
of electronic devices such as 
iPad’s to provide online 
responses.

Philip Vincent, 
Corporate Consultation 
Officer 

Planning

Page 307

Agenda Item 12



reviewed and one of these had not 
managed to record responses within 
the database. However, this query 
was only raised on the final day of the 
consultation. One other user found 
that the Objective system would not 
work on an iPad device.  
Furthermore, it was noted that the 
current online system does not permit 
filtering of the comments such as by 
each question.
 
Internal audit undertook a 
walkthrough of the Objective system, 
and ascertained that it was not easily 
identifiable if comments on individual 
pages within a consultation had been 
saved.

Risk
If the on-line consultation systems is 
not user friendly, there is a risk that 
the council is preventing or limiting 
community engagements which could 
lead to ineffective consultations 
and/or reputational implications.
Management Response – Corporate Consultation Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
Following a review of the councils’ facility to support online 
consultations, we have purchased a subscription to Smart Survey 
which is available for use by all service areas. The Head of Service 
and Planning Customer Service Manager were part of the project 
board that agreed the purchase of Smart Survey.  The supplier has 
confirmed that a facility allowing validation of responses by email could 
be developed at a relatively low cost to the council.  The Corporate 
Consultation Officer can support planning staff to transition to the new 
system.   

Management Response: Policy and Partnerships Manager

1 January 2017

Management Response - Planning Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed in Principle
Subject to finance and a suitable alternative that records name and 
address to allow ongoing dialogue.

Management Response: Head of Planning

1 January 2017

4. Written acknowledgements (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Acknowledgement in writing for all 
consultation representations received 
is only used when considered 
appropriate for either control purposes 
or to meet service delivery objectives.

Findings
The SCI states that all consultation 
responses are to be acknowledged in 
writing. Email responses sent to the 

Planning to consider whether 
it is reasonable and practical 
to state within the SCI that it 
will ‘acknowledge in writing 
all representations received’.  
If it is, then planning must 
deliver on the commitment.

Duncan Grainge, 
Customer Service 
Manager

Page 308

Agenda Item 12



planning policy inbox receive an 
automatic acknowledgement of 
receipt. Respondents using the online 
portal directly receive 
acknowledgement of, and can view, 
their submitted responses.  However, 
it could not be confirmed that written 
responses received via post were 
acknowledged.

Risk
If commitments are not adequately 
assessed for appropriateness, there is 
a risk of the council either over-
committing or under-committing which 
could lead to the inefficient use of 
resources, service delivery objectives 
not being achieved and reputational 
implications.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
The SCI has been rewritten and specifically mentions how customer’s 
comments will be acknowledged and how customers can ensure an 
acknowledgement is sent if required. We will acknowledge 
representations submitted by e-mail or through the consultation system 
(objective or Smart Survey). Representations submitted by post will 
only receive and acknowledgement if a reply e-mail address has been 
supplied.

We will not send acknowledgements to verbal comments or comments 
submitted to us on feedback forms at consultation events. Those hand 
delivering written comments (e.g. at main reception) will be issued with 
a receipt if requested.

Management Response: Head of Planning 

31 December 2016

5. Captured responses – completeness and accuracy (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All consultation responses are 
recorded completely and accurately 
with an independent review 
undertaken to ensure completeness.

Findings
From checks on a random sample of 
10 scanned responses to the initial 
consultation:-
 1 (ID930185) had a text comment 

that had not been recorded. 
 1 (ID929567) had part of question 

7 not recorded and the response 
was strongly agreed. 

Furthermore, there were paragraphs 
within the response from West Way 
Community Concern that were not 
recorded in the consultation database 
and the accompanying report 
(prepared by Mike Gilbert) was not 
captured as part of the response.

There should be independent 
review and quality checks to 
ensure consultation 
responses are fully and 
accurately captured within the 
consultation database.

Andrew Maxted, 
Senior Planning Officer

Page 309

Agenda Item 12



From checks on the second 
consultation exercise, responses from 
two separate people at the same 
address have been listed as one 
person with a duplicate row. Only one 
of the responses is captured within the 
text. The response from the second 
person has been added as a 
document attachment without the 
comments being recorded. 
Inconsistencies were noted in the 
name attributed to respondents from 
two organisations, however that did 
not affect the recording of the 
comments made.

Risk
If there is no independent review of 
data entries then any errors or 
omissions may remain undetected 
and unresolved.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed

Management Response: Head of Planning

31 December 2016

6. Scanned documents (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Scanned images of response 
documentation are complete.

Findings
Paper based responses are scanned 
and retained electronically. From 
checks on a random sample of 10 
scanned responses, 1 document 
(ID929175) was incomplete because 
only one side of the double sided 
document had been scanned. The 
data that could be seen was correctly 
recorded.

Risk
If responses are not completely 
captured when scanned then it may 
prove difficult to answer queries, such 
as regarding the completeness or 
accuracy of the consultation data, 
should they arise. 

Scanned images of 
consultation response 
documentation must be 
checked to ensure they are 
complete.

Duncan Grainge, 
Customer Service 
Manager

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The responsible officer will conduct a ‘dip check’ of scanned 
documentation to ensure a high standard of QA. Any consultation 
within the planning service will have a responsible officer (appointed by 
the line manager) allocated for the successful management of that 
consultation and it will be that officers responsibility to ensure a high 
level of QA. In discussion with colleagues it was determined that a new 
SOP was not required to ensure this takes place as the project 

31 October 2016

Page 310

Agenda Item 12



management methodology now in place ensures that this process is a 
standard function of any consultation. 

Management Response: Head of Planning

7. Free text responses (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Charts are clearly explained and free 
text answers should not be counted as 
no response.

Findings
Pie and bar charts are used within the 
consultation report to provide 
representation of the analysis of 
responses in each section. General text 
comments that may be agreeing or 
disagreeing are represented as no 
response and each question was 
represented as responses out of 357.

The majority of the free text comments 
are from respondents who have also 
answered the agreed/disagreed 
questions. Hence the overall impact 
may not be significant but this will vary 
for each question. For example:-
 For question 2 there are 195 free 

text comments and 44 of these are 
instead of the agreed/disagreed 
answers.

 For question 3 there are 184 free 
text comments but only 12 of these 
are instead of the agreed/disagreed 
answers. 

 For question 4 regarding student 
accommodation, there are 283 free 
text responses of which 93 are 
instead of an agree/disagree 
answer. Internal audit counted at 
least 66 responses that disagreed 
with student housing within the 93 
free text comments. 

Risk
If free text responses are counted 
within the ‘no response’ section in 
charts, then this may not be seen as 
truly representing the strength of 
agreement/disagreement to each 
section.

a) Where there is a free text 
response rather than an 
agreed/disagreed answer, this 
should not be represented as 
a ‘no response’. 

b) The stated count and/or 
percentages of responses 
should use only those 
respondents that did provide 
an answer to the 
agreed/disagreed sections as 
there is already an option for 
‘don’t know/no opinion’. 
Hence each comment may 
have a different total for the 
number of responses.

c) For purposes of reconciling 
responses the ‘no response’ 
can be used but this should 
not inform the overall 
outcome. 

Andrew Maxted, 
Senior Planning 
Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management Response: Head of Planning

31 October 2016

Page 311

Agenda Item 12



8. Scope of consultation questions (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
All options presented within a draft 
SPD are open for direct questions 
within a consultation.

Findings
Within the West Way consultation, 7 
of the 12 main questions included 
more than one question 
corresponding to specific paragraphs 
in the SPD. For 5 of these 7, not all of 
the options presented within the draft 
SPD were included for consultation. 
Furthermore, not all sections of the 
SPD were included for specific 
questions, such as regional context 
and existing baseline.

Risk
If consultation questions do not cover 
all sections of an SPD then 
respondents may feel their opinions 
are not fully sought and will need to 
use general text to address issues 
which are then more time-consuming 
and difficult to analyse.

All sections and options 
presented within a 
policy/report which is being 
consulted upon, should be 
reflected in the direct 
questions within a 
consultation.

Andrew Maxted, 
Senior Planning Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management Response: Head of Planning

31 October 2016

9. Statistical analysis – independent review (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Reported statistical analysis is 
accurate and clearly stated.

Findings
Internal audit determined a slightly 
different statistical analysis, including 
free text comments, when compared 
with data presented in the SPD 
consultation report. For example:-
 Number of responses stated in 

paragraph 58 should be 174 not 
225.

 Paragraph 37 refers to 
disagreement for student 
accommodation and a cinema but 
does not mention objections to a 
hotel which internal audit counted 
as 13.

 Paragraph 75 is worded in favour 
of agreement when internal audit 
identify the outcome as closer to 
50/50 agreed/disagreed.

There should be an 
independent review of stated 
statistics within a 
consultation report, including 
free text analysis/summary, 
or more than one officer 
undertaking the analysis, to 
ascertain if similar 
conclusions could be drawn 
and/or validate the reported 
data analysis.

Andrew Maxted, 
Senior Planning Officer

Page 312

Agenda Item 12



 In question 5, comments about 
keeping the Vicarage are not 
recorded but internal audit counted 
26 comments.

 It is not clear why on page 28 
under ‘general comments on the 
consultation process’ reference is 
made to figure 1 which is age 
analysis of responses.

 Internal audit arrived at different 
percentages for answers to 
question 2 on page 8.

 The consultation report states 396 
individual responses were 
received but the web portal lists 
395 when viewing individual 
responses.

Furthermore, the sections added for 
the second consultation state there 
were 39 responses but only 38 are 
available on the website to support 
this. The extra response is from the 
Environment Agency which was 
received after the consultation period 
end.

Risk
If free text responses are counted 
within the ‘no response’ section in 
charts, then this may not be seen as 
truly representing the strength of 
agreement/disagreement to each 
section. Furthermore, differences 
between reports and supporting data 
may give the impression of missing 
responses and a lack of confidence in 
the outcome.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
A second officer will undertake a review.

Management Response: Head of Planning

31 October 2016

10. Consultation report availability (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The Botley Centre SPD Consultation 
Report is available to review on the 
council’s Botley Centre SPD website 
page with the consultation statement.  

Findings
The SPD consultation report is not 
listed on the Botley Centre SPD 
webpage alongside the consultation 
statement. It was available to 
members of the public as part of the 
Cabinet reports pack. However, it 

The Botley Centre SPD 
Consultation Report should 
be available to review on the 
council’s Botley Centre SPD 
website page with the 
consultation statement.  

Emma Wright, Project 
and Support Officer

Page 313

Agenda Item 12



would be reliant on a member of the 
public searching the specific meeting, 
as the consultation report does not 
come up individually in the search 
function. 

Risk
If council information is not 
transparent and easily available to 
members of the public, there is a risk 
of criticism and damage to the 
council’s reputation.
Management Response Implementation 

Date
Recommendation is Agreed
Completed 2 September 2016. 

Management Response: Head of Planning

Implemented

11. Definitions and explanations (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Consultation questions and 
associated documents for 
consultation should be clear and 
include definitions or clarification 
where open to interpretation.

Findings
Following the consultation comments, 
the SPD was revised to clarify terms 
such as activity levels but other terms 
remained unexplained and undefined. 
These include ‘human in scale’ and 
whilst ‘vibrant mix of uses’ is 
explained in the objectives this is not 
defined within question 3 of the 
consultation.

Risk
If documents and consultations 
questions are not clear and include 
jargon then respondents may not feel 
they are able to truly comment or may 
feel the wording is too open to 
differing interpretation.

Consultation questions and 
documents for consultation 
should use clear and 
transparent language and 
terms with definitions or 
explanations where 
necessary. 

Andrew Maxted, 
Senior Planning Officer

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management Response: Head of Planning

31 October 2016

REVIEW OF ENGAGEMENT

12. Project management methodology (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
The planning and property teams 
conduct all complex/major 

The planning and property 
teams should be advised to 
conduct all complex/major 

Suzanne Malcolm, 
Economic 
Development Manager 

Page 314

Agenda Item 12



projects/programmes of work with a 
clear project management 
methodology to ensure that adequate 
records and documents are 
maintained of progress, decisions and 
outcomes.

Findings
Throughout this review, it became 
evident that there was a lack of 
knowledge as to which officers were 
involved in the various stages of the 
consultation process, and there was a 
significant lack of documents to 
support meetings which had occurred 
and decisions which were taken 
between officers, consultants and 
meetings with the community on both 
the planning and property side.  

Risk
Without a clear project management 
methodology, there is a risk that 
projects and programmes of work are 
not managed effectively and 
efficiently.  This could lead to 
resources not being utilised 
effectively, poor records management, 
inappropriate decisions being made 
and delays in programme delivery not 
being dealt with promptly.

projects/programmes of work 
with a clear project 
management methodology to 
ensure that adequate records 
and documents are 
maintained of progress, 
decisions and outcomes.

Duncan Grainge, 
Customer Service 
Manager

Management Response – Economic Development Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed 
Property management is now delivered via Arcadis and as such the 
councils will have limited ability to influence their processes.  However, 
from a council officer point of view and given my ongoing involvement 
in strategic property projects I will endeavour to ensure that internally 
we follow the recommendation.

Management Response: Economic Development Manager

Immediately

Management Response - Planning Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed 
Prior to the issue of the draft recommendations, planning policy teams 
have reviewed the way in which complex / major pieces of work are 
conducted. The team meet weekly to discuss progress, allocate actions 
and functions and responsibility to complete work within set timescales. 
The policy teams have Project and Support officers in post who works 
closely with the managers and officer to ensure all aspects of the 
various work streams are managed carefully and methodically. 

A corporate project management tool and methodology project has 
recently been completed. This will give a corporate solution to project 
management and once a tool and methodology has been decided, it 
would be prudent for the planning teams to utilise the corporate 
solution in complex or major pieces of work. 

Management Response: Head of Planning

Immediately

Page 315

Agenda Item 12



13. Status of Cabinet and Cabinet Briefing (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Cabinet, committee and councillor 
briefing meetings should be conducted in 
accordance with the council’s constitution 
and best practice.

Findings
Internal audit reviewed all cabinet, 
committee and councillor briefing 
meetings where the West Way 
development had been discussed and/or 
formal decisions were made, and this 
included both property and planning 
discussions.  Whilst no illegality occurred, 
there was an indication of a conflict of 
interest and/or the appearance of bias.

Through a review of the content of the 
meetings/discussion, internal audit 
identified five councillors that attended 
meetings on both the property side and 
planning side at cabinet and cabinet 
briefing level.  It was also determined that 
at the cabinet briefing meeting held on 19 
December 2014, West Way property and 
planning issues were discussed at the 
same meeting with councillors in 
attendance for the full discussion.  
Reference was made to the fact that the 
planning committee had refused the 
planning application, that the applicant 
intended to appeal the decision but if the 
council agreed to extend the contract the 
applicant would withdraw its appeal.  
Following that meeting a cabinet member 
decision was made to extend the 
contract.  The cabinet member was 
present at the previous cabinet briefing 
meeting.

It must be noted that at some meetings, 
councillors did attend in a non-
participating role.  Those were excluded 
from this analysis, including any 
councillor in attendance at a scrutiny 
committee meeting/discussion.

Risk
If appropriate systems are not in place to 
monitor adherence to the constitution and 
best practice, it could result in conflicts of 
interests and/or the appearance of bias 
not being managed appropriately at 
formal meetings.

Legal and democratic services 
should ensure that systems are 
in place to continuously identify 
and monitor potential conflict of 
interests at all cabinet, 
committee and councillor 
briefing meetings, advise 
councillors and where 
necessary enforce the controls 
in place to prevent councillors 
participating in 
meetings/discussions/decisions 
where there is a conflict of 
interest and/or the appearance 
of bias.  

Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services

Management Response Implementation 
Date

Recommendation is Agreed

Management Response: Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Immediate

Page 316

Agenda Item 12



Appendix 2

Head of Service Total Number of 

Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue Recs

% of Overdue Recs Total Number of 

Open Recs

Number of 

Overdue Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total Number of 

Open Recs

Number of Overdue 

Recs

% of Overdue 

Recs

Total Number of 

Open Recs

Number of Overdue 

Recs

Q1 2016/17 % of 

Overdue Recs 

Q2 2016/17 % of 

Overdue Recs 

% Change Additional Notes

Clare Kingston
(Head of Corporate Strategy)

7 5 71% 8 5 63% 11 0 0% 26 10 7% 38% 31%

Gerry Brough
(Acting Head of Development & 
Housing)

0 0 0% 0 0 0% 2 0 0% 2 0 0% 0% 0%

William Jacobs
(Head of Finance)

25 20 80% 19 14 74% 58 2 3% 102 36 31% 35% 4%

Andrew Down
(Head of HR, IT & Technical Services)

9 7 78% 8 6 75% 25 6 24% 42 19 25% 45% 20%

Margaret Reed
(Head of Legal & Democratic Services)

2 1 50% 2 1 50% 7 1 14% 11 3 6% 27% 21%

Adrian Duffield
(Head of Planning)

11 11 100% 11 10 91% 10 8 80% 32 29 72% 91% 19%

54 48 113 215 97

Report Date: 12/09/2016 12:00:00

Joint AGC Overdue Recommendations Q2 2016/2017

Executive summary SODC Recs TotalVWHDC

36 17

Joint

Legal and Democratic

Planning

Total recommendations Q2 2016/17 44

Joint Comparison of Q1 2016/17 and Q2 2016/17

Service Area

Corporate Strategy and Leisure

Development and Housing

Finance and Arts (including Cornerstone)

HR, IT, Technical Services, Economy, Property and 
Corporate Policy

P
age 317

A
genda Item

 12



Rec ID Audit Name Audit Year Head of Service Service Manager Recommendation 

Name

Risk Rating Implementation date Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised Implementation 

Date

380 Elections & Election 
Payments

2016/2017 Margaret Reed (Head Of Legal And 
Democratic Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)

Key action points Medium 31/07/16    

389 ICT 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Simon Turner (IT 
Operations Manager)

6. Restore and retention 
of back ups

Low 31/07/16    

390 ICT 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Simon Turner (IT 
Operations Manager)

8. Disaster recovery 
tests - action plan

Medium 31/07/16    

396 HR Recruitment 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

2. Service area 
recruitment procedure

High 30/06/16    

397 HR Recruitment 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Andrew Down (Head 
of HR, IT & Technical 
Services)

4. Disclosure Barring 
Service (DBS) checks

High 31/07/16    

408 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Adrianna Partridge 
(Assurance Manager)

8. Claim summaries Low 31/07/16    

451 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

1. Project definition Low 31/07/16    

454 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

4. Project register High 31/07/16    

455 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 

(Team Leader 
Building Control)

5. Authorisation of 

projects

High 31/07/16    

456 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

6. Review of projects High 31/07/16    

457 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

7. Project documentation Medium 31/07/16    

458 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

8. Project terms of 
reference

High 31/07/16    

459 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

9. Project compliance 
with methodology

Medium 31/07/16    

460 Project Management 2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Sandra Wildern 
(Team Leader 
Building Control)

10. Monitoring and 
reporting

Medium 31/07/16    

461 Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

1. Fraudulent activity 
reporting 

Low 30/06/16 28/06/16 Ongoing (Date of 
implementation not yet 
passed)

 

481 Safeguarding children, young 
people & vulnerable adults

2016/2017 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

Risk Register Low 31/08/16    

483 Safeguarding children, young 
people & vulnerable adults

2016/2017 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

Procurement guidelines Medium 31/08/16    

Joint Summary of overdue recommendations

All fraudulent or potentially fraudulent activity identified 
and prevented by Capita, should be reported to the 
council¿s client team and internal audit within their 
monthly performance monitoring report.  

Capita will include a note in its June 2016  and future 
reports. Please note however that post August, 
reporting mechanisms may change -  so it may be 
reported in some other document. 

The councils¿ responsibility for having regard to 
safeguarding while discharging functions should be 
recorded within the councils¿ risk register.

 

Procedures relating to procurement should be 
updated to include safeguarding to ensure that prior to 
offering a contract to a service provider/supplier 
sufficient safeguarding checks are undertaken, if 
applicable, in order to safeguard children and 
vulnerable adults.

 

 1)Amend the guidance in the toolkit to include the 
requirement for project boards to have complete ToR, 

 containing the following components.
 

 ¿Introduction ¿ Who has authorised the creation of 
this Board (the full council), confirmation that they 
have the power to create this board, and whether or 
not they have the authority to call upon outside expert 

 opinion.
 ¿Membership ¿ This should detail by name and job 

title all the members, appoint the chair and deputy 
 chair, and who will record the minutes.

 ¿Attendance ¿ What will be the quorum, both in 
 numbers and specific attendees.

 ¿Frequency of meetings ¿ How many meetings per 
year, or during the life of the project, the timings of 

 them, and frequency.
 ¿Calling of meeting ¿ These should be in accordance 

with the constitution of the council including notice 
 period, and submission of documents date.

 ¿Remit ¿ Why does the board exist, what are its 
 powers, what decisions can it make/recommend.

 ¿Reporting ¿ What is the timescale for producing the 
 minutes/circulating minutes.

 ¿Limitations of authority ¿ Any restrictions placed 
 upon the project board.

 

 2)Amend the Didcot Leisure Facility ToR to reflect 
the requirements above and the suspension of the 

 project.
 3)Ensure all projects are reviewed to ensure ToR 

are in place and are effective and robust for all current 
 project.

 

 1)All current projects should be reviewed to ensure 
 they are compliant with the methodology.

 2)A system of regular checks should be introduced 
 to ensure ongoing compliance and reporting thereof.

 

 1)All current projects should be monitored 
throughout the project to ensure they are compliant 

 with the methodology.
 2)A system of regular checks should be introduced 

to ensure ongoing monitoring and reporting is being 
 undertaken.

 

All current projects should be reviewed to ensure they 

have been correctly approved, and obtain 
 retrospective approval if necessary.

 

Furthermore all future projects should be approved in 
 accordance with the methodology.

 

 Recommendation
All current projects should be reviewed to ensure they 

 are subject to the appropriate scrutiny.
 

Furthermore all future projects should be scrutinised in 
 accordance with the methodology.

 

 

All projects should have completed and 
comprehensive documentation to support it and to 

 comply with the approved methodology.
 

 

Claim summary spreadsheets should be reviewed to:-
 

 a)Introduce a streamlined method of recording 
claims in a central register using codes to identify 
status/actions needed and filters, or using tables and 
pivot tables, to narrow down searches rather than 

 using the existing separate worksheets.
 b)Ensure notes for individual claims are up to date if 

 this is not replaced by status codes as above.

 

A full review of both the projects register and inflight 
register should be undertaken, to ensure the listings 
are accurate and correct against the councils¿ 
definition of a project.

 

A review of the projects register is undertaken 
immediately, and the correct status of project and 
project managers recorded. Furthermore a system of 
regular reviews be introduced to ensure the currency 
is retained.

 

 a)The disaster recovery arrangements should be 
 tested on an annual basis.  

 

 b)Test results should be documented and 
 analysed.

 

 c)A formal action plan should be implemented to 
address any weakness identified during testing 

 (including contractor performance).

 

All permanent and fixed term contract staff positions 
should be supported by a request to recruit form.

 

DBS checks and disclosures should be undertaken for 
all posts that require a one in a timely manner.  
Internal audit would also recommend that is 
undertaken prior to the commencement of their 
employment.

 

Recommendation Recommendation Update

An action plan with implementation target dates is 
developed to ensure that any key actions identified 
after elections are in place prior to the next elections.

 

A documented framework should be introduced 
setting out how often different types of data are 
backed up, how many copies require retaining and for 
how long. This should then be reflected within the 
Veeam back up system. 

 

P
age 318

A
genda Item

 12



Rec ID Audit Name Audit Year Head of Service Service Manager Recommendation 

Name

Risk Rating Implementation date Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised Implementation 

Date

15 Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Adrianna Partridge 
(Audit Manager)

4. Money Laundering 
 Response Plan

Medium 31/03/15 05/01/16 Not Implemented 30/06/16

16 Anti-Fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 Margaret Reed (Head Of Legal And 
Democratic Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)

5. Awareness of anti-
fraud and corruption 
arrangements and 
training modules.

High 30/11/14 10/06/15 Not Implemented 30/09/15

18 Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Adrianna Partridge 
(Audit Manager)

5. Awareness of anti-
fraud and corruption 
arrangements and 
training modules.

High 30/06/15 12/01/16 Partly Implemented 30/06/16

20 Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Adrianna Partridge 
(Assurance Manager)

6. Standard 
investigations files

Medium 31/03/15 16/06/16 Not Implemented 31/08/16

23 Petty Cash 2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Emma Dolman (Arts 
Manager)

4. Storage of 
claims/receipts - 
Cornerstone

Low 08/01/15 21/07/15 Not Implemented 21/07/15

24 Petty Cash 2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Ben Watson (Finance 
& Systems Manager)

5. Petty Cash 
Replenishment Process

Medium 31/01/15 17/06/16 Not Implemented 31/07/16

31 S106, Commuted Sums, CIL 2014/2015 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Cathie Scotting 
(Major Applications 
Officer)

4. Internet and intranet 
register

Low 31/05/15  Partly Implemented 31/03/16

32 S106, Commuted Sums and 
CIL

2013/2014 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Cathie Scotting 
(Major Applications 
Officer)

7. Reconciliations Medium 30/04/15  Partly Implemented 31/03/16

42 Health and Safety 2013/2014 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

3. Fire warden training High 31/03/14 08/01/16 Ongoing (Date of 
implementation not yet 
passed)

31/03/16

44 Council fees and charges 2013/2014 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Ben Watson (Finance 
& Systems Manager)

1. Key information Low 31/10/14 09/07/15 Not Implemented 31/10/15

53 Post Room 2013/2014 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Marcia Slater 
(Business Support 
Manager)

2. Procedures Low 30/09/13 04/06/14 N/A 30/06/14

55 Inter-council Recharges 2013/2014 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Ben Watson (Finance 
& Systems Manager)

1. Policies and 
procedures

High 31/03/14 08/06/15 Not Implemented 31/10/15

203 Procurement 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Andrew Down (Head 
of HR, IT & Technical 
Services)

Pre committment Medium 31/12/15 12/01/16 Partly Implemented 30/06/16

236 Waste Management and 
Recycling

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Ian Matten (Waste & 
Parks Service 
Manager)

Roles and 
responsibilities

Low 29/02/16 12/04/16 Not Implemented 30/06/16

243 Cash Office 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Ben Watson (Finance 
& Systems Manager)

Access to Civica Icon Medium 31/03/16 13/06/16 Not Implemented 01/07/16

252 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

1a) Statement of 
Community Involvement

Low 31/03/16 02/02/16 Not Implemented 22/08/16

253 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

1b) Statement of 
Community Involvement

Low 31/03/16 02/02/16 Not Implemented 22/08/16

254 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2a) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 30/04/16    

255 Consultations (public and 
staff) 

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

2a) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 01/01/16    

 b)The planning policy team should also ensure that 
regular updates are performed and documented on a 
regular basis.  

Information provided to Audit on 1/2/16.  
Recommendation implementation date moved to 22 
Aug 2016 to check on progress.  Please see audit 
follow up file

 a)The evaluation process should include an 
assessment to determine the actual cost of the 
consultation, both directly and indirectly.  The 
proportion of the cost in relation to the service area 
should also be identified.  The cost should be 
compared to similar exercises within the council or 
similar local authorities.  These areas are considered 
good practice and they should be incorporated into a 
financial cost evaluation undertaken by the council.

 

 a)The evaluation process should include an 
assessment to determine the actual cost of the 
consultation, both directly and indirectly.  The 
proportion of the cost in relation to the service area 
should also be identified.  The cost should be 
compared to similar exercises within the council or 
similar local authorities.  These areas are considered 
good practice and they should be incorporated into a 
financial cost evaluation undertaken by the council.

 

The waste business support team leader¿s roles and 
responsibilities need to be revised and updated in 
consultation with the human resources team.

 

A review of access to the Civica Icon system should 
be undertaken to ensure that only current and 

 appropriate staff have access to the system..

 

The Statement of Community Involvement should be 
updated and needs to show sufficient evidence of its 
review by an appropriate officer.  

Information provided to Audit on 1/2/16.  
Recommendation implementation date moved to 22 
Aug 2016 to check on progress.  Please see audit 
follow up file

c) Comprehensive and up to date procedures should 
be in place covering the processing of incoming and 
outgoing post within HR.

c) Not implemented due to the closure of the Vale 
office, Comprehensive and up to date procedures 
should be in place covering the processing of 
incoming and outgoing post within HR will now be 
produced..(a) Establish policy and procedures on when joint 

purchases is allowed and what inter-council recharges 
 should then be made.

(b) Incorporate good practice guides in recharges 
 guidance (e.g. use of time allocation sheets).

(c) Incorporate a section on key issues in recharges 
guidance (e.g. transferring items, low value 

 purchases).

This is now being reviewed following the move to one 
office.  This will be implemented prior to the 2015/16 
budget setting process.  This will be completed by 31 

 October 2014.
 

Update (8/6/15)  Due to staffing issues and the recent 
fire, the accountancy team have been divereted to 
other priorities and this remains an aspiration.  I would 

 still not regard this as high risk.

All expenditure on goods and services should be 
reviewed by the procurement officer prior to the 
expenditure being authorised.

Whilst it is not practical for all items of procurement 
expenditure to be reviewed, the procurement officer is 
becoming more involved in procurement exercises 
and currently reviews contracts exceeding £10,000. 
Involvement of the procurement officer will become a 
formal requirement once the revised contract 
procedure rules are in place. More complex 
procurements have a gateway review prior to 
procurement with a commercial options paper 
developed setting out the structure and framework for 
the exercise with and assessment of the pros and 
cons for each option.  (Added by Sandy Bayley

A regular reconciliation of agreements recorded within 
Ocella should be undertaken with general ledger 
transactions to ensure income is accurately recorded.

The November report to cabinet contained financial 
analysis and followed an exercise matching Agresso 
and Ocella data.  

All fire wardens should be appropriately trained. The fire evacuation procedures at Crowmarsh and 
Abbey House had been reviewed,updated and fire 
wardens were trained.  Since this recommendation, 
due to the fire we have now moved to 135 Milton 
Park, the occupancy at Abbey House has changed 
and we have lost a large number of staff, everything 
needed to be revisited.  We have divided Milton Park 
into zones and we have recruited fire wardens for 
each zone.  All fire wardens have been sent 
information on their role during a fire evacuation.  Not 
all fire wardens have been trained but we hope to 
complete this by 31 March 2016.  

A standard template should be incorporated within the 
fee setting process to capture key information in a 
standard format where it is not already clearly and 
comprehensively stated.

The Accountancy Manager (Revenue) stated that this 
recommendation will be reviewed as part of the 
2016/2017 budget setting process and a decision will 
be made. - Added by Nilesh Parmar after discussion.

Records of individual claims and the supporting 
receipts should be included with the voucher 
requesting top up of the float balance so that they are 
captured as an image within the Agresso system.

The last replenishment request was made in February 
2015 and did not have a receipt attached.  The officer 
submitting the requests is now aware of the new 
process to follow and will implement this from the next 

 replenishment request when it is needed.
 The request to replenish petty cash should be 

processed within creditors using a separate control 
account requiring a single coding and routing to an 
agreed officer for authorisation. Journal transfers 

Not a priority at present.  revised implementation date 
 changed to July 2016 

FK Update 17/6/16

When expenditure is recorded within Ocella, this 
should also be made available within the intranet and 
internet listings.

Ocella has been updated and further data entry work 
is needed to complete new database fileds to records 
S106 spending.

a) The council needs to ensure that there is sufficient 
visibility (i.e. posters/leaflets/bulletins) across all 
council buildings informing staff of the anti-fraud and 
corruption culture throughout the workplace.  

 a)Due to elections preparations, the democratic 
services team priorities had to be changed.  This will 
be picked up by the democratic services team and 
implemented by September 2015 incorporating the 
office move to Milton Park.

b) An anti-fraud and corruption/money laundering 
training session should be developed and made 
available to councillors/officers, with appropriate 
officers identified for mandatory training.

The ML action plan identifies this needs to be 
implemented.  Due to a current lack of resources, the 
target date has been set for the end of June 2016 
(revised implementation date: 31 Dec 15)

A standard approach for compiling investigation files 
and collating and documenting evidence should be 
implemented.

"Internal audit identified that this recommendation has 
not been implemented by the responsible officers. A 

 new implementation date has been put in place.
 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not been 
undertaken.  The recommendation has now been 
allocated to the audit team to undertaken by the end 

 of August 2016. "
Added by FK 16/6/16

SODC Summary of overdue recommendations

Recommendation Recommendation Update

A comprehensive money laundering response plan 
needs to be implemented by the S151 officer and 
published to all staff and council members.

The ML action plan identifies this needs to be 
implemented.  Due to a current lack of resources, the 
target date has been set for the end of June 2016

P
age 319

A
genda Item

 12



256 Consultations (public and 
staff) 

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2b) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 30/04/16    

257 Consultations (public and 
staff) 

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

2b) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 01/01/16    

258 Consultations (public and 
 staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

2c) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 01/01/16    

259 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2c) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 30/04/16    

260 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

3a) Assessments of 
added value

Low 01/01/16    

261 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

3b) Assessments of 
added value

Low 01/01/16    

305 National Non-Domestic Rates 
(NNDR)

2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

Suspense Account Low 01/03/16    

308 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Grant Conditions 
Acceptance

High 30/04/16    

309 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Post Funding Checks Medium 30/04/16    

310 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Supporting 
Documentation

Medium 30/04/16    

311 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Efficiency of Grant 
Applications

Low 31/03/16    

325 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

3b) Sundry suppliers 
account 

High 31/01/16    

327 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

4a) Duplicate Suppliers 
on Agresso

High 01/04/16    

329 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

4c) Duplicate Suppliers 
on Agresso

High 01/04/16    

330 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

5) VAT Invoices - 
Council only

Low 31/01/16    

331 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

5) VAT Invoices - Capita 
Only

Low 31/01/16    

332 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

6a) Duplicate invoices High 30/06/16    

333 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

6b) Duplicate invoices High 30/06/16    

335 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

6d) Duplicate invoices High 30/06/16    

350 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

Independent contractor 
assurances

Medium 01/06/16 04/07/16 Not Implemented 30/07/16

351 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 

(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

Aged debt management Low 01/06/16 04/07/16 Not Implemented 29/07/16

357 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Travel & Expenses 
Policy

Low 31/08/16    

358 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Authorisation of 
appointment/leaver/ame
ndment forms

Medium 01/03/16    

359 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Establishment Listing 
Reconciliation

High 30/04/16    

360 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Starters Low 31/03/16    

369 Capital Management & 
Accounting

2015/2016 Chris Tyson (Head of Economy, 
Leisure And Property)

Suzanne Malcolm 
(Economic 
Development 
Manager)

5. Asset Management 
Plan

Low 31/08/16    

All starter processes should comply with the council¿s 
 agreed policies and procedures i.e.

 a)Two references must be received for all starters 
 and filed within the personnel records.

 b)All references received must show sufficient 
independence from the staff members conducting the 

 interview.
 c)All new starters who joined via agency 

employment or contractual work need to have the 
council¿s standard documentation requested and filed 
in their personnel records.

 

An up to date Asset Management Plan should be in 
 place which is:-

  a)Subject to regular review
  b)Clearly dated and approved
  c)Publicly available.

 

The travel and expenses policy should be reviewed 
and amended as the policy still refers to Crowmarsh 
Gifford when claiming business mileage.

 

HR should ensure that the emails are filed alongside 
the notification of appointment, leaver and 
amendment forms to confirm that the forms are 
approved and sent by the appropriate officer.

 

Discrepancies found from the reconciliation between 
the establishment list and the payroll system should be 
dealt with efficiently to ensure that records held by 
both HR and Capita payroll are accurate.

 

 6d)Controls need to be reviewed, analysed and 
communicated to the relevant officers to prevent 

 reoccurrence.
 

 

The council should seek from Capita as part of the 
contract, assurance that the controls in place 
surrounding accounts receivable operated by Capita 
are regularly reviewed and are effective.  Any control 
weaknesses identified and action taken should be 
reported to the council.

The implementation date has been put back to enable 
discussions to take place with Capita's new Finance 
Manager, Paul Thorogood. As explained above, this 
recommendation should apply across all services for 
consistencies sake, so as we move forward to 1 
August, we need to think how to apply it.

Management should review all long term outstanding 

debts on a regular basis and consider writing these 
debts off or progressing alternative action.

The implementation date has been put back to enable 

discussions to take place with Capita's new Finance 
Manager, Paul Thorogood.

5a) VAT should only be coded for reclaim when 
 suitable VAT invoices/receipts are provided. 

 

5b) Guidance should be provided to officers as to 
 what constitutes appropriate VAT documentation.

 

 6a)The Darlington team need to ensure that all 
invoices being registered  go to a ¿coding group¿ for 
coding in Agresso in the first instance for council 
officers to check and authorise that all the details are 
correct (including supplier account). 

 

 6b)The community safety department, human 
resources department, facilities department and 
Capita staff need to review the duplicate registration 
and payment highlighted during the audit and recover 
any overpayments from suppliers.

 

 4a)Regular reviews should be undertaken on the 
supplier master file to ensure that possible duplicate 
suppliers are reviewed and if necessary, closed on the 
Agresso system.

 

 4c)The human resources department should ensure 
that a refund request is requested for the invoice 
payment duplications made by the council as soon as 
possible.

 

5a) VAT should only be coded for reclaim when 
 suitable VAT invoices/receipts are provided.

 

5b) Guidance should be provided to officers as to 
what constitutes appropriate VAT documentation.

 

The supporting documentation for neighbourhood 
planning grants should be filed appropriately so that an 
audit trail is in place confirming compliance with the 
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012.

 

Neighbourhood planning grants should be applied for 
from DCLG at the next possible time after the area 
designations/decision statements are approved.

 

 3b)Efforts must be made by the planning policy 
department to recover the duplicate payments made 
through the sundry supplier accounts to the supplier. 

 

A review of the suspense account should be 
undertaken and a decision made on the old 
transactions still on the account.

 

Prior to the grant being issued, the planning policy 
team should ensure that the town/ parish councils 
have signed and returned the acceptance of grant 
conditions form so that the grant awarded can be 
withdrawn for non-compliance.

 

At the submission stage, the district councils should 
request from the town/parish councils¿ confirmation 
that all the funding provided was used on developing 
the neighbourhood plan.

 

 c) Once the financial cost evaluation process has 
been decided it should be included in the current 
corporate consultation procedures.

 

 a)Appropriate assessments should be undertaken 
following any changes resulting from consultation to 
assess the outcome and the process of the 
consultation undertaken. The effectiveness of the 
consultation itself should also be evaluated.

 

 b)The current corporate consultation procedures 
should include guidance to the assessment of the 
outcome and process of the consultation and also the 
evaluation process.

 

 b)The lead officer within each service area should be 
assigned responsibility for ensuring a financial cost 
evaluation is undertaken on all consultations.  The 
results of the evaluation should be reported to the 
relevant senior officers and appropriate councillors on 

 a regular basis.
 

 

 b)The lead officer within each service area should be 
assigned responsibility for ensuring a financial cost 
evaluation is undertaken on all consultations.  The 
results of the evaluation should be reported to the 
relevant senior officers and appropriate councillors on 
a regular basis.

 

c) Once the financial cost evaluation process has been 
decided it should be included in the current corporate 
consultation procedures.

 

P
age 320

A
genda Item

 12



414 Insurance 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) William Jacobs (Head 
Of Finance)

16. Business continuity 
claim - SODC

Medium 31/07/16     a)The business continuity claim should be revised to 
exclude the staff compensation payments for both the 
flat rate £25 amounts and the individual claim 

 amounts. 
 b)The spreadsheet used to record the personal loss 

expenditure should be enhanced to include a 
reconciliation with payroll records and with the 

 continuity claim. 

 

P
age 321

A
genda Item

 12



Rec ID Audit Name Audit Year Head of Service Service Manager Recommendation 

Name

Risk Rating Implementation date Date of Officer 

Update

Recommendation 

Status

Revised Implementation 

Date

79 Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Adrianna Partridge 
(Audit Manager)

4. Money Laundering 
Response Plan

Medium 31/03/15 12/01/16 Not Implemented 30/06/16

80 Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 Margaret Reed (Head Of Legal And 
Democratic Services)

Steven Corrigan 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)

5. Awareness of anti-
fraud and corruption 
arrangements and 
training modules.

High 30/11/14 10/06/15 Not Implemented 30/09/15

81 Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Adrianna Partridge 
(Audit Manager)

5. Awareness of anti-
fraud and corruption 
arrangements and 
training modules.

High 31/03/15 12/01/16 Partly Implemented 30/06/16

84 Anti-fraud and Corruption 
Arrangements

2014/2015 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Adrianna Partridge 
(Assurance Manager)

6. Standard 
investigations files

Medium 31/03/15 16/06/16 Not Implemented 31/08/16

98 S106, CIL and Commuted 
Sums

2013/2014 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Cathie Scotting 
(Major Applications 
Officer)

3. Internet and intranet 
register

Low 31/05/15  Partly Implemented 31/03/16

99 S106, CIL and Commuted 
Sums

2013/2014 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Cathie Scotting 
(Major Applications 
Officer)

7. Reconciliation Medium 30/04/15  Partly Implemented 31/03/15

110 Council fees and charges 2013/2014 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Ben Watson (Finance 
& Systems Manager)

1. Key information Low 31/10/14 09/07/15 Not Implemented 31/10/15

118 Inter-council Recharges 2013/2014 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Bob Watson 
(Accountancy 
Manager (Technical))

1. Policies and 
procedures

High 31/03/14 08/06/15 Not Implemented 30/10/15

213 Procurement 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Andrew Down (Head 
of HR, IT & Technical 
Services)

Pre Committment Medium 31/12/15 12/01/16 Partly Implemented 30/06/16

237 Waste Management and 
Recycling

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Ian Matten (Waste & 
Parks Service 
Manager)

Roles and 
responsibilities

Low 29/02/16 12/04/16 Not Implemented 30/06/16

239 Cash Office 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Ben Watson (Finance 
& Systems Manager)

Civica access Medium 31/03/16  Not Implemented  

262 Consultations (public and 
staff) 

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

1a) Statement of 
Community Involvement

Low 31/03/16 03/02/16 Not Implemented 22/08/16

263 Consultations (public and 
staff) 

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

1b) Statement of 
Community Involvement

Low 31/03/16 03/02/16 Not Implemented 22/08/16

264 Consultations (public and 
staff) 

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2a) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 30/04/16    

267 Consultations (public and 
staff) 

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2b) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 30/04/16    

269 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

2c) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 30/04/16    

270 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

2c) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 01/01/16    

271 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

3a) Assessments of 
added value

Low 01/01/16    

272 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Clare Kingston (Head Of Corporate 
Strategy)

Sally Truman (Policy, 
Partnership & 
Engagement 
Manager)

3b) Assessments of 
added value

Low 01/01/16    

304 Consultations (public and 
staff)

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Duncan Grainge 
(Customer Service 
Manager)

2b) Assessment of 
financial costs

Medium 01/01/16    

306 National Non-Domestic Rate 
(NNDR)

2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

Suspense Account Low 01/03/16    

313 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Grant Conditions 
Acceptance

High 30/04/16    

A review of the suspense account should be 
undertaken and a decision made on the old 
transactions still on the account.

 

Prior to the grant being issued, the planning policy 
team should ensure that the town/ parish councils 
have signed and returned the acceptance of grant 

conditions form so that the grant awarded can be 
withdrawn for non-compliance.

 

 b)The current corporate consultation procedures 
should include guidance to the assessments of the 
outcome and process of the consultation and also the 
evaluation process.

 

 b)The lead officer within each service area should be 
assigned responsibility for ensuring a financial cost 
evaluation is undertaken on all consultations.  The 
results of the evaluation should be reported to the 
relevant senior officers and appropriate councillors on 
a regular basis.

 

 c)Once the financial cost evaluation process has 
been decided it should be included in the current 
corporate consultation procedures.

 

 c)Once the financial cost evaluation process has 
been decided it should be included in the current 
corporate consultation procedures.

 

 a)Appropriate assessments should be undertaken 
following any changes resulting from consultation to 
assess the outcome and the process of the 
consultation undertaken. The effectiveness of the 
consultation itself should also be evaluated.

 

 a)The evaluation process should include an 
assessment to determine the actual cost of the 
consultation, both directly and indirectly.  The 
proportion of the cost in relation to the service area 
should also be identified.  The cost should be 
compared to similar exercises within the council or 
similar local authorities.  These areas are considered 
good practice and they should be incorporated into a 
financial cost evaluation undertaken by the council.

 

 b)The lead officer within each service area should be 
assigned responsibility for ensuring a financial cost 
evaluation is undertaken on all consultations.  The 
results of the evaluation should be reported to the 
relevant senior officers and appropriate councillors on 
a regular basis.

 

A review of access to the Civica Icon system should 
be undertaken to ensure that only current and 
appropriate staff have access to the system

 

 a)The Statement of Community Involvement should 
be updated and needs to show sufficient evidence of 

 its review by an appropriate officer.  
 

Information provided to Audit on 1/2/16.  
Recommendation implementation date moved to 22 
Aug 2016 to check on progress.  Please see audit 
follow up file

 b)The planning policy team should also ensure that 
regular updates are performed and documented on a 
regular basis.  

Information provided to Audit on 1/2/16.  
Recommendation implementation date moved to 22 
Aug 2016 to check on progress.  Please see audit 
follow up file

(a) Establish policy and procedures on when joint 
purchases is allowed and what inter-council recharges 

 should then be made.
(b) Incorporate good practice guides in recharges 

 guidance (e.g. use of time allocation sheets).
(c) Incorporate a section on key issues in recharges 
guidance (e.g. transferring items, low value 

 purchases).

This is now being reviewed following the move to one 
office.  This will be implemented prior to the 2015/16 
budget setting process.  This will be completed by 31 

 October 2014.
 

Not yet had the opportunity to review policy and 
guidance (although FPR have been updated).  Still do 
not consider this high risk and would appreciate if the 
rationale for this decision to assess it so could be 

 explained. 
 

As above and due to higher priority issues and limited 
resources this has yet to be implemented.

All expenditure on goods and services should be 
reviewed by the procurement officer prior to the 
expenditure being authorised.

Whilst it is not practical for all items of procurement 
expenditure to be reviewed, the procurement officer is 
becoming more involved in procurement exercises 
and currently reviews contracts exceeding £10,000. 
Involvement of the procurement officer will become a 
formal requirement once the revised contract 
procedure rules are in place. More complex 
procurements have a gateway review prior to 
procurement with a commercial options paper 
developed setting out the structure and framework for 
the exercise with and assessment of the pros and 
cons for each option. (added by Sandy Bayley)

The waste business support team leader¿s roles and 
responsibilities need to be revised and updated in 
consultation with the human resources team.

 

A regular reconciliation of agreements recorded within 
Ocella should be undertaken with general ledger 
transactions to ensure income is accurately recorded.

The November report to cabinet contained financial 
analysis and followed an exercise matching Agresso 
and Ocella data.  

A standard template should be incorporated within the 
fee setting process to capture key information in a 
standard format where it is not already clearly and 
comprehensively stated.

The Accountancy Manager (Revenue) stated that this 
recommendation will be reviewed as part of the 
2016/2017 budget setting process and a decision will 
be made. - Added by Nilesh Parmar after discussion.

b) An anti-fraud and corruption/money laundering 
training session should be developed and made 
available to councillors/officers, with appropriate 
officers identified for mandatory training.

The ML action plan identifies this needs to be 
implemented.  Due to a current lack of resources, the 
target date has been set for the end of June 2016 
(revised implementation date: 30 June 16)

A standard approach for compiling investigation files 
and collating and documenting evidence should be 
implemented.

"Internal audit identified that this recommendation has 
not been implemented by the responsible officers. A 

 new implementation date has been put in place.
 

Due to resources, the recommendation has not been 
undertaken.  The recommendation has now been 
allocated to the audit team to undertaken by the end 

 of August 2016. "
Added by FK 16/6/16

When expenditure is recorded within Ocella, this 
should also be made available within the intranet and 
internet listings.

Ocella has been updated and further data entry work 
is needed to complete new database fileds to records 
S106 spending.

VWHDC Summary of overdue recommendations

Recommendation Recommendation Update

A comprehensive money laundering response plan 
needs to be implemented by the S151 officer and 
published to all staff and council members.

The ML action plan identifies this needs to be 
implemented.  Due to a current lack of resources, the 
target date has been set for the end of June 2016

a) The council needs to ensure that there is sufficient 
visibility (i.e. posters/leaflets/bulletins) across all 
council buildings informing staff of the anti-fraud and 

 corruption culture throughout the workplace.  
 

 a)Due to elections preparations, the democratic 
services team priorities had to be changed.  This will 
be picked up by the democratic services team and 
implemented by September 2015 incorporating the 
office move to Milton Park.

P
age 322

A
genda Item

 12



314 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Post Funding Checks Medium 30/04/16    

315 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Supporting 
Documentation

Medium 30/04/16    

316 Neighbourhood Planning 
Grants

2015/2016 Adrian Duffield (Head of Planning) Michelle Yankah 
(Cutomer Service 
Team Leader)

Efficiently of Grant 
Applications

Low 31/03/16    

317 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

Independent contractual 
assurances

Medium 01/06/16 04/07/16 Not Implemented 30/07/16

318 Sundry Debtors 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

Aged debt management Low 01/06/16 04/07/16 Not Implemented 30/07/16

343 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

4a) Duplicate Suppliers 
on Agresso

High 01/04/16    

345 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

4c) Duplicate Suppliers 
on Agresso

High 01/04/16    

346 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

4d) Duplicate Suppliers 
on Agresso

High 01/04/16    

347 Creditor Payment 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Paul Howden 
(Revenues & Benefits 
Client Manager)

5a) Duplicate Invoices High 30/06/16    

349 Creditor Payments 2015/2016 William Jacobs (Head Of Finance) Ben Watson (Finance 
& Systems Manager)

5c) Duplicate Invoices High 30/06/16    

362 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Travel & Expenses 
Policy

Low 31/08/16    

363 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Authorisation of 
appointment/leaver/ame
ndment forms

Medium 01/03/16    

364 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Establishment listing 
reconciliation

High 30/04/16    

365 Payroll 2015/2016 Andrew Down (Head of HR, IT & 
Technical Services)

Mark Gibbons (HR 
Business Partner)

Starters Low 31/03/16    

373 Capital Management & 
Accounting

2015/2016 Chris Tyson (Head of Economy, 
Leisure And Property)

Suzanne Malcolm 
(Economic 
Development 
Manager)

5. Asset management 
plan

Low 31/08/16    

Discrepancies found from the reconciliation between 
the establishment list and the payroll system should be 
dealt with efficiently to ensure that records held by 
both HR and Capita payroll are accurate.

 

All starter processes should comply with the council¿s 
 agreed policies and procedures i.e.

 a)Two references must be received for all starters 
 and filed within the personnel records.

 b)All references received must show sufficient 
independence from the staff members conducting the 

 interview.
 c)All new starters who joined via agency 

employment or contractual work need to have the 
council¿s standard documentation requested and filed 
in their personnel records.

 

An up to date Asset Management Plan should be in 
 place which is:-

  a)Subject to regular review
  b)Clearly dated and approved
  c)Publicly available

 

 5c)Controls need to be reviewed, analysed and 
communicated to the relevant officers to prevent 
reoccurrence.

 

The travel and expenses policy should be reviewed 
and amended as the policy still refers to Crowmarsh 
Gifford when claiming business mileage.

 

HR should ensure that the emails are filed alongside 
the notification of appointment, leaver and 
amendment forms to confirm that the forms are 

approved and sent by the appropriate officer.

 

 4c)The licensing department and the IT department 
should ensure that a refund request is requested for 
the invoice payment duplications made by the council 

 as soon as possible.
 

 

 4d)The IT operations manager should remind all 
Vodafone account holders in the council on the uses 
of the Vodafone accounts in Agresso to ensure they 
use the correct supplier id when making payments. 

 

 5a)The legal department, facilities department and 
Capita staff need to review the duplicate registration 
and payment highlighted during the audit and recover 
any overpayments from suppliers.

 

Management should review all long term outstanding 
debts on a regular basis and consider writing these 
debts off or progressing alternative action.

The implementation date has been put back to enable 
discussions to take place with Capita's new Finance 
Manager, Paul Thorogood.

 4a)Regular reviews should be undertaken on the 
supplier master file to ensure that possible duplicate 
suppliers are reviewed and if necessary, closed on the 
Agresso system.

 

The supporting documentation for neighbourhood 
planning grants should be filed appropriately so that an 
audit trail is in place confirming compliance with the 
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012.

 

Neighbourhood planning grants should be applied for 
from DCLG at the next possible time after the area 
designations/decision statements are approved.

 

The council should seek from Capita as part of the 
contract, assurance that the controls in place 
surrounding accounts receivable operated by Capita 
are regularly reviewed and are effective.  Any control 
weaknesses identified and action taken should be 
reported to the council.

The implementation date has been put back to enable 
discussions to take place with Capita's new Finance 
Manager, Paul Thorogood. As explained above, this 
recommendation should apply across all services for 
consistencies sake, so as we move forward to 1 
August, we need to think how to apply it.

At the submission stage, the district councils should 
request from the town/parish councils¿ confirmation 
that all the funding provided was used on developing 
the neighbourhood plan.

 

P
age 323

A
genda Item

 12



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Assurance Manager
Author: Adrianna Partridge
Telephone: 01235 540389
Textphone: 18001 01235 540455
E-mail: adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Jane Murphy
Tel: 07970 932054
E-mail: jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 26 September 2016

Internal audit management report 
quarter two 2016/2017
 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to report on management issues within internal audit;

 to summarise the progress against the 2016/2017 audit plan up to 12 
September 2016; and

 to summarise the priorities for quarter three 2016/2017.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 324

Agenda Item 13

mailto:jane.murphy@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2. The contact officer for this report is Adrianna Partridge, Assurance Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, 
telephone 01235 422485.

Strategic objectives

3. Managing our business effectively.

Background 

4. The CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK 
2006 states that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit 
plan, which should outline the assignments to be carried out and the broad 
resources required to deliver the plan.

5. The CIPFA Code also states that the audit committee should approve the 
annual internal audit plan and monitor progress against the plan.  The joint 
committee approved the 2016/2017 annual internal audit plan on 21 March 
2016.

Management issues

6. Within the 2016/2017 South and Vale internal audit plan, a flexible allocation 
has been made for 5 councils partnership (5CP) assurance work.  Through 
discussion with external audit, the following 5CP reviews have been proposed:

IA reviews
 Control process review of the 5CP procurement process – currently in 

progress.
 An assurance review of the IT general control environment –proposed for 

after the initial S&V target operating model (TOM) for IT (Feb – March 
2017).

 An assurance review of the data migration process to Integra – pre-live 
checks Feb 2017 and post-live review June 2017.

 An assurance review of the 5CP corporate governance arrangements and 
how they link/integrate to the councils’ own corporate governance 
arrangements – proposed Jan 2017.

 Oversight (and insurance input) of the asset transfer process – currently in 
progress.

7. IA and EA involvement in other work
 Oversight (and input when relevant) of Capita and Vinci’s policy and 

process mapping programmes of work, and copies of all system flowcharts 
and maps to be shared with internal audit and external audit.  Assurance 
manager now involved in Capita and Vinci’s working groups.

8. External audit reviews
 A review of the contract terms – currently in progress.
 A review of the implementation of the contract (how the councils are 

working with the providers and monitoring performance/resolving issues).  – 
proposed Dec 2016 – Feb 2017.

 A review of whether the savings being designated are in accordance with 
the terms of the contract – proposed Nov 2016 – Jan 2017.

Page 325

Agenda Item 13



Progress against the 2016/2017 audit plan

9. Progress against the approved audit plan has been calculated for the quarter 
and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 attached.

Performance figures to date are as follows:

Target YTD Q1 
15/16

Q2 
15/16

Q3 
15/16

Q4 
15/16

Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable)

74% 74.5% 71.5% 77% - -

Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable)

8% 6% 7% 5% - -

Planned Lost
(i.e. leave)

16% 18% 20% 16% - -

Unplanned Lost
(i.e. study, sickness)

2% 1.5% 1.5% 2% - -

10. As at 12 September 2016 the status of audit work against the 2016/2017 audit 
plan is as follows:

Planned 

Strategic, operational and financial assurance work known and approved by the 
audit and governance committee.

2016/2017

Pl
an

ne
d

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce
PLANNED 28 5 2 6 15
Joint 25 5 2 5 13
SODC 3 0 0 1 2

Adhoc

Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e. implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and 
agreed by the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e. 
investigations).

2016/2017

R
eq

ue
st

ed

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

ADHOC 5 1 1 2 1
Joint 4 1 0 2 1
SODC 0 0 0 0 0

Page 326

Agenda Item 13



VWHDC 1 1 0 0 0

Follow up 

Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal 
audit reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an 
annual review.

2016/2017
R

eq
ue

st
ed

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

FOLLOW-UP 32 12 0 6 16
SODC 16 6 0 3 8
VWHDC 16 6 0 3 8

Priorities for 2016/2017 quarter three (October 2016 - December 2016)

11. The priorities for quarter three are to:
 
 Progress agreed 5 councils partnership assurance work.

12. Remaining 2016/2017 planned audit work can be reviewed in appendix 2. 

Financial implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal implications

14. None.

Risk implications

15. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

ADRIANNA PARTRIDGE
ASSURANCE MANAGER

Page 327

Agenda Item 13



PLANNED AUDIT 2016/2017

System Name

As at 12 September 2016

Payroll (29 priority score) 36

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

General Ledger (26) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Procurement (CSP) (25) 20

SODC 9.5

VWHDC 9.5

Council Tax (24) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Creditor Payments (24) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review (23) 20

SODC 1.5

VWHDC 1.5

Capital Management and Accounting (23) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Housing Benefits and CTRS (22) 30

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Sundry Debtors (22) 20

SODC 2.5

VWHDC 2.5

NNDR (20) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Treasury Management (18) 14

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

T
o

ta
l 
N

o
t 

A
g

re
e
d

JOINT - Part 1

M
e
d

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
dStatus

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
D

a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

Exception Issues

L
o

w

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

TOR Sent

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c
sAudit Opinion

To Commence Q3

In Progress

To Commence Q3

In Progress

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q3

In Progress

To Commence Q3

TOR Sent

APPENDIX 1

H
ig

h

P
age 328

A
genda Item

 13



Risk Management (28) 14

SODC 7.0 14 8 8 4 4 2 2 0

VWHDC 7.0 14 8 8 4 4 2 2 0

Community Infrastructure Levy (25) 12

SODC 3.5

VWHDC 3.5

Training and Development (22) 12

SODC 5.0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

VWHDC 5.0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0

Building Control (22) 20

SODC 9.5

VWHDC 9.5

Health and Safety (20) 20

SODC 7.0

VWHDC 7.0

Gifts and Hospitality (20) 10

SODC 5.0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

VWHDC 5.0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0

Performance Management (20) 16

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Facilities Management (20) 20

SODC 10.0

VWHDC 10.0

Lone Working and Officer Security (20) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Comments and Complaints Process (20) 16

SODC 3.5 5 0 0 4 4 1 1 0

VWHDC 3.5 5 0 0 4 4 1 1 0

Environmental Protection (20) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Information Governance (15) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Tree Management and Inspections (15) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Safeguarding Children, Young People and Vulnerable 

Adults (16)

12

SODC 6.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

VWHDC 6.0 3 0 0 1 1 2 2 0

Substantial

Satisfactory

Substantial

Satisfactory

Limited

Satisfactory

Limited

Completed

Draft Out

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q4

Satisfactory

Completed

Substantial

Substantial

JOINT - Part 2
Completed

In Progress

Completed

In Progress

To Commence Q4

Completed

To Commence Q4

Draft Out

To Commence Q4

P
age 329

A
genda Item

 13



Cornerstone (21) In Progress 10 3.5

Leader Project Assurance (17) To Commence Q3 10 0.0

Leader Project Grant Verification (10) To Commence Q3 5 0.0

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full

Substantial
Satisfactory

Limited
Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

010102048

4

IA PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS

0

- 485 144.5

4
2

0

SODC

2018 18

VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS - 263 61.0

0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 9- 268 74.0 24 9

0

1
2

1

5

10 10 5 5

0

0
1

2
1

24 9 9 10 10 5

0

0

P
age 330

A
genda Item

 13



FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2015/2016

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

Waste Management & Recycling 1516 0.25 Substantial 3 1 1 1 0

Receipt of Income 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 6 5 1 0 0

Development Management 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 3 3 0 0 0

Licensing 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 6 6 0 0 0

Cash Office 1516 0.25 Limited 4 3 0 1 0

Waste Management & Recycling 1516 0.25 Substantial 3 1 1 1 0

Receipt of Income 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 6 5 1 0 0

Development Management 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 3 3 0 0 0

Licensing 1516 0.25 Satisfactory 4 4 0 0 0

Cash Office 1516 0.25 Limited 5 4 0 1 0

Partnership Performance Monitoring 1516 0.25 Limited 4 0 0 4 0

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2016/2017

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

None

None

None

IA FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS

JOINT FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS

SODC FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS

VWHDC FOLLOW UP 15/16 TOTALS

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

VWHDC

JOINT

P
age 331

A
genda Item

 13



UNPLANNED WORK 2016/2017

CONSULTANCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

CONTINGENCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

MOT and Business Insurance Spotcheck Completed 2 2 Assurance Manager

Urgent Key Decisions TOR sent 3 N/A Chief Executive

5CP Procurement In Progress 20 N/A Assurance Manager

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

West Way Botley Completed 15 40.5 Councillor

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

VWHDC

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 332

A
genda Item

 13



PLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT - PART 1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5

Payroll 29

General Ledger 26

Procurement (CSP) 25

Council Tax 24

Creditor Payments 24

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 23

Capital Management & Accounting 23

Housing Benefits & CTRS 22

Sundry Debtors 22

NNDR 20

Treasury Management 18

JOINT - PART 2

Risk Management 28

Community Infrastucture Levy 25

Training and Development 22

Building Control 22

Health and Safety 20

Gifts and Hospitality 20

Performance Management 20

Facilities Management 20

Lone Working and Officer Security 20

Comments and Complaints Process 20

Environmental Protection 20

Information Governance 15

Tree Management and Inspections 15

Safeguarding Children, Young People and 

Vulnerable Adults
14

SODC

Cornerstone 21

Leader Project Assurance 17

Leader Project Grant Verification 11

FOLLOW UP AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5
Waste Management
Receipt of Income Arrangements
Development Management
Licensing
Cash Office
Consultation
Partnership Performance Management
Leisure
Neighbourhood Planning Grants
Project Management
Elections & Election Payments
ICT
HR Recruitment
HR Mgt
Insurance
Gifts and Hospitality
SODC
None

VWHDC
None

UNPLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5
Spotcheck of MOT and Business Insurance
Urgent Key Decisions
Investigation Templates
5CP Procurement

SODC
None

VWHDC
Planning Investigation

Key
Projected Start Date
In Progress
Draft Issued
Complete

Appendix 2

August September

June

December

February

MarchNovember December January February

A
G

C

A
G

C

March

A
G

C

January

A
G

C

September

February March

October November

A
G

C
A

G
C

A
G

C

A
G

C

December

January

A
G

C

April

A
G

C
A

G
C

 

August

AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2016/2017 (As at 12 September 2016)

April May June July

April May July

May June

A
G

C

October NovemberJuly

August OctoberSeptember

P
age 333

A
genda Item

 13



Audit and governance
work programme

containing Audit and Governance Committee work to 
be undertaken 

1 JANUARY - 31 MARCH 2017

      

The audit and governance work programme belongs to the councils’ Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work 
for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to change at each Committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional 
work.  

You can make representations on any issue below.  Please contact the officer shown below by 10am on the day the committee is due to 
meet.  

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes
Internal audit activity 
report – third quarter 
2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

Adrianna 
Partridge 
Email: 
adrianna.partridg
e@southandvale.
gov.uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2016/17.

To summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity 
for the committee to 
consider.  The 
committee is asked to 
review the report and 
main issues arising, 
and seek assurance 
that action has been or 
will be taken where 
necessary.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

P
age 334

A
genda Item

 14

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
2

Internal audit 
management report - 
third quarter 2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

Adrianna 
Partridge 
Email: 
adrianna.partridg
e@southandvale.
gov.uk

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise the first 
quarter progress of the 
internal audit team 
against the 2016/17 
audit plan, and 
summarise the 
priorities and planned 
audit work for quarter 
three.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

Treasury 
management mid-
year monitoring 
2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity.

To review the councils’ 
treasury management 
activities for the first 
six months of the 
2016/17 financial year.
 

Treasury 
management 
strategies 2016/17

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@
southandvale.gov
.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity and to propose a 
strategies to Councils, 
via Cabinets, for the 
management of this 
function in the 
forthcoming year.

To scrutinise the 
treasury management 
strategies and policies 
and if required, make 
recommendations for 
amendment to 
Cabinets
 

P
age 335

A
genda Item

 14

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
3

External auditor's 
annual audit letter

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 23 
January 2017

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor, 
Ernst & Young, is 
responsible for auditing 
the councils@ business.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
annual audit letter 
2016/17
.
 

Internal audit plan 
2017/18

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
20 March 2017

Adrianna 
Partridge Email: 
adrianna.partridg
e@southandvale.
gov.uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service.

To approve the internal 
audit plan for 2017/18

External auditor's 
report

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 20 
March 2017

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor to 
bring a progress report

P
age 336

A
genda Item

 14

mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 337

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 346

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 351

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 361

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 369

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 417

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Audit Results Report 2015-16
	7 Statement of accounts 2015/16
	South Statement of accounts final
	VALE OF WHITE HORSE final

	8 Annual governance statement 2015/16 - South Oxfordshire
	9 Annual governance statement 2015/16 - Vale of White Horse
	10 Letter of representation to the external auditor - South Oxfordshire
	11 Letter of representation to the external auditor - Vale of White Horse
	12 Internal audit activity report - second quarter 2016/17
	Activity report App Overdue Recs

	13 Internal audit management report quarter two 2016/2017
	Mgt report App1 planned audit
	Mgt report App1 follow up audits
	Mgt report App1 unplanned audits
	Mgt report App 2 Audit Plan Schedule

	14 Audit and governance work programme
	15 Application of restrictions imposed by Section 157 of the Housing Act 1985 in South Oxfordshire - consideration of the local government ombudsman's report
	Appendix 1 - JAGC report September 2015
	Appendix 1a - LGO report August 2015
	Appendix 2 - LGO further report June 2016
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4




